
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

October 10, 2023
Tray Payne, Mayor
Shelia Patterson Harris, Mayor Pro Tem, District 2
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Councilwoman, District 1
Mark W. McBrayer, Councilman, District 3
Steve Massengale, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

 

1:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Open Session and immediately
recesses to Executive Session.
           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Settlement offer for Claim 23-C-055   

 

1. 1. 2. Chapter 22 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances and Chapter 13 of the Texas
Water Code

  

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Electric Utility Board, Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors, Permit &
License Appeal Board, and the Planning & Zoning Commission.

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on October 10, 2023. Citizen Comments
provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items. 

  

 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. August 30, 2023 Special City Council Meeting 
September 5, 2023 Special City Council Meeting
September 12, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting

 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Ordinance No.
2023-O0118, Budget Ordinance Amendment 35, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for
municipal purposes respecting Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the
Texas Health and Human Services Commission; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

5. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 1, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate from the U.S. Department Federal Highway
Administration; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 3. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution expressing intent to finance expenditures to be
incurred for various capital projects and equipment approved by the City Council in the FY
2023-24 Operating Budget and Capital Program, and to reimburse the City from the
proceeds of obligations that will be issued after the expenditure of funds to pay costs of
such projects and equipment.



 

5. 4. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution approving and adopting the FY 2023-24 City
of Lubbock Investment Policy and Investment Strategy, as reviewed and recommended by
the Audit and Investment Committee.

 

5. 5. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City
Manager in purchasing for and on behalf of Lubbock Power and Light, the City’s
municipal electric utility, property insurance coverage to include AEGIS, Talbot and
Hiscox for which the premium shall not exceed a rate of $0.2666 per $100.

 

5. 6. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
portions of street and alley right-of-way in Section AK, Block 38, Lubbock County, Texas,
in the West Milwaukee Ridge Subdivision, east of Upland Avenue between 37th Street and
the Lubbock & Western Railway tracks.

 

5. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept and
execute for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Concurrence Letter related to a Special
Warranty Deed, and all related documents, associated with certain property located in
Section 31, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, near the southwest corner of 66th Street
and Upland Avenue, owned by Bar-Bell Holdings, LLC.

 

5. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept and
execute two Concurrence Letters, and two Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds, and all
related documents, in connection with two parcels of property located in Section 26, Block
AK, Lubbock County, on the north side of 98th Street between Upland Avenue and Alcove
Avenue, owned by Connie Delle Cogdell, to be utilized for the 98th Street Road Project.

 

5. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept and
execute, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Concurrence Letter and a Street and
Public Use Dedication Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real
property located in Section 26, Block  AK, Lubbock County, Texas, on the north side of
98th Street, east of Alcove Avenue, owned by Brian D. Schroeder and Nancy E.
Schroeder, to be utilized for the 98th Street Roadway Project.

 

5. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept and
execute, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Concurrence Letter and Street and
Public Use Dedication Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real
property located in Section 26, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, on the north side of
98th Street, east of Alcove Avenue, owned by Dr. Tedd Mitchell and Dr.Janet
Tornelli-Mitchell, to be utilized for the 98th Street Roadway Project.

 

5. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 17579, with Deerwood Construction, Inc., for installation of a water line
along Milwaukee Avenue from 4th Street to Erskine Street.

 



5. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 17581, with MH Civil Constructors., Inc., for Water Line Change Out,
Cowan Addition, Blocks 5 and 9.

 

5. 13. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
all remaining easements and right-of-way located in Block 130, Original Town of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

5. 14. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Professional Services Agreement 17618, with Freese & Nichols, Inc., for design
services for the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant No. 3 Biological Nutrient Removal
Improvements.

 

5. 15. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 17632, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for design services associated with
the 114th Street, Frankford to Slide-22B Capital Improvements Project.

 

5. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Wastewater Utility: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O0119,
amending the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", to provide
for establishing new definitions, delineating sewer line repair and maintenance
responsibilities, amending the regulation for City-participation for large mains, and
repealing certain inapplicable provisions. 

 

5. 17. Resolution - Water System Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17513, with the United States Geological Survey, for the operations,
maintenance, and validation of various rain and stream flow gauges.

 

5. 18. Resolution - Public Works Street Maintenance: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Contract 17565, with West Texas Paving, Inc., for the reconstruction of
East 33rd Street and Juniper Avenue.

 

5. 19. Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Contract 17480, with Ennis-Flint, Inc., for traffic paint to stripe City
thoroughfares and collector streets.

 

5. 20. Resolution - Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 17498, with Box Gang Manufacturing LLC, for the purchase/services of
dumpsters for residential collection service.

 

5. 21. Ordinance 1st Reading - Building Safety: Consider an ordinance amending Article 2.03,
Division 13, of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, regarding the duties and
responsibilities of the Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board.

 

5. 22. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



5. 22. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Job Order Contract TX-PH-GC-101619-WRC, with WR Construction, Inc., for the
installation of the chain link fencing around the north and west sides of the Lubbock
Animal Shelter.

 

5. 23. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor of
the City of Lubbock to execute Contract No. 17628, a Community Development Block
Grant Funding Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock
and the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the funding of public
service activities, non-public service activities, housing, direct delivery of services, and
administration.

 

5. 24. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor of
the City of Lubbock to execute Contract No. 17629, an Emergency Solutions Grant
Funding Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the funding of Emergency
Shelter, Rapid Re-Housing, Homeless Management Information System, and
administration,

 

5. 25. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor of
the City of Lubbock to execute Contract No. 17630, a HOME Investment Partnership and
Funding Agreement, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the funding of Community
Housing Development Organization operations and projects, affordable housing, and
administration.

 

5. 26. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 15 to Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for professional architectural and
engineering services, for replacement of mechanical equipment at the Lubbock Preston
Smith International Airport.

 

5. 27. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
17593, with Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC, for runway rubber removal at the Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport.

 

5. 28. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Chief
Financial Officer in executing the acceptance of an award of a Federal Transit
Administration Section FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Low-No Discretionary Grant (Project ID
TX-2023-120-00), to be used to purchase up to forty-eight 40-foot and 35-foot Gillig
hybrid electric buses.

 

5. 29. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 326000024, with Dailey & Wells Communications, Inc., for the
replacement of microwave communications network hardware utilized by the Public
Safety Radio System.

 



5. 30. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager, or his
designee, to purchase all the vehicles and equipment approved for replacement, for Fiscal
Year 2023-24, to replace essential assets in various City departments and Citibus.

 

5. 31. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00120,
for Zone Case 59-B, a request of Roberta Beam, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) to Commercial-Apartment District (CA), at 2613 34th Street, located south
of 34th Street, and east of Boston Avenue, Lisemby Addition, Block 1, Lots 5 through 7.

 

5. 32. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00121,
for Zone Case 0092-A, a request of Five Points Corporation for Heather Lea
Hollingsworth, for a Specific Use for an Event Center on property zoned Local Retail
District (C-2), at 4228, 4230, and 4232-A Boston Avenue, located south of 42nd Street and
west of Boston Avenue, Modern Manors Addition, Blocks 1, 2, and 3..

 

5. 33. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Consider Ordinance No.
2023-O00122, for Zone Case 3488, a request of BW Gas & Convenience Retail, LLC for
Buffalos Partners, LLC & CMH Properties, LLC, for a zone change from Transition
District (T) to General Retail District (C-3), at 9704 Highway 87, located north of 98th
Street and west of Highway 87, on 2.8 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 8.

 

5. 34. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No.
2023-O00123, for Zone Case 3351-B, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Two men
and a baby, LLC, for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Interstate Highway
Commercial District (IHC), at 3201 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and east of
Indiana Avenue, on 5.57 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 21.

 

5. 35. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No.
2023-O00124, for Zone Case 3490, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red
Canyon Development, LLC, for a Specific Use for an Athletic Center on property zoned
Transition District (T), generally located south of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue,
on 3.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6

 

5. 36. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00125,
for Zone Case 2968-D, a request of SK Architecture Group, LLC for James Morgan, Ltd.,
for a zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM) to Garden Office District (GO),
at 4007, 4009, 4011, 4013, 4015 and 4017 98th Street, located south of 98th Street and east
of Orlando Avenue, on 1.23 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 17.

 

5. 37. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00126,
for Zone Case 3058-E, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Shag Holdings LLC, for
a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Residential Estates to
General Retail District (C-3), at 7214 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and east of
Upland Avenue, on 5.151 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38.

 

5. 38. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00128,



5. 38. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00128,
for Zone Case 3489, a request of Betenbough Homes, LLC, for a zone change from
Transition District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2), generally located south of 146th
Street and west of Frankford Avenue, on 207.15 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK,
Section 10.

 

5. 39. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No.
2023-O00129, for Zone Case 3032-B, a request of DLC Designs, LLC for Daniel Aaron
Homes of West Texas, LLC, Drylands Homes, LLC, and KLemer Real Estate, LLC, for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Townhomes to
Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Garden Homes, at 50, 51, 52, 64, and 65
Amesbury Court and 66 and 67 Windsor Court, located north of Erskine Street and east of
North Milwaukee Avenue, Wilshire Estates Addition, Lots 50, 51, 52, 64, 65, 66, and 67.

 

5. 40. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No.
2023-O00130, for Zone Case 2538-KK, a request of Delta Land Surveying for Red Yucca
806 Investments LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family
District (R-2), at 2402 Urbana Place, located north of 25th Street and west of Urbana Place,
Parkdale Addition, Block 2, Lots 3 through 5.

 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution to nominate board members to serve as
Appraisal District Directors for the Lubbock Central Appraisal District.

 

6. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No.
2023-O00127, for Zone Case 3205-A, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Paradise
Business Park, LLC, for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District
(IHC) to Local Retail District (C-2), generally located west of Frankford Avenue and south
of 116th Street, on 5.524 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 20.

 

6. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No.
2023-O00131, for Zone Case 3175-G, a request of SK Architecture Group for 806 Land
Group LLC, for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and Reduced
Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at 5914
Erskine Street, located north of Erskine Street, and west of North Genoa Avenue, on 3.475
acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 7.

 

6. 4. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O0116,
abandoning and closing a portion of alley right-of-way located in Block 101, Original
Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, dedicated by map, plat and/or dedication deed
recorded in Volume 5, Page 384 of the deed records of Lubbock County, Texas; and
abandoning and closing three overhead utility easements and three underground utility
easements also located in Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

6. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O0132, and take



6. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O0132, and take
action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final report of
September 7, 2023, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the Unified
Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to
the following: 

1. Sections 39.02.006.a.3 & 39.02.006.b.3 (related to Lot Density and Dimensions);
2. Section 39.03.021.a.2 (related to Signs Exempt from Regulations);
3. Section 39.02.014 (related to the Reduction Overlay (RO) District);
4. Article 39.04 (related to Subdivision Standards);
5. Article 39.07 (related to Development Review Procedures);
6. Section 39.07.007(a) (related to Public Notice);
7.1. Section 39.02.016 (related to the Land Use Matrix);
7.2. Table 39.02.016-1 (related to Permitted Uses by District);
7.3. Table 39.02.006.e-1 (related to IP Permitted Uses);
7.4. Table 39.02.006.f-1 (related to LI Permitted Uses);
7.5. Table 39.02.006.g-1 (related to GI Permitted Uses);
8. Sections 39.02.020.b(4)(F)(A)(iii) and 39.02.020.b(4)(F)(B)(ii) (related to
Residential Carport or Porte Cochere Locations);
9. Section 39.04.005-1 (related to Minimum Connection Spacing by Street
Classification); and
10. Sections 39.02.005.d.3 and 39.02.018.c.7 and Tables 39.02.003-1 and 39.02.016-1
(related to Base Mixed Use Districts and Zoning Map)

 



 AI# 11857 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 1. 2. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Electric Utility
Board, Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors, Permit & License Appeal Board, and the
Planning & Zoning Commission.

Item Summary
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Electric Utility
Board, Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors, Permit & License Appeal Board, and the
Planning & Zoning Commission.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 11976 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
August 30, 2023 Special City Council Meeting 
September 5, 2023 Special City Council Meeting
September 12, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
August 30, 2023 Special City Council Meeting 
September 5, 2023 Special City Council Meeting
September 12, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
8.30.2023 S Joint P&Z 
9.5.2023 S 
9.12.2023 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 30, 2023
2:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 30th of August, 2023, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 2:00 p.m.

2:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Steve Massengale; Council
Member Mark W. McBrayer; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett
Atkinson; City Attorney Chad Weaver; Deputy City Secretary Jimmy Maynard 

Council Member Latrelle Joy attended via video conference.

Note: This was a joint meeting with the Planning and Zoning Commission. Members of the Commission, in
attendance, were: Chair Zach Sawyer, Jordan Wheatley, Tanner Noble, James Bell, Terri Morris, Renee
Cage, and Brandon Hardaway. 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1; and 2. 
Item No.'s 3 and 4 were deleted.

1. Call to Order - Welcome and Introduction

The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m.

1. 1. Introductory remarks and Presentation by the City of Lubbock Planning Staff on the
proposed Amendments to the Unified Development Code and revised Zoning Map

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. Chad Weaver, city attorney, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council. 

2. Hold a Joint City Council Meeting and Public Hearing with the Planning and Zoning
Commission to consider amending the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-
O0054), and zoning map, including but not limited to proposed amendments to Sections
39.02.006.a.3, related to Lot Density and Dimensions, 39.02.020.e.1.A.ii, related to Accessory
Dwelling Units, 39.03.021.a.2, related to Signs Exempt from Regulations, 39.04.024.a related
to the Required Notice for Final Plats Containing Lake or Flood Risk Areas, 39.02.014,
related to the Reduction Overlay (RO) District, 39.04, related to Subdivision Standards,
39.07, related to Development Review Procedures, 39.07.007(a), related to Public Notice,



39.10.002, related to Definitions, 39.02.016, related to the Land Use Matrix, Table
39.02.016-1, related to Permitted Uses by District, Table 39.02.006.e-1 related to IP Permitted
Uses, Table 39.02.006.f-1, related to LI Permitted Uses, Table 39.02.006.g-1 related to GI
Permitted Uses, 39.02.020.b (4)(F)(A)(iii) and 39.02.020.b (4)(F)(B)(ii), related to Residential
Carport or Porte-Cochere Locations, 39.07.038 (c)(4), related to Applicant Responsibilities
for Preliminary Plats, 39.02.004.e related to the High Density Residential (HDR) District,
Table 39.02.003-1, related to Zoning Districts, 39.02.005.a, related to General Mixed Use
Standards, 39.02.004.e (4), related to Lot Density and Dimensions, and Section 39.03.016
related to Bufferyard Landscaping, and review and approve written lists of all documentation
and other information the municipality requires to be submitted with a plat application, as
required by H.B. 3699.

Kristen Sager, director of planning; and Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Payne read into the record the following statement: "At this time, City Council and the
Planning and Zoning Commission, will hold a joint public hearing to consider amendments to
the Unified Development Code. This joint public hearing with the Planning and Zoning
Commission is conducted pursuant to Section 211.007 (d) of the Texas Local Government
Code."

Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 2:25 p.m.

Natalie Miller; Adam Hernandez, communication chair of Lubbock Compact; and Gretchen
Scott spoke in favor of the proposed Amendment No. 6 (Notification Boundary - Public
Notice); Cyndi Pratas, with the Tech Terrace UNIT Neighborhood Association; and
Holle Humphries spoke in favor of the proposed Amendment No. 7 (Definition of "Family");
Natalie Miller; and Adam Hernandez, communication chair of Lubbock Compact, spoke in
favor of the proposed Amendment No. 11 (Bufferyard Landscaping); Tonya Higgy Valdeen;
and Jane Henry spoke in favor of the proposed Amendment No. 13 (Parking for Zone A-3);
Stephen Faulk; Richard Murphy; Cyndi Pratas; and Mary Vines spoke in favor of the
proposed Amendment No. 14 (High Density Residential); Mont McClendon spoke in favor of
the proposed Amendment No. 15 (Zones MU-2 - MU-6); Stephen Faulk spoke in favor of the
proposed Amendment No. 16 (Vertical Mixed-Use in High Density Residential); Mary Vines
spoke in favor of the proposed Amendment No. 17 (Amendment to Zoning Map within Tech
Terrace UNIT); Gretchen Scott spoke in favor of the proposed Amendment No. 18
(Residential Codes - Customary Home Occupation); Dora Cortez, with the North and East
Lubbock Coalition, spoke in favor of the proposed Amendment No. 19 (Non-conformities;
Amortization; and Industrial Zones); and Joshua Shankles; and Adam Hernandez spoke in
favor of the proposed Amendment No. 20 (Heavy Industrial Zoning). 

Adam Hernandez spoke in opposition of all proposed Amendments, with the exception of
Amendment No.'s 6, 11, 19 and 20; George Hardberger; and Thomas Payne spoke in
opposition of the proposed Amendment No. 14 (Vertical Mixed-Use in High Density
Residential); Emily Hopsin spoke in opposition of the proposed Amendment No. 7
(Definition of "Family").

Terry Holeman, with the Developers Council; Mont McClendon; and Roger Settler spoke on
this item.

Special City Council Meeting 
August 30, 2023 Page 2 of 3



Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 4:17 p.m.

3. Consideration by the Planning and Zoning Commission, including taking action to make a
recommendation to the Lubbock City Council regarding an ordinance amending the Unified
Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) and zoning map.

*This item was deleted.

4. Consideration by the City Council, including taking action, on a recommendation by the
Planning and Zoning Commission to adopt an ordinance amending the Unified Development
Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) and zoning map.

This item was deleted.

4:19 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

The August 30, 2023 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 10th
day of October, 2023.

____________________________________
TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

*This item was discussed, by the Planning and Zoning Commission, without a quorum of Council
Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
August 30, 2023 Page 3 of 3



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 5, 2023
2:00 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 5th of September, 2023, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 2:00 p.m.

  
2:00 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Steve Massengale; Council
Member Mark W. McBrayer; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett
Atkinson; City Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

     Council Member Latrelle Joy attended via video conference.
   
Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 

Citizen Comments 1; 2.1; and 3.1-3.6.

               
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to appear

in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2.1. in the Consent Agenda
below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on
September 5, 2023. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and
express a position on agenda items.

Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris gave comments regarding the T.J. Patterson Memorial.
 
2. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve item 2.1. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
2. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0107,

Amendment 34, Amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Public
Safety Capital Projects Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
3. Regular Agenda
 

  



3. 1. Public Hearing - Finance: Hold a public hearing on the Proposed FY 2023-24 Operating Budget
and Capital Program.

Public Hearing only.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation on the Proposed FY 2023-24 Operating Budget
and Capital Program and answered questions from City Council. 

Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 2:25 p.m.

Mikel Ward; and Burley Owen appeared to speak on this item.

Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 2:46 p.m.

  

 
3. 2. Public Hearing - Finance: Hold a public hearing on a proposal to increase total tax revenues from

properties on the tax roll in the preceding tax year by 3.17% (percentage by which the proposed
tax rate exceeds the No-New-Revenue tax rate calculated under Chapter 26, Tax Code).

Public Hearing only.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council. 

Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 2:47 p.m.

Mikel Ward; and Burley Owen appeared to speak on this item.

Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 2:59 p.m.

  

 
3. 3. Public Hearing - Finance: Hold a public hearing on the proposed reduction in Storm Water

Drainage Charges for the City of Lubbock.

Public Hearing only.

Mayor Tray Payne read into the record the following statement: "The Texas Local Government
Code requires a public hearing be conducted by the city in regard to the proposed storm water
drainage decrease".

Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 3:00 p.m.

Mikel Ward appeared to speak on this item.

Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 3:06 p.m.

  

 
3. 4. Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0108 approving and adopting a budget

for Fiscal Year 2023-24; approving summary of estimated and forecasted revenues,
appropriations, and use of excess reserves for all funds of the city; providing for necessary
transfers of funds between accounts and departments, if required; authorizing reduction of
spending by City Manager if necessary; re-appropriation of balances which support authorized
obligations or encumbrances; providing for filing of Adopted Budget; establishing civil service

  

Special City Council Meeting 
September 5, 2023 Page 2 of 4



obligations or encumbrances; providing for filing of Adopted Budget; establishing civil service
classifications and positions; appropriating funds for the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Operating Budget
and Capital Program of the City of Lubbock; approving all permit, license, fees, and charges for
service recommended to be adjusted; approving the pay plan and positions; approving personnel;
amending section 4.02.041 of the Code of Ordinances amending animal service fees as contained
therein; amending section 22.03.084 of the Code of Ordinances amending the water base charge
as contained therein; amending section 22.03.085 of the Code of Ordinances amending the water
volume rate as contained therein; amending section 22.03.095 of the Code of Ordinances by
revising the water utility reconnect and disconnect fees as contained therein; amending section
22.04.133(A) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the significant
industrial user permit fee as contained therein; amending section 22.04.174 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by adding a weekend dumping fee as contained therein;
amending section 22.06.051 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the
solid waste landfill service fees as contained therein; amending section 22.06.185(A) of the Code
of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the solid waste collections service fees as
contained therein; providing for the reconciliation of the transfer of funds from the General Fund
to Enterprise Funds; accepting the budgets for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Market
Lubbock, Inc., Civic Lubbock, Inc., and Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation; finding
that proper notice of meeting provided by law and ratifying such; providing a penalty; providing
for publication; and providing for a savings clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2023-O0108. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Mark W. McBrayer 

 
3. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance setting the tax rate and levying a tax

upon all property subject to taxation within the City of Lubbock for 2023; apportioning said levy
among the various funds and items for which revenue must be raised; fixing the times in which
said taxes shall be paid and assessing penalty and interest for nonpayment of such taxes within the
time provided.

Mayor Payne read into the record the following statement: "The City Council will vote on the tax
rate on the second and final reading on September 12, 2023 at the Regular City Council Meeting,
in City Council Chambers at 1314 Avenue K, at 2:00 p.m.".

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2023-O0109, a property tax rate be increased by the
adoption of a tax rate of 0.480164, which is effectively a 3.17% increase in the tax rate. 

  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Mark W. McBrayer 

 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 5, 2023 Page 3 of 4



3. 6. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2023-R0419, amending the schedule of drainage charges
by decreasing the rates.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Christy
Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2023-R0419. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

3:30 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

The September 5, 2023 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 10th
day of October, 2023.

____________________________________
TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Special City Council Meeting 
September 5, 2023 Page 4 of 4



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 12, 2023
11:00 A. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 12th of September, 2023,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 11:00 a.m.

  
11:00 A.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Tray Payne, Mayor; Shelia Patterson Harris, Mayor Pro Tem; Latrelle Joy, Council Member;
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Council Member; Steve Massengale, Council Member; Mark W.
McBrayer, Council Member; Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Council Member; W. Jarrett Atkinson, City
Manager; Courtney Paz, City Secretary; Chad Weaver, City Attorney 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1-2.2; Citizen Comments 3; 4.1; 5.1-5.20; 5.22-5.48; 5.21; and 6.1-6.7.
Item No. 5.20 was amended.

               
1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 11:01 a.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 2:03 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m.

 
1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
1. 1. 1. Settlement offer for Claim No. 22-C-121
 
1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of the
following: 

 
1. 2. 1. City Attorney
 
1. 2. 2. City Manager
 
1. 2. 3. City Secretary
 



1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors.

2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 2:03 p.m.

2. Ceremonial Items

2. 1. Invocation

Josh Reglin, Chaplain at Covenant Medical Center, led the invocation.

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia
Patterson Harris.

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m.

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on September 12, 2023. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.

No one appeared to speak.

4. Minutes

4. 1. July 18, 2023 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
July 31, 2023 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session
August 1, 2023 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session
August 8, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting

Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member
Latrelle Joy, to approve the July 18, 2023 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility
Board minutes; the July 31, 2023 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session
minutes; the August 1, 2023 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session
minutes; and the August 8, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 2 of 12



Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia
Patterson Harris, to approve items 5.1-5.20 and 5.22-5.48. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

5. 1.

5. 2.

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0095, 
Amendment 32, Amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Streets Capital Projects Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0107, 
Amendment 34, Amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Public Safety Capital Projects Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings 
clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

5. 2. 1. Resolution - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Resolution No. 2023-R0420 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17449, with Lee Lewis Construction, Inc., for the construction of Fire Station
20 located at 3210 142nd Street.

5. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0110,
Amendment 31, Amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

5. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0111,
Amendment 33, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Civic
Centers Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

5. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0112,
Amendment 36, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Federal Transit Administration; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.

5. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0113,

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 3 of 12



5. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0113,
Amendment 37, Amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Parks
Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
5. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0096, the Sixteenth Supplemental

Ordinance, updating the Vintage Township Public Improvement District Service and
Assessment Plan and Assessment Roll.

  

 
5. 8. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0097, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Bell Farms PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2023 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in
the district during FY 2023-24; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

  

 
5. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0098, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
North Overton PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2023 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in
the district during FY 2023-24; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

  

 
5. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0099, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
North Point PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2023 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in
the district during FY 2023-24; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

  

 
5. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0100, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Northwest Passage PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment
roll; levying 2023 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided
in the district during FY 2023-24; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

  

 
5. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0101, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Quincy Park PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2023 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in
the district during FY 2023-24; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

  

 
5. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0102, reviewing classifications for   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 4 of 12



5. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0102, reviewing classifications for
the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in
the Upland Crossing PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment
roll; levying 2023 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided
in the district during FY 2023-24; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

  

 
5. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0103, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Valencia PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2023 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in
the district during FY 2023-24; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

  

 
5. 15. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0104, reviewing classifications for

the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in the
Willow Bend Villas PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment
roll; levying 2023 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided
in the district during FY 2023-24; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

  

 
5. 16. Resolutions - Finance: Resolution No.'s 2023-R0421, 2023-R0422, 2023-R0423, and

2023-R0424, authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 17361 with Premier Waterworks,
Inc., Contract 17508 with Core and Main, LP, Contract 17507 with Ferguson Enterprises, Inc.,
and Contract 17509 with O'Tool Plastic Pipe, Inc., for water inventory items. 

  

 
5. 17. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2023-R0425 accepting a Special Warranty

Deed for real property located at various tracts within the Bell Farms Public Improvement
District as described on the exhibits to the Special Warranty Deed, granted to the City of
Lubbock on behalf of the Bell Farms Public Improvement District by Betenbough Homes, LLC. 

  

 
5. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2023-R0426 authorizing a Commercial

Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to
Mackenzie Village Shopping Center, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

  

 
5. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2023-R0427 authorizing a Commercial

Revitalization Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to
Those Iowa Girls Antiques, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated
Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

  

 
5. 20. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2023-R0428 authorizing the City Manager to

purchase, for and on behalf of Lubbock Power and Light, the City’s municipal electric utility,
property insurance coverage to include terrorism, with the insurers as yet to be determined, for
which the premium shall not exceed a rate of $0.1333 per $100.

This item was amended.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 5 of 12



Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer; and Chad Weaver, city
attorney, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson

Harris, to accept the amendment of a not to exceed rate of $0.3497 per $100.00 from the not
to exceed rate of $0.1333 per $100.00. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. 21. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2023-O0116, abandoning and closing

a portion of alley right-of-way located in Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock
County, Texas, dedicated by map, plat and/or dedication deed recorded in Volume 5, Page 384
of the deed records of Lubbock County, Texas; and abandoning and closing three (3) overhead
utility easements and three (3) underground utility easements also located in Block 101, Original
Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Steve

Massengale, to approve Ordinance No. 2023-O0116. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris 

 
5. 22. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2023-R0429 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Street and Public Use Dedication Deed, and all related
documents, from South Plains Electric Cooperative, in connection with certain real property
located in Section 26, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, as described under County Clerk File
No. 2016011116 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for
street, curb, gutter, sidewalk, drainage right-of-way, public utilities, and other public purposes.

  

 
5. 23. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2023-R0430 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Street and Public Use Dedication Deed, and all related
documents, from Double W Development, LLC, in connection with certain real property located
in Section 26, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Street
Project.

  

 
5. 24. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2023-R0431 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Change Order No. 1 to Contract 16917, by and between the City of Lubbock and Lone Star Dirt
and Paving, Ltd., for Erskine Street Reconstruction Projects.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
5. 25. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2023-R0432 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 6 of 12



5. 25. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2023-R0432 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Professional Services Agreement 17314, by and between the City of Lubbock and
Freese and Nichols, Inc., for the Mackenzie Park Dam Evaluation and Restoration.

  

 
5. 26. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2023-R0433 receiving the Semi-Annual Report from

the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC), regarding the progress and
implementation of the Impact Fee Program.

  

 
5. 27. Ordinance 1st Reading - Water Utilities: Ordinance No. 2023-O0114, amending Article 22.03

of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, by adding Section 22.03.098, to provide a
definition of governmental agencies and subdivisions. 

  

 
5. 28. Ordinance 1st Reading - Water Utilities: Ordinance No. 2023-O0115, amending Article

22.03.091 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, by deleting Section 22.03.091(h),
which removes a special wholesale water rate for the Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority.

  

 
5. 29. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Resolution No. 2023-R0434 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 17505, with West Texas Paving, for the repair of failed paved areas on
82nd Street between Slide Road and Milwaukee Avenue.

  

 
5. 30. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0435 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 17398, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
Initium Health, for a Community Health Assessment and Community Health Improvement Plan.

  

 
5. 31. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0436 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 2, and all related documents, to the Health and Human
Services Commission (HHSC) Contract No. HHS000780500002, under the Substance Use
Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Services Block Grant Program, to provide funding for
Community Health Workers (CHW), by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of
Texas' Health and Human Services Commission.

  

 
5. 32. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0437 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 3, and all related documents, to the Health and Human
Services Commission (HHSC) Contract No. HHS000779500003, under the Substance Use
Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Services Block Grant Program, to provide Treatment for
Youth (TRY) funding, by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas' Health and
Human Services Commission.

  

 
5. 33. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0438 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No, 3, and all related documents, to the Health and Human
Services Commission Contract No. HHS000779500004, under the Substance Use Prevention,
Treatment and Recovery Services Block Grant Program, to provide funding for Treatment for
Females (TRF), by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas Health and Human
Services Commission.

  

 
5. 34. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0439 ratifying the acts of the   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 7 of 12



5. 34. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0439 ratifying the acts of the
Mayor in executing Amendment No. 2, and all related documents, to the Health and Human
Services Commission (HHSC) Contract No. HHS000779500006, under the Substance Use
Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Services Block Grant Program, under the Co-occurring
Psychiatric and Substance Use Disorders (COPSD), by and between the City of Lubbock, and
the State of Texas' Health and Human Services Commission.

  

 
5. 35. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0440 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 3, and all related documents, to the Health and Human
Services Commission (HHSC) Contract No. HHS0007795500002, under the Substance Use
Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Services Block Grant Program, to provide funding for
Treatment of Adults (TRA), by and between the City of Lubbock, and the State of Texas' Health
and Human Services Commission.

  

 
5. 36. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0441 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 3, and all related documents, to the Health and Human
Services Commission (HHSC) Contract No. HHS001081400001, under the Substance Abuse
Prevention and Behavioral Health Promotion Grant Programs (SA/Prevention), to provide
funding for the Substance Abuse Prevention Program, by and between the City of Lubbock, and
the State of Texas' Health and Human Services Commission.

  

 
5. 37. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0442 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 2, and all related documents, to the Health and Human
Services Commission (HHSC) Contract No. HHS000779500001, under the Substance Use
Prevention, Treatment and Recovery Services Block Grant Program, to provide funding
for Administration Substance Use Disorder Services (ADMIN) grant, by and between the City
of Lubbock, and the State of Texas' Health and Human Services Commission.

  

 
5. 38. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0443 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 1 to the Service Agreement dated March 9, 2021, by and between the
City of Lubbock and SPARE Labs, Inc., to allow Citibus to use non-dedicated fleets or third
party providers through a SPARE Open Fleets integration.

  

 
5. 39. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0444 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Transit System Management Contract, and all related documents, by and between
the City of Lubbock and RATP Dev USA, Inc., to manage and operate the public transportation
system owned by the City of Lubbock.

  

 
5. 40. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2023-R0445 authorizing the Mayor to

execute FY 2024 Section 5307 Grant, TxDOT URB 2403 (05), Project ID 51309030524, with
the Texas Department of Transportation for operating assistance for Citibus.

  

 
5. 41. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2023-R0446 authorizing the City Council

to reject any and all bids received for the Citizen's Tower Landscape Maintenance Project.
  

 
5. 42. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2023-R0447 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 8 of 12



5. 42. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2023-R0447 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33100048, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of Dell Power
Scale Data Storage systems to replace existing data storage infrastructure and provide additional
data storage capacity.

  

 
5. 43. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2023-R0448 authorizing the Mayor to execute an interlocal

agreement with Lubbock County, Texas, allocating and transferring 50% of the City’s Justice
Assistance Grant (JAG) award under the FY2023 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant
Program, to Lubbock County, in order to fund the Lubbock County Joint Enforcement Initiative.

  

 
5. 44. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2023-R0449 authorizing the City Manager to apply for and

execute an agreement with the State of Texas, Rifle-Resistant Body Armor Grant Program, to
fund rifle resistant body armor for the Lubbock Police Department.

  

 
5. 45. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2023-R0450 authorizing the Chief

Administrative Officer, or his designee, to execute that certain Sixth Amendment to Professional
Services Agreement (PSA) dated May 29, 2018, by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by
and through LP&L, and TMG Utility Advisory Services, Inc. (TMG) for the Statement of Work
(SOW) to identify and display initial analysis of production issues reported to TMG.

  

 
5. 46. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2023-R0451 adopting the Electric

Rate/Tariff Schedule of Lubbock Power & Light, the City of Lubbock's municipally owned
electric utility, applicable to all rate classes, effective October 1, 2023.

  

 
5. 47. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2023-O0105, for Zone Case

3486, a request of Core States Group for Ramona Prater and Estate of Charles Prater, for a zone
change from Transition District (T) to Commercial District (C-4), at 11213 University Avenue,
located north of 114th Street and east of University Avenue, on 2.852 acres of unplatted land out
of Block E, Section 10.

  

 
5. 48. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2023-O0106, for Zone Case

3257-P, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development, LLC and Rocket
Partners I, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Reduced
Setbacks to Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Townhouse/Garden Home, generally
located west of Elgin Avenue and south of 137th Street, on 3 acres of unplatted land out of
Block AK, Section 1.

  

 
6. Regular Agenda
 
6. 1. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2023-R0452 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to the Municipal Services Agreement with the Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance, Inc, for the requested annexation of an area of land generally described
as 411 acres north of East 4th Street and east of East Loop 289, into Lubbock's corporate limits.

Victor Escamilla, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Chad Weaver, city attorney, gave
comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 9 of 12



 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2023-R0452. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 2. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2023-O0117, a request for annexation, from the

Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc., to annex an area of approximately 411 acres,
adjacent to the eastern city limits of the City of Lubbock, north of East 4th Street and east of
East Loop 289, into Lubbock's corporate limits.

Victor Escamilla, planning and zoning manager; and Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave
comments and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Payne read into the record the following statement: "The Local Government Code
requires a public hearing for the City Council to consider the annexation of property. At this
time, I will open the public hearing in regard to the annexation of an area of approximately 411
acres, adjacent to the eastern city limits of the City of Lubbock, north of East 4th Street and east
of East Loop 289, into Lubbock's corporate limits."

Mayor Payne opened the public hearing at 2:34 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Payne closed the public hearing at 2:35 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2023-O0117. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0108, approving and adopting a

budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24; approving summary of estimated and forecasted revenues,
appropriations, and use of excess reserves for all funds of the city; providing for necessary
transfers of funds between accounts and departments, if required; authorizing reduction of
spending by City Manager if necessary; re-appropriation of balances which support authorized
obligations or encumbrances; providing for filing of Adopted Budget; establishing civil service
classifications and positions; appropriating funds for the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Operating Budget
and Capital Program of the City of Lubbock; approving all permit, license, fees, and charges for
service recommended to be adjusted; approving the pay plan and positions; approving
personnel; amending section 4.02.041 of the Code of Ordinances amending animal service fees
as contained therein; amending section 22.03.084 of the Code of Ordinances amending the
water base charge as contained therein; amending section 22.03.085 of the Code of Ordinances
amending the water volume rate as contained therein; amending section 22.03.095 of the Code
of Ordinances by revising the water utility reconnect and disconnect fees as contained therein;
amending section 22.04.133(A) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising
the significant industrial user permit fee as contained therein; amending section 22.04.174 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by adding a weekend dumping fee as contained
therein; amending section 22.06.051 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 10 of 12



therein; amending section 22.06.051 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by
revising the solid waste landfill service fees as contained therein; amending section
22.06.185(A) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the solid waste
collections service fees as contained therein; providing for the reconciliation of the transfer of
funds from the General Fund to Enterprise Funds; accepting the budgets for Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance, Market Lubbock, Inc., Civic Lubbock, Inc., and Vintage Township
Public Facilities Corporation; finding that proper notice of meeting provided by law and
ratifying such; providing a penalty; providing for publication; and providing for a savings clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Payne, read into the record, the following voted "YAY": Mayor Tray Payne, Mayor Pro
Tem Shelia Patterson Harris, Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, Council Member Steve
Massengale, Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson, and Council Member Latrelle Joy; and the
following voted "NAY": Council Member Mark W. McBrayer.

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2023-O0108. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Mark W. McBrayer 

 
6. 4. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2023-R0453 ratifying the adoption of the FY 2023-24

Budget that raises more tax revenue than was generated the previous year.

Mayor Payne, read into the record, the following voted "YAY": Mayor Tray Payne, Mayor Pro
Tem Shelia Patterson Harris, Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, Council Member Steve
Massengale, Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson, and Council Member Latrelle Joy; and the
following voted "NAY": Council Member Mark W. McBrayer.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 2023-R0453. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Mark W. McBrayer 

 
6. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2023-O0109, setting the tax rate and

levying a tax upon all property subject to taxation within the City of Lubbock for 2023;
apportioning said levy among the various funds and items for which revenue must be raised;
fixing the times in which said taxes shall be paid and assessing penalty and interest for
nonpayment of such taxes within the time provided.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2023-O0109, a property tax rate be increased
by the adoption of a tax rate of 0.480164, which is effectively a 3.17% increase in the tax
rate. 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 11 of 12



  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Mark W. McBrayer 

 
6. 6. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2023-R0454 amending the allocation of the Hotel

Occupancy Tax Revenues for FY 2023-24 and distributing receipts, net of collection expenses,
as authorized in Subsection 18.03.001(b)(2) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Mark W. McBrayer, seconded by Council Member Latrelle

Joy, to approve Resolution No. 2023-R0454. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 7. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2023-R0455 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

amendment to the Grant Management Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Market
Lubbock, Inc., dated January 25, 1996, as adopted by Resolution No. 5089.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Resolution No. 2023-R0455. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

3:08 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The September 12, 2023 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
10th day of October, 2023.

  
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 12, 2023 Page 12 of 12



 AI# 11905 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O0118,
Budget Ordinance Amendment 35, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Health and Human Services Commission;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On September 12, 2023, the City Council approved the 1st reading of the ordinance.
  

I. Accept and appropriate $1,222,386 from the Texas Health and Human Services Commission for
the Adult Treatment Grant

The goal of the Adult Treatment Grant is to provide substance use disorder services to the City of
Lubbock. The Health and Human Services Comission has awarded an additional $1,222,386 through
amending the current contract with the city.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 35 







 AI# 11992 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 1,
amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund to accept and
appropriate from the U.S. Department Federal Highway Administration; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary

Accept and appropriate $160,000 from the U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway
Administration for the Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant. There is a $40,000 local grant match. 

I.

The award will be used by the City of Lubbock to develop a comprehensive safety action plan. The
action plan is the foundation of the Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant program. The goal of the action
plan is to develop a holistic, well-defined strategy to prevent roadway fatalities and serious injuries in the
region.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 1 







 AI# 11970 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution expressing intent to finance expenditures to be incurred for
various capital projects and equipment approved by the City Council in the FY 2023-24 Operating
Budget and Capital Program, and to reimburse the City from the proceeds of obligations that will be
issued after the expenditure of funds to pay costs of such projects and equipment.

Item Summary
The City will issue bonds during FY 2023-24 to fund projects that the City Council approved in the FY
2023-24 Capital Program. To allow capital projects to be completed within prescribed timeframes, the
design, engineering, and construction costs may be incurred prior to delivery of the bond proceeds. For
the costs to be eligible for reimbursement with bond proceeds, the City must declare its intent to
reimburse bond-funded costs that are incurred prior to the bond issuance.
 
Total cost of $99,400,000 is divided into 3 categories: 

General Fund is $84,700,000
Internal Service Fund is $4,850,000
Storm Water Fund is $9,850,000

The annual debt service is budgeted through the annual operating budget process and is included in long
term financial planning and rate models. The annual payments are made from the annual revenues of the
respective Enterprise and Governmental Funds where the projects are incurred.

Fiscal Impact
The maximum principal amount of obligations to be issued will not exceed $99,400,000. The issuances
will be through a General Obligation issuance not to exceed $57,700,000, self-supporting Certificates of
Obligation not to exceed $30,850,000, and a Tax Note not to exceed $10,850,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Reimbursement Resolution 



 4128-3097-8378.1 
 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING INTENT TO  
FINANCE EXPENDITURES TO BE INCURRED 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock, Texas (the "Issuer") is a political subdivision of the State 

of Texas authorized to finance its activities by issuing debt obligations, including obligations the 
interest on which is excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended (collectively, the "Obligations"); 

WHEREAS, the Issuer will make or has made, not more than 60 days prior to the date 
hereof, payments for capital expenditures with respect to the acquisition, construction, renovation, 
improvement and equipment of the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has concluded that it does not currently desire to issue Obligations 
to finance costs associated with the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to reimburse itself for capital expenditures associated with 
the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto from the proceeds of Obligations to be issued 
subsequent to the date hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer reasonably expects to issue Obligations to reimburse itself for the 
costs associated with the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUBBOCK, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1. The Issuer reasonably expects to reimburse itself for capital expenditures that 
have been or will be paid subsequent to the date that is 60 days prior to the date hereof and that 
are to be paid in connection with the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and 
equipment of the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto from the proceeds of Obligations to 
be issued subsequent to the date hereof. 

Section 2. The Issuer reasonably expects that the maximum principal amount of 
Obligations issued to reimburse the Issuer for the costs associated with the projects listed on 
Exhibit A attached hereto will not exceed $99,400,000. 

 

[Signature page follows] 
  



 4128-3097-8378.1 
 

ADOPTED THIS 10th day of October, 2023 by the City Council of the City of Lubbock, 
Texas. 
 
 
 
             
             TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
  
       
 Courtney Paz 
 City Secretary 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
 
      
D. Blu Kostelich 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jerry V. Kyle, Jr. 
Bond Counsel 
 

        



 4128-3097-8378.1 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
  Cost Estimate  Totals 

General Fund    
 34th Street: Upland to Milwaukee Ave $13,800,000   
 Upland Ave: 34th Street to 50th Street 13,500,000   
 Upland Ave: 19th Street to 34th Street 3,200,000   
 Milwaukee Ave: North City Limits to 4th Street 13,000,000   
 114th Street: Frankford Ave to Slide Road 2,200,000   
 146th Street: Quaker to Indiana 8,800,000   
 Upland Ave: 50th Street to 66th Street 3,200,000   
 Upland Ave: 66th Street to 82nd Street 6,000,000   
 Solid Waste Transfer Station 14,000,000   
 WTRDF Cell Construction 7,000,000  $84,700,000 
     
Internal Service Fund    
 General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 23-24  Tax Notes $4,850,000  $4,850,000 
     
Storm Water    
 Upland Ave & 66th Street Playa Drainage Improvements $2,850,000   
 Playa Lake 054 Lateral Extension 7,000,000  $9,850,000 
     
 TOTAL   $99,400,000 
     
     

 
 



 AI# 11971 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution approving and adopting the FY 2023-24 City of Lubbock
Investment Policy and Investment Strategy, as reviewed and recommended by the Audit and Investment
Committee.

Item Summary
The Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) requires the City Council to perform an annual review of the
City of Lubbock Investment Policy and Investment Strategy (the "Policy"). The Policy is updated
annually to reflect changes recommended to the Audit and Investment Committee. For the FY 2024
Investment Policy, the City and the Audit and Investment Committee are not recommending any changes
to the existing policy.
 
The Debt and Investment Committee also conducts an annual review of the City's Strategic Asset
Allocation and Investment Structure. The changes for FY 2023-24 are to change the benchmark to the
Standard & Poor's Short-Term National AMT-Free Municipal Bond Index for the City's Operating
Portfolio, and the Standard & Poor's US Treasury 0-3 Month Index for the City's Bond Portfolio. This
change is to better compare the City's investment activities against a standardized benchmark rather than
the City's internally calculated benchmark.

All changes listed above have been made in accordance with the PFIA under the Texas Government
Code § 2256.009(3). The goal is to prioritize safety, liquidity, and yield, as the formulation of these
adjustments is made annually, while assessing current market conditions.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Audit & Investment Committee

Attachments
Resolution - Investment Policy 
FY24 Investment Policy 
FY24 Investment Strategy 





City of Lubbock, TX Finance Department 
Investment Policy and Investment Strategy for FY 2023-24 

 
Policy 

 
The Chief Financial Officer or Designee, of the City of Lubbock, Texas, is charged with the 
responsibility to prudently and properly manage any and all funds of the City. Time and demand 
deposits must be fully collateralized and all transactions appropriately authorized. This policy 
addresses the procedures, controls, and practices, which must be exercised to ensure sound fiscal 
management. The statutory foundation for this policy is the Public Funds Investment Act (the 
“Act”, Texas Government Code Section 2256) and the Public Funds Collateral Act (Texas 
Government Code Section 2257). 
 

Scope 
 
This policy shall apply to the investment of all financial assets and all funds of the City of 
Lubbock (hereinafter referred to as the "City") over which it exercises financial control. The 
investment income derived from each account shall be distributed to the various City funds in 
accordance with the existing City Policy. The funds accounted for in the City of Lubbock 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) include: 
 

1. General Fund 
2. Special Revenue Funds 
3 .  Debt Service Funds 
4. Capital Projects Funds 
5. Enterprise Funds 
6. Internal Service Funds 
7. Agency Funds 

 
The Bond Funds Portfolio includes bond proceeds recorded in Capital Projects, Enterprise, and 
Internal Service Funds, while the Operating Portfolio includes all other resources in the other 
funds listed. 
 

Objectives 
 
The City's principal investment objectives are listed in order of priority: 
 

A. Compliance with all Federal, State, and other legal requirements (including but not 
limited to Chapter 2256 Public Funds Investment Act, as amended and Chapter 2257 
Public Funds Collateral Act, as amended, of the Texas Government Code). 

B. Safety:  Preservation of capital and the protection of investment principal. 
C. Liquidity: Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet anticipated disbursements and cash 

flows. 
D. Diversification:  Maintenance of diversity in market sector and maturity to minimize 

market risk in a particular sector. 
E. Marketability: Ability to liquidate investments before maturity if the need arises. 



F. Yield:  Attainment of a market rate of return equal to or higher than the performance 
measure established by the Chief Financial Officer, or Designee. 

 
Responsibility and Control 

 
Delegation of Authority 
 
The ultimate responsibility and authority for investment transactions involving the City resides 
with Chief Financial Officer, or Designee. The Chief Financial Officer, or Designee, being 
designated as the City’s Investment Officer(s) in accordance with the Texas Government Code 
Section 2256.005(f), is charged with executing the day‐to‐day investment functions for the City 
following the guidance and recommendations of the City's Audit and Investment Committee. 
 
Audit and Investment Committee 
 
The City will utilize the Audit and Investment Committee to assist in monitoring the performance 
and structure of the City's investments. The Audit and Investment Committee shall be 
responsible for the investment strategy decisions, activities, and the establishment of written 
procedures for the investment operations consistent with this policy. Monitoring of the portfolio 
shall be performed by the Audit and Investment Committee no less than quarterly and verified by 
the City's independent auditor at least annually. The Audit and Investment Committee shall 
discuss investment reports, investment strategies, and investment and banking procedures. 
 
Investment Advisors 
 
The Chief Financial Officer, or Designee, may in his/her discretion, with Council approval, 
appoint one or more investment advisor, registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Section 80b‐1 et seq.), to assist 
in the management of a portion of the City's assets. To be eligible for consideration, an 
investment advisor shall demonstrate to the Audit and Investment Committee knowledge of cash 
management and experience in managing public funds. Selection of any investment advisor 
shall be based upon their expertise in public cash management. An appointed investment 
advisor may be granted investment discretion within the guidelines of this policy with regard 
to the City's assets placed under its management. A contract made under authority of the Act 
may not be for a term longer than two years on the original contract term. A renewal or extension 
of the contract must be made by the City Council by resolution (Texas Government Code Section 
2256.003). 
 
Standard of Care 
 
The standard of care is to be used for managing the City's assets (Texas Government Code Section 
2256.006), which states, "Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under prevailing 
circumstances, that a person of prudence, discretion, and intelligence would exercise in the 
management of the person's own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering 
the probable safety of capital and the probable income to be derived." The Investment Officer(s) 
acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due diligence shall not be held 



personally liable for a specific security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations 
from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control 
adverse developments. The City’s independent auditor will perform a compliance audit of 
management controls on investments and adherence to investment policies annually. 
 
In accordance with the Act (Texas Government Code Sections 2256.005 and 2256.008), the 
Investment Officer(s) shall attend 10 hours of investment training within 12 months of assuming 
duties and 8 hours not less than once in a two‐year period that begins on the first day of the City’s 
fiscal year and consists of the two consecutive fiscal years after that date. The investment training 
session shall be provided by an independent source approved by the Audit and Investment 
Committee.  Training must include education in investment controls, security risks, strategy risks 
market risks, and diversification of investment portfolio in order to ensure the quality and 
capability of investment management in compliance with the Act. 
 

Investment Portfolio 
 
Authorized Investments 
 
The following are authorized investments for the City and all are authorized and further defined 
by the Act: 
 

• Obligations, including letters of credit, of the United States or its agencies and 
instrumentalities (Texas Government Code Section 2256.009(1)) 

• Direct obligations of this state or its agencies and instrumentalities (Texas Government 
Code Section 2256.009(2)) 

• Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality 
of the United States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or 
instrumentality of the United States (Texas Government Code Section 2256.009(3)) 

• Other obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed or 
insured by, or backed by the full faith and credit of, this state or the United States or 
their respective agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations that are fully 
guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or by the explicit 
full faith and credit of the United States (Texas Government Code Section 2256.009(4)) 

• Obligations of state, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions of any state 
rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less 
than A or its equivalent (Texas Government Code Section 2256.009(5)) with no more than 
a $5 million investment into any one serial bond 

• Fully collateralized certificates of deposit issued by a state or national bank that has its 
main office or a branch office in Texas and guaranteed and insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund, or secured in 
any other manner and amount provided by law for deposits of the City (Texas 
Government Code Section 2256.0010) 

• Bankers’ acceptances with a stated maturity of 365 days or fewer from the date of its 
issuance; and liquidated in full at maturity; and eligible for collateral for borrowing from a 
Federal Reserve Bank; and accepted by a bank organized and existing under the laws of 
the United States or any state, if the short‐term obligations of the bank, or of a bank 



holding company of which the bank is the largest subsidiary, are rated not less than A‐1 
or P‐1 or an equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized credit rating agency 
(Texas Government Code Section 2256.012) 

• Commercial paper with a stated maturity of 365 days or fewer from the date of its 
issuance, and rated not less than A‐1 or P‐1 by nationally recognized credit rating agencies 
or two nationally recognized credit rating agency and is fully secured by an irrevocable 
letter of credit issued by a bank organized and existing under the laws of the United 
States or any State (Texas Government Code Section 2256.013) with no more than a 
$5 million investment into any one issuance/offering 

• No‐load money market mutual funds registered and regulated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, provides the City with a prospectus and other information 
required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. Section 78a et seq.) or the 
Investment company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Section 80a‐1 et seq.), has a dollar‐weighted 
average stated maturity of 90 days or fewer, and includes in its investment objectives the 
maintenance of a stable net asset value of $1 for each share (Texas Government Code 
Section 2256.014(a)) 

• Investment pools rated not less than AAA or an equivalent rating by at least one 
nationally recognized rating service and authorized by the City Council and as further 
defined by the Act (Texas Government Code Section 2256.016) 

 
The following investments are not authorized: 
 

• Obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding 
principal balance of the underlying mortgage‐backed security collateral and pays no 
principal (Texas Government Code Section 2256.009(b)(1)) 

• Obligations whose payment represents the principal stream of cash flow from the 
underlying mortgage‐backed security collateral and bears no interest (Texas Government 
Code Section 2256.009(b)(2)) 

• Collateralized mortgage obligations that have a stated final maturity date of greater 
than 10 years (Texas Government Code Section 2256.009(b)(3)) 

• Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is determined by an index 
that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market index (Texas Government Code Section 
2256.009(b)(4)) 

 
Existing Investments 
 
The Investment Officer(s) is not required to liquidate investments that were authorized 
investments at the time of purchase (Texas Government Code Section 2256.017). 
 
Effect of Loss of Required Rating 
 
An investment that requires a minimum rating does not qualify as an authorized investment 
during the period the investment does not have a minimum rating. The Investment Officer(s) 
shall take all prudent measures that are consistent with the City’s investment policy to liquidate 
the investment(s) that does not have the minimum rating (Texas Government Code Section 
2256.021). 



 
Investment Diversification 
 
It is the intent of the City to diversify the investment instruments within the portfolio to avoid 
incurring unreasonable risks inherent in over‐investing in specific instruments, individual 
financial institutions, or maturities. The asset allocation in the portfolio should, however, be 
flexible depending upon the outlook for the economy and the securities markets. When 
conditions warrant, the guidelines below may be exceeded by approval of the Audit and 
Investment Committee. 
 
The City may invest to the following limits as a percentage of its total investment portfolio (these 
limitations do not apply to Bond Funds): 
 

100% in United States Treasury Obligations 
100% in Investment Pools 
80% in Federal Instrumentalities or Agencies 
50% in Municipal Bonds 
30% in Certificates of Deposit 
30% in No Load Money Market Fund 
10% in Commercial Paper 
10% in Banker Acceptance 

 
Investment Strategy 
 
The City of Lubbock maintains portfolios, which utilize four specific investment strategy 
considerations, designed to address the unique characteristics of the fund groups represented in 
the investment portfolios. The policies detailed below are subject to an annual review to occur 
prior to the annual City Council action regarding the Investment Policy (Texas Government Code 
Section 2256.005(d)). 
 

(1) Operating Funds and Commingled Pools Containing Operating Funds 
 

The investment strategy for the portfolio containing operating funds, the Operating 
Portfolio, has as its primary objective to ensure that anticipated cash flows are matched 
with adequate investment liquidity. Investment maturities shall be matched against 
liabilities, including debt service requirements. 
 
The secondary objective of the Operating Portfolio is to create a portfolio structure that 
will experience minimal volatility during economic cycles. This is accomplished by 
purchasing high quality, short‐ to medium‐term securities that complement each other in 
a laddered maturity structure. 
 
The City shall maintain a dollar‐weighted average maturity of two (2) years or less based 
on the stated final maturity dates of each security in its Operating Portfolio. The City 
shall at all times maintain at least 10% of its Operating Portfolio in instruments maturing 
in 120 days or less. 



 
(2) Debt Service Funds 
 

The investment strategy for debt service funds shall have as the primary objective the 
assurance of investment liquidity adequate to cover each succeeding debt service 
obligation on the required payment date. Securities purchased shall not have a stated 
final maturity date which exceeds any unfunded debt service payment date. The 
maximum weighted average maturity shall not exceed one (1) year. 

 
(3) Debt Service Reserve Funds 
 

The investment strategies for debt service reserve funds shall have as the primary 
objective the ability to generate a dependable revenue stream to the appropriate debt 
service fund from securities with a low degree of volatility. Except as may be required by 
the bond ordinance specific to an individual issue, securities should be of high quality with 
short‐ to intermediate‐term maturities. The maximum weighted average maturity shall 
not exceed one (1) year. 

 
(4) Bond Funds 
 

The investment strategy for bond funds will have as their primary objective to assure that 
anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate investment liquidity. These portfolios 
should include at least 10% in highly liquid securities to allow for flexibility and 
unanticipated project outlays. The stated final maturity dates of securities held shall not 
exceed the estimated project completion date. The maximum weighted average maturity 
shall not exceed two (2) years. 

 
Cash Flow 
 
A cash flow analysis shall be reviewed and updated no less than quarterly.  This cash flow 
analysis is the basis for matching liabilities or obligations with security maturities as outlined in 
the strategies previously listed. 
 
Maximum Maturity 
 
The maximum maturity of any individual security the City may invest in shall be 5 years. 
 
Management Style 
The City seeks an active, rather than passive, management of its portfolio assets.  Assets may be 
sold at a loss only if the Investment Officer(s) feel that the sale of the security is in the best long‐
term interest of the City. Supporting documentation shall be maintained by the Investment 
Officer(s) for all sales of securities in which there is a book loss or where a security is sold in 
order to simultaneously purchase another security. 
 
Authorized Financial Broker/Dealers and Institutions 
 



The City shall maintain a list of authorized broker/dealers and financial institutions, which are 
approved by the Audit and Investment Committee for investment purposes. It shall be the policy 
of the City to purchase securities only from those authorized institutions and firms. The 
Committee will review and approve the list no less than annually. 
 
To be eligible for authorization, each broker/dealer or financial institution shall: 
 

1. Complete and submit to the City a Broker/Dealer Questionnaire 
2. Provide the firm's most recent financial statements 
3. Provide a written instrument certifying that they have received and thoroughly reviewed 

the City’s Investment Policy 
4. All broker/dealers must submit: (a) audited financial reports (b) Financial Industry 

Regulatory Authority (FINRA) registration (c) Central Registration Depository Number 
(CRD) (d) proof of Texas Securities Registration 

 
The Investment Officer(s), or investment advisor, shall maintain a file of all Broker/Dealer 
Questionnaires. Authorized Broker/dealers and other financial institutions will be selected after 
a review of performance, financial conditions, and ability to provide service to the City. 
 
The Investment Officer(s) shall exercise due diligence in monitoring the activities of other officers 
and staff members engaged in transactions with the City. Employees of any firm or financial 
institution offering securities or investments to the City of Lubbock shall be trained in the 
precautions appropriate to public sector investments and shall be required to familiarize 
themselves with the City's investment objectives, policies, and constraints. In the event of a 
material adverse change in the financial condition of the firm or financial institution, the City 
will be informed immediately by telephone and in writing. 
 
All investment transactions must be competitively transacted and executed with broker/dealers 
or financial institutions that have been authorized by the City. The City will obtain no less than 
three (3) competitive offers. (Exception: new issues will not be required to be competitively 
transacted as all broker/dealers would show the same price and yield.) 
 
Selection of Financial Institutions 
 
Depositories shall be selected through the City's banking services procurement process, which 
shall include a formal Request for Proposal (RFP). In selecting depositories, the services available, 
service costs, and credit‐worthiness of institutions shall be considered, and the Investment 
Officer(s), shall conduct a comprehensive review of prospective depositories' credit characteristics 
and financial history. 
 
The City shall select financial institutions from which the City may purchase certificates of deposit 
in accordance with the Act and this Policy. The City of Lubbock will have a written depository 
agreement with any financial institution with whom the City of Lubbock has time or demand 
deposits. The Investment Officer shall monitor the financial condition of financial institutions 
where certificates of deposit are held and report quarterly to the Audit and Investment 
Committee. 



 
Collateralization of Public Deposits 
 
Collateralization requirements are governed by Texas Government Code Chapter 2257, Public 
Funds Collateral Act. Collateralization will be required on three types of investments: time 
deposits, demand deposits, and repurchase agreements. In order to anticipate market changes 
and provide a level of security for all funds, collateral will be maintained and monitored by the 
pledging depository at no less than 102% of market value of principal and accrued interest 
maintained by the financial institution. The City of Lubbock chooses to limit collateral in the 
manner following. 
 
Underlying collateral shall be composed of those investments approved in this policy and 
mortgage‐backed securities as defined in Texas Government Code Section 2257.002. The 
maturity of the collateral security shall be no longer than a 30‐year stated final maturity. The 
bank shall monitor and maintain the margins on a daily basis. All collateral shall be subject to 
inspection and audit by the City or its auditors. To allow for compliance verification by the City, 
monthly reports of pledged collateral shall include, at a minimum, information for each security 
that identifies its (i) type, (ii) CUSIP Number, and (iii) face value. 
 
Collateral shall always be held by an independent third party with whom the City of Lubbock has 
a current custodial agreement. This should be evidenced by a written agreement in an effort to 
satisfy the Uniform Commercial Code (UCC) requirement for control. A safekeeping receipt must 
be supplied to the City of Lubbock for any transaction involving sales/purchases/maturities of 
securities and/or underlying collateral, which the City of Lubbock will retain. The right of collateral 
substitution is granted provided the substitution has prior approval of the City and is followed by 
the delivery of an original safekeeping receipt to the City of Lubbock, and the replacement 
collateral is received prior to the release of original collateral. The collateral agreement must be 
in writing. 
 
Safekeeping of Securities 
 
All securities owned by the City shall be held in City designated third‐party safekeeping.  All 
trades executed by a dealer will settle delivery‐versus‐payment through the City’s safekeeping 
agent. 
 
Securities held in custody for the City shall be independently audited on an annual basis to 
verify investment holdings. 
 
Delivery versus Payment 
 
All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by the City 
of Lubbock shall be conducted on a delivery‐versus‐payment (DVP) basis. That is, funds shall not 
be wired or paid until verification has been made that the collateral was received by the Trustee. 
 
Reporting 
 



Investment reports shall be prepared monthly and be signed and submitted by the Investment 
Officer(s) in a timely manner. These reports will be submitted to the City Manager and City 
Council. This report shall describe in detail the investment position of the City, disclose the 
market value and book value of each fund group as well as each separate investment, and state 
the maturity date of each security and accrued interest for the reporting period. It must also 
express the compliance of the portfolio to the investment strategy contained in the City’s 
Investment Policy, the Act, and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Market 
pricing information is obtained through the use of appropriate software available either 
internally or externally through investment advisors. A written record shall be maintained of all 
bids and offerings for securities transactions in order to ensure that the City receives competitive 
pricing. An independent auditor will review monthly investment reports on an annual basis, as 
required by the Act. 
 

Changes in Statutes, Ordinances or Procedures 
 
This policy is designed to operate within the restrictions set forth in applicable State of Texas and 
Federal laws and statutes, but it does not permit all activity allowed by those laws. Changes to 
state or federal laws, which restrict a permitted activity under this policy shall be incorporated 
into this policy immediately upon becoming law. Changes to state or federal laws that do not 
further restrict this policy shall be reviewed by the Audit and Investment Committee and 
recommended to the City Council when appropriate. 

 
Performance Review 

 
The Audit and Investment Committee shall meet no less than quarterly to review the portfolio's 
adherence to appropriate risk levels and to compare the portfolio's total return to the established 
investment objectives and goals. 
 
The Investment Officer(s) shall periodically establish a benchmark yield for the City's 
investments equal to the average yield on the United States Treasury security, which most 
closely corresponds to the portfolio's actual weighted average maturity, or any other 
benchmark as approved by the Audit and Investment Committee. When comparing the 
performance of the City's portfolio, all fees and expenses involved with managing the portfolio 
will be included in the computation of the portfolio's rate of return. 
 

Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 
 
Investment Officer(s), employees, and Audit and Investment Committee Members involved in 
the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with 
proper execution of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make 
impartial investment decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose to the City 
Manager and the Texas Ethics Commission, any material financial interests in financial 
institutions that conduct business within this City, and they shall further disclose any large 
personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of this 
City's portfolio. A disclosure statement with the Texas Ethics Commission and the City 
Manager will also be filed if an Investment Officer, employee, or Audit and Investment 



Committee Member is related within the third degree by consanguinity or within the second 
degree by affinity, as determined under Chapter 573, to an individual seeking to sell an 
investment to the City. Employees and officers shall subordinate their personal investment 
transactions to those of the City particularly with regard to the timing of purchases and sales. 
 

Internal Controls 
 
The Investment Officers shall establish a system of internal controls, which shall be documented 
in writing. The internal controls shall be reviewed by the Audit and Investment Committee and 
with the independent auditor on an annual basis. The controls shall be designed to prevent losses 
of public funds arising from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, 
unanticipated market changes, or imprudent actions by employees and officers of the City. 
 

Policy Revisions 
 
The City Council shall adopt a written instrument by rule, order, ordinance, or resolution stating 
that it has reviewed the investment policy and investment strategies and that the written 
instrument so adopted shall record any changes made to either the investment policy or 
investment strategies (Texas Government Code Section 2256.005(e)). The Audit and Investment 
Committee will review the Investment Policy and Investment Strategies annually. The Audit and 
Investment Committee shall forward modifications to the Policy or a resolution stating there are 
no changes to the City Council annually for City Council action. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Authority/Date Issued: 
City Council Resolution # 5728/December 18, 1997 
City Council Resolution # 5867/May 28, 1998 
City Council Resolution #6600/November 4, 1999 
City Council Resolution #2000‐R0418/November 27, 2000 
City Council Resolution #2001‐R0471/November 8, 2001 
City Council Resolution #2003‐R0065/February 13, 2003 
City Council Resolution #2003‐R0474/October 23, 2003 
City Council Resolution #2004‐ R0560/November 18, 2004 
City Council Resolution #2005‐ R0478/October 13, 2005 
City Council Resolution #2007‐ R0242/June 14, 2007 
City Council Resolution #2007‐ R0402/August, 23, 2007 
City Council Resolution #2008‐R0113/April 10, 2008 
City Council Resolution #2009‐R0138/April 9, 2009 
City Council Resolution #2010‐R0159/April 8, 2010 
City Council Resolution #2011‐R0135/April 14, 2011 
City Council Resolution #2012‐R0033/January 26, 2012 
City Council Resolution #2013‐R0050/January 31, 2013 
City Council Resolution #2014‐R0002/January 9, 2014 
City Council Resolution #2015‐R0002/January 8, 2015 
City Council Resolution #2016‐R0030/January 28, 2016 
City Council Resolution #2017‐R0003/January 12, 2017 
City Council Resolution #2018‐R0173/May 24, 2018 
City Council Resolution #2019‐R0284/August 27, 2019 
City Council Resolution #2020‐R0406/December 1, 2020 
City Council Resolution #2021‐O0126/September 14, 2021 
City Council Resolution #2022‐R0508/December 13, 2022 
 
 



Page 1 of 2  

City of Lubbock, TX 
Finance Department 

 
Strategic Asset Allocation and Investment Strategy 

 Fiscal Year 2024 
 

 

 

Purpose of the Strategic Asset Allocation and Investment Structure 
 

This document is a supplement to the Investment Policy and Investment Strategy (“IPIS”) for the 
City of Lubbock, TX. The IPIS is long term in nature while this Strategic Asset Allocation and 
Investment Structure (“Investment Strategy”) document is designed to be reviewed and if 
necessary revised, by the Audit and Investment Committee. 

 
The Investment Strategy includes the following: 

• Investment Strategy 
• Liquidity Policy 
• Strategic Investment targets and ranges with IPIS limitations and current allocation 
• Benchmarks 

 
Investment Strategy 

 
In keeping with the priorities of Safety, Liquidity, Diversification then Yield, the first 
considerations of investing will be the immediate operational needs and scheduled disbursements 
of capital expenditures and debt service payments. This constitutes the Liquidity Segment of the 
portfolio and will be maintained sufficiently to assure availability when needed. The portion of the 
City’s cash reserves which include Debt Service Funds and Debt Service Reserve Funds, can be 
invested in a short-term investment program with a maximum average weighted maturity not to 
exceed one (1) year. Bond Funds consist of money specifically designated for a Capital Project(s) 
and issued through Certificates of Obligation, General Obligation Bonds or a Tax Note. The Funds 
will be placed in an ISIP approved State Pool to ensure that the anticipated cash flows are matched 
with adequate investment liquidity. If appropriate, an amount not to exceed 50% of available funds 
may be invested in a laddered bond portfolio. The stated final maturity date of the bond ladder 
shall not exceed the estimated project completion date and the maximum weighted average 
maturity shall not exceed two (2) years. The remaining monies constitutes the Investment Segment 
of the portfolio. This portion will be laddered, a common municipal strategy, dividing up into 
smaller staggered maturities, safely invested for longer periods of time. Creating a portfolio of 
bonds with different characteristics (callable, bullet, etc.), types (government, agency, municipal, 
etc.), issuers and maturities will help manage risk. 

 
The City of Lubbock’s investments will not be actively traded, meaning that no attempt to “buy 
low and sell high” or “time the market” will be made. Investments purchased with the intent of 
providing investment income shall be intended to be held to maturity, relying on following a 
prudent course of action for income rather than predicting market direction. Investments may be 
sold before they mature if market conditions present an opportunity for the City to capture a benefit 
or to avoid a risk but the strategy will be primarily buy-and-hold. 



Page 2 of 2  

 
 

Liquidity Policy 
 
The IPIS states that a cash flow analysis shall be performed no less than semi-annually. Based on 
the current liquidity analysis, the Audit and Investment Committee has determined that a minimum 
of $3,000,000 shall be considered adequate liquidity for daily transaction in the Operating Account 
held at the City’s depository institution. In addition, a reserve amount of $15,000,000 will be held 
in an account permitted under the PFIA and the ISIP, to maximize current income to the degree 
consistent with daily liquidity, safety and legality. 

 
When amounts in the daily Operating Account exceed or go below the daily transaction 
requirement threshold, monies will be moved to or from the Operating Reserve Account to adjust 
the balance in the Operating Account to meet the threshold requirement. If the Operating Account 
Reserve exceeds or is below $5,000,000 of the required amount, cash from the liquid short term 
investment account will be used to adjust the Operating Account Reserve to the appropriate 
threshold. 

 
Strategic Operating Investment targets and ranges with IPIS limitations and current 
allocation 

 
Authorized Investment Policy 

Limitation 
Preferred 

Range 
Target Current 

Allocation 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 100% 0 – 5% 2.0% 0.3% 
Agency Bonds 80% 0 – 25% 15.0% 19.3% 
Municipal Bonds 50% 10 – 35% 30.0% 19.6% 
Investment Pools 100% 40 – 75% 47.5% 54.2% 
Certificates of Deposit 30% 0% 0.0% 0.0% 
No Load Mutual Fund 30% 0% 0.5% 1.9% 
Commercial Paper 10% 0 – 10% 5.0% 4.7% 
Banker Acceptance 10% 0% 0.0% 0% 

 
 
Benchmarks 

 
The benchmark is designed to meet to serve as a guide for the risk-adjusted expected return of 
investments considering the prevailing economic and market conditions. 
The following benchmarks will be used: 

• Operating Funds – S&P Short-Term National AMT-Free Municipal Bond Index 
• Bond Funds – S&P US Treasury 0-3 Month Index 

 



 AI# 12009 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the City Manager in
purchasing for and on behalf of Lubbock Power and Light, the City’s municipal electric utility, property
insurance coverage to include AEGIS, Talbot and Hiscox for which the premium shall not exceed a rate
of $0.2666 per $100.

Item Summary
The City purchases property insurance on behalf of Lubbock Power and Light, the City’s municipal
electric utility, for its structures, contents, and equipment. The coverages include, but are not limited to:

• Special Form Property Policy, formerly known as All Risk, covers direct physical loss up
to $534,441,091 which is the estimated total value of all electric utility structures, contents, and
equipment;
•Flood and earthquake coverage to include high hazard zones;
•All property and contents;
•Mobile equipment and vehicles.

The City, on behalf of LP&L, utilized a layered coverage program including AIG, Argenta, Helvetia,
HDI, SCOR, QBE, CAN Hardy, Aspen, Chubb, Travelers, Lancashire, Munich, Amlin, Liberty (XS),
Faraday, Kiln, Ark, Arch, Convex, Munich (XS), Alcor, Chubb Bermuda and Talbot Syndicate 1183.
Deductibles ranged from $250,000 to $1,000,000 per occurrence at a rate of 0.6303 per $100 valuation
and a premium of $3,486,958.  This coverage expired September 30, 2023.

Proposed current year premium is a combination of property and terrorism coverage and is for a term of
18 months. The City’s broker was able to secure coverage with AEGIS at a rate of 0.2665 per $100
valuation at a premium of $1,424,200 by bundling the two coverages. Approving this insurance coverage
on a rate basis allows the City Manager the ability to add and remove properties, as necessary, to
maintain an accurate property valuation.

Property deductibles range from $250,000 to 2.5% of the total insured value of the loss. Terrorism
coverage consists of $19 million in coverage through Talbot and $1 million in excess coverage with
Hiscox, each with a $10,000 per occurrence deductible. 

Carriers bind insurance coverage October 1, 2023, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is
approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content. Current insurance policies are available
for review in Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the Proposed FY 2023-24 Risk Management Fund.



Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - LPandL Coverage 
LP&L Property 

















 AI# 11980 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of
street and alley right-of-way in Section AK, Block 38, Lubbock County, Texas, in the West Milwaukee
Ridge Subdivision, east of Upland Avenue between 37th Street and the Lubbock & Western Railway
tracks.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock, Engineering Department is proposing to abandon and close portions of the alley
right-of-way located in the West Milwaukee Ridge Subdivision, east of Upland Avenue between 37th
Street and the Lubbock & Western Railway LLC (Railway) tracks in Section AK, Block 38, Lubbock
County, Texas. It is in the public interest to close the alley in order to comply with the Railway’s
minimum distance between the tracks and entrances onto Upland Avenue.
 
The total area of the right-of-way being closed is 6,989.90 square feet.However, a utility easement will
remain open for public purposes as the right-of-way is closed. This request for closure is from the City;
therefore, there will not be a charge for the closure.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael Keenum, P.E., Division Manager of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - West Milwaukee Ridge 
GIS Map West Milwaukee Ridge 









 AI# 12003 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept and execute for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Concurrence Letter related to a Special Warranty Deed, and all
related documents, associated with certain property located in Section 31, Block AK, Lubbock County,
Texas, near the southwest corner of 66th Street and Upland Avenue, owned by Bar-Bell Holdings, LLC.

Item Summary
Bar-Bell Holding, LLC is dedicating a Special Warranty Deed to the City of Lubbock, to be utilized for
drainage improvements on the 66th Street Capital Improvements Project, near the southwest corner of
66th Street and Upland Avenue.
 
The proponents will dedicate an 838,368 square-foot drainage easement and 49,723 square-feet of land,
for a street right-of-way, for the total consideration of $574,675 as valued in appraisal reports, subject to
final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the land acquisition is $574,675 plus closing costs, and is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92654, 66th Street Drainage Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Parcels 74 74-A 
Special Warranty Deed - Parcels 74 74-A 
GIS Map 66th St. Drainage - Parcel 74 and 74A 
Budget Detail 
CIP 92654 DETAIL 



















City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 10, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92654
Capital Project Name: Upland Ave 66th Street Playa Drainage Imp.

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract with FNI for Design Services  $292,455 
Land Acquisition Cost Parcel 75-A  19,950 
COL Staff time  22,513 

Agenda Item October 10, 2023
Land Acquisition Cost Parcel 74 and 74-A  574,675 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  909,593 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Construction Upland Ave 66th Street Drainage Imp.  7,240,407 

Remaining Appropriation  - 

Total Appropriation  $8,150,000 



�����

����	�
�����	���	���
	��������	��	��������	�����	����	���	���
���	���	����	���	�������	

�����	����	��
����

	������������ ����������

���	����
�������	� 	����	���	!�����	���	

�����
������	 ������	��
���	�����	
���	�������	

�����	����	"��
��������	���	�
������	��
����
�	

���
��������	�
�	������	��	����	���
����	

�
������	�����	���	�
���	����	�
�����	���	����	

����	���	#�������	� 	���	!�����	$�����	$
��
���	

��������	��	���	����	��
���	����
��������

	

	%���� 	�����
�

%�����&	'��������

����	$�(��������	'�������	)	*+,-+-.

/��	%���	0	'����
������&	*+,-+-.

$�
�	%���	 �
	/��	0	'����
������&	+*,-+-1

�
�����	���
�	%���	0	'����
������&	+-,-+-1

�
�����	2��	%���	0	'����
������&	+-,-+-3

4.++5+++	��	���
��
�����	��	���	67	-+*80-+	

/�����5	9
��	:��	-+*809+*-85	9���#�
	*5	-+*8�

4*5+++5+++	��	���
��
�����	��	���	67	-+-+0-*	

/�����5	9
��	:��	-+-+09+*-.5	9���#�
	*5	-+-+�	

415+++5+++	��	���
��
�����	��	���	67	-+-*0--	

/�����5	9
��	:��	-+-*09+*-�5	9���#�
	*5	-+-*�

	��������

	$��
��
�������

�;	8-�31

<=<<>?><@>ABCDEF>GHI <=<@>?><J>ABCDEF <=<J>?><K>ABCDEF <=<K>?><L>ABCDEF <=<L>?><M>ABCDEF <=<M>?><N>ABCDEF <=<N>?><O>ABCDEF

PEQRDS TUVVWVVV TV TV TV TV TV TV

GXSQFYBZFRXS T[WVVVWVVV T\WV[VWVVV TV TV TV TV TV

]ẐBRQRFRXS TV T_VVWVVV TV TV TV TV TV

à̀ ]b cKd@==d=== c<dNK=d=== c= c= c= c= c=

	6������

�;	8-�31

eBSCRSD>FX>PfFE <=<@>?><J>ABCDEF <=<J>?><K>ABCDEF <=<K>?><L>ABCDEF <=<L>?><M>ABCDEF <=<M>?><N>ABCDEF <=<N>?><O>ABCDEF

gFXYh>ifFEY>eBSC>GfQj T[WV[kWVlm TV TV TV TV TV TV

gFXYh>ifFEY>eBSC>AXSCQ T\k[Wm\n T\W_[VWVVV TV TV TV TV TV

à̀ ]b cKd@==d=== c<dNK=d=== c= c= c= c= c=

"� 
���
����
�	"��
��������

opqrstupuovuqtwxyz{|}~�t����y|t{~�t�{x}|{�t�z��z{�



����������	
���

����

����������� ������ ��� ��! ���!��" ���"��# ���#��$ ���$��% &��'(

)�*+,�'��*-������'��. /0 /0 /0 /0 /0 /0 /0

&1&-2 3� 3� 3� 3� 3� 3� 3�

456 789:5:4;:<9=>?@ABCDE9FGHE?B9ADH9IA>CBAJ9K@LE@AM



 AI# 12020 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept and execute two
Concurrence Letters, and two Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds, and all related documents, in
connection with two parcels of property located in Section 26, Block AK, Lubbock County, on the north
side of 98th Street between Upland Avenue and Alcove Avenue, owned by Connie Delle Cogdell, to be
utilized for the 98th Street Road Project.

Item Summary
Connie Delle Cogdell is dedicating right-of-way to the City to be utilized for roadway improvements on
the 98th Street Capital Improvements Bond Project on the north side of 98th Street between Upland
Avenue and Alcove Avenue.

The proponent will dedicate a 1.068 acre tract of land for street right-of-way, for the total consideration
of $445,453, subject to final approval by the City Council and approval of title.  The proponent will also
dedicate a 0.3333 acre tract of land for the same purpose for a total consideration of $129,373 for a
combined consideration of $574,826.

The attached resolution will authorize the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a
Concurrence Letter and Street and Public Use Dedication Deed, and all related documents

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $574,826 plus closing costs, and is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92811, 98th Street: Alcove Avenue to Upland Avenue - 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer.

Attachments
Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds - Cogdell 
Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds - Cogdell 
CIP Project Detail 

























�����

����	��
���	�
��	�����	�����	��	������	�����	��	��

�����	�������	���	��	����������	��	

���	����	���
������
�	�����
	����	��	������	�	����� ����	�
�������	�
��
���	
���!��"		

#��������	�
�!��	��	�����!���	$�����%	���	���
�����	�
�����	�������	�����	���	!���	����	

��
���	��

���
	�
��	�����	�����	��	������	�����&	�	
���!��	����	��	��

�����	�������	

!���	��
�����	��	�	�����	'���"	������	�����
��	�����������	���	�����
������	��	��	��� !�����
	

�����	
���!��&	
�����	�����	���	�����	�����(	���	��!	
���!��	!���	��	�����
�����	��	�	��
��	

����	����������	
���!��	!���	�
������	��
����
��	��	���	�����	����	��������	�������
�����"	

���	������	!���	�������	���	��������	������	��	����� ����	�
��
���&	����
�������	���
��������&	

�
������	���������&	�������	��)�������	���	
����	��	!��	��*��������	��
�����	!���	���	#���	��	

$�����%	�����
������	��
��	�����"	

	+����,������ -���������

.�	/������
	�&	����&	$�����%	����
�	���
����	

��������	��	�	0���	�������	��
���	���
��������	

����	���%���	��
	���	��
����	��	�
�������	

��
������	������	���
��������"		���	�������	!���	

��*��
�&	�����
���	���	
������
���	��
���	

���
��������&	���������	���	���	�������	��	

����!��%�&	�������	����	
����������	���	�
�����	

�������'�����&	�������
�	���	
������	���
�	

�
������	����������&	���	���	��*��������	��	����	���	


����� �� !��	��
	���	����	!����	����������"

	1���� 	-����
�

1�����	���
�	1���2	��3����

1�����	#���������2	��3���4

5��	��
	#����������2��3���4

!�
�	#����
������2	��3���6

�
�)���	#���������2	��3���7

	

	

	

	

	

	$�������

8/�!	9���!��	:��
���
����
�8

;<= >?@ABACDAE@FGHIJKLMN@OPQNHK@JMQ@RJGLKJS@TIUNIJV



��������������	


�����	�����

�������������������� ���������������� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$�������

�%&'�(�)�*%& +,-.///./// +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 45�6���6��� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

�78�9��:


�����	�����

;�&�*&���%�<=�� ���������������� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$�������

>�&�(=?�1@?*�=�*%&��%&�' +,-.///./// +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 45�6���6��� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

�A89:B��CD��E�	

����

<�')(*F�*%& ������� ������ ��� ��! ���!��" ���"��# ���#��$ 0%�=?

G%��HF=)��2&�*)*F=��� +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

IJKLMLNOLPKQRSTUVWXYKZ[\YSVKUX\K]URWVÛK_T̀YTUa bcd



 AI# 12004 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept and execute, for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Concurrence Letter and a Street and Public Use Dedication
Deed, and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 26, Block 
AK, Lubbock County, Texas, on the north side of 98th Street, east of Alcove Avenue, owned by Brian
D. Schroeder and Nancy E. Schroeder, to be utilized for the 98th Street Roadway Project.

Item Summary
Brian and Nancy Schroeder are dedicating right-of-way to the City to be utilized for roadway
improvements on the 98th Street Capital Improvements Bond Project on the north side of 98th Street,
east of Alcove Avenue.

The proponents will dedicate 12,558 square feet of land for street right-of-way, for the total
consideration of $122,395, as valued in appraisal reports by Atrium Real Estate Services, subject to final
approval by the City Council and approval of title.

The attached resolution will authorize the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a
Concurrence Letter and Street and Public Use Dedication Deed, and all related documents

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $122,395 plus closing costs, and is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92811, 98th Street: Alcove Avenue to Upland Avenue – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Schroeder 
Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Schroeder 
Parcel 34 GIS map 
CIP 92811 Cost Detail 
CIP Project Detail 















TR E

608B611B 606B612B 609B610B 607B

62 74

28 31

3

52

6764

34

71 73

22

2

46 40

37

66

53

58

48

59

10

36

47 38

69

49

14
1

45

12

35

54 44

15

57

21

68

32

60

26

63 65

272423

11

50

TR A

25

16

33

39

7270

918 68 7

42

61

45

43

17

41

29 30

13

51

606A607A608A609A610A611A612A

613

614

615

616

617
618

619

620

621 622

624

626

627

628

629

623

625

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Proposed Portion of Right of Way Easement
Located in the Western Portion of Section 26, Block AK

0 100 200 300 400 500
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

Proposed Right of Way Easement
~12,588 sq ft

LUBBOCK

IN
TERNATIO

NAL AIR
PORT

Y
U

K
O

N
 A

V
E

98TH ST

99TH ST

102ND ST

96TH ST

V
IO

LA
 A

V
E

104TH ST

REGENCY

PARK

EVEREST

HEIG
HTS

Y
U

K
O

N
 A

V
E

WOLFFORTH

PLACE 93RD ST

U
RB

A
N

A
 A

V
E

98TH ST

86TH ST

WIN
DSTONE

AT UPLAND

97TH ST

96TH ST
ZA

D
A

R 
A

V
E

W
A

U
SA

U
 A

V
E

W
A

U
SA

U
 A

V
E



City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 10, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92811
Capital Project Name: 98th Street: Alcove to Upland - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17031 with KHA for Design Services  989,200 
Staff Time  12,837 
ROW Dedication, Parcel 48  104,917 
ROW Dedication, Parcel 83  238,903 

Agenda Item October 10, 2023
ROW Dedication, Parcel 34  122,395 
ROW Dedication, Parcel 35  130,364 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,598,615 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
98th Street: Alcove to Upland - 22B Construction  10,401,385 

Remaining Appropriation  - 

Total Appropriation  $12,000,000 



�����

����	��
���	�
��	�����	�����	��	������	�����	��	��

�����	�������	���	��	����������	��	

���	����	���
������
�	�����
	����	��	������	�	����� ����	�
�������	�
��
���	
���!��"		

#��������	�
�!��	��	�����!���	$�����%	���	���
�����	�
�����	�������	�����	���	!���	����	

��
���	��

���
	�
��	�����	�����	��	������	�����&	�	
���!��	����	��	��

�����	�������	

!���	��
�����	��	�	�����	'���"	������	�����
��	�����������	���	�����
������	��	��	��� !�����
	

�����	
���!��&	
�����	�����	���	�����	�����(	���	��!	
���!��	!���	��	�����
�����	��	�	��
��	

����	����������	
���!��	!���	�
������	��
����
��	��	���	�����	����	��������	�������
�����"	

���	������	!���	�������	���	��������	������	��	����� ����	�
��
���&	����
�������	���
��������&	

�
������	���������&	�������	��)�������	���	
����	��	!��	��*��������	��
�����	!���	���	#���	��	

$�����%	�����
������	��
��	�����"	

	+����,������ -���������

.�	/������
	�&	����&	$�����%	����
�	���
����	

��������	��	�	0���	�������	��
���	���
��������	

����	���%���	��
	���	��
����	��	�
�������	

��
������	������	���
��������"		���	�������	!���	

��*��
�&	�����
���	���	
������
���	��
���	

���
��������&	���������	���	���	�������	��	

����!��%�&	�������	����	
����������	���	�
�����	

�������'�����&	�������
�	���	
������	���
�	

�
������	����������&	���	���	��*��������	��	����	���	


����� �� !��	��
	���	����	!����	����������"

	1���� 	-����
�

1�����	���
�	1���2	��3����

1�����	#���������2	��3���4

5��	��
	#����������2��3���4

!�
�	#����
������2	��3���6

�
�)���	#���������2	��3���7

	

	

	

	

	

	$�������

8/�!	9���!��	:��
���
����
�8

;<= >?@ABACDAE@FGHIJKLMN@OPQNHK@JMQ@RJGLKJS@TIUNIJV



��������������	


�����	�����

�������������������� ���������������� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$�������

�%&'�(�)�*%& +,-.///./// +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 45�6���6��� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

�78�9��:


�����	�����

;�&�*&���%�<=�� ���������������� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$�������

>�&�(=?�1@?*�=�*%&��%&�' +,-.///./// +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 45�6���6��� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

�A89:B��CD��E�	

����

<�')(*F�*%& ������� ������ ��� ��! ���!��" ���"��# ���#��$ 0%�=?

G%��HF=)��2&�*)*F=��� +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

IJKLMLNOLPKQRSTUVWXYKZ[\YSVKUX\K]URWVÛK_T̀YTUa bcd



 AI# 12005 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept and execute, for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Concurrence Letter and Street and Public Use Dedication Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 26, Block AK,
Lubbock County, Texas, on the north side of 98th Street, east of Alcove Avenue, owned by Dr. Tedd
Mitchell and Dr.Janet Tornelli-Mitchell, to be utilized for the 98th Street Roadway Project.

Item Summary
Teddy and Janet Mitchell are dedicating right-of-way to the City of Lubbock to be utilized for roadway
improvements on the 98th Street Capital Improvements Bond Project on the north side of 98th Street,
east of Alcove Avenue.
 
The proponents will dedicate 14,510 square feet of land for street right-of- way, for the total
consideration of $130,364, as valued in appraisal reports by Atrium Real Estate Services, subject to final
approval by the City Council and approval of title.

The attached resolution will authorize the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a
Concurrence Letter and Street and Public Use Dedication Deed, and all related documents

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the land acquisition is $130,364 plus closing costs, and is funded in Capital Improvements
Project 92811, 98th Street: Alcove Avenue to Upland Avenue – 22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Mitchell 
Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Mitchell 
Parcel 35 GIS map 
CIP 92811 Detail 
Budget Detail 















TR E

608B611B 606B612B 609B610B 607B

62 74

28 31

3

52

6764

34

71 73

22

2

46 40

37

66

53

58

48

59

10

36

47 38

69

49

14
1

45

12

35

54 44

15

57

21

68

32

60

26

63 65

272423

11

50

TR A

25

16

33

39

7270

918 68 7

42

61

45

43

17

41

29 30

13

51

606A607A608A609A610A611A612A

613

614

615

616

617
618

619

620

621 622

624

626

627

628

629

623

625

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Proposed Portion of Right of Way Easement
Located in the Western Portion of Section 26, Block AK

0 100 200 300 400 500
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

Proposed Right of Way Easement
~14,510 sq ft

LUBBOCK

IN
TERNATIO

NAL AIR
PORT

Y
U

K
O

N
 A

V
E

98TH ST

99TH ST

102ND ST

96TH ST

V
IO

LA
 A

V
E

104TH ST

REGENCY

PARK

EVEREST

HEIG
HTS

Y
U

K
O

N
 A

V
E

WOLFFORTH

PLACE 93RD ST

U
RB

A
N

A
 A

V
E

98TH ST

86TH ST

WIN
DSTONE

AT UPLAND

97TH ST

96TH ST
ZA

D
A

R 
A

V
E

W
A

U
SA

U
 A

V
E

W
A

U
SA

U
 A

V
E



City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 10, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92811
Capital Project Name: 98th Street: Alcove to Upland - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 17031 with KHA for Design Services  989,200 
Staff Time  12,837 
ROW Dedication, Parcel 48  104,917 
ROW Dedication, Parcel 83  238,903 

Agenda Item October 10, 2023
ROW Dedication, Parcel 34  122,395 
ROW Dedication, Parcel 35  130,364 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,598,615 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
98th Street: Alcove to Upland - 22B Construction  10,401,385 

Remaining Appropriation  - 

Total Appropriation  $12,000,000 



�����

����	��
���	�
��	�����	�����	��	������	�����	��	��

�����	�������	���	��	����������	��	

���	����	���
������
�	�����
	����	��	������	�	����� ����	�
�������	�
��
���	
���!��"		

#��������	�
�!��	��	�����!���	$�����%	���	���
�����	�
�����	�������	�����	���	!���	����	

��
���	��

���
	�
��	�����	�����	��	������	�����&	�	
���!��	����	��	��

�����	�������	

!���	��
�����	��	�	�����	'���"	������	�����
��	�����������	���	�����
������	��	��	��� !�����
	

�����	
���!��&	
�����	�����	���	�����	�����(	���	��!	
���!��	!���	��	�����
�����	��	�	��
��	

����	����������	
���!��	!���	�
������	��
����
��	��	���	�����	����	��������	�������
�����"	

���	������	!���	�������	���	��������	������	��	����� ����	�
��
���&	����
�������	���
��������&	

�
������	���������&	�������	��)�������	���	
����	��	!��	��*��������	��
�����	!���	���	#���	��	

$�����%	�����
������	��
��	�����"	

	+����,������ -���������

.�	/������
	�&	����&	$�����%	����
�	���
����	

��������	��	�	0���	�������	��
���	���
��������	

����	���%���	��
	���	��
����	��	�
�������	

��
������	������	���
��������"		���	�������	!���	

��*��
�&	�����
���	���	
������
���	��
���	

���
��������&	���������	���	���	�������	��	

����!��%�&	�������	����	
����������	���	�
�����	

�������'�����&	�������
�	���	
������	���
�	

�
������	����������&	���	���	��*��������	��	����	���	


����� �� !��	��
	���	����	!����	����������"

	1���� 	-����
�

1�����	���
�	1���2	��3����

1�����	#���������2	��3���4

5��	��
	#����������2��3���4

!�
�	#����
������2	��3���6

�
�)���	#���������2	��3���7

	

	

	

	

	

	$�������

8/�!	9���!��	:��
���
����
�8

;<= >?@ABACDAE@FGHIJKLMN@OPQNHK@JMQ@RJGLKJS@TIUNIJV



��������������	


�����	�����

�������������������� ���������������� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$�������

�%&'�(�)�*%& +,-.///./// +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 45�6���6��� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

�78�9��:


�����	�����

;�&�*&���%�<=�� ���������������� �������� ������� ��� ����!������� ���!����"������� ���"����#������� ���#����$�������

>�&�(=?�1@?*�=�*%&��%&�' +,-.///./// +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 45�6���6��� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

�A89:B��CD��E�	

����

<�')(*F�*%& ������� ������ ��� ��! ���!��" ���"��# ���#��$ 0%�=?

G%��HF=)��2&�*)*F=��� +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/ +/

01023 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4� 4�

IJKLMLNOLPKQRSTUVWXYKZ[\YSVKUX\K]URWVÛK_T̀YTUa bcd



 AI# 12011 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 17579, with Deerwood Construction, Inc., for installation of a water line along Milwaukee
Avenue from 4th Street to Erskine Street.

Item Summary
This project’s purpose is to install a new water main along Milwaukee Avenue to improve the City’s
water system reliability in Northwest Lubbock and provide water for future development ahead of the
reconstruction of Milwaukee Ave. to a five (5) lane roadway.

In response to ITB 23-17579-TF, bids were received and opened on September 28, 2023.  They were as
follows:
  

Contractor Amount
Deerwood Construction, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $815,433.96
Rink’s Lease Service, Inc., Levelland, Texas $817,085.00
Utility Contractors of America Inc., Lubbock, Texas $821,880.00
LA Fuller and Sons Construction LTD, Amarillo, Texas $924,087.45
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $955,150.00
Digg Commercial LLC, Austin, Texas $979,729.00

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the unit price contract to the lowest bidder,
Deerwood Construction, Inc. of Lubbock, Texas, for $815,433.96.

Time for substantial completion is 150 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed. This contract is
awarded as a unit price contract, and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on field
conditions.

Fiscal Impact
This contract in the amount of $815,433.96, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92750, Water
Lines Ahead of Street Paving.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments



Resolution 17579 - Deerwood Construction Inc 
Contract 17579 - Deerwood Construction Inc 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail 92750 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Sheet - ITB 23-17665-DH, Dearwood 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Public Works Contract No. 17579 for Water Lines 
Ahead of Paving - Milwaukee Ave 4th To Erskine as per ITB 23-17579-TF, by and between 
the City of Lubbock and Deerwood Construction, Inc. of Lubbock, TX, and related documents. 
Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein 
and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on _____________ _ 

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CONTE T: 

.fJMBlu lA.) 1'\lkv!L ~ 
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Iii Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney 

ccdocs/RES.Public Works Contract 17579 Water Lines Ahead of Paving 
09.29.23 





City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

ITB 23-17579-TF

Water Lines Ahead of Paving – Milwaukee Ave 4th To Erskine  

#

QTY

+/- U/M

Unit

Price

Extended

Cost

#1-1
Mobilization - Contractor mobilization including move-in and move-out cost from each site 

location.
1 LS       38,830.24         38,830.24 

#1-2
Provide and maintain a Traffic Control Plan - Preparation, approval from COL Traffic 

Engineering to all sites, and all other work considered incidental to this item.
1 LS       14,440.07         14,440.07 

#1-3
Provide and maintain a SWPPP - Including preparation, NOI, NOT, and all other work 

considered incidental to this item.
1 LS         8,721.00           8,721.00 

#1-4 Trench Safety - Complete and in place. 4645 LF                1.20           5,574.00 

#2-1

Furnish and install C900 12" PVC approved water pipe in open cut trench, backfilled to 95% 

compaction, and tested as herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to 

perform work.

4470 LF            124.90       558,303.00 

#2-2

Furnish and install C900 10" PVC approved water pipe in open cut trench, backfilled to 95% 

modified compaction, and tested as herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and 

labor to perform work.

55 LF              75.00           4,125.00 

#2-3

Furnish and install C900 8" PVC approved water pipe in open cut trench, backfilled to 95% 

modified compaction, and tested as herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and 

labor to perform work.

120 LF              65.00           7,800.00 

#2-4

Furnish and install C900 6" PVC approved water pipe in open cut trench, backfilled to 95% 

modified compaction, and tested as herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and 

labor to perform work.

50 LF              57.00           2,850.00 

#2-5

Furnish and install 20" steel encasement with 10" C-900 DR-18 pvc pipe by open cut, provide 

all casing spacers  and backfilled to 95% modified compaction, and tested as herein specified, 

including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform work, as herein specified.

40 LF            227.29           9,091.60 

#2-6

Furnish and install 20" steel encasement with 10" C-900 DR-18 pvc pipe by method other than 

open cut, provide all casing spacers  and backfilled to 95% modified compaction, and tested as 

herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform work, as herein 

specified.

30 LF            433.19         12,995.70 

#2-7

Furnish and install 16" steel encasement with 8" C-900 DR-18 pvc pipe by open cut, provide all 

casing spacers  and backfilled to 95% modified compaction, and tested as herein specified, 

including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform work, as herein specified.

115 LF            147.89         17,007.35 

#2-8

Furnish and install 16" steel encasement with 8" C-900 DR-18 pvc pipe by method other than 

open cut, provide all casing spacers  and backfilled to 95% modified compaction, and tested as 

herein specified, including all fittings, equipment, tools, and labor to perform work, as herein 

specified.

100 LF            272.16         27,216.00 

#2-9
Furnish and install 12" gate valve and box as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, 

and labor to perform work.
5 EA         3,700.00         18,500.00 

#2-10
Furnish and install 10" gate valve and box as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, 

and labor to perform work.
1 EA         3,200.00           3,200.00 

#2-11
Furnish and install 8" gate valve and box as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and 

labor to perform work.
4 EA         2,300.00           9,200.00 

#2-12
Furnish and install 12"x8" Tapping Sleeve and valve as herein specified, including all 

equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.
1 EA         3,300.00           3,300.00 

#2-13 Cut in Tee to existing 8" Water Line, complete and in place per Specifications. 1 LS         2,000.00           2,000.00 

#2-14
Furnish and install 2" Air Release Valve and Vault, as herein specified, including all equipment, 

tools, and labor to perform work.
1 EA         5,800.00           5,800.00 

#2-15
Furnish and install Fire Hydrant, as herein specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to 

perform work.
8 EA         4,810.00         38,480.00 

#2-16 Tie in to to existing water Line, complete and in place per Specifications. 2 LS         2,000.00           4,000.00 

#3-1 Flowable backfill as approved, complete and in place per Specifications. 150 CY            120.00         18,000.00 

#3-2

Remove and Repair concrete paving, including all material, equipment and labor to perform sub 

grade compaction and testing. Concrete installation per COL Specifications and all other work 

considered incidental to this item.

20 SY            300.00           6,000.00 

 $   815,433.96 

Deerwood Construction, Inc. of Lubbock, TX

General

Total (Items 1-1 through 3-2):

Water Improvements

Paving Repair





³

Water Line Ahead of Paving - Milwaukee Ave.
from 4th St. to Erskine St.

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

4,459 Ft Proposed Water Line

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

4TH ST

21TH ST

ERSKINE ST

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents
only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Existing Water Main
Proposed Water Main

Under Construction Water Main

TERRA ESTATES N
ORTH

SHADOW
 H

IL
LS



City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 10, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92750
Capital Project Name: Water Lines Ahead of Street Paving

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $97,683 
Advertising  270 
Water System Improvements  382,054 
Contract 16842 - Water Ahead of Unpaved Roads  564,820 

Agenda Item October 10, 2023
Contract 17579 - Milwaukee Ave 4th to Erskine  815,434 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,860,261 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Water Lines  2,614,739 

Remaining Appropriation  2,614,739 

Total Appropriation  $4,475,000 



Project Scope

Relocate and install water lines ahead of municipal, county, and state paving projects and 
future development including but not limited to the Gateway Paving Projects.

Project Justification  Project Highlights

The project is an annual water line installation 
program coordinated with street paving projects.

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvements
Growth and Development

Project Dates Project History

 $250,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 
Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.
 
$1,725,000 was appropriated in the FY 2022-23 
Budget, Ord. No. 2022-O0136, October 1, 2022.

Project Location

Project Appropriations

W 92750

2022 - 23 Budget CIP 2023 - 24 Budget 2023 - 24 Budget CIP 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget

Design $50,000 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $1,925,000 $2,500,000 $1,925,000 $1,200,000 $400,000 $425,000 $450,000

TOTAL $1,975,000 $2,500,000 $1,975,000 $1,200,000 $400,000 $425,000 $450,000

2028 - 29 Budget

Design $0

Construction $475,000

TOTAL $475,000

Project Funding

W 92750

Funding to
Date

2023 - 24
Budget

2024 - 25
Budget

2025 - 26
Budget

2026 - 27
Budget

2027 - 28
Budget

2028 - 29
Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund
Cash $1,975,000 $2,500,000 $1,200,000 $400,000 $425,000 $450,000 $475,000

TOTAL $1,975,000 $2,500,000 $1,200,000 $400,000 $425,000 $450,000 $475,000

Operating Budget Impacts

CIP 92750CIP 92750 Water Lines Ahead of Water Lines Ahead of  
Street Paving FY 2021Street Paving FY 2021  

Replacement InfrastructureReplacement Infrastructure

Project Manager: Josh Kristinek - EngineeringProject Manager: Josh Kristinek - Engineering



92750

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 23-17579-TF  

Water Lines Ahead of Paving – Milwaukee Ave 4th To Erskine 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 10 & September 17, 2023. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from September 10 to September 28, 2023. 

9 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

40 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

14 vendors were notified separately.  

6 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12014 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 17581, with MH Civil Constructors., Inc., for Water Line Change Out, Cowan Addition, Blocks
5 and 9.

Item Summary
This project’s purpose is to replace aging water infrastructure in various areas of Lubbock, in order to
prevent leaks, system failures, emergency maintenance, and customer inconvenience.

In response to ITB 23-17581-DH, bids from 2 contractors were received and opened on September 26,
2023.  They were as follows:
  

Contractor Amount
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $545,000
Rink's Lease Service, Levelland, Texas $623,520

The contract term will be 150 calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed, with $300 per day of
liquidated damages for each day that exceeds the 150 calendar day limit.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17581 with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., in the amount of $545,000, is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92749, Water Line Change Out FY21.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., CFM, Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
Budget Detail 
Project Summary Sheet 





BID SUBMITTAL FORM 
UNIT PRICE BID CONTRACT 

DATE: 09/26/2023 
-------�==�-- - - - - -

PROJECT NUMBER: ITB 23-17581-DH, Water Line Change Out Cowan Addition Blocks 5 and 6 

Bid of MH Civil Constructors, Inc. (hereinafter called 
--- - ---------------------------

Bidder) 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lubbock, Texas (hereinafter called Owner) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Bidder, in compliance with your Invitation to Bid for the construction of the referenced project, having 
carefully examined the plans, specifications, instructions to bidders, notice to bidders and all other related 
contract documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with all of the conditions surrounding 
the construction of the intended project including the availability of materials and labor, hereby intends to 
furnish all labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project in accordance with the plans, specifications 
and contract documents, within the time set forth therein and at the price stated. 

The bidder binds himself on acceptance of his bid to execute a contract and any required bonds, according to 
the accompanying forms, for performing and completing the said work within the time stated and for the prices 
stated. 

Bidder hereby agrees to commence the work on the above project on a date to be specified in a written "Notice 
to Proceed" of the Owner and to substantially complete the project within (150) One Hundred-Fifty 
consecutive calendar days with final completion of the project within (180) One Hundred-Eighty 

consecutive calendar days as stipulated in the specification and other contract documents. Bidder hereby 
further agrees to pay to Owner as liquidated damages in the sum of$300 for each consecutive calendar day after 
substantial completion and liquidated damages in the sum of $500 for each consecutive calendar day after 
final completion set forth herein above for completion of this project, all as more fully set forth in the General 
Conditions of the Agreement. 

Bidder understands and agrees that this bid submittal shall be completed and submitted in accordance with 
instruction number 29 of the General Instructions to Bidders. 

Bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any formality in the 
bidding. 

The Bidder agrees that this bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of 60 calendar days after 
the scheduled closing time for receiving bids. 

The undersigned Bidder hereby declares that he has visited the site of the work and has carefully examined the 
plans, specifications and contract documents pertaining to the work covered by this bid, and he further agrees 
to commence work on or before the date specified in the written notice to proceed, and to substantially complete 
the work on which he has bid; as provided in the contract documents. 

Bidders are required, whether or not a payment or performance bond is required, to submit a cashier's check or 
certified check issued by a bank satisfactory to the City of Lubbock, or a bid bond from a reliable surety 
company, payable without recourse to the order of the City of Lubbock in an amount not less than five percent 
(5%) of the total amount of the bid submitted as a guarantee that bidder will enter into a contract, obtain all 





City of Lubbock, TX
Public Works

ITB 23-17581-DH
Water Line Change Out Cowan Addition Blocks 5 and 6 

# Items
QTY
+/-

U/M
Unit
Price

Extended
Cost

#1-1 Mobilization - Contractor mobilization including move-in and 
move-out cost from each site location.

1 LS $24,102.00 $24,102.00

#1-2 Provide and maintain a Traffic Control Plan - Preparation, 
approval from COL Traffic Engineering to all sites, and all other 
work considered incidental to this item.

1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00

#1-3 Trench Safety 1134 LF $2.00 $2,268.00

#2-1 Furnish and install 8" C-900 DR-18 approved water pipe by open 
cut, backfilled to 95% compaction, and tested as herein specified,
including all equipment, tools, fittings, and labor to perform work.

903 LF $260.00 $234,780.00

#2-2 Furnish and install 8" C-900 DR-18 approved water pipe by bore 
with 16" steel casing, backfilled to 95% compaction, and tested as 
herein specified, including all equipment, tools, fittings, and labor 
to perform work.

53 LF $1,500.00 $79,500.00

#2-3 Furnish and install 6" C-900 DR-18 approved water pipe by open 
cut, backfilled to 95% compaction, and tested as herein specified, 
including all equipment, tools, fittings, and labor to perform work.

180 LF $250.00 $45,000.00

#2-4 Furnish and install 6" gate valve and box as herein specified, 
including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.

1 EA $5,000.00 $5,000.00

#2-5 Furnish and install 8" gate valve and box as herein specified, 
including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.

2 EA $5,200.00 $10,400.00

#2-6 Cut, plug, and abandon existing 3" water line, as herein specified, 
including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform work. 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00

#2-7 Furnish and install 8"x6" Tapping Sleeve and valve as herein 
specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform 
work.

1 EA $5,000.00 $5,000.00

#2-8 Furnish and install 12"x8" Tapping Sleeve and valve as herein 
specified, including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform 
work.

1 EA $18,000.00 $18,000.00

#2-9 Furnish and reconnect 3/4" - 1" service lines as herein specified, 
including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.

16 EA $2,500.00 $40,000.00

#2-10 Furnish and reconnect 2" service lines as herein specified, 
including all equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.

1 EA $4,000.00 $4,000.00

#2-11 Flowable backfill as approved, complete and in place per 
Specifications.

30 CY $200.00 $6,000.00

#2-12 Furnish and Install Fire Hydrant as herein specified, including all 
equipment, tools, and labor to perform work.

1 EA $10,000.00 $10,000.00

 MH Civil Constructors, Inc of Amarillo, TX

Base Bid

Water Improvements



City of Lubbock, TX
Public Works

ITB 23-17581-DH
Water Line Change Out Cowan Addition Blocks 5 and 6 

#3-1 Saw cut and remove existing asphalt paving, including all 
material, equipment and labor to perform removal, disposal and all 
other work considered incidental to this item.

90 SY $55.00 $4,950.00

#3-2 Repair asphalt paving, including all material, equipment and labor 
to perform sub grade compaction and testing. HMAC installation 
per COL Specifications and all other work considered incidental to 
this item.

90 SY $100.00 $9,000.00

#3-3 Saw cut and remove existing concrete paving, including all 
material, equipment and labor to perform removal, disposal and all 
other work considered incidental to this item.

200 SY $55.00 $11,000.00

#3-4 Repair concrete paving, including all material, equipment and 
labor to perform sub grade compaction and testing. Concrete 
installation per COL Specifications and all other work considered 
incidental to this item.

200 SY $100.00 $20,000.00

$41,370.00 
$458,680.00 
$44,950.00 

$545,000.00Total (Items 1-1 through 3-4): 
Total (Items 3-1 through 3-4):

Total (Items 1-1 through 1-3):
Total (Items 2-1 through 2-12):

Paving Repair





³ Water Line Change Out
Cowan Addition Block 5 and 6

0 150 30075
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

PE
O

RI
A

 A
V

E

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

18TH ST

17TH ST
21TH ST

O
RL

A
N

D
O

 A
V

E

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may not
have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents
only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Water Mains
Proposed

Proposed Abandoned



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 24, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92749
Capital Project Name: Water Line Change Out Cowan Addition Blocks 5 and 6

Encumbered/Expended Budget
City of Lubbock Staff Time  $61,497 
Water System Improvments  190,466.25 
Professional Services  21,053.00 
Advertisement  557.68 
Contract 17332 - Rink's Lease Service  734,603.00 
Change Order 01 to Contract 17332  32,531.00 

Agenda Items, October 24, 2023
Water Line Change Out Cowan Addition Blocks 5 and 6

Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,040,708 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Water System Improvements  804,059 

Remaining Appropriation  804,059 

Total Appropriation  $1,844,767 



79 FY 2022-23 Operating Budget and Capital Program



FY 2022-23 Operating Budget and Capital Program 80



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
 

ITB 23-17581-DH  
Water Line Change Out Cowan Addition Blocks 5 and 6 

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 10 & September 17, 2023. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from September 09 to September 26, 2023. 
7 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 
31 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
10 vendors were notified separately.  
2 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12008 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing all remaining
easements and right-of-way located in Block 130, Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close all remaining alleys and utility
easements located within Block 130, Original Town of Lubbock Subdivision.
 
Portions of the alley were closed previously, leaving remnant pieces and reservations from previous
closures. A closure fee will not be assessed because a re-plat will be performed, and this closure will
accommodate plans for the Downtown Civic Park.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Block 130, Original Town 
Exhibit A - All Easements & ROW Closure 
Map - Block 130, Original Town of Lubbock 







181649
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"

































118 18 17

7

1

13 8 8

319

20 20

12

19

9

15

10

1919

5

1

1922 4

15

13
14

12

2

6

19

2020

9 9

51616

13

2

11

20

1

6

417 17 18

11
12

3

1

7
15

5

10

6

8

11

20

14 14

2 4

10

7

3

2

129 130 131

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Proposed Closure of Remaining Alleys and Utility Easements
Located Within Block 130, Original Town of Lubbock Subdivision

0 100 200 300 400 500
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

Portions of Alley
to Be Closed

A
V

E 
M

13TH ST

ORIG
IN

AL TOWN

OF LUBBOCK

G A

RUSH

BROADWAY

15TH ST

A
V

E 
M

A
V

E 
L

A
V

E 
O

A
V

E 
J

A
V

E 
K

A
V

E 
L

10TH ST

MAIN ST

ORIGINAL TO
WN

OF LU
BBOCK

13TH ST

OVERTON

14TH ST

SSE, UGE, & OPE
To Be Closed

Previously Closed
Portion of Alley

TE
X

A
S 

A
V

E

A
V

E 
N

VDC

HOTEL

L P K

BROADWAY

Previously Closed
Portion of Alley



 AI# 12000 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional Services
Agreement 17618, with Freese & Nichols, Inc., for design services for the Southeast Water Reclamation
Plant No. 3 Biological Nutrient Removal Improvements.

Item Summary
More than 10 years ago, the City began upgrading the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP)
facilities in phases, with a goal to upgrade Plant No. 3 and Plant No. 4, by incorporating biological
nutrient removal (BNR) into the treatment process; thereby allowing the effluent to be discharged to the
North Fork of the Double Mountain Fork of the Brazos River.  Plant 4 has been upgraded with a BNR
treatment process; however, Plant No. 3 still requires upgrading.  Improving the wastewater quality
produced by Plant No. 3 will assist the City in moving away from expensive land application
disposal, in preparing to use the effluent for more beneficial uses such as Lake 7, and for a drinking
water supply in the future.
 
On June 13, 2021, City Council awarded Contract 15739 to Freese & Nichols, Inc., for evaluating
various alternatives of biological nutrient removal processes and for providing preliminary engineering
report specifying the most cost-effective technology to use for Plant No. 3 BNR upgrades.

Under Contract 17618, Freese & Nichols, Inc., will perform the following services associated with the
SEWRP Plant No. 3. BNR Improvements Capital Improvements Project:
  

• Final Engineering Report;
• Preliminary Design;
• Final Design;
• Bid Phase Services, Survey; and,
• Geotechnical Engineering, and Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Construction
(TPDES) Major Permit Amendment Services.

  
Contract negotiations were conducted with Freese and Nichols, Inc., and fair and reasonable hourly rates
were determined for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,499,391, with 600 consecutive calendar
days to perform the services.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17618 for $1,499,391, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92674, SEWRP Improvements
Plant 3 Nutrient Removal.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer



Attachments
Resolution 
Professional Service Agreement 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute foi
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17618 foi
design services for the southeast water reclamation plant No. 3 BNR improvements, by anc
between the City of Lubbock and Freese and Nichols, Inc., and related documents. Said Contraci
is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall bc
included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

e2

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

AP ROVED AS TO FORM:

lli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs/RES.PSA-No. 7618 - SEWRP No. 3 design
9.25.23



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK §

This Professional Service Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No. 17618 is entered into this

day of

_______________,

2023, is by and between the City of Lubbock (the “City”), a Texas home mie

municipal corporation, and Freese and Nichols, Inc., (the” Engineer”), a Texas corporation.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant No. 3 BNR Improvements Engineering Design Services, (the

“Activities”); and

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable

price; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. TERM

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption

for a term of 600 days. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the Services,

the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to grant up to

an additional six (6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase. An

amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be approved

by the City acting through its governing body.

Page 1 of ii



ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit

“A”, attached hereto (the “Services”).

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, a

lump sum fee of $1,412,219 for basic services and $87,172 for special services for a total contract amount

of $1,499,391 as set forth in Exhibit “B”.

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty

(30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to

have received notice of termination, as provided herein.

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/or provision of this

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an

action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative.

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity,

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive,

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control.

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas.

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby.

Page 2 of ii



C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part

of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof.

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated

hereby.

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations,

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby.

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer’s failure to perform this duty.

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as

provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement andlor

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the

Engineer and the Engineer’s employees and/or sub-consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose,

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind.

Page 3 of ii



ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement,

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub-

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement,

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance

companies must carry a Best’s Rating of A-Vu or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability:

Commercial General Liability:

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000

Professional Liability:

Combined Single Limit: $2,000,000

Automobile Liability:

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence

Employer’s Liability:

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000

Worker’s Compensation

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The City shall be listed as a

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage.

The Certificate shall provide 30 days’ notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker’s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas
Page 4 of 11



Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of

Worker’s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof the Engineer fails

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be

maintained at the Engineer’s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement.

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are

referred to herein as “Sub-consultant”), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit “B”,

attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub-consultants.

The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this Agreement

and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage of any

approved Sub-consultant. Any agent and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the Engineer shall

be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the Engineer and naming

said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be carried by the Engineer

in this Agreement.

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law.

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City’s

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law.

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS,

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE,
PageS of II



OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING,

ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY OR

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES,

AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR

OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances,

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any

amendments thereto.

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE

A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by

(1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand (in which case such notice shall be

effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or (3)

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited.

B. Engineer’s Address. The Engineer’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are:

Freese & Nichols, Inc.
Chad Simmons, P.E.
801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800
Fort Worth, Texas 76102
Telephone: (817) 735-7305
Email: chad.sirnrnons(/i/freese.com

C. City’s Address. The City’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are:

Zoltan Fekete, P.E.
City of Lubbock
P.O. Box 2000
1314 Avenue K
Lubbock, Texas 79457
Telephone: 806-775-3317
Email: zfekete@mylubbock.us

Page 6 of 11



D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day

after such notice is effective.

ARTICLE XIV. CITY-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Provision of Data. The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confidential studies, reports and other

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer’s Services, so long as the City is

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer’s Services under

this Agreement (the “Provided Data”). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data.

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this

Agreement strictly for the parties’ convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not

be given any effect in construing this Agreement.

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer’s books and records with respect

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City.

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services

provided by the Engineer.

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval

of the City.

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns.

F. Construction and Venue.

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF

Page7ofll



ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement

and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with respect to which

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby.

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City.

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits “A” through “B” attached hereto, contains

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises,

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein.

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint

enterprise, partnership or principal — agent relationship between the Engineer and the City.

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work

products for its files.

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights with respect to any other or subsequent

breach.

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer.

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City

will ten-ninate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”). If at any time funds are

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on

Page 8 of 11



thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date.

0. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist

Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization

P. No Boycott of Israel. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more

full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public

funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does

not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it

does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive

that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by

Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company

with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more,

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice,

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association.

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas

Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds.

S. Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter.

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees

to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention

Page 9 of 11



requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either:

(A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body.

T. Professional Responsibility. All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license.

Page 10 of 11



EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof.

CITY OF LUBBOCK

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Michael 0. Keenum, P.E., CFM, Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Kelli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

Firm

FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC.

By:
Nicholas Lester, P.E., VP/Principal

Email: ncl@freese.com

Page 11 of 11



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR:

SOUTHEAST WATER RECLAMATION PLANT NO. 3 BNR IMPROVEMENTS

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

General:

One of the City of Lubbock’s (OWNER) goals from the Strategic Water Supply Plan is to improve the

effluent quality of its Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP) No. 3 such that it can be discharged

directly to the North Fork of the Double Mountain Fork of the Brazos River. The purpose of this project

is to incorporate biological nutrient removal (BNR) into the SEWRP No. 3, along with supporting

improvements, to allow direct discharge of effluent into the North Fork of the Double Mountain Fork of

the Brazos River.

A. This Project includes the following services:

1. Project Management

2. Final Engineering Report

3. Preliminary Design

4. Final Design

5. Bid Phase Services

6. Topographic Survey and LiDAR Scan

7. Geotechnical Engineering

8. TPDES Permitting

B. The Project does not include the following services:

1. Use of collaborative project delivery (CMAR or design-build).

2. General Representation and Resident Project Representation.

3. Preparation of an Environmental Technical Memorandum, preparation of a Pre-Construction

Notification, coordination with the Texas Historical Commission, individual Section 404 permit

application to the USACE, performing a survey for federally listed threatened or endangered

species, providing cultural resource survey, or preparation of a Phase I/lI environmental site

assessment.

ARTICLE I

Basic Services:

A. Task 1 - Project Management

1. Perform general administrative duties associated with the Project, including progress monitoring
and monthly progress reporting, scheduling, general correspondence, documentation, office
administration, project team management, implementation of a Quality Assurance (QA) and

SEWRP No.3 BNR Improvements Page 1 of 11



Quality Control (QC) program for the project, and invoicing for the scope items identified below.
Documentation shall be in accordance with OWNER requirements for the Project. These duties
include maintaining regular communication with the OWNER to help meet the needs of the

OWNER in a timely manner and executing work per the work plan, budget, and schedule.

2. Prepare a Microsoft Project schedule. The project schedule will not be resource loaded.

3. Prepare and deliver up to fifteen (15) monthly reports to the OWNER regarding project status,

anticipated upcoming work, inforination needs, status of deliverables, and project schedule.

4. Prepare for and facilitate an in-person project kick-off workshop to clarify the OWNER’s
requirements for the Project, review the scope of services, Project staffing and organization, and
schedule.

5. Conduct up to nine (9) periodic virtual progress meetings with the OWNER.

6. Prepare for and facilitate four (4) review workshops with the OWNER at the 30%, 60%, 90%,
and final design deliverables. Prepare draft summaries to include action items lists, decisions lists,
and general discussion topics for review and approval by OWNER. It is assumed the 30%, 60%,
and 90% workshops will be in-person and the final design workshop will be virtual. Detailed
design elements shall be developed using AutoCAD and Autodesk Revit BIM software for
modeling the plant arrangement, coordinating with the OWNER on the detailed mechanical,
equipment, and structures, and for the development of plan sheets for bidding purposes. As such,
some reviews will include 3D BIM Model reviews, and some will incorporate traditional 2D plan
reviews.

B. Task 2— Final Engineering Report

1. Further develop the selected baseline BNR alternative from the SEWRP No. 3 BNR
Improvements Final Alternative Treatment Technology Evaluation Report (FNI, 2022) into a
Final Engineering Report that establishes the basis of design and requirements of TCEQ 217. The
report will include the following:

a. Project background

b. Map of the SEWRP site, buffer zone, and 100-year floodplain

c. Proposed Site Plan

d. SEWRP No. Process Flow Diagram

e. SEWRP No. 3 Hydraulic Profile

f. Design flows and loads

g. Final sizing of oxic, anoxic, and anaerobic selector zones

h. Design criteria for major equipment (no. of units, capacity, motor horsepower etc.) for the
following:

• aeration basin blowers

• 4160V MCC at blower building

• aeration basin diffusers

• aeration basin hyperboloid mixers

• aeration basin nitrified recycle pumps

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 2 of 11



• chemical storage tank(s)

• chemical feed pumps

• primary sludge pumps

• post aeration aspirating mixers

e. As part of the blower MCC replacement, a power system analysis consisting of motor starting

study will be performed to model the starting of the blowers and what impact the starting the

blowers via reduced voltage starters has on the plant’s electrical distribution system.

f. List of supporting improvements

g. Develop an opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC) for the recommended improvements.

h. The draft Final Engineering Report will be delivered at the same time as the 30% design
deliverable. Provide one (I) electronic copy in PDF format and eight (8) hard copies of the draft
Final Engineering Report to the OWNER. Incorporate comments received from the 30% review
workshop in Task No. I into the report and deliver one (1) electronic copy in PDF format of the
Final Engineering Report and four (4) hard copies to the OWNER.

C. Task 3 - Preliminary Design Phase (30%)

Incorporate biological nutrient removal into the SEWRP No. 3 activated sludge system consistent
with the baseline alternative recommendations of the SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Final
Alternative Treatment Technology Evaluation Report (FNI, 2022) and Final Engineering Report
(Task 2).

The following design elements are included in the SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements:

1. Existing Aeration Basins

a. Remove and replace the diffusers. Modify the pipe drops to accommodate the new
diffuser arrangement. It is assumed there will be no automation for airflow to the drops.

b. Add internal concrete baffle walls (3 per basin x 3 basins).

c. Add 4 hyperbolic mixers and supporting walkways (4 per basin x 3 basins).

d. Add internal recycle pump (1 per basin x 3 basins).

e. Remove the influent slide gates along the aeration basin influent Y-channel and blind
flange the opening.

f. Remove and replace the top of the aeration basin influent concrete Y-channels. Consider
filling in the channels. It is assumed the OWNER will be able to remove one of the Y
channel top concrete panels in order for the design team to visually inspect the condition
of the concrete.

g. Modify the influent piping to have separate lines for raw influent and return activated
sludge.

h. Replace the drain mud valves.

i. Remove the chain linked fence railing and replace with aluminum handrails.

2. Existing Aeration Basin Pipe Gallery

a. Remove and replace the membrane roof.

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 3 of 11



b. Remove and replace the transformer and panelboard.

c. Add electrically actuated modulating valves and flow meters on the primary effluent
piping and return activated sludge piping to allow flow to be equally split to the three
aeration basins. The primary effluent piping and return activated sludge piping will be fed
separately to each basin (i.e. not combined).

d. It is assumed there are no HVAC modifications required for the Aeration Basin Pipe
Gallery.

3. Existing Aeration Basin Blower Building

a. Remove and replace the multistage centrifugal blowers with new multistage centrifugal
blowers. It is assumed the new blowers are constant speed and will not be onVFDs.

b. Remove and replace the 4160V MCC.

c. Modify roof downspouts on the south end of the building to drain away from the
building.

d. Other than removed or modified equipment pads, it is assumed no structural
modifications will be required for equipment being removed and replaced and no HVAC
modifications are required.

4. Existing Primary Clarifier No. I

a. Remove and replace the control panel.

b. It is assumed no structural modifications will be required for equipment being removed
and replaced.

5. Existing Primary Sludge Pump Station

a. Remove and replace the primary sludge pumps, piping, and valves. It is assumed the
piping and valves will be replaced in-kind and replacement is limited to what is inside the
pump station building.

b. Remove and replace the control panels and instrumentation.

c. Remove and replace the HVAC system.

d. Remove and replace the membrane roof.

e. Other than removed or modified equipment pads, it is assumed no structural
modifications will be required for equipment being removed and replaced.

6. Existing Filter Complex

a. Remove and replace the filter control panels and exhaust fan starter.

b. Remove and replace the exhaust fan.

c. Add aspirating mixers for post aeration in the existing filter effluent channel.

d. It is assumed no structural modifications will be required for equipment being removed
and replaced.

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 4 of 11



7. Existing UV Disinfection

a. Coordinate with vendor to develop equipment replacement and refurbishment needs.

b. Remove and replace the panelboards.

8. New Chemical Storage and Feed Facility

a. Provide a new chemical storage and feed facility for chemical phosphorous removal.

b. It is assumed the chemical storage tank(s) will be located outside within a concrete
containment structure and the pumps will be located adjacent to the containment area and

indoors in a FRP enclosure or in a pre-engineered metal building, similar to the chemical
storage and feed system for Plant No. 4.

9. Plant No. 3 Effluent Yard Piping

a. Tie into the existing effluent piping of the UV Disinfection Facility and route new yard
piping to Outfall No. 7. Evaluate options for tying into Outfall No. 7 including; (I) tying
into the effluent channel of the Plant No. 4 Cascade Post Aeration Structure, (2) tying
into the effluent piping between the Plant No. 4 Cascade Post Aeration Structure and
Outfall No. 7 and (3) tying directly into Outfall No. 7.

10. Provide one (1) electronic copy in PDF format and eight (8) hard copies of the 30% design
documents for review by the OWNER. The 30% design documents will include process flow
and instrumentation diagrams (P&ID), proposed process layouts, and a specification list.
During the workshop, the design team will walk the OWNER through the facility 3D models
and 2D drawings, including relevant treatment process, structural, electrical, architectural,
and plumbing/HVAC elements. Comments will be discussed during the 30% design
workshop in Task No. 1.

D. Task 4 — Final Design Phase

1. Obtain and review OWNER-furnished front-end documents, general conditions, and special
conditions for the construction contracts. Meet with OWNER to review comments, and revise
OWNER’s standard documents accordingly.

2. 60% Review: Prepare drawings, specifications, and construction contract documents of
improvements to be constructed. Furnish OWNER eight (8) sets of copies of drawings,
specifications, and bid proposals. FNI will meet with the Owner in-person to present the plans
and specifications and receive comments. Review documents will include a detailed review of
both model spaces and conventional 2D construction contract drawings. FNI will receive
comments from OWNER and address comments in the 60% Review Workshop.

3. 90% Review: Furnish OWNER eight (8) sets of copies of drawings, specifications, and bid
proposal. FNI will meet with the OWNER in-person to present the plans and specifications and
receive comments. During the review workshop, discuss Maintenance of Plant Operations
(MOPO) and construction sequencing.

4. 100% Review: Furnish OWNER eight (8) sets of copies of drawings, specifications, and bid

proposal. FNI will meet with the OWNER virtually to present the plans and specifications and

receive comments. During the review meeting, discuss Maintenance of Plant Operations (MOP0)

and construction sequencing. Upon final approval by OWNER, FNI will provide OWNER eight

(8) sets of copies of “Issued for Bid” plans and specifications.

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 5 of 11



5. Deliverables for the Final Design Phase include:

a. Front-end documents for construction

b. OPCC at 60%, 90%, and 100% submittals

c. 60% submittal of Plans and Specifications

d. 90% submittal of Plans and Specifications

e. 100% submittal of Plans and Specifications

f. Final (issued for bid) Plans and Specifications

E. Task 5 — Bid Phase Services

Bid Phase Services assumes the project is constructed with a traditional design-bid-build process
with competitive sealed proposals and is bid only once. Upon completion of the design services
and approval of “Final” drawings and specifications by OWNER, FNI will proceed with the
performance of services in this phase as follows:

1. Issue a Notice to Bidders for the OWNER to distribute to prospective contractors and
vendors, and to selected plan rooms, using the OWNER’s standard bid process. Provide a
copy of the notice to bidders for OWNER to use in notifying construction news publications
and publishing appropriate legal notice. The cost for publications shall be paid by OWNER.

2. Assist OWNER by responding to questions and interpreting bid documents. Prepare and issue
addenda to the bid documents to plan holders, if necessary, following the OWNER’s standard
bid process.

3. Assist the OWNER in conducting a pre-bid conference for the construction project and
coordinate responses to questions with OWNER. Responses to the pre-bid conference
questions will be in the form of addenda issued after the conference. Attend the tour of the
project site after the pre-bid conference.

4. Develop an example “Construction Sequence” presentation, demonstrating to potential
Contractors possible methodologies for sequencing construction events. FNI will also provide
special procedures and construction constraints, clearly identified in the plans, specs and in
the presentation, to define limitations for the Contractor to take any unit process or plant
facility out of service for construction. Present the sample construction sequence at the pre
bid conference.

5. At OWNER request, FNI will assist OWNER in the opening, tabulating, and analyzing the

bids received. Review the qualification information provided by the apparent low bidder to

determine if, based on the information available, they appear to be qualified to construct the

project. Recommend award of contracts or other actions as appropriate to be taken by

OWNER.

6. Prepare Notice of Award for the OWNER to issue to the Contractor upon award of the
Contract by the OWNER with instructions of execution of the Contract Documents.

7. Assist the OWNER in reviewing executed Contract Documents, bonds, and certificates of
insurances for confonnance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

8. Forward Contract Documents to the OWNER with a recommendation of execution and
distribution of documents. Up to eight (8) half-size confonried construction plans, four (4)
sets of executed construction specifications, and four (4) sets of conformed construction

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 6 of 11



specifications shall be provided. Conformed plans and specifications shall incorporate any
changes from addendum into the Contract Documents.

9. Deliverables for the Bid Phase include:

a. Notice to Bidders

b. Electronic copies of plans, specifications, bidding documents, and addenda

c. Recommendation of Award with tabulation of bids

d. Notice of award

e. Conformed contract documents for execution and distribution

ARTICLE II

Special Services:

A. Task 6— Topographic Survey and LiDAR Scan

FNI will retain, monitor, and direct, through a subcontract, the efforts of a survey firm (Hugo Reed)
to provide the following services:

1. Provide detailed topographic surveying within the limits of the Project showing existing contours
at a one-foot interval.

2. Establish at least two (2) horizontal and vertical control points for the Project. The horizontal
control shall be based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, North Central Zone North
American Datum NAD-83 Coordinates and the vertical control being based on the North
American Vertical Datum NAVD-88.

3. The survey will tie down existing features on the property including existing above grade
structures and surface features associated with underground utilities to provide a base for the
design phase.

4. Prepare composite base map of all features located in the field through the survey.

5. Identify existing property boundaries, right-of-way lines and easements that are shown on
existing recorded plats.

6. Perform a full-room LiDAR scan of Aeration Basin Pipe Gallery room using 3D photogrammetry
technology and LiDAR laser scanning. Process the resultant point cloud into an RCP file
compatible with Revit.

B. Task 7 — Geotechnical Engineering

The proposed geotechnical scope of work will consist of field exploration, laboratory testing,
engineering analysis and reporting, and design as follows:

1. Provide geotechnical recommendations for foundation design for the following proposed
structures:

a. Chemical feed storage tank(s)

b. Chemical feed building

2. Provide boring log(s) for Plant No. 3 effluent piping.

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 7 of 11



3. Field Exploration

a. FNI will meet with plant staff to locate the borings clear from existing utilities and accessible
to truck-mounted drilling rig. Notify Texas 811 to request location and marking of existing
underground utilities prior to the field exploration.

b. Subcontract with a geotechnical drilling contractor for a Geotechnical Data Report to include
up to 3 borings; 2 borings to maximum depth of 25 feet for the chemical feed facility, and 1
boring to 15 feet for a 42-inch pipeline in the plant area. Samples will be collected
intermittently using continuous flight augers and either split-spoon or tube samplers. Rock
and rock-like materials will be tested insitu using a TxDOT Cone Penetration Test, as
appropriate for the material. At completion, the boreholes will be backfilled with auger
cuttings.

4. Laboratory Testing

a. Testing shall be performed on samples obtained from the borings to determine soil
classification and pertinent engineering properties of the subsurface materials. FNI will select
samples for laboratory testing, assign tests, and review the test results. Testing will be
performed by a geotechnical testing subcontractor with results provided in the Geotechnical
Data Report.

b. Laboratory tests will be assigned based on the specific subsurface materials encountered
during exploration. Test type and quantity may vary, but are expected to include:

I. Classification tests (liquid and plastic limits and percent passing the no. 200 sieve or
gradation)

2. Moisture content

3. Dry unit weight

4. Unconfined compressive strength

5. One-dimensional swell (restrained)

5. Engineering Analysis

A. Prepare a technical memorandum of the geotechnical investigation to include:

1. Appendix with the boring locations, boring logs, laboratory test results, and a key to the
symbols used.

2. Discussion of subsurface conditions and soil properties indicated by the field and
laboratory work, and the implications for design.

3. Foundation design recommendation and site preparation recommendations for the
chemical feed facility.

4. General discussion of expected construction related issues.

5. Earthwork related recommendations for use during development of the plans and
specifications.

B. A Geotechnical Memorandum will present the foundation design recommendation. The
Geotechnical Data Report will be included with the Geotechnical Memorandum.

C. Task 8 — TPDES Major Permit Amendment

FNI will assist the OWNER in applying for a TPDES Major Permit Amendment to increase the
permitted annual average flow of Outfall No. 7 beyond its current permitted limit of 14.6 MGD up to
22.1 MGD. FNI will proceed with performance of these services as follows:

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 8 of 11



1. Compile Existing Information and meet with OWNER: FNI will obtain the current TPDES
permit application forms from the TCEQ. Where appropriate, FNI will use information, including
pertinent maps and drawings, from the OWNER’s previous TPDES permit application to address
questions in the current application. If necessary, FNI will meet with the OWNER to review data,
identify other information needed for the application, and take photographs and make general
observations at the facility site. OWNER shall provide to FNI all previous application documents
and relevant data.

2. FNI will facilitate a virtual pre-application meeting with TCEQ and OWNER to discuss the
proposed improvements and anticipated limits.

3. Compile Effluent Analysis Results: FNI will coordinate with the OWNER and its laboratory in
obtaining laboratory analyses required for the permit application. FNI will provide the OWNER
and its designated laboratory with copies of tables from the current OWNER application form for
the laboratory to complete. FNI proposes that the laboratory complete these tables to reduce the
risk of transcription errors. Upon receipt, FNI will review the tables for consistency with TCEQ
required minimum analytical limits (MALs) and for reasonability of the results. OWNER shall
contract directly with the analytical laboratory as needed and provide the necessary data.

4. Prepare Permit Application and Transmittal Letter: FNI will prepare a draft permit amendment
application and provide a digital copy for the OWNER’s review. The application will include
maps, engineering drawings, schematic diagrams, and other required figures. FNI will finalize the
application based on the OWNER’s comments and deliver a final original application and three
(3) copies for the OWNER to transmit to the TCEQ. FNI will also provide up to two (2) copies
of the final application for the OWNER’s files.

5. Post Application Submittal Follow-up: Following submittal of the application, FNI will answer
questions and respond to up to four requests (approximately 40 hours) for additional information
from the TCEQ. Additional effort for TCEQ requests for information can be provided as an
additional service, if needed.

6. Review TPDES Draft Permit: FNI will review the draft TPDES permit issued by the TCEQ
following TCEQ’s review of the renewal application. FNI will prepare a memorandum outlining
the changes to the draft permit and general comments regarding the draft permit for the CLIENT
to review prior to the TCEQ response deadline.

ARTICLE III

TIME OF COMPLETION: FNI is authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of this

Agreement and agrees to complete the services in accordance with the following schedule:

Notice to Proceed (NTP) Set by OWNER after Council execution of this Agreement

Final Engineering Report 90 days after NTP

30% Design Submittal 90 days after NTP

60% Design Submittal 90 days after 30% review workshop/OWNER comments

90% Design Submittal 90 days after 60% review workshop/OWNER comments

100% Design Submittal 40 days after 90% review workshop/OWNER comments

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 9 of Ii



Final Plans and Specifications 30 days after 100% review meeting/OWNER comments

Bid Phase Services 90 days after OWNER approval of final plans and specifications

The above schedule assumes a total Project schedule of 600 calendar days. If FNI’s services are delayed
through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule consistent with the number of days

of delay. These delays may include but are not limited to delays in OWNER or regulatory reviews, delays

on the flow of information to be provided to FNI, governmental approvals, etc. These delays may result in

an adjustment to compensation as outlined on the face of this Agreement and in Attachment CO.

ARTICLE IV

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: FNI and OWNER designate the following representatives:

Owner’s Designated Representative — Zoltan Fekete, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas 79401; Phone

806- 775-3317; email zfekete(mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us

FNI’s Designated Representative — Chad Simmons, 801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800, Fort Worth, Texas

76102; Phone 817-735-7305; email chad.sirnrnons@freese.com

FNI’s Accounting Representative — Erin Westbrook, 801 Cherry Street, Suite 2800,
Fort Worth, Texas 76102; Phone 817-735-7290; email erin.westbrook@freese.com

SEWRP No. 3 BNR Improvements Page 10 of 11



EXHIBIT A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERVICES

SOUTHEAST WATER RECLAMATION PLANT NO.3 BNR IMPROVEMENTS

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized by OWNER,

which are not included in the above described basic services, are described as follows:

A. Providing services to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to make measured drawings
thereof, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by OWNER.

B. Lead and asbestos survey.

C. Conducting pilot plant studies or tests.

D. General Project Representation during construction phase.

E. Furnishing the services of a Resident Project Representative to act as OWNER’s on-site
representative during the Construction Phase

F. Startup and Commissioning Services.

G. Use of collaborative project delivery methods (CMAR or design-build).

H. Services required to resolve bid protests or to rebid the projects for any reason.

I. Updating the SEWRP Operation and Maintenance Manual to incorporate the proposed facilities.

J. Preparation of a Section 404 pennit application or coordination with the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE).

K. Presence/absence surveys for federally listed threatened/endangered species.

L. Conducting cultural resources studies or surveys.

M. Phase I/Il Environmental Site Assessments.

N. Other environmental permitting assistance or services not specifically described under SPECIAL
SERVICES of this scope.

0. Providing shop, mill, field or laboratory inspection of materials and equipment. Observe factory
tests of equipment at any site remote to the project or observing tests required as a result of
equipment failing the initial test.

P. Preparing data and reports for assistance to Owner in preparation for hearings before regulatory
agencies, courts, arbitration panels or any mediator, giving testimony, personally or by
deposition, and preparations therefore before any regulatory agency, court, arbitration panel or
mediator.

Q. Furnishing Special Inspections required under chapter 17 of the International Building
Code. These Special Inspections are often continuous, requiring an inspector dedicatedto
inspection of the individual work item, and they are in addition to General Representation and
Resident Representation services noted elsewhere in the contract. These continuous inspection
services can be provided by FNI as an Additional Service.

R. Assisting Owner in preparing for, or appearing at litigation, mediation, arbitration, dispute review
boards, or other legal and/or administrative proceedings in the defense or prosecution of claims
disputes with Contractor(s).

S. Assisting Owner in the defense or prosecution of litigation in connection with or in addition to
those services contemplated by this Agreement. Such services, if any, shall be furnished by FNI
on a fee basis negotiated by the respective parties outside of and in addition to this Agreement.

SEWRP No.3 BNR Improvements Page 11 of 11



EXHIBIT A, PART 3, RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE OWNER
SOUTHEAST WATER RECLAMATION PLANT NO.3 BNR IMPROVEMENTS

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES

RESPONSIBILITIES OF Owner: Owner shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay
the services of FNI:

A. Owner recognizes and expects that certain Change Orders, herein so called, may be required.
Any responsibility of Engineer for the costs of Covered Changed Orders will be determined on the
basis of applicable contractual obligations and professional liability standards. For purposes of this
paragraph, the responsibility of Engineer for the costs of Change Orders will not include:

• any costs that Owner would have incurred if the Change Order work had been included
originally in the Contract Documents and its lack of inclusion was not due, in whole or in
part, to any fault, error, or omission of Engineer related thereto,

• Any costs that are due to unforeseen site conditions, or
• Any costs that are due to changes made by the Owner.
• Any costs that are incurred due to the negligence of the construction contractor

Wherever used in this document, the term Engineer includes Engineer’s officers, directors, partners,
employees, agents, and Engineers Consultants.

B. Designate in writing a person to act as Owner’s representative with respect to the services to be
rendered under this AGREEMENT. Such person shall have contract authority to transmit
instructions, receive information, interpret and define Owner’s policies and decisions with respect to
FNI’s services for the Project.

C. Provide all criteria and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the Project, including design
objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and
expandability, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and construction
standards which Owner will require to be included in the drawings and specifications.

D. Assist FNI by placing at FNI’s disposal all available information pertinent to the Project including
previous reports and any other data relative to design or construction of the Project as provided in
this AGREEMENT.

E. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for FNI to enter upon public and private property as
required for FNI to perform services under this AGREEMENT.

F. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other documents
presented by FNI, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants as Owner
deems appropriate for such examination and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a
reasonable time so as not to delay the services of FNI.

G. Furnish approvals and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project
and such approvals and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of the Project,
except as otherwise the responsibility of FNI as provided in this AGREEEMENT.

H. Give prompt written notice to FNI whenever Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of any
development that affects the scope or timing of FNI’s services.

1. Furnish, or direct FNI to provide, Additional Services as stipulated in Exhibit “A,” Part 2, if deemed
necessary by Owner.

FNI____
OWNER____



J. Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Exhibit “A”, Part 3.

K. Provide the following services, unless provided specifically otherwise in this Agreement:

a. Provide land acquisition services.
b. Pay all permits fees and mitigation cost.
c. Provide land title research and title policy.
d. Provide advertisement for bids in local publications as required.

FNI____
OWNER_____



EXHIBIT B
Budget

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant No. 3 BNR Improvements
Engineering Design Services

Basic Services

CITY and ENGINEER have established a lump sum budget of $L412219.00 to complete the

Basic Services under this AGREEMENT. These services will be billed monthly on an estimated

percent completed basis. This amount will not be exceeded without a contract amendment.

Special Services

CITY and ENGINEER have established a not-to-exceed budget of $87. 172 to complete the Special

Services under this AGREEMENT. CITY will pay the ENGINEER hourly, for services identified

in Exhibit A, based on ENGINEERS Fee Schedule presented as EXHIBIT B. Subconsultant

services will be billed at cost to ENGINEER with a 10 percent handling fee. This amount will not

be exceeded without a contract amendment.

The Budget is presented for the services of ENGINEER under this AGREEMENT are provided in

this Exhibit B

ENGINEER agrees to complete these services as delineated above. Should there be a Change in

Scope of Work or Time of Performance, then this can result in an amendment to this contract

which shall be negotiated at that time.

The budget assumes that all work will be completed within 600 calendar days from the Notice to

Proceed.

Exhibit B - SEWRP No. 3 Biological Nutrient Removal Improvements Page 1 of 4



EXHIBIT B
Detailed Cost Breakdown

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant No. 3 BNR Improvements
Engineering Design Services

Basic Services

Description Fee

Project Management $231,325

Final Engineering Report $76,060

Preliminary Design $288,191

Final Design $743,501

Bid Phase Services $73,142

Total $1,412,219

Special Services

Description Fee

Survey $25,379

Geotechnical Engineering $27,019

TPDES Major Permit Amendment $34,774

Total $87,172

Total Contract Amount $1,499,391

Exhibit B - SEWRP No. 3 Biological Nutrient Removal Improvements Page 2 of 4



EXHIBIT B
Hourly Rate Schedule Compensation

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant No. 3 BNR Improvements
Engineering Design Services

Position

Principal / Group Manager 342

Technical Professional - 6 335

Technical Professional - 5 270

Technical Professional - 4 232

Technical Professional - 3 194

Technical Professional - 2 170

Technical Professional - 1 140

CAD Technician/Designer- 3 188

CAD Technician/Designer- 2 141

CAD Technician/Designer- 1 112

Senior CAD Technician/Designer 232

Construction Manager - 4 200

Construction Manager - 3 151

Construction Manager- 2 143

Construction Manager- 1 112

Corporate Project Support - 3 157

Corporate Project Support - 2 141

Corporate Project Support - 1 108

Intern/Coop 73

Rates for In-House Services and Equipment

Bulk Printing and Reproduction Equipment

StandardlRSRates ValveCrewVehicle(hour) $1

Small Format (per copyl $0.00 $0.00 Pressure Data Logger (each) $100

Technology Charge Large Format (per sq. ft.) Water Quality Meter (per day( $200

$8.50 per hour Bond $8.50 $0.25 Microscope (each) $50

Glossy / Mylar $0.58 $0.25 Pressure Recorder (per day) $150

Vinyl / Adhesive $0.10 $0.25 Ultrasonic Thickness Guage (per day) $75

Coating Inspection Kit (per day) $100

Mounting (per sq. ft.) $0.75 Flushing! Cfactor (each) $100

Binding (per binding) Bill Rate Backpack Electrofisher (each) $150

Survey Grade Standard

Drone(perday) $2 $1

GPS (per day) $1 $2

OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES:

Other direct expenses are reimbursed at actual cost times a multiplier of 1.10. They include outside printing and reproduction expense,

communication expense, travel, transportation and subsistence away from the FNI office. For other miscellaneous expenses directly related to the

work, including costs of laboratory analysis, test, and other work required to be done by independent persons other than staff members, these

services will be billed at a cost times a multipler of 1.10. For Resident Representative services performed by non-FNI employees and CAD services

performed In-house by non-FNI employees where FNI provides workspace and equipment to perform such services, these services will be billed at

cost times a multiplier of 2.0. This markup approximates the cost to FNI if an FN) employee was performing the same or similar services.

Exhibit B - SEWRP No. 3 Biological Nutrient Removal Improvements Page 3 of 4



EXHIBIT B
Sub-consultants

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant No. 3 BNR Improvements
Engineering Design Services

ENGINEER will retain Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc. as a sub-consultant for professional

surveying services. The ENGINEER may also retain the services from other sub-consultants for

geotechnical borings and associated laboratory testing.

Exhibit B - SEWRP No. 3 Biological Nutrient Removal Improvements Page 4 of 4



E 35TH ST

E 37TH ST

E
L

D
E

R
A

V

G
U

A
V

A
A

V

F
IG

 A
V

E 36TH ST

E
35

TH
ST

D
A

V
ID

 A
V

G
U

AVA
AV

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may
not have be prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant
Plant 3 BNR Improvements

BNR
Imrpovements

Wastwater
Treatment Plant

Water Reclamation
Plant Structures

0 500 1,000250
Feet Ü



City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 10, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92674
Capital Project Name: SEWRP Improvements Plant 3 Nutrient Removal

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract 15739 with FNI for PER  $379,628 

Agenda Item October 10, 2023
Contract 17618 with FNI for BNR Design Services  1,499,391 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,879,019 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
SEWRP Plant 3 BNR Improvements Construction  120,981 

Remaining Appropriation  - 

Total Appropriation  $2,000,000 







 AI# 12001 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 17632, with
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for design services associated with the 114th Street, Frankford to
Slide-22B Capital Improvements Project.

Item Summary
On November 8, 2022, Lubbock voters approved issuance of a $200 million street improvements bond
package, for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements.  The funding provides for street
improvements, including but not limited to sidewalks, utility line relocations and traffic signals,
necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the acquisition of land and rights-of-way for the full
width dedication.
 
114th Street from Frankford Avenue to Slide Road is currently a 2-lane paved road and is designated in
the 2018 Thoroughfare Master Plan to become a 5-lane minor arterial roadway.  Continued growth in
southwest Lubbock has increased traffic demands along the 114th Street corridor from Frankford
Avenue to Slide Road. The services will include the ultimate design of five-lane arterial, intersection
improvements, drainage solutions, utility adjustment and right of way acquisition services.
 
Staff conducted contract negotiations with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. after establishing them as
qualified under RFQ 15876-JM, for providing engineering services. Fair and reasonable hourly rates
were agreed upon for a total contract amount of $1,242,700 with a 600 calendar days contract duration.
Staff recommends Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. of Lubbock, Texas, be awarded the professional
services contract that will provide the plans, specifications and bid phase services for 114th Street
Frankford Avenue to Slide Road Project.

Fiscal Impact
This contract is not to exceed $1,242,700 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92820, 114th
Street: Frankford to Slide -22B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Professional Service Contract 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail 



CIP Detail 





Page 1 of 11 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No.  17632  is entered into this ___ 

day of _______________, 2023, is by and between the City of Lubbock (the "City"), a Texas home rule 

municipal corporation, and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., (the” Engineer”), a North Carolina 

corporation. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for 

the reconstruction of 114th Street from Frankford Ave to Slide Road – 22B, (the “Activities”); and 

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide 

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for 

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable 

price; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services 

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in 

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM 

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption 

for a term of 600 days. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the Services, 

the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to grant up to 

an additional six (6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase. An 

amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be approved 

by the City acting through its governing body. 

 

 



Page 2 of 11 

 

 

ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION 

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit 

“A”, attached hereto (the “Services”). 

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in 

an amount not to exceed $1,242,700, as set forth in Exhibit “B”. 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION 

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty 

(30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only 

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to 

have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/or provision of this 

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at 

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an 

action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the 

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION 

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another 

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing 

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this 

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby.  



Page 3 of 11 

 

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities 

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part 

of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is 

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified 

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both 

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated 

hereby.  

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement 

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in 

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer 

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other 

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance 

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely 

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this 

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused 

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer’s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK 

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as 

provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement 

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/or 

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in 

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the 

Engineer and the Engineer’s employees and/or sub-consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or 

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment 

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

 



Page 4 of 11 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE 

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement, 

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance 

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of 

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including 

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in 

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub-

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, 

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and 

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance 

companies must carry a Best’s Rating of A-VII or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will 

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000 

Professional Liability: 

Combined Single Limit: $2,000,000 

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

Employer’s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

Worker’s Compensation 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000 

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and 

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including 

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the 

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The City shall be listed as a 

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial 

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall 

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage.  

The Certificate shall provide 30 days’ notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured 

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The 

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker’s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas 



Page 5 of 11 

 

Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and 

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains 

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of 

Worker’s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in 

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails 

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all 

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be 

maintained at the Engineer’s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the 

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail 

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS 

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are 

referred to herein as “Sub-consultant”), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit “A”, 

attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub-consultants. 

The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this Agreement 

and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage of any 

approved Sub-consultant. Any agent and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the Engineer shall 

be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the Engineer and naming 

said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be carried by the Engineer 

in this Agreement.   

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are 

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written 

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY 

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK 

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, 

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE, 



Page 6 of 11 

 

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 

ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY OR 

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY 

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO 

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, 

AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR 

OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED 

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE 

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. SUBJECT TO THE LIMITATIONS IN 

TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 271.904. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE 

 A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required 

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by 

(1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand (in which case such notice shall be 

effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or (3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the 

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such 

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B.  Engineer’s Address.  The Engineer’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 

Leslie Bruce, P.E. 
1207 Ave F NW, Suite 1 

Childress, Texas 79201 

Telephone: 940-226-4218 

Email: leslie.bruce@kimley-horn.com 

 

  

 C. City's Address. The City's address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 

City of Lubbock 

P.0. Box 2000 

1314 Avenue K  

Lubbock, Texas 79457 

mailto:leslie.bruce@kimley-horn.com


Page 7 of 11 

 

Telephone: 806-775-3317 

Email: zfekete@mylubbock.us 

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by 

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and 

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day 

after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Provision of Data.  The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confidential studies, reports and other 

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer’s Services, so long as the City is 

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer’s Services under 

this Agreement (the “Provided Data”). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such 

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this 

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not 

be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City 

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer’s books and records with respect 

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City. 

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services 

provided by the Engineer. 

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval 

of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the 

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the 

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns. 

F. Construction and Venue.  

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK 

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE 

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT 



Page 8 of 11 

 

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF 

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE 

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any 

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement 

and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with respect to which 

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be 

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this 

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits “A” through “B” attached hereto, contains 

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises, 

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein.  

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint 

enterprise, partnership or principal – agent relationship between the Engineer and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by 

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has 

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work 

products for its files.  

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement 

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver 

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights with respect to any other or subsequent 

breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or 

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer. 

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the 

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of non-appropriation of 

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City 

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this 

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”).  If at any time funds are 

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on 



Page 9 of 11 

 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall 

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date. 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 

Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City 

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to 

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

P. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more 

full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public 

funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company 

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does 

not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it 

does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  practice,  policy,  guidance,  or  directive  

that  discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by 

Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company 

with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, 

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, 

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and 

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas 

Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant 

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott 

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement 

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

S. Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if 

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees 

to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention 



Page 10 of 11 

 

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to 

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or 

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: 

(A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in 

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract 

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

T. Professional Responsibility.  All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be 

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing 

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ����������!� ������� ����"�������������� ��"�������#$#%�

&'()*)+�,��&-./-001/-.�23450�46�2017/308��99:;<�2;100;�1034-8;1=3;/4-�>�?1@-A641B�,70�;4�2C/B0�D4@B�E/;F�46�G=HH43A����I14J03;�K-B018;@-B/-.�� LM�NOPQRPST�UVWWPXVWY�ZM�NOPQRPST�[\]ZŜ�_̀ ab�cZd̂ê SR��fM�gWZShiVWX�ad̂�PSR̂WQ̂URPVSY�PM�jVWRk�ZSX�QVlRk�ZccWVZUk�RkWVZR�mPXRkY�n�]ZŜQ�PPM�NZQR�ZSX�m̂ QR�ZccWVZUkY�o�]ZŜ�l]RPeZR̂�UVSiPTlWZRPVS��UM�p]PX̂�qVZX�PSR̂WQ̂URPVS��PM�jVWRk�ZSX�QVlRk�ZccWVZUk�RkWVZR�mPXRkY�n�]ZŜQ�rrs�NZQR�ZccWVZUkY�t�]ZŜQ�PPPM�u Q̂R�ZccWVZUkY�v�]ZŜQ�XM�NOPQRPST�UlWf�ZSX�TlRR̂W�]VUZR̂X�Z]VST�Rk̂�WVZX�kZQ�f̂ Ŝ�Q̂R�iVW�̂PRk̂W�o\]ZŜ�VW�w\]ZŜ�WVZXmZx�[M�yWVcVQ̂X�PecWVd̂ê SRQ�UVSQPQR�ViY�ZM�ẑ d̂]Vc�w\]ZŜ�cWVcVQ̂X�UVSUŴR̂�WVZXmZx�{_̀ ab�cZd̂ê SR�ZQ�Z�fPX�Z]R̂WSZR̂|�fM�ẑ d̂]Vc�UVSQRWlURPVS�c]ZSQ�iVW�Rk̂�l]RPeZR̂�w\]ZŜ�UVSiPTlWZRPVS�UM�t\]ZŜ�ZccWVZUk̂Q�ZR�p]PX̂�qVZX�{UVSUŴR̂�ZccWVZUk�]̂TQ|�XM�o\]ZŜ�ZccWVZUk�ZR�gWZShiVWX�ad̂Sl̂�PSR̂WQ̂URPVS�{UVSUŴR̂�ZccWVZUk�]̂TQ|�M̂�}RP]PRx�ZX~lQRê SRQ�iM�zWZPSZT̂�ZX~lQRê SRQ�vM�pĉUPZ]�bVSQPX̂WZRPVSQ�iVW�RkPQ�cWV~̂UR��s�p]PX̂�WVZX�PSR̂WQ̂URPVS�rs�NOPQRPST�ZŴZ�XWZPSQ�RV�f̂�Ŵc]ZÛX�mPRk�UlWf�PS]̂RQ�RV�eZRUk�cWVcVQ̂X�UlWf�ZSX�TlRR̂W�]PePRQ��s�zWZPSZT̂�rs�pRVWe�Q̂m̂ W�VW�XPRUk�XWZPSZT̂�PecWVd̂ê SRQ�RV�]Vm̂ W�TlRR̂W�i]Vm�X̂cRkQ���k̂�cWVîQQPVSZ]�Q̂WdPÛQ�T̂ŜWZ]]x�mP]]�UVSQPQR�ViY���ẑ QPTS�QlWd̂x���NOPQRPST�qPTkR\Vi\mZx�{q�u|�QlWd̂x���q�u�ZSX�̂ZQ̂ê SR�ZU�lPQPRPVS�Q̂WdPÛQ���plfQlWiZÛ�}RP]PRx�NSTPŜ ŴPST�{p}N|����̂ VR̂UkSPUZ]�PSd̂QRPTZRPVS���gWZSUkPQ̂�}RP]PRx�bVVWXPSZRPVS���zWZPSZT̂�QRlXx�ZSX�ZQQVUPZR̂X�X̂QPTS�Vi�UkZSŜ]�ZSX�Ul]d̂WR�PecWVd̂ê SRQ�{Pi�Ŵ�lPŴX|���qVZXmZx�X̂QPTS�iVW�w\]ZŜ�UVSiPTlWZRPVS��PSU]lXPST�RmV�fPX�Z]R̂WSZRPd̂Q�iVW�lQ̂�Vi�_̀ ab�VW�UVSUŴR̂�cZd̂ê SR�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ��!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������!$!%�

&�'()*+�,-./+�-)0�1-)(.-+2�1/,/+�-0341.5/).1��&�6+-77(8�8*).+*9�:9-)1��&�;9945()-.(*)�0/1(<)�-)0�;6=�9-2*4.1�&�>(00()<�?@-1/�14::*+.�1/+A(8/1��6@/�?+*3/8.�,(99�B/�0/1(<)/0�()�-88*+0-)8/�,(.@�C(.2�0/1(<)�-)0�8*)1.+48.(*)�1.-)0-+01�.@+*4<@*4.�.@/�:+*3/8.D��EF�GHIJKL�MNOPHQ�RSQ�MNSTULINVWXLWY�ZD[D�=4+A/2�\-.-�]�0/A/9*:�-)�/̂(1.()<�_̀ a�B*4)0-+2�14+A/2�-)0�/̂(1.()<�.*:*<+-:@(8�0-.-�,(.@()�.@/�9(5(.1�*7�.@(1�:+*3/8.D�ZD[D[�\-.-�C*99/8.(*)�-)0�?+*:/+.2�_/1/-+8@�]�=4B8*)149.-).�,(99�8*99/8.�-A-(9-B9/�0-.-�.*�0/./+5()/�.@/�B*4)0-+2�9*8-.(*)1�-)0�*,)/+�()7*+5-.(*)�7*+�-99�-03-8/).�:+*:/+.(/1�,(.@()�.@/�:+*3/8.�9(5(.1D�b� \/1(<)�=4+A/2��b� 6@/�9(5(.1�*7�.@/�14+A/2�-9*)<�[[c.@�=.+//.�,(99�/̂./)0�7+*5�deefghijdklmn�oppq�rlsk�gt�ufdvwtgfx�yzlv{l�kg�c||}7.�/-1.�1(0/�*7�=9(0/�_*-0�()./+1/8.(*)D��6@/�14+A/2�,(99�8*)1(1.�*7�.@/�/̂(1.()<�-)0�efgegslx�~���rixk��gt���pq�dvx�r�lfl�14B0(A(1(*)1�-)0�1.+48.4+/1�-+/�/)8*4)./+/0�-03-8/).�.*�[[c.@�=.+//.D��\-.-�,(99�B/�8*99/8./0�-�5()(545�*7�Z|}7//.�B/2*)0�.@/�_̀ a�9(5(.1D�b� 6@/�7*99*,()<�-+/-1�1@-99�-91*�B/�14+A/2/0����'()*+�C+*11�=.+//.1�}�[||}7//.�)*+.@�-)0�1*4.@�*7�.@/�:+*:*1/0�[[c.@�=.+//.�8/)./+9()/�-.�/A/+2�5()*+�8+*11�1.+//.D����()(1@/0�79**+�/9/A-.(*)1�*7�/̂(1.()<�1.+48.4+/1�-03-8/).�.*�.@/�_̀ a�-1�)//0/0D�b� ?9-8/�7(A/�����:/+5-)/).�8*).+*9�5*)45/).1�,(.@�-945()45�8-:1�()�8*)8+/./D��1.-B9(1@�@*+(�*).-9�1.-./�:9-)/�8**+0()-./1����\�����41()<��?=D���1.-B9(1@�A/+.(8-9�8*).+*9�8**+0()-./1�*)����\���D�'*)45/).1�,(99�B/�1/.�.*�-88*55*0-./�.@/�9(5(.1�*7�8*)1.+48.(*)�,@/+/�:*11(B9/D�b� ?/+7*+5�-�7(/90�14+A/2�.*�(0/).(72�-)0�9*8-./�/̂(1.()<�.*:*<+-:@(8�/9/5/).1�,(.@()�.@/�+*-0,-2�8*++(0*+�8*)1(1.()<�*7�.@/�7*99*,()<�����A(0/)8/�*7�:+*:/+.2�B*4)0-+2�9*8-.(*)1�-03-8/).�.*�.@/�8*++(0*+D��� �̂(1.()<�:-A/5/).��84+B1��1(0/,-9�1��B-++(/+�7+//�+-5:1��/.8D���_*-0,-2�-)0�9-)/�1.+(:()<�-9*)<�[[c.@�=.+//.�-)0�()./+1/8.()<�1.+//.1D���\+(A/,-21��()8940()<�5-./+(-9�D���?-+�()<�9*.1�,(.@()�Z|}7.�*7�:+*:*1/0�_̀ aD����99/21��()8940()<�5-./+(-9�D��� �̂(1.()<�849A/+.�1(�/1�-)0�()A/+.�/9/A-.(*)1��()8940()<�8+*11�1/8.(*)1�-::+*-8@()<�849A/+.�8+*11()<1�-)0�@/-0,-991�,()<,-991D��� �̂(1.()<�0+(A/,-21�-)0�1,-9/1D����(1(B9/�4.(9(.(/1�8*)1(1.()<�*7��5-)@*9/1��A-49.1��,-./+�A-9A/1��,-./+�5/./+1��./9/:@*)/�:*9/1��:*,/+�:*9/1��4.(9(.2�5-+�/+1��,-./+�,/99�7/-.4+/1��*.@/+�:4B9(8�4.(9(.(/1��-)0�7+-)8@(1/�4.(9(.(/1D���6+-77(8�1(<)-9�:*9/1��8-B()/.1��-)0�*.@/+�1(<)-9�/�4(:5/).��(7�:+/1/).D�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ��!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������$%$!�

&�'()*+�,-./012(*)�3-4567879�+()*+:;�&�<=>>?�@AB=C>=�DEBF�GH�IBAJK>=L�BFM�D=>>�IAN?D>=?O�&�P1(02(*)+�8*2�5-748*-*3�+371/317-+;�&�Q-38(*(*)�R800+;�&�S-*/-TR800�0(4(3+�8*2�483-7(80�395-+�,-./012(*)�3-4567879�U-*/-+:;�&�V3W-7�8550(/8X0-�5W9+(/80�U-8317-+�3W83�/6102�(458/3�2-+()*;�&�Y-7U674�U(-02�+17Z-9�36�/600-/3�13(0(39�06/83(6*�487[(*)�8+�487[-2�X9�3W-�'\]�+1X/6*+1038*3;�;̂̂;�Y7-587-�8�U(*80�3656)785W(/�278R(*)�(*�2()(380�U67483�,V5-*�Q682+�_-+()*-7:�,(*/012(*)�/6*3617+�8*2�X7-8[�0(*-+:�+W6R(*)�3W-�U-8317-+�06/83-2�(*�3W-�U(-02�8+�R-00�8+�QV̀ �+37(5�485�(*U67483(6*a�8*�b'cdd�/6672(*83-�U(0-�6U�3W-�56(*3+�06/83-2�(*�3W-�U(-02a�8*2�8�W872�/659�6U�3W-�/6672(*83-+�8*2�U-8317-�2-+/7(53(6*+;�d*/012-�/6*3760�46*14-*3+�508/-2�(*�3W-�U(-02�(*�U(*80�3656)785W(/�278R(*)�R(3W�8++6/(83-2�/6672(*83-�38X0-;�Y76Z(2-�].(+3(*)�QV̀ �P8+-�e85;�;̂f;�gW-�-.(+3(*)�QV̀ �X8+-�485�R(00�/6*+(+3�6U�3W-�U6006R(*)h�i� Y87/-0+�8*2�-8+-4-*3+�R(3W�/177-*3�7-/672(*)�(*U67483(6*;�i� c177-*3�5765-739�6R*-7;�i� ].(+3(*)�50833-2�-8+-4-*3+�8*2�-8+-4-*3+�8Z8(08X0-�(*�3W-�51X0(/�7-/672�(*/012(*)�-8+-4-*3+�576Z(2-2�X9�13(0(39�/6458*(-+;�i� Q-083-�QV̀ �36�7682R89�/-*3-7�0(*-�(U�'-/3(6*�j(*-�2(UU-7+;��kl�mnopqrstruvw�xyz{|w�v}~�x|z{n�|����w�xy��s}�y�qv}q��f;�;�Y-7U674�3W-�U6006R(*)�QV̀ �+-7Z(/-+�(*�+155673�6U�3W-�c(39�36�8/�1(7-�3W-�5765-739�*--2-2�36�/6*+371/3�3W-�57656+-2�7682R89�(4576Z-4-*3+;��f;�;��'/W-210-�8*2�/6672(*83-�5765-739�85578(+80+;�f;�;̂�VX38(*�g(30-�Q-5673+�U67�-8/W�587/-0�36�2-3-74(*-�5765-7�6R*-7�U67�*-)63(83(6*+;�f;�;f�c6*21/3�85578(+80+�6*�15�36���587/-0+�36�2-3-74(*-�U8(7�487[-3�Z801-�U67�3W-�517/W8+-�6U�8�7682R89�-8+-4-*3;��f;�;���-)63(83-�R(3W�5765-739�6R*-7+�6*�X-W80U�6U�c(39�,15�36���/6*38/3+:�U67�517/W8+-�6U�7682R89�-8+-4-*3�6*���587/-0+;�f;�;��VX38(*�U(*80�85576Z80�U764�c(39�57(67�36�48[(*)�6UU-7+�8*2�57(67�36�48[(*)�U(*80�8)7--4-*3�(*�*-)63(83(6*+;�f;�;��_-0(Z-7�5765-709�-.-/13-2�26/14-*3+�36�3W-�c(39;��f;̂;�Y7-587-�QV̀ �(*+3714-*3+�,15�36���587/-0+:�f;f;��FMJ�JMNBA�KB=I>A�>�EJ�JD?�?EBAA��>��F����H���H�KBK>=��?EBAA��>�?>BA>M��MBD>M��BFM�+()*-2�X9�8�Q-)(+3-7-2�Y76U-++(6*80�j8*2�'17Z-967�8*2�+W800�/6*+(+3�6U�3W-�U6006R(*)h�f;f;��Y87/-0�*14X-7;�f;f;̂�b7-8�7-�1(7-2;�f;f;f�b7-8�7-48(*(*);�f;f;��j-)80�2-+/7(53(6*;�f;f;��c177-*3�6R*-7;�f;f;��]8+-4-*3+�06/838X0-�(*�3W-�51X0(/�7-/672;�f;f;��b00�5W9+(/80�U-8317-+;�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ����������!� ������� ����"�������������� ��"�������#$#%�

&'('�)*+*,�-./�012./,�/*,3456+51.�17�6-43*8�+1�0*�-39254*/'�:;*�/*,3456+51.�,;-88�0*�641<5/*/�1.�-�,*6-4-+*�,;**+�741=�+;*�*>;505+'�?-3;�+@6*�17�*-,*=*.+�,;-88�0*�/*,3450*/�,*6-4-+*8@'��AB�CDEFDGHIJK�LMNONMP�QRSNRKKGNRS�TCLQU�TEP�CDEJVRFDOMIRMU�('W'�X+585+@�Y-+-�Z�[4-.3;5,*�X+585+5*,�('W'W�:;*�,316*�\588�31.,5,+�17�]2-85+@�̂*<*8�_]̂ �̀a�b20,247-3*�X+585+@�?.c5.**45.c�_bX?̀�d.<*,+5c-+51.e�\;53;�5,�5.382,5<*�17�_]̂ �̀Y�-./�f'��:;*�?.c5.**4�\588�10+-5.�5.714=-+51.�1.�*>5,+5.c�2+585+5*,�741=�2+585+@�1\.*4,�-./�,;-88�5/*.+57@�-./�*<-82-+*�g.1\.�*>5,+5.c�-./�64161,*/�620853�-./�645<-+*�2+585+5*,'��:;*�?.c5.**4�\588�5/*.+57@�61+*.+5-8�31.7853+,�-./�-++*=6+�+1�=5.5=5h*�+;*�61+*.+5-8�-/<*4,*�2+585+@�5=6-3+,�5.�+;*�64*6-4-+51.�17�+;*�41-/\-@�/*,5c.�-./�ibj?'�:;*�?.c5.**4�\588�64*6-4*�-�0-,*�=-6�/*653+5.c�+;*�2+585+@�813-+51.,'�('W'k�X+585+@�5.<*,+5c-+51.,e�01+;�,20,247-3*�-./�-01<*�c412./e�\588�0*�64*6-4*/�5.�-3314/-.3*�\5+;�lbf?�fmW�&nmok�-./�-3314/5.c�+1�+;*�X+585+@�]2-85+@�*̂<*8,�-,�/*,3450*/�0*81\p�q� X+585+@�]2-85+@�̂*<*8,�-4*�/*75.*/�5.�32=28-+5<*�14/*4�_8*-,+�+1�c4*-+*,+̀�-,�71881\,p�q� ]2-85+@�̂*<*8�Y�m�?>5,+5.c�r*314/,p�X+585+5*,�-4*�681++*/�741=�4*<5*\�17�-<-58-08*�*>5,+5.c�4*314/,'��̂*<*8�Y�5,�5.382/*/�5.�+;5,�,316*�17�\14g'�q� ]2-85+@�̂*<*8�f�m�b247-3*�s5,508*�[*-+24*�b24<*@p�]2-85+@�8*<*8�tYt�5.714=-+51.�741=�*>5,+5.c�4*314/,�5,�3144*8-+*/�\5+;�,24<*@*/�,247-3*m<5,508*�7*-+24*,'�d.382/*,�]2-85+@�̂*<*8�Y�5.714=-+51.'��d7�+;*4*�-4*�<-45-.3*,�5.�+;*�/*,5c.-+*/�\14g�-4*-�17�̂*<*8�Ye�-�.*\�,3;*=-+53�14�68-.�8-@12+�,;-88�0*�.*3*,,-4@�+1�5/*.+57@�+;*�85=5+,�17�+;*�64161,*/�641u*3+�-./�+;*�85=5+,�17�+;*�\14g�-4*-�4*9254*/�714�+;*�\14g�-2+;145h-+51.v�5.382/5.c�;5c;\-@�,+-+51.,e�85=5+,�\5+;5.�*>5,+5.c�14�64161,*/�rwxe�-//5+51.-8�-4*-,�12+,5/*�+;*�64161,*/�rwxe�-./�/5,+-.3*,�14�-4*-,�+1�0*�5.382/*/�-81.c�*>5,+5.c�5.+*4,*3+5.c�41-/\-@,'��*̂<*8�f�5,�5.382/*/�5.�+;5,�,316*�17�\14g'�q� ]2-85+@�̂*<*8�a�m�Y*,5c.-+*p�:\1m/5=*.,51.-8�;145h1.+-8�=-665.c'�:;5,�5.714=-+51.�5,�10+-5.*/�+;412c;�+;*�-66853-+51.�-./�5.+*464*+-+51.�17�-6641645-+*�.1.m/*,+423+5<*�,247-3*�c*16;@,53-8�=*+;1/,'�X+585+@�5./53-+51.,�-4*�4*7*4*.3*/�+1�*,+-085,;*/�,24<*@�31.+418'�d.314614-+*,�92-85+@�8*<*8,�f�-./�Y�5.714=-+51.�+1�641/23*�]2-85+@�̂*<*8�a'��d7�+;*4*�-4*�<-45-.3*,�5.�+;*�/*,5c.-+*/�\14g�-4*-�17�̂*<*8�Ye�-�.*\�,3;*=-+53�14�68-.�8-@12+�,;-88�0*�.*3*,,-4@�+1�5/*.+57@�+;*�85=5+,�17�+;*�64161,*/�641u*3+�-./�+;*�85=5+,�17�+;*�\14g�-4*-�4*9254*/�714�+;*�\14g�-2+;145h-+51.v�5.382/5.c�;5c;\-@�,+-+51.,e�85=5+,�\5+;5.�*>5,+5.c�14�64161,*/�rwxe�-//5+51.-8�-4*-,�12+,5/*�+;*�64161,*/�rwxe�-./�/5,+-.3*,�14�-4*-,�+1�0*�5.382/*/�-81.c�*>5,+5.c�5.+*4,*3+5.c�41-/\-@,'��*̂<*8�a�5,�5.382/*/�5.�+;5,�,316*�17�\14g'�q� ]2-85+@�̂*<*8�l�Z�̂13-+*�_:*,+�y18*̀p�:;4**m/5=*.,51.-8�=-665.c�-./�1+;*4�3;-4-3+*45h-+51.�/-+-'�:;5,�5.714=-+51.�5,�10+-5.*/�+;412c;�*>61,5.c�2+585+@�7-3585+5*,�+;412c;�+*,+�;18*,�-./�=*-,245.c�-./�4*314/5.c�_+1�-6641645-+*�,24<*@�31.+418̀�2+585+@z*.<541.=*.+�/-+-'�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ��!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������$%$&�

'()*+,*+-./0�12-34.5�3/6/30�78�9�-(:�;�4(<*+=-.4*(�.*�,+*:2)/�>2-34.5�?/6/3�@A��?/6/3�@�40�BCD�4()32:/:�4(�.E40�0)*,/�*<�F*+GA�HAIAJ�DE/�K(L4(//+�F433�)*=,43/�MN/)*+:�;+-F4(LM�4(<*+=-.4*(�<+*=�,3-(08�,3-.0�-(:�*.E/+�3*)-.4*(�:-.-�-0�,+*64:/:�O5�.E/�2.434.5�*F(/+0A�@�)*3*+P)*:/:�)*=,*04./�2.434.5�<-)434.5�,3-(�F4.E�2.434.5�*F(/+�(-=/08�12-34.5�3/6/30�-(:�34(/�04Q/0�0E-33�O/�,+/,-+/:�-(:�:/346/+/:A�'.�40�2(:/+0.**:�O5�.E/�K(L4(//+�.E-.�.E/�34(/�04Q/0�*<�:/04L(-./:�2.434.5�<-)434.4/0�:/.-43/:�*(�.E/�:/346/+-O3/�-+/�<+*=�.E/�O/0.�-6-43-O3/�+/)*+:0�-(:�.E-.�-(�-).2-3�34(/�04Q/�40�(*+=-335�:/./+=4(/:�<+*=�-�./0.�E*3/�6-)22=�/R)-6-.4*(A�@�(*./�=20.�O/�,3-)/:�*(�.E/�:/04L(-./�:/346/+-O3/�*(35�.E-.�0.-./0�M34(/0�04Q/0�-+/�<+*=�O/0.�-6-43-O3/�+/)*+:0MA�@O*6/�L+*2(:�-,,2+./(-()/�3*)-.4*(0�)*33/)./:�-0�,-+.�*<�.E/�.*,*L+-,E4)�02+6/5�F433�O/�4()32:/:�4(�.E/�:/346/+-O3/�.*�.E/�94.5A�DE40�4(<*+=-.4*(�0E-33�O/�,+*64:/:�4(�.E/�3-./0.�6/+04*(�*<�S4)+*�T.-.4*(�*+�U/*V-G�20/:�O5�.E/�94.5A��HAIAH�;/346/+-O3/0W���X� DE/�/3/).+*(4)�<43/�F433�O/�:/346/+/:�4(�:4L4.-3�<*+=-.�-(:�V;YA��Z[�\]̂_]̀abc̀de�fbg]h_cid_ĉb�jkl�mnk̀ b̂hne_db_o�pAIA�T2O02+<-)/�KR,3*+-.4*(�pAIAI�N*-:F-5�X� T/6/(�qrs�0*43�O*+/0�O/.F//(�.E/�,-6/=/(.�-(:�.E/�NCt�-.�3*)-.4*(0�.*�O/�:/./+=4(/:�O5�.E/�K(L4(//+u�.*�:/./+=4(/�.E/�12-34.5�*<�02OL+-:/�-(:�FE/.E/+�.E/�4(04.2�0*43�F433�O/�024.-O3/�<*+�+*-:F-5�/=O-(G=/(.�q0*43�)3-004<4)-.4*(8�=*40.2+/8�+/3-.46/�:/(04.58�/.)As�X� T*43�0-=,3/0�F433�O/�4:/(.4<4/:�-))*+:4(L�.*�./0.�O*+4(L�(2=O/+�-(:�:/,.E8�-(:�-�+/,+/0/(.-.46/�,*+.4*(�*<�/-)E�0-=,3/�F433�O/�0/-3/:�4(�-�,3-0.4)�O-L�.*�,+*./).�-L-4(0.�=*40.2+/�3*00A��X� @../+O/+L�34=4.0�F433�O/�,/+<*+=/:�.*�:/./+=4(/�.E/�/(L4(//+4(L�,+*,/+.4/0�*<�.E/�0*43A�pAvA�?-O*+-.*+5�T/+64)/0�T-=,3/0�F433�O/�.+-(0,*+./:�.*�.E/�wxyz{|}x~��|��}�3-O*+-.*+5�FE/+/�.E/5�F433�O/�/R-=4(/:�-(:�6402-335�)3-004<4/:�O5�-�U/*./)E(4)-3�K(L4(//+�204(L�.E/�@@T�DC�-(:��(4<4/:�T*43�93-004<4)-.4*(�T50./=�q�T9Ts�4(�L/(/+-3�-))*+:-()/�F4.E�@TDS�;�vH��A�D*�-4:�4(�)3-004<4)-.4*(�*<�.E/�0*430�-(:�:/./+=4(-.4*(�*<�.E/4+�0/3/)./:�/(L4(//+4(L�)E-+-)./+40.4)08�-�./0.4(L�,+*L+-=�F433�O/�)*(:2)./:�*(�0/3/)./:�0-=,3/0�4(�L/(/+-3�-))*+:-()/�F4.E�.E/�<*33*F4(L�0.-(:-+:0W�� �dk̂�d_̂�l��]h_� �]h_�m_db�d���S*40.2+/�9*(./(.� @TDS�;�vvI��@../+O/+L�?4=4.0� @TDS�;�HJI��V/+)/(.�V-004(L�B*A�v���T4/6/�@TDS�;�IIH��9-34<*+(4-�7/-+4(L�N-.4*�q97Ns�@TDS�;�I��J�� �pAJA�K(L4(//+4(L�T/+64)/0�pAJAI�?-O*+-.*+5�./0.�+/023.0�F433�O/�20/:�.*�)3-004<5�.E/�0*430�-))*+:4(L�.*�.E/�@@T�DC�-(:��(4<4/:�T*43�93-004<4)-.4*(�T50./=A�T2O)*(023.-(.�F433�����{�������}�{|�}�~�z����}���~�}��{������|������������|���{|�{������



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ��!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������$%$&�

'()*+*,�(-�,*./01)2�021345(6�(0�7891+*2�*,2)�56�05/5)�:192'264�)2,5/6�16)�4;2�,*./01)2�02,5+5264�'()*+*,�*,2)�(6�-+2<5.+2�:192'264�)2,5/6=�>=?=@�A192'264�B2,5/6C�D*.3(6,*+4164�E5++�161+FG2�4;2�02,*+4,�(-�4;2�-52+)�2<:+(0145(6�4(�:0(95)2�:192'264�,40*34*02�023(''26)145(6,�1+(6/�E54;�3(6,40*345(6�/*5)2+562,�.1,2)�(6�4;2�02,*+4,�-0('�4;2�-52+)�16)�+1.(014(0F�42,456/�16)�:0(95)2)�401--53�)141=��D*.3(6,*+4164�E5++�:02:102�4E(�H@I�:192'264�(:45(6,C�(62�HJI�:192'264�)2,5/6�(:45(6�-(0�05/5)�:192'264�16)�(62�HJI�:192'264�)2,5/6�(:45(6�-(0�-+2<5.+2�:192'264=��KL�MNOPQRSTU�VWSXSWY�Z[[N\SPOWS[P]̂UX[QOWS[PT�_̀PaSPUUNb�c=J=�d((0)56145(6�c=J=J�e4�,4104�*:f�,26)�:0(g234�6(4532�4(�1++�-0163;5,2�*45+5452,�951�28'15+�4(�:0(95)2�:0(g234�+5'54,�16)�,3;2)*+2�-(0�3(6,40*345(6=�c=J=@�B141�d(++2345(6�16)�h2,2103;�i� j:)142�16)�'1564156�)141.1,2�(-�2<5,456/�-0163;5,2�*45+54F�02:02,26414592,f�563+*)56/�02:02,26414592�3(64134�56-(0'145(6�H2'15+f�'15+56/�1))02,,f�:;(62f�243=I=�i� A02:102�2<;5.54�4;14�56)53142,�-0163;5,2�*45+54F�+(3145(6,�.1,2)�*:(6�Djk�16)�,*092F=�i� d((0)56145(6�E54;�D*092F(0�02/10)56/�4(:(/01:;53�56-(0'145(6�4(�.2�3(++2342)�(6�*45+54F�+(3145(6,=�c=J=?�l0163;5,2�d(6-+534,�k91+*145(6�i� d((0)56142�:(,,5.+2�3(6-+534,�)*2�4(�9204531+�1+5/6'264�(-�0(1)E1F�16)�)01561/2�-135+5452,�E54;�Djk=�i� d((0)56142�*45+54F�02+(3145(6�1,,5/6'264,�16)�,3;2)*+2�c=J=m�D3;2)*+2f�:02:102�-(0f�14426)�16)�)(3*'264�*:�4(�-(*0�HmI�-0163;5,2�*45+54F�3((0)56145(6�'22456/,�H(62�3((0)56145(6�'22456/�4(�.2�;2+)�14�213;�(-�4;2�-(++(E56/�'5+2,4(62�,*.'5441+,C�:0(g234�,41048*:f�?no�HA02+5'5610F�B2,5/6If�pno�16)�Jnno�)2,5/6�,*.'5441+I=�q22456/,�E5++�1))02,,�76(E6�:(426451+�3(6-+534,�16)�-(0�5''2)5142�02+(3145(6�:05(0�4(�0(1)E1F�3(6,40*345(6=�c=J=>�k6/56220�E5++�E(07�E54;�-0163;5,2�*45+5452,�4(�)292+(:�02+(3145(6�:+16,�4(�.2�:02:102)�.F�4;2�*45+54F�3(':1652,�16)�56545142)�:05(0�4(�.5))56/=�rL�sNUXStSPONY�uUTSaP�v=J=�A0(g234�q161/2'264�v=J=J�d(6)*34�:0(/02,,�16)�)2,5/6�02952E�'22456/,�4(�'(654(0�4;2�)292+(:'264�(-�4;2�:0(g234=�B*056/�4;2�)2,5/6�:;1,2�(-�4;2�:0(g234f�3(6)*34�4;2�-(++(E56/C�i� w62�HJI�:0(g234�7537(--�'22456/�E54;�4;2�d54F=�i� w62�HJI�:0(g234�:0(/02,,�'22456/�E54;�4;2�d54F=�i� x58E227+F�:0(/02,,�'22456/,�E54;�4;2�d54F�02/10)56/�:0(g234�,414*,�16)�3((0)56145(6�5,,*2,=��i� w62�HJI�)2,5/6�02952E�'22456/�(6�4;2�:02+5'5610F�'5+2,4(62�H?no�B2,5/6I=�i� l(0�1++�'22456/,f�4;2�k6/56220�E5++�:02:102�4;2�'22456/�1/26)1,�16)�'56*42,=�v=J=@�d((0)56142�E54;�,*.3(6,*+4164,�H/2(423;6531+f�)01561/2f�,*092Ff�16)�DjkI�v=J=?�d((0)56142�E54;�d54F�.(6)�05/;48(-8E1F�3(6,*+4164�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ��!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������$%$&�

'()(*�+,-./,-�/01�-23/45�3607859�.,6:,-;;�,-.6,7;�76�78-�<479�'()(=�>/407/40�+,6?-@7�A@8-1B5-�C� D-E-56.�F6,G�.5/0�H41-074I9�7/;G;�/01�;BJ7/;G;K(�C� D-E-56.�,65-;�/01�/;;4:03-07;(�C� D-E-56.�/01�3/407/40�;@8-1B5-�/01�407-,43�345-;760-;(�'()(L�+,-./,-�D-;4:0�<,47-,4/�H@66,140/7-�F478�<479�/7�G4@G6II�3--740:K�'()('�MNOM<�345-;760-�,-E4-F�I6,�/55�1-54E-,/J5-;�40�78-�+,-54340/,9�D-;4:0�+8/;-(�C� +-,I6,3�/0�407-,0/5�,-E4-F�6I�78-�.,-54340/,9�1-;4:0;�40�/@@6,1/0@-�F478�PB/5479�/;;B,/0@-�;7/01/,1;�-;7/J54;8-1�I6,�784;�.,6?-@7(�C� M<OMN�@633-07;�F455�J-�@655-@7-1�I,63�-/@8�,-E4-F-,Q�16@B3-07;Q�/01�@633-07;�/11,-;;-1�.,46,�76�,-E4-F�3--740:�F478�<479(�'()(R�+,6?-@7�N13404;7,/7460�C� +,-./,-�.,6?-@7�@6,,-;.601-0@-Q�/01�40E64@40:�16@B3-07;(��'(S(�D/7/�<655-@7460�H<479�76�.,6E41-�8/,1�@6.9�/01�-5-@7,604@�I6,3/7�4I�/E/45/J5-K�'(S()�T6/1F/9�D/7/�C� U5-@7,604@�1-;4:0�I45-;�I,63�43.,6E-3-07;�/01�/09�678-,�.5/0;�/E/45/J5-�/560:�78-�.,6?-@7�54347;(�'(S(S�D,/40/:-�D/7/�C� N-,4/5�/01�V4DNT�40I6,3/7460(�C� UW4;740:�;76,3�1,/40/:-�I/@45474-;�O�,-@6,1�1,/F40:;(�C� UW4;740:�891,/B54@�361-5;(�'(S(X�Y745479�D/7/�H+BJ54@�Y745474-;K�Z�<66,140/7460�F478�<479�C� UW4;740:�F/7-,�540-�56@/7460;�O�,-@6,1�1,/F40:;(�C� [/7-,�3/;7-,�.5/0�,-PB4,-3-07;(�C� UW4;740:�;76,3�;-F-,�540-�56@/7460;�O�,-@6,1�1,/F40:;(�C� A76,3�;-F-,�3/;7-,�.5/0�,-PB4,-3-07;(�'(X(�+,-54340/,9�D-;4:0�A@8-3/74@�HX\]K�'(X()�+,-./,-�78-�;@8-3/74@�,6/1F/9�1-;4:0�I6,�/�+,40@4./5�N,7-,4/5�H>614I4-1K�79.4@/5�;-@7460�/;�1-.4@7-1�40�78-�S\)R�<479�6I�VBJJ6@G�>/;7-,�8̂6,6B:8I/,-�+5/0(�̂84;�4;�/�I4E-�H=K�5/0-�,6/1F/9�;-@7460�F47840�/�79.4@/5�__̀a�bcdef�gh�ijkl�C� +,-./,-�79.4@/5�;-@7460;�m� UW4;740:�/01�+,6.6;-1�m� D-.4@7�;BJ:,/1-�/01�./E-3-07�C� +,-./,-�.,-54340/,9�.5/0�/01�.,6I45-�H,655�.567�I6,3/7KQ�F84@8�F455�@60;4;7�6I�78-�I6556F40:�47-3;n�m� <607,65�1/7/�m� UW4;740:�O�.,6.6;-1�,4:8726I2F/9�m� UW4;740:�76.6:,/.89��m� UW4;740:�./E-3-07��m� +,6.6;-1�@-07-,540-�/54:03-07�/01�86,4o607/5�@B,E-�1/7/�m� +,6.6;-1�I/@-�6I�@B,J�m� +,6.6;-1�3-14/0;�H4I�/..54@/J5-K�m� +,6.6;-1�7,/0;47460�./E-3-07�74-240;�76�-W4;740:�./E-3-07�m� +,6.6;-1�;76,3�;-F-,�/01�@B5E-,7�/54:03-07;�/01�;4o-;�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ��!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������$%$&�

'� ()*+,*-./01232+45�,1677*8�+*.-69�3294+�'� ()*+,*-.�,144+�,2�14:6*-�;*7�32++*<94=�'� ()*+,*-.�,144+�,2�<4�14:2>45�'� ()*+,*-.�51*>4?6@�9286,*2-+�'� 01232+45�82::418*69�51*>4?6@+�;31232+45�14+*54-,*69�51*>4?6@+�?*99�<4�*-89A545�*-�,B4�7*-69�54+*.-=�'� ()*+,*-.�8A9>41,�6-5/21�+,21:�516*-�9286,*2-+�'� ()*+,*-.�?6,41�9*-4�9286,*2-+�'� ()*+,*-.�+6-*,61@�+4?41�9*-4�9286,*2-+�'� ()*+,*-.�716-8B*+4�A,*9*,@�9286,*2-+�;149@*-.�A32-�*-721:6,*2-�312>*545�<@�716-8B*+4�A,*9*,*4+�6-5�,B4�56,6�829948,45�6+�361,�27�,B4�CD(=�'� ()*+,*-.�.12A-5�3127*94�'� 01232+45�>41,*869�69*.-:4-,�6,�31232+45�84-,41�9*-4�'� 01232+45�812++�516*-6.4�8A9>41,+�'� CA341494>6,*2-�56,6�E� 0143614�0149*:*-61@�FG�1265?6@�:2549�E� 0143614�G4+*.-�HIJKK�LMNOPJQK�JQ�RRS�T�RUS�KVMMOK�WXFXY�G16*-6.4�E� Z2215*-6,*2-�?*,B�516*-6.4�6-69@+*+�+A<82-+A9,6-,�14.615*-.[�'�\265?6@�3127*94�'�ZB6--49�812++�+48,*2-�6-5�:6,41*69+]�21̂�'�C,21:�+4?41�6-5�*-94,�+*_*-.]�69*.-:4-,]�6-5�3127*94�'�ZA9>41,�+*_*-.�E� 5̀4-,*7@�,@34]�9286,*2-]�6-5�+*_4�27�31232+45�516*-6.4�*:312>4:4-,+�;*7�-484++61@=X�E� 0143614�396-�721�>61*2A+�+*54�+,144,�812++�8A9>41,+�,2�82->4@�516*-6.4�8B6--49�792?+X�WXFXF�D,*9*,*4+�E� ()*+,*-.�0A<9*8�D,*9*,*4+�'� a163B*8699@�54+*.-6,4�2-�,B4�+8B4:6,*8�,B4�9286,*2-�27�4)*+,*-.�3A<9*8�A,*9*,*4+�<6+45�A32-�*-721:6,*2-�312>*545�<@�,B4�Z*,@�'� 5̀4-,*7@�3A<9*8�A,*9*,@�82-79*8,+�?*,B�31232+45�1265?6@�'� Z2215*-6,4�?*,B�,B4�Z*,@�,2�*54-,*7@�,B4�-445�721�4),4-5*-.�-4?�3A<9*8�A,*9*,*4+�*-�,B4�\bc�6B465�27�36>*-.�E� 0A<9*8�D,*9*,*4+�G4+*.-�'� (+,6<9*+B�,B4�3149*:*-61@�9286,*2-�27�31232+45]�149286,45�3A<9*8�A,*9*,*4+�,2�6>2*5�82-79*8,+�?*,B�31232+45�*:312>4:4-,+X�'� (+,6<9*+B�,B4�3149*:*-61@�9286,*2-�27�-4?�3A<9*8�A,*9*,*4+�,2�<4�*-+,69945�*-�,B4�\bc�6B465�27�,B4�36>*-.�312d48,X�WXFXe�f1677*8�E� f1677*8�C*.-69+�g�Z2215*-6,4�?*,B�Z*,@�27�hA<<28i�f1677*8�54361,:4-,�,2�54,41:*-4�65dA+,:4-,+�6,�+*.-69*_45�*-,41+48,*2-+�E� f1677*8�Z2-,129�096-�g�(-.*-441�?*99�54>4923�6�82-843,A69�,1677*8�82-,129�396-�,2�54,41:*-4�B2?�,B4�312d48,�?*99�<4�3B6+45�6-5�82-+,1A8,45�,2�312>*54�6884++�,2�65d684-,�312341,*4+�5A1*-.�82-+,1A8,*2-X�WXeX�Z2-+,1A8,*2-�Z2+,�012d48,*2-�;b1�b3*-*2-�27�012<6<94�Z2+,=�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ��!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������$%$&�

'()(*�+,-./-0�12345657�538,/..�349�9,:,;/<�=/4>5-2=56/4�=/>5�<-/?,=56/4(�'()(@�A:3;235,�B/5C�0246=6<3;�349�DEFGD�B69�53B2;356/4>�./-�=2--,45�5-,49>�64�2465�<-6=,>(��H,=32>,�5C,�A4I64,,-�9/,>�4/5�=/45-/;�5C,�=/>5�/.�;3B/-J�035,-63;>J�,126<0,45�/-�>,-:6=,>�.2-46>C,9�B7�/5C,->J�0,5C/9>�/.�9,5,-06464I�<-6=,>J�/-�=/0<,5656:,�B69964I�/-�03-8,5�=/49656/4>J�347�/<646/4>�-,49,-,9�3>�5/�=/>5>J�64=;2964I�B25�4/5�;6065,9�5/�/<646/4>�3>�5/�5C,�=/>5>�/.�=/4>5-2=56/4�349�035,-63;>J�>C3;;�B,�039,�/4�5C,�B3>6>�/.�65>�,E<,-6,4=,�349�-,<-,>,45�65>�?29I0,45�3>�34�,E<,-6,4=,9�349�123;6.6,9�<-/.,>>6/43;J�.306;63-�K65C�5C,�6492>5-7(��DC,�A4I64,,-�=344/5�349�9/,>�4/5�I23-345,,�5C35�<-/</>3;>J�B69>�/-�3=523;�=/>5>�K6;;�4/5�:3-7�.-/0�65>�/<646/4>�/.�=/>5(�'(L(�+-,;60643-7�F,>6I4�M=C,0356=�F,;6:,-3B;,>�N-/;;�<;/5O�P�DC,�-/;;�<;/5�>=C,0356=�K6;;�B,�.646>C,9�5/�3�;,:,;�/.�9,536;�5C35�6>�,126:3;,45�5/�3�QRS�=/0<;,5,�<;34�>,5�P�B25�64�-/;;�<;/5�./-035(�'(L(*�F,;6:,-3B;,>�K6;;�=/4>6>5�/.�5C,�./;;/K64IT�U� M=C,0356=�V/;;�+;/5�9/=20,45�U� F,>6I4�=-/>>�>,=56/4>�U� +-,;60643-7�/<646/4�/.�<-/B3B;,�=/4>5-2=56/4�=/>5�U� +-,;60643-7�D-3..6=�W/45-/;�+;34�349�M,12,4=,��XY�Z[\]̂\_̀�â \bcd]d�efc�ghfiĵdhbk\̂kl�m(*(�+,-./-0�5C,�./;;/K64I�9-3643I,�343;7>6>�53>8>�64�>2<</-5�/.�5C,�-/39K37�349�9-3643I,�60<-/:,0,45>�9,>6I4(�m(*(*�F353�=/;;,=56/4�U� M2B=/4>2;5345�K6;;�/B5364�3<<-/:,9�9-3643I,�343;7>6>�-,</-5>�./-�9-3643I,�3-,3>�=/45-6B2564I�5/�5C,�<-/?,=5�;6065>(�U� AE5-3=5�5C,�4,=,>>3-7�0/9,;�,;,0,45>�.-/0�5C,�**)5C�M5-,,5�P�M;69,�5/�n238,-�o:,42,�<-/?,=5�0/9,;(��U� +-,;60643-7�<;35>J�<-,;60643-7�9-3643I,�03<>J�p/464I�/-96434=,>J�349�/5C,-�.6;,>�3>�3:36;3B;,�349�4,=,>>3-7�5/�,:3;235,�,E<,=5,9�.2;;7�9,:,;/<,9�=/49656/4>�./-�249,:,;/<,9�<-/<,-57�35�5C,�560,�/.�5C,�343;7>6>(�m(*(@�AE6>564I�=/49656/4>�343;7>6>�U� F,:,;/<�,E6>564I�=/49656/4>�C79-/;/I6=�9353�.-/0�=2--,45�3,-63;�603I,-7�349�>65,�/B>,-:356/4>(��U� F,:,;/<�,E6>564I�C79-32;6=�=-/>>�>,=56/4>�349�,E6>564I�9-3643I,�60<-/:,0,45�9353�./-�0/9,;64I(�U� q/9,;�,E6>564I�=/49656/4>�64�rW+V)�./-�@sJ�*RsJ�@LsJ�LRsJ�349�*RRs7,3-�@)sC/2-�>5/-0�,:,45>(�m(*(Q�+-/</>,9�60<-/:,0,45>�343;7>6>�U� r0</-5�>2BsB3>64�;6065>�349�C79-/;/I6=�9353�.-/0�**)5C�M5-,,5�P�M;69,�5/�n238,-�<-/?,=5(�U� F,:,;/<�.2;;7�9,:,;/<,9�=/49656/4>�C79-/;/I6=�9353�U� F,:,;/<�0/9,;�C79-32;6=�4,5K/-8�.-/0�<-/</>,9�-/39K37�<-/.6;,�349�57<6=3;�>,=56/4>(�U� q/9,;�349�343;7p,�<-/</>,9�.2;;sK695C�-/39K37�/4�,E6>564I�=/49656/4>�C79-/;/I7(�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ���!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������$!$%�

&� '()*+�,-)�,-,+./*�01(0(2*)�1(,)3,.�,-)�)1,4-,5*�4601(7*6*-82�(-�9:++.�)*7*+(0*)�;(-)484(-2�<.)1(+(5.=�48*1,8*�6()*+�8(�)*7*+(0�)1,4-,5*�4601(7*6*-8�1*;(66*-),84(-2>�&� ?*;(66*-)�)1,4-,5*�4601(7*6*-82�;(-24284-5�(9@�A�?(,)3,.�01(94+*�A�B<,--*+�;1(22�2*;84(-�,-)�6,8*14,+2�A�B:+7*18�24/4-5�A�C8(16�)1,4-�2.28*62�D>E>F�G*+47*1,H+*2�&� G1,4-,5*�,1*,�6,0�9(1�ICJK�0,;L,5*>�&� M.)1(+(54;�,-)�<.)1,:+4;�),8,�2<**82>�&� C8(163,8*1�1(:84-5�2<**82�)(;:6*-84-5�01(0(2*)�9+(3�)*08<2>�&� G1,4-,5*�4601(7*6*-82�24/4-5�1*;(66*-),84(-2>��NO�PQRST�UVWQXR��Y>E>�I1(Z*;8�',-,5*6*-8�Y>E>E�I1(51*22�,-)�?*74*3�'**84-52@�&� C;<*):+*=�01*0,1*�9(1=�,88*-)=�,-)�)(;:6*-8�8<1**�[\]�01(51*22�6**84-52�,-)�(-*�[E]�1*74*3�6**84-5�8(�6(-48(1�8<*�)*7*+(06*-8�(9�8<*�01(Z*;8>��A� 4̂_3**L+.�01(51*22�6**84-52�34++�H*�<*+)�8(�)42;:22�)*245-�422:*2�,-)�01(51*22�(9�0+,-�01():;84(->��A� ?*74*3�6**84-5�34++�H*�;(-):;8*)�,8�Ỳa�C:H6488,+>�Y>E>b�C48*�c42482�_�d88*-)�:0�8(�947*�[e]�248*�742482�):14-5�8<*�94-,+�)*245-�0<,2*�8(�8,L*�0<(8(2=�94*+)�6*,2:1*6*-82=�,-)�,�0+,-2_4-_<,-)�3,+L_8<1(:5<>�Y>E>\�B((1)4-,8*�348<�2:H;(-2:+8,-82>�Y>E>F�B((1)4-,8*�348<�B48.�H(-)�145<8_(9_3,.�;(-2:+8,-8>�Y>E>e�I1*0,1*�,-)�*_6,4+�6(-8<+.�01(51*22�1*0(182�8(�B48.>�Y>E>f�gdhgB�&� K-54-**1�34++�0*19(16�,-�4-8*1-,+�1*74*3�014(1�8(�,++�2:H6488,+2�[Ỳa�,-)�i4-,+]�4-�,;;(1),-;*�348<�j:,+48.�,22:1,-;*�28,-),1)2�*28,H+42<*)�9(1�8<42�01(Z*;8>�gdhgB�;(66*-82�34++�H*�;(++*;8*)�91(6�*,;<�4-8*1-,+�1*74*3*1=�)(;:6*-8*)=�,-)�;(66*-82�,))1*22*)�014(1�8(�*,;<�0+,-�2:H6488,+�8(�8<*�B48.>�&� B48.�1*74*3�;(66*-82�34++�H*�)(;:6*-8*)�,-)�,))1*22*)�,98*1�8<*�Ỳa�1*74*3�6**84-5>��K-54-**1�klmm�nopqrp�q�stuvvpwr�xuyz�lw�201*,)2<**8�9(16,8=�)(;:6*-84-5�8<*�;(66*-8�,-)�8<*�,;84(-�8,L*-�8(�1*2(+7*�8<*�;(66*-8>���Y>E>{�I1(Z*;8�d)64-4281,84(-�&� I1*0,1*�01(Z*;8�;(11*20(-)*-;*�,-)�4-7(4;4-5�)(;:6*-82>�Y>b>�?(,)3,.�G*245-�[ICJK]�Y>b>E�I1*0,1*�0+,-�h�01(94+*�2<**82�(-�||z�}�|~z��mqw���ppr��qr�q��nqmp�u��|z���È �̀��uol�uwrqm��qw��|z���È���porlnqm���[C8,18�348<�\̀a�?(++2]�&� �-�,))484(-�8(�8<*�48*62�4-;+:)*)�4-�8<*�01*+464-,1.�)*245-�2:H6488,+=�8<*�ICJK�34++�;(-2428�(9�8<*�9(++(34-5�48*62@�A� I1(0(2*)�*,2*6*-8�+(;,84(-2�[49�,-.]�A� I1(0(2*)�24)*3,+L�+(;,84(-2�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� �����������!� ������� ����"�������������� ��"�������#$#%�

&� '()*)+,-�(,+.-,/0.12�1/-�3)44,(3.12�-(.5,617+�&� 8)(.9)/012�12.:/4,/0�-101�&� ;(1<<.3�=)/0()2�'>1+./:�217)?0+�&� '15,4,/0�41(@./:�217)?0+�&� A()+.)/�3)/0()2�*21/+�&� B1((.,(�<(,,�(14*+�&� C,4)2.0.)/�*21/�&� D/0,(+,30.)/�217)?0+�&� D22?4./10.)/�217)?0+�&� E4122�+.:/�+?441(7�&� E01/-1(-�-,+.:/�-,01.2+�&� ;FCG;�+01/-1(-+�HIJIJ�K/1279,�122�-(.5,617+�6.0>./�0>,�*()L,30�1/-�-,5,2)*�-(.5,617�*()<.2,+�1+�/,,-,-I�C(.5,617+�6.22�07*.31227�M,�-,<./,-�5,(0.31227�M7�+*)0�,2,510.)/+I�HIJIN�C,5,2)*�O./12�NC�()1-617�4)-,2I�HIJIP�'(,*1(,�-,+.:/�3()++Q+,30.)/+�R� C,5,2)*�)/�STQ<0�+010.)/�./0,(512+�1/-�10�-(.5,617�3,/0,(2./,+I�R� E>)6�*15,4,/0�1/-�+?M:(1-,U�(.:>0Q)<Q617�2.4.0+U�+.-,�+2)*,+U�*15,4,/0�3()++�+2)*,+U�3?(M+U�1/-�+.-,612@+I�R� =()++Q+,30.)/+�6.22�/)0�M,�*()5.-,-�./�0>,�M.-�-)3?4,/0+�M?0�6.22�M,�41-,�151.21M2,�0)�*()+*,30.5,�M.--,(+I�HIJIS�'(,*1(,�()1-617�-,01.2+�0)�321(.<7�./0,/0�)<�-,+.:/I�HIJIV�=)4*.2,�1**2.31M2,�=.07�+01/-1(-�-,01.2+I�W)-.<7�+01/-1(-�-,01.2+�1+�/,,-,-I�HIJIX�'15,4,/0�W1(@,(+�1/-�W1(@./:�'21/+�R� '(,*1(,�*15,4,/0�41(@,(+�1/-�41(@./:�217)?0+�./�133)(-1/3,�6.0>�=.07�-,+.:/�+01/-1(-+�1/-�0>,�;,F1+�W1/?12�)<�Y/.<)(4�;(1<<.3�=)/0()2�C,5.3,+�Z;WY;=C[I�R� '(,*1(,�-,01.2+�0)�321(.<7�./0,/0�)<�-,+.:/I�R� =)4*.2,�1**2.31M2,�=.07�+01/-1(-�-,01.2+I�W)-.<7�+01/-1(-�-,01.2+�1+�/,,-,-I�R� E.:/./:�217)?0�1/-�-,+.:/�6.22�/)0�M,�*()5.-,-I�R� \.+0�0>,�+.:/+�)/�0>,�;FCG;�+01/-1(-�+?441(7�+>,,0+�0):,0>,(�6.0>�0)012+�<)(�,13>�4)?/0�07*,I�HINI�C(1./1:,�'21/+�HINI]�'21/�'()-?30.)/�R� '()5.-,�C(1./1:,�K(,1�W1*�3)4*2,0,�6.0>�0.4,�)<�3)/3,/0(10.)/�()?0,+U�3?(5,�/?4M,(+�3123?210,-�1+�*,(�0>,�C(1./1:,�=(.0,(.1�W1/?12�ZC=W[�<)(�,13>�-(1./1:,�1(,1U�-(1./1:,�1(,1�-,/)0,-�./�13(,+U�1/-�122�/,3,++1(7�*)./0+�)<�./0,(,+0�21M,2,-I�R� '()5.-,�>7-()2):.3�1/-�>7-(1?2.3�-101�+>,,0+�+>)6./:�0>,�/,3,++1(7�3123?210.)/+�1/-�1++?4*0.)/+I�R� '()5.-,�-(1./1:,�3>1//,2�:(1-./:�*21/�Z.<�/,3,++1(7[I�R� '()5.-,�-(1./1:,�.4*()5,4,/0+�*21/+U�*()<.2,+U�1/-�+?**)(0./:�-,01.2+I�R� '()5.-,�,()+.)/�3)/0()2�*21/+U�-,01.2+U�1/-�Ê '''I�R� '()5.-,�-,*0>�)<�<2)6�./-.310.)/+�<)(�0>,�]TTQ7,1(�-,+.:/�+0)(4�6.0>./�_Ĝ �1/-�1/7�3)((,+*)/-./:�<./.+>,-�<2))(�,2,510.)/+I�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ���!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������!$!%�

&� '()*+,-�,(.+/.0-�1-23/+2.4�56-2+7+2.1+)/5�7)(�-()5+)/�2)/1()4�8-13),5�./,�./9�)77:5+1-�-.(13;)(<=�&� >*.4?.1-�+86.21�)7�13-�@A'�)/�5?(()?/,+/0�,(.+/.0-�./,�6()*+,-�+/1-(+8�,(.+/.0-�64./B�+7�/--,-,=�C=D=�E1+4+1+-5�:�'?F4+2�C=D=G�H.1-(�./,�I-;-(�J,K?518-/15�&� J,K?518-/15�1)�-L+51+/0�;.1-(�*.4*-5�./,�8./3)4-5�;+44�F-�56-2+7+-,�+/�13-�64./5=��'(-6.(-�56-2+.4�?1+4+19�,-1.+45�1)�24.(+79�+/1-/1�)7�,-5+0/�M+7�/--,-,N=�C=D=O�A)86+4-�.664+2.F4-�51./,.(,�,-1.+45=�P),+79�51./,.(,�,-1.+45�.5�/--,-,=�C=Q=�@(.77+2�C=Q=G�@(.77+2�I+0/.45�&� @(.77+2�5+0/.4�,-5+0/�;+44�/)1�F-�6.(1�)7�13+5�52)6-�)7�;)(<=�&� J,K?518-/15�1)�I4+,-�R).,�./,�S(./<7)(,�J*-�1(.77+2�5+0/.45�1)�F-�2))(,+/.1-,�;+13�A+19�)7�T?FF)2<�@(.77+2�U-6.(18-/1=�C=V=�W@I�C=V=G�U-5+0/�./,�+/51.44�2)/,?+1B�2.F4-B�./,�0()?/,�F)L-5�7)(�W@I�2)//-21+)/5�)7�1(.77+2�5+0/.45=�C=X=�@(.77+2�A)/1()4�'4./5�C=X=G�U-*-4)6�2)/51(?21+)/�5-Y?-/2-�64./�53);+/0Z�&� @(.*-4�4./-5�./,�2)/51(?21+)/�.(-.�7)(�-.23�63.5-�)7�2)/51(?21+)/=�&� @-86)(.(9�5+0/+/0�./,�51(+6+/0B�F.((+2.,-5B�./,�)13-(�23.//-4+[.1+)/�,-*+2-5=�&� \.((.1+*-�)7�13-�5-Y?-/2-�)7�;)(<=�&� '?F4+2�?1+4+1+-5�2)/51(?21+)/�63.5+/0�M+7�/--,-,N=�&� J,K.2-/1�6()6-(19�.22-55�,?(+/0�2)/51(?21+)/=�C=X=O�U-*-4)6�196+2.4�@A'�2()55�5-21+)/5�53);+/0�4./-�;+,135B�-,0-�2)/,+1+)/5B�23.//-4+[.1+)/B�./,�6()6)5-,�2)/51(?21+)/�.(-.=�C=X=]�U-*-4)6�@A'�196+2.4�+/1-(5-21+)/�51.0+/0�64./5�7)(�5+8+4.(�+/1-(5-21+)/5=�U-*-4)6�2?51)8�+/1-(5-21+)/�51.0+/0�4.9)?15�7)(�56-2+.4�2)/,+1+)/5=�C=X=D�U-*-4)6�@A'�196+2.4�,(+*-;.9�51.0+/0�64./5�7)(�5+8+4.(�,(+*-;.95=�U-*-4)6�2?51)8�,(+*-;.9�51.0+/0�4.9)?15�7)(�56-2+.4�2)/,+1+)/5=�C=X=Q�'(-6.(-�1(.77+2�2)/1()4�,-1.+45�1)�24.(+79�+/1-/1�)7�,-5+0/�C=X=V�A)86+4-�.664+2.F4-�@LÛ @�51./,.(,�,-1.+45=�P),+79�51./,.(,�,-1.+45�.5�/--,-,=�C=_=�W44?8+/.1+)/�C=_=G�U-5+0/�)7�6.*-8-/1�+44?8+/.1+)/�5951-85�1)�6()*+,-�4+031+/0�4-*-45�+/�.22)(,./2-�;+13�.664+2.F4-�4)2.4�2),-5�./,�W44?8+/.1+/0�>/0+/--(+/0�I)2+-19�)7�\)(13�J8-(+2.�MW>I\JN�(-2)88-/,-,�6(.21+2-5=�C=_=O�'(-6.(-�.�63)1)8-1(+2�4.9)?1�./,�6-(7)(8�)/-�+1-(.1+)/�)7�13-�63)1)8-1(+2�àbcde�faghi�cj�ekh�lmebng�ohpmhqr�C=_=]�'(-6.(-�+44?8+/.1+)/�2)/51(?21+)/�64./5�.5�/--,-,�7)(�+/24?5+)/�+/�13-�2+*+4�2)/51(?21+)/�,)2?8-/15=��@3-�+44?8+/.1+)/�64./5�;+44�+/24?,-�4+031�6)4-�4)2.1+)/�,.1.B�7)?/,.1+)/�,-1.+45B�2)/,?+1�()?1+/0B�2)/,?21)(�5+[+/0B�./,�-4-21(+2.4�5-(*+2-�4)2.1+)/5=�C=_=D�'()*+,-�5?66)(1+/0�2.42?4.1+)/5=�C=_=Q�'()*+,-�1-23/+2.4�56-2+7+2.1+)/5�7)(�13-�4+031�6)4-5�./,�7+L1?(-5=�



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� ���!�������"� ������� ����#�������������� ��#�������$%$!�

&'(')�*++,-./012�3.14�5+605�25261,.6�72,8.62�9,+8.-2,7�:+,�25261,.605�72,8.62�5+601.+/7'�&'(';�<642-=52�0/-�6+/-=61�13+�>?@�A221./B7�3.14�CDEC�0/-F+,�<DG*�0/-�142�*.1H�1+�-.76=77�-27.B/�+:�142�.55=A./01.+/�7H712A'�G/B./22,�3.55�3+,I�1+�5+6012�+82,420-�=1.5.1.27�7=64�1401�710/-0,-�JKL�MNO�PQ�RNO�STTUVSWXYSPW�ZPT[\�60/�]2�./710552-�3.14+=1�6+/:5.61�3.14�+82,420-�=1.5.1.27'�&'&'�̂/12,.A�_27.B/�<=]A.1105�>&K̀ @�_25.82,0]527�&'&'a�<=]A.1�&K̀ �D<EG�./�9-:�:+,A01�1+�142�*.1H�:+,�,28.23�0/-�6+AA2/1'�&'&'?�b4.7�7=]A.1105�3.55�9,+8.-2�077=,0/62�1401�9,+c261�76+92�.7�0--,277./B�9,+c261�.77=27L�0/-�3.55�055+3�:+,�-27.B/�640/B27�3.14�7=::.6.2/1�520-�1.A2�:+,�A./+,�,28.7.+/7'��_25.82,0]527�1+�]2�9,+8.-2-�3.14�14.7�7=]A.1105�6+/7.71�+:d�e� bH9.605�<261.+/7�>aKK̀ @�e� b.152�<4221�>aKK̀ @�e� /̂-2f�+:�<42217�>&g̀ @�e� *+/71,=61.+/�D407./B�>aKK̀ @�e� b,0::.6�*+/1,+5�D50/�>aKK̀ @�e� D50/�E�D,+:.52�<42217�>aKK̀ @�e� /̂12,7261.+/�C0H+=17�>&g̀ @�e� hH-,0=5.6�i/05H7.7�>aKK̀ @�e� _,0./0B2�_210.57�>&g̀ @�e� <jJD�>aKK̀ @�e� GD̂*�<4221�>aKK̀ @�e� k1.5.1H�C0H+=17�>aKK̀ @�e� <.B/./B�0/-�<1,.9./B�C0H+=17�>&g̀ @�e� 5̂5=A./01.+/�0/-�̂b<�C0H+=17�>&g̀ @�e� l=0/1.1.27�0/-�<=AA0,H�<42217�>aKK̀ @�e� k9-012-�G71.A012�e� _27.B/�*,+77m<261.+/7�>&g̀ @�&'aK'�n./05�_27.B/�<=]A.1105�>o.-�<21@�_25.82,0]527�&'aK'a�<=]A.1�0/�25261,+/.6�D<EG�:.52�7=]A.77.+/�07�,2p=.,2-�]H�*.1H�6+/7.71./B�+:�72052-�950/�742217�0/-�055�7=99+,1./B�-+6=A2/17�,2p=.,2-�:+,�].--./B'�&'aa'�D+71�o.-�<=]A.1105�_25.82,0]527�&'aa'a�<=]A.1�+/2�>a@�D_n�25261,+/.6�6+9H�+:�142�950/�721L�7926.:.601.+/7L�0/-�Xqq[WqX�XrY[Q�Ys[�ZQPt[uYO\�vSq�PZ[WSWwx��yz{�|}~���������������aK'a'�<=99+,1�*.1H�-=,./B�142�].-�94072�1+�0--,277�0/-�,279+/-�1+�p=271.+/7�:,+A�9,+79261.82�].--2,7'���aK'?'�D,290,2�0/-�7=]A.1�0--2/-0�640/B27�1401�0,2�/26277.1012-�]H�p=271.+/7�-=,./B�142�].-�94072'�aK'J'�̂/6+,9+,012�0--2/-0�640/B27�./1+�142�n./05�D50/�<21'�aK'�'�i77.71�142�*.1H�./�2805=01./B�142�].-7�0/-�9,290,2�0�,26+AA2/-01.+/�52112,'��yy{��~~}�}���������}�����



� �

��������	
����������������������������
�������������������������������������� �� �����������!� ������� ����"�������������� ��"�������#$#%�

&'()*+',�-./�,0'+*1*+2334�*5'-/*1*'5�*-�/6'�&+.0'�.1�&'()*+',�27.)'�,6233�7'�+.-,*5'('5�255*/*.-23�2-5�,6233�7'�0'(1.(8'5�.-�2-�*-5*)*5923�72,*,�90.-�29/6.(*:2/*.-�74�/6'�;*/4<�&9+6�,'()*+',�,6233�*-+395'=�79/�2('�-./�3*8*/'5�/.=�/6'�1.33.>*-?@��A� B',*?-�.1�2-4�.11,*/'�5(2*-2?'�*80(.)'8'-/,�7'4.-5�/6'�*80(.)'8'-/,�*5'-/*1*'5�*-�/6'�,+.0'�A� CD*,/*-?�>2/'(�.(�,2-*/2(4�,'>'(�('3.+2/*.-,�A� E(.0.,'5�>2/'(�.(�,2-*/2(4�,'>'(�*-,/2332/*.-,�A� F2-5,+20'�5',*?-�A� G((*?2/*.-�5',*?-�A� H(211*+�,*?-23�5',*?-�A� ;.-,/(9+/*.-�;.-/(2+/�I58*-*,/(2/*.-�A� ;.-,/(9+/*.-�E62,'�C-?*-''(�.1�J'+.(5�,900.(/�,'()*+',�A� ;.-,/(9+/*.-�E62,'�JEJ�,'()*+',�A� B',*?-�.1�,/(9+/9(23�('/2*-*-?�>233,�A� E('02(2/*.-�1.(�2-5�2//'-52-+'�2/�0973*+�8''/*-?,�7'4.-5�>62/�>2,�*5'-/*1*'5�*-�/6'�,+.0'�A� K9(-*,6�255*/*.-23�+.0*',�.1�(')*'>�5.+98'-/,�2-5L.(�7*5�5.+98'-/,�8.('�/62-�/6'�-987'(�.1�/6'�,28'�*5'-/*1*'5�27.)'�A� I,,*,/�/6'�;*/4�2,�2-�'D0'(/�>*/-',,�*-�3*/*?2/*.-�27.9/�/6'�0(.M'+/�.(�*-�6'2(*-?,�7'1.('�200(.)*-?�2-5�('?932/.(4�2?'-+*',�A� J'5',*?-�/.�('13'+/�0(.M'+/�,+.0'�+62-?',�('N9',/'5�74�/6'�;*/4=�('N9*('5�/.�255(',,�+62-?'5�+.-5*/*.-,�.(�+62-?'�*-�5*('+/*.-�0(')*.9,34�200(.)'5�74�/6'�;*/4=�82-52/'5�74�+62-?*-?�?.)'(-8'-/23�32>,=�.(�-'+',,*/2/'5�74�/6'�;*/4OP�2++'0/2-+'�.1�,97,/*/9/*.-,�0(.0.,'5�74�/6'�+.-/(2+/.(��QRST�UV�WUSXYTQRUZ���C-?*-''(�2-5�&97+.-,93/2-/,�2('�29/6.(*:'5�/.�+.88'-+'�>.([�.-�/6'�E(.M'+/�90.-�'D'+9/*.-�.1�2�89/92334�2++'0/273'�+.-/(2+/�2-5�2?('',�/.�+.803'/'�/6'�,'()*+',�2++.(5*-?�/.�/6'�1.33.>*-?�5'3*)'(4�,+6'593'@�� �A�;.-/(2+/�CD'+9/*.-L\./*+'�/.�E(.+''5�� � � \.)'87'(�]=�̂_̂ �̀A�B',*?-�&9()'4=�Jab�c200*-?=�d'./'+6-*+23�G-)',/*?2/*.-=�&eC=�e/*3*/4�;..(5*-2/*.-� � � � � c2(+6�]=�̂_̂f�A�E('3*8*-2(4�B',*?-�&+6'82/*+�g̀_hi� � � � j9-'�̀=�̂_̂f�A�G-/'(*8�B',*?-�gk_hi� � � � � � \.)'87'(�]l=�̂_̂f�A�K*-23�B',*?-�g]__h�+.803'/'�032-�,'/i�� � � K'7(92(4�]=�̂_̂m�� n�C-5�.1�&+.0'�&'()*+',�n��



Task No. Task Name (Lump Sum) Kimley-Horn Hugo Reed Rios Atlas Subtotal

1 Design Survey 11,660.00$ 47,844.00$ -$ -$ 59,504.00$

2 Right of Way Survey and Services 17,600.00$ 130,750.00$ -$ -$ 148,350.00$

3 Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) 10,600.00$ -$ 47,000.00$ -$ 57,600.00$

4 Geotechnical Investigation 4,500.00$ -$ -$ 13,500.00$ 18,000.00$

5 Franchise Utility Coord./Relocations 78,800.00$ 19,968.00$ -$ -$ 98,768.00$

6 Preliminary Design 258,100.00$ 30,744.00$ -$ -$ 288,844.00$

7 Drainage Analysis 38,000.00$ 85,660.00$ -$ -$ 123,660.00$

8 Final Design 381,560.00$ 39,608.00$ -$ -$ 421,168.00$

9 Bid Phase Support 24,150.00$ 2,656.00$ -$ -$ 26,806.00$

824,970.00$ 357,230.00$ 47,000.00$ 13,500.00$ 1,242,700.00$

Payment will be due within 25 days of your receipt of the invoice and should include the invoice number and Kimley-Horn project
number

Exhibit B - Fee Schedule
City of Lubbock RFQ #

114th Street - Frankford Ave to Slide Road
9/20/2023

Total Contract Fee

Kimley-Horn will perform the services in Tasks 1-9 for the total lump sum fee of $1,242,700.00 inclusive of expenses.  Individual task
amounts are informational only.  Kimley-Horn reserves the right to reallocate amounts among tasks as necessary.  All permitting,
application and similar project fees will be paid directly by the Client.  Lump Sum fees will be invoiced monthly based on the overall
percentage of services performed.



As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ The Reconstruction of 114th St from Frankford Ave to Slide Rd

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

114TH ST

98TH ST

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

SL
ID

E 
RD

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 A
V

E

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

SPRINGFIELD

ABBEY GLENN

SL
ID

E 
RD

113TH ST

CITY LIMITS IN

CITY LIMITS OUT

A
TL

A
N

TA
 A

V
E

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 A
V

E

SL
ID

E 
RD

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E
FR

A
N

K
FO

RD
 A

V
E

114TH ST

130TH ST

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

130TH ST

114TH ST

98TH ST

THE COTTAGES

AT ABBEY GLENN

SPRIN
GFIELD

STONEWOOD ESTATES

STONEWOOD

OFFIC
E PARK

EL
K

H
A

RT
 A

V
E

112TH ST

111TH ST

110TH ST

109TH ST

108TH ST

109TH ST

111TH ST

A
LB

A
N

Y 
A

VE

A
BE

RD
EE

N
 A

VE
A

BB
EV

IL
LE

 A
VE

D
O

V
ER

 A
V

E

116TH ST

D
U

RA
N

T 
A

V
E

STONEWOOD

ESTATES

ABBEY GLENN

FOUNTAIN HILLS

OAKMONT ESTATES

WESTLAKE

ESTATES



City of Lubbock
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 10, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92820
Capital Project Name: 114th Street: Frankford Ave to Slide Road - 22B

Encumbered/Expended Budget
 $- 

Agenda Item October 10, 2023
Contract 17632 with KHA for Design Services  1,242,700 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,242,700 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
114th Street: Frankford to Slide - 22B ROW Acquisition  957,300 

Remaining Appropriation  957,300 

Total Appropriation  $2,200,000 



�����

����	
�����	��	����������	��	���	����	�����
	���
������
�	����	��	������	�	������� 	

����
	�
��
���!	"��
�#������	���	����	��	����	��	���	������
���	��������	��	���	��	���	

��
���	��������	���	���	�
������!

	$����%������ &���������

'�	(�#����
	�)	����)	*�����+	#���
�	���
�#��	

��������	��	�	,���	�������	��
���	���
�#������	

����	���+���	��
	���	��
����	��	�
�#�����	

��
������	������	���
�#������!		���	�������	���	

��-��
�)	�����
���	���	
������
���	��
���	

���
�#������)	���������	���	���	�������	��	

������+�)	�������	����	
����������	���	�
�����	

�������.�����)	�������
�	���	
������	���
�	

�
������	����������)	���	���	��-��������	��	����	���	


�����������	��
	���	����	����	����������!

	/���� 	&����
�

/�����	���
�	/���0	��1���2

/�����	3���������0	�41���5

6��	��
	3����������0�41���5

7�
�	3����
������0	��1���5

�
�8���	3���������0	��1���9

	*�������

	7��
��
�������

�	:�
+�	4����

;<;;=>=;?=@ABCDE=FGH ;<;?=>=;I=@ABCDE ;<;I=>=;J=@ABCDE ;<;J=>=;K=@ABCDE ;<;K=>=;L=@ABCDE ;<;L=>=;M=@ABCDE ;<;M=>=;N=@ABCDE

ODPQCR ST SUVUTTVTTT ST ST ST ST ST

FWRPEXAYEQWR ST ST SZ[V\TTVTTT ST ST ST ST

]̂ ]_̀ a< a;b;<<b<<< ac?bM<<b<<< a< a< a< a<

(�	d�����	"��
���
����
�	

efg hijklkmnkojpqrstuvwxjyz{xrujtw{j|tqvut}j~s�xst�



��������

���	
�������

��������������� ����� ��!�"����� ���!� ��#�"����� ���#� ��$�"����� ���$� ��%�"����� ���%� ��&�"����� ���&� ��'�"�����

(���)�*�+,*��������"���- ./ .010//1/// .2314//1/// ./ ./ ./ ./

5+567 8� 8�9���9��� 8:�9&��9��� 8� 8� 8� 8�

�;���<=�>?@AB=�

CDEDF

��-G)�H���� ���� �! ���! �# ���# �$ ���$ �% ���% �& ���& �' 5���*

I��JKH�G��6���G�H���� ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ ./

5+567 8� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8� 8�

LMNOPOQROSNTUVWXYZ[\N]̂_\VYNX[_ǸXUZYXaNbWc\WXd efg



 AI# 11878 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Wastewater Utility: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O0119, amending the
City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", to provide for establishing new
definitions, delineating sewer line repair and maintenance responsibilities, amending the regulation for
City-participation for large mains, and repealing certain inapplicable provisions. 

Item Summary
On September 2, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The Public Works Department is recommending amendments to Chapter 22 of the City of Lubbock
Code of Ordinances, with regard to replacement of private sewer lateral lines located within public
right-of-way (Street or Alley).  The proposed change will allow licensed plumbers to work within public
right-of-way to fully repair the private sewer lateral line between the house or business structure, and the
City main located in the right-of-way.

Under the current ordinance adopted in 2006, licensed plumbers are not allowed to perform this work
within the public right-of-way, and these repairs on private lines must be performed by City of Lubbock
Pipeline Maintenance Crews. The ordinance prior to 2006 did allow for plumbers to work within City
right-of-way to perform this work.

This recommended ordinance will allow for a more timely response to emergency issues with sewer line
back-ups on properties, since the plumber will no longer need to involve the City staff to perform this
work.  In addition, this change will save the City the cost of dispatching crews to perform maintenance
on a private sewer lateral line.

Many recent changes have been made to City ordinances that we believe will now allow us to fully
evaluate plumbers working within our right-of-way. Today's recommended ordinance requires all
contractors to permit any work within the right-of-way.  All contractors are required to be bonded and to
warranty their work and compaction, within the right-of-way, as well.  These recent changes have
allowed for better tracking of contractor's activities, and the ability to ensure contractors are doing proper
construction methods in the right-of-way.  Public Works has verified with the Community Development
Department, that funding will be potentially available to qualifying lower-income citizens, for purposes
of performing this work.

The other changes within the Chapter 22 Ordinance were made for general clean-up of the ordinance, to
match current operations.

Fiscal Impact
This change, once fully implemented, will reduce City operational and capital improvement costs by an
estimated $800,000 annually.



Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin P.E., Division Director of Public Works.

Attachments
Amended Ordinance Chapter 22 





















 AI# 11832 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Water System Operations: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 17513, with the United States Geological Survey, for the operations, maintenance, and
validation of various rain and stream flow gauges.

Item Summary
The Texas Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) requires the City of Lubbock to measure
stream flow that discharges into Lake Alan Henry.  In addition, the City is required to measure Lake
Alan Henry's depth.  The City will also be required to measure stream flow into future Lake 7.  The City
already measures stream flows at SE Loop 289 and the Brazos River, for planning purposes.

Under contract with the City, the United States Geological Service (USGS) is currently installing stream
flow gauges near the outfalls of the Northwest, South-Central, and South Drainage Systems, which will
be used to monitor flows into Lake 7 as well.  All the gauges installed for Lake Alan Henry and Lake 7
are maintained and operated by the USGS.  

The proposed contract is a continuation of an annual joint funding agreement with the USGS,
Oklahoma-Texas Water Science Center, United States Department of the Interior. This annual
agreement pays for necessary monitoring, operating, and data validation related to the City's stream flow
gauges. The term for the current proposed costs includes services from October 1, 2023, to September
30, 2024. The USGS will fund $8,950 and the City will fund $108,250, for a combined total of $117,250.

Staff recommends awarding Contract 17513 to the USGS for $108,250, which is the City’s portion of
the joint funding agreement.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17513 for $108,250, is budgeted in the FY 2023-24 Water/Wastewater Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 











 AI# 11994 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Street Maintenance: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17565, with West Texas Paving, Inc., for the reconstruction of East 33rd Street and
Juniper Avenue.

Item Summary
This project will rebuild the targeted streets by milling and removing 8 inches of existing surface and
road base material, and replacing with 6 inches of asphalt stabilized base and 2 inches of hot mix asphalt
concrete driving surface.

The boundaries of this project are; East 33rd Street from Juniper Avenue to Locust Avenue, Juniper
Avenue from East 34th Street to the existing railroad spur to the north, and Locust Avenue between East
34th Street and East 33rd Street. This project will improve business access for the new Tropical Foods
Facility and the adjacent industrial area.  

In response to ITB 23-17565-DH, 3 bids were received and opened on September 19, 2023. They were
as follows:
  

Contractor Bid Amount
West Texas Paving, Inc, Wolfforth, Texas $425,000
Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Inc., Lubbock, Texas                  $558,800
West Infrastructure Construction, Lubbock, Texas      $565,504

Staff recommends award to the lowest qualified bidder, West Texas Paving Inc., of Wolfforth, Texas, for
$425,000.

This contract is awarded by the unit price. The total amount of the award is estimated based on expected
quantities and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities. The price per unit
will not change. Time for completion is 45 calendar days with liquidated damages of $1,204.28 for each
consecutive calendar day.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17565 for $425,000, with West Texas Paving, Inc., is funded in Capital Improvement Project
92794, 2023 Street Maintenance program.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works



Attachments
Resolution - West Texas Paving 
Contract - West Texas Paving 
Budget Detail 
Project Summary 
CIP Detail 
Map 





BID SUBMITTAL FORM 
UNIT PRICE BID CONTRACT 

DATE: _______________________________________ 

 
PROJECT NUMBER: ITB 23-17565-DH, 33rd St & Juniper Ave Mill & Relay 6" Black Base & 2" Hot 
Mix 

Bid of ___________________________________________________________________ (hereinafter called 
Bidder) 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lubbock, Texas (hereinafter called Owner) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Bidder, in compliance with your Invitation to Bid for the construction of the referenced project, having 
carefully examined the plans, specifications, instructions to bidders, notice to bidders and all other related 
contract documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with all of the conditions surrounding 
the construction of the intended project including the availability of materials and labor, hereby intends to 
furnish all labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project in accordance with the plans, specifications 
and contract documents, within the time set forth therein and at the price stated. 

The bidder binds himself on acceptance of his bid to execute a contract and any required bonds, according to 
the accompanying forms, for performing and completing the said work within the time stated and for the prices 
stated. 

Bidder hereby agrees to commence the work on the above project on a date to be specified in a written "Notice 
to Proceed" of the Owner and to substantially complete the project within 40 consecutive calendar days with 
final completion of the project within 45 consecutive calendar days as stipulated in the specification and other 
contract documents. Bidder hereby further agrees to pay to Owner as liquidated damages in the sum of $1204.28 
for each consecutive calendar day after substantial completion and liquidated damages in the sum of $1240.28 
for each consecutive calendar day after final completion set forth herein above for completion of this project, 
all as more fully set forth in the General Conditions of the Agreement. 

Bidder understands and agrees that this bid submittal shall be completed and submitted in accordance with 
instruction number 29 of the General Instructions to Bidders. 

Bidder understands that the Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any formality in the 
bidding. 

The Bidder agrees that this bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of 60 calendar days after 
the scheduled closing time for receiving bids. 

The undersigned Bidder hereby declares that he has visited the site of the work and has carefully examined the 
plans, specifications and contract documents pertaining to the work covered by this bid, and he further agrees 
to commence work on or before the date specified in the written notice to proceed, and to substantially complete 
the work on which he has bid; as provided in the contract documents. 

Bidders are required, whether or not a payment or performance bond is required, to submit a cashier's check or 
certified check issued by a bank satisfactory to the City of Lubbock, or a bid bond from a reliable surety 
company, payable without recourse to the order of the City of Lubbock in an amount not less than five percent 
(5%) of the total amount of the bid submitted as a guarantee that bidder will enter into a contract, obtain all 

 

 

 

09-19-2023

West Texas Paving, Inc.



required insurance policies, and execute all necessary bonds (if required) within 10 business days after notice 
of award of the contract to him. 



City of Lubbock, TX
Public Works

ITB 23-17565-DH
33rd St Juniper Ave Mill Relay 6" Black Base 2" Hot Mix

# Items
QTY
+/-

U/M
Unit
Price

Extended
Cost

#1-1 Patching with Black Base, 6” depth (milling to a depth of 8” with   
Replacement of 6” Black Base and 2” Type C Hot Mix), including 
labor, equipment, removal and disposal of asphaltic surface,  
caliche base and sub-grade (if soft or unstable) to a depth of 8” 
and  replacing with 6” of Black Base and 2” Type C Hot Mix. ( 
All  Millings will go to the City of Lubbock.)

6200 SY $60.00 372,000.00     

#1-2 Adjusting existing manhole covers. All City of Lubbock covers   
Shall be adjusted by contractor to final grade including all labor,  
Equipment, and material, complete in place.

3 EA 1,000.00      3,000.00         

#1-3 Mobilization 1 EA 50,000.00    50,000.00       
$425,000.00 Total (Items 1-1 through 1-3):

West Texas Paving, Inc of Wolfforth, TX

Base Bid



Enclosed with this bid is a Cashier's Check or Certified Check for 
_________________________________ Dollars ($___________) or a Bid Bond in the sum of 
_________________________________ Dollars ($___________), which it is agreed shall be collected and 
retained by the Owner as liquidated damages in the event the bid is accepted by the Owner and the 
undersigned fails to execute the necessary contract documents, insurance certificates, and the required 
bond (if any) with the Owner within 10 business days after the date of receipt of written notification of 
acceptance of said bid; otherwise, said check or bond shall be returned to the undersigned upon 
demand. 

Bidder understands and agrees that the contract to be executed by Bidder shall be bound and include all contract 
documents made available to him for his inspection in accordance with the Notice to Bidders. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

(Seal if Bidder is a Corporation) 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________________ 
Secretary 
 
Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda: 
 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M/WBE 
Firm: 

 Woman  Black American  Native American 

  Hispanic 
American 

 Asian Pacific 
American 

 Other (Specify) 

Date:       
 
       
Authorized Signature 
______________________________________ 
(Printed or Typed Name) 

_____________________________________ 
Company 
______________________________________ 
Address 
_____________________, ________________ 
City,                     County 
_____________________, ________________ 
State                     Zip Code 
Telephone:  ______ - _____________________ 
Fax:    -      
 
FEDERAL TAX ID or SOCIAL SECURITY No. 
 
____________________________________________ 
 
EMAIL: _____________________________________ 

Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code 252.043(g), a 
competitive sealed bid that has been opened may not be 
changed for the purpose of correcting an error in the bid price.  
THEREFORE, ANY CORRECTIONS TO THE BID PRICE 
MUST BE MADE ON THE BID SUBMITTAL FORM PRIOR 
TO BID OPENING. 

5% GAB

09-19-2023

Darrell Jarnagin

West Texas Paving, Inc.

10104 Alcove Avenue

Wolfforth Lubbock

Texas 79382

833-2882
(806) 833-2884

75-2028682

marshal@wtxpaving.com



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 10, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92794
Capital Project Name: Street Maintenance Program 2023

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

Contract 17005, Asphalt patching  $1,447,333 
Contract 17006, Concrete Patching  1,954,701 
Contract 14517, Pavemant Restoration  773,322 
Contract 17054, 2023 Microsurface Project  4,889,807 
Misc Bid and ad cost  1,552 
Contract 17235, Rebuild Avenue P  1,013,499 
Contract 17505  82nd Street Paving repair  628,000 

Agenda Items, October 10, 2023
Contract 17565 East 33rd and Juniper Rebuild  425,000 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  11,133,214 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Street Maintenance  13,886,477 

Remaining Appropriation  13,886,477 

Total Appropriation  $25,019,691 



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
 

ITB 23-17565-DH  
33rd St & Juniper Ave Mill & Relay 6" Black Base & 2" Hot Mix 

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 03 & September 10, 2023. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from September 01 to September 19, 2023. 
0 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 
25 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
22 vendors were notified separately.  
3 vendors submitted bids. 

 



Project Scope

Various tools are used as preventative maintenance measures for our public roads, among 
them are Micro-surfacing, asphalt rejuvenation, asphalt milling, asphalt milling and overlay, 
full or partial depth pavement repair, total reconstruction, patching, crack sealing, concrete 
joint sealing, and brick street repair.

Project Justification  Project Highlights

The project is a preventive maintenance program 
to help preserve and maintain our street 
infrastructure. The maintenance program is an 
essential tool to help extend the useful life of the 
pavement. Used early in a pavement's life, 
preventative maintenance corrects small 
problems before they become big problems, 
saves money, and improves safety and ride 
smoothness. At some point, all roads require total 
rehabilitation as they near the end of their useful 
life. Total rehabilitation is completed when funding 
is available.

Council Priorities Addressed:

Project Dates Project History

 $12,000,000 was appropriated in the FY 2022-23 
Budget, Ord. No. 2022-O0136, October 1, 2022.
$19,691 was appropriated in the FY 2022-23 
Budget, BCR# 2023-16, March 23, 2023.

Project Location

Project Appropriations

P Works 92794

2022 - 23 Budget CIP 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Construction $12,019,691 $13,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $12,019,691 $13,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

PW 92794

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

General Fund Cash $12,019,691 $13,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $12,019,691 $13,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92794CIP 92794 Street Maintenance 2023 Street Maintenance 2023  
Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Mike Gilliland - Paved StreetsProject Manager: Mike Gilliland - Paved Streets



Operating Budget Impacts

Not Provided

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


1

1

B

9

UNSUBDIVIDED

UNSUBDIVIDED

7A

1

TR A

A

7C

2

7

TR B

8

1

6

7B

TR C

4

C

5

11 2 8 10 22 5 64 13 7 9

85 84 83

9695

3

37

11 2 3

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Street Maintenance Rebuild - 33rd St,
Juniper Ave, Locust Ave.

0 500 1,000250
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2022

34TH ST

H
IC

K
O

RY
 A

V
E

A
V

E 
A

G
LO

BE
 A

V
E

Clutte
r S

econd

JU
N

IP
ER

 A
V

E

33RD ST

34TH ST

K
IN

G
 A

V
E

LO
C

U
ST

 A
V

E

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A
 A

V
E SOUTHEAST DR

McLaughlin

Carroll's

Martin
 - O

liver

Wheelock's S
econd

LO
C

U
ST

 A
V

E

LO
C

U
ST

 A
V

E

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A
 A

V
E

M
.L

.K
 B

LV
D

M
.L

.K
 B

LV
D

A
V

E 
A

IV
O

RY
 A

V
E

H
IC

K
O

RY
 A

V
E

Railroad



 AI# 11998 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 17480, with Ennis-Flint, Inc., for traffic paint to stripe City thoroughfares and collector
streets.

Item Summary
This service contract is for traffic paint material necessary to stripe City thoroughfare and collector
streets.  

In response to ITB 23-17480-DH, responses were received from 5 companies. The company names,
locations, and bids are as follows:
  

Company Amount
Ennis-Flint, Inc., Greensboro, North Carolina $52,300.00
Dalf Eti Inc., Houston, Texas $67,743.41
Centerline, Grand Prairie, Texas $69,525,00
One Nation Distribution, Wew Wilmington, Pennsylvania $70,110,00
Verde Global Corporation, Katy, Texas $100,505,00

Traffic Management Staff recommends the contract be awarded to the lowest bidder, Ennis-Flint, Inc.
for $52,300.

The contract will be for a term of one year, with the option of 2, one-year extensions, with the date of
the term beginning upon formal approval. This contract will renew automatically for the additional
terms, unless either party gives a 90-day written notice to terminate the contract.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17460 for $52,300.00, is funded in the FY 2023-24 Operating Budget for Pavement Marking
Maintenance.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Project Summary 







Contract 17480 
City of Lubbock 

Contract for 
ITB 23-17480-DH 

Paint to Stripe City 
Thoroughfare and Collector 

Streets 
THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of   , 2023, by and between the 
City of Lubbock ("City"), and Ennis-Flint, Inc. , ("Contractor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Paint to Stripe 
City Thoroughfare and Collector Streets and bids were received and duly opened as required by 
law; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering 
the purchase and delivery of the said Paint to Stripe City Thoroughfare and Collector Streets

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 
financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Paint to Stripe City
Thoroughfare and Collector Streets, and more specifically referred to as Items 1-1 through
1-3 on the bid submitted by the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto.

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done
the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the
attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein.

3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of two (2), one year extensions,
said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew automatically for
the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to terminate the Contract.

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by
pricing established by this bid.  Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be
determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of
compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and
resulting contract.

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract
including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance
is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or
contract may be terminated for non-compliance.

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate
may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI)
or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate.



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor,
etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide
such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be
further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate
at the end of the current contract period.

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the
Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the
ongoing adjustment.  If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically
revert to the initial, awarded rate.

7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date,
(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written
notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest
and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city.

8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of
City with regard to performance of the Services.  Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold
itself out as, an agent or representative of City.  In no event shall Contractor be authorized to
enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City.

9. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or
interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other.

10. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or
otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of
competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to
exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are
cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict
between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall
control.

11. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit
representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves
the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City
under this Contract.  In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments
by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30
days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts
owing the City from any payments due Contractor.

12. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual
appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City
Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City
will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the
then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods
or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any time funds
are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the
Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the
City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination.



13. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without
written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  Should consent be
given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the
Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements.

14. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully
understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive
material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City
disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by
the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and
conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail.
The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any
prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect.

15. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist
organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas
Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services
to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign
terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas
Government Code.

16. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this
contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the
contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that
subchapter.

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor
agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the
records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the
contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to
the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental
body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental
body all contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the
entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the
records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body.

17. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a
contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time
employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from
public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract
with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the
company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the
contract.

18. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the
duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against
a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002
of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a
value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code



Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 
a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 
contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 
contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 
Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 
value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 
Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 
during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 
governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 
entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 
debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

19. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's
business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without
prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law.

20. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its elected officials,
officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of
any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any
person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to
the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its
agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions
under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity
obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement.

21. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 23-
17480-DH, Specifications, and the Bid Form.

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK----- 





City of Lubbock, TX 
ITB 23-17480-DH 

Paint to Stripe City Thoroughfare and Collector Streets       

      Specifications 

1. Scope – The City of Lubbock is seeking bids for traffic marking paint for city streets.

2. General Requirements –

a. Paint shall meet Federal Specification TT‐P‐1952F Type II, Fast Dry, 100% acrylic water‐

borne, lead free traffic marking paint.

b. Paint is for city street striping and must be suitable for use on concrete and asphalt

surfaces.

c. White and Yellow paint shall be shipped in 250 gallon containers (totes). Totes will be

shipped on pallets, shrink wrapped, and on a flatbed truck, for side unloading.

d. Black paint shall be shipped in 5 gallon sealed containers.

e. Color match:

i. Yellow paint shall be an appropriate color match to Federal Standard 595 color

number 33538.

ii. White paint shall be an appropriate color match to Federal Standard 595 color

number 37925

iii. Black paint shall be an appropriate color match to Federal Standard 595 color

number 37038.

f. All paint shall be delivered within fourteen days of receipt of purchase order. Supplier

must certify specifications on outside of each container. MSDS sheets must come with

each shipment.

3. Requested Quantities

a. Yellow Paint – 2,200 gallons

b. White Paint – 2,200 gallons

c. Black Paint – 100 gallons



City of Lubbock, TX 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

Vendor Acknowledgement Form 

In compliance with the Invitation to Bid, the undersigned Bidder having examined the Invitation to Bid, 

instructions to bidders, General Conditions of the Agreement, Specifications, and being familiar with the 

conditions to be met, hereby submits the following bid for furnishing the material, equipment, labor and 

everything necessary for providing the items listed and agrees to deliver said items at the locations and for the 

prices set forth on the bid form and/or the bid table associated with this bid.  

A bid will be subject to being considered irregular and may be rejected if it shows omissions, alterations of 

form, conditional alternate bids, additions or alternates in lieu of  the items specified, if the unit prices are 

obviously unbalanced (either in excess of or below reasonably expected values), or irregularities of any kind. 

The Invitation to Bid is by reference incorporated in this contract.  

Where applicable, prices are quoted as: F.O.B. Destination, Freight Pre-Paid and Allowed 

Where applicable, delivery days are:  Days After Receipt of Order (ARO) 

Unless otherwise specified herein, the City may award the bid either item-by–item or on an all-or-

none basis for any item or group of items shown on the bid. 

The City of Lubbock is seeking a contract for with one or more contractors. In order to assure adequate 

coverage, the City may make multiple awards, selecting multiple vendors to provide the products 

desired, if multiple awards are in the best interest of the City. A decision to make a multiple award of 

this Bid, however, is an option reserved by the City, based on the needs of the City. 

PAYMENT TERMS AND DISCOUNTS - Bidder offers a prompt payment discount of %, net 

 calendar days. Discounts will not be considered in determining low bid.  Unless otherwise indicated 

on the Bid Form, payment terms will be NET THIRTY DAYS. The City will pay the successful bidder within 

thirty days after the receipt of a correct invoice or after the date of acceptance, whichever event occurs later.  

Discounts for prompt payment requiring payment by the City within a stipulated number of days will be 

interpreted as applying within the stipulated number of calendar days after the date of receipt by the City of a 

correct invoice or after the date of acceptance that meets contract requirements, whichever event occurs later.  

Discounts for payment in less than ten days will not be considered. 

MOST FAVORED PRICING: The Bidder certifies that the price quoted is not in excess of the lowest price 

charged anyone else, including its most favored customer, for like quality and quantity of the 

products/services; does not include an element of profit on the sale in excess of that normally obtained by the 

Bidder on the sale of products/services of like quality and quantity; and does not include any provision for 

discounts to selling agents. If at any time during the contract period, the supplier should sell or offer for sale 

to any other customer, an equal or less quantity of similar contract products of like or better quality, at a lower 

net price(s) than provided herein, supplier agrees to notify the City and sell same product(s) at the lower 

price(s) on all deliveries made during the period in which such lower price(s) is effective. 

INTERLOCAL PURCHASING (optional): The City desires to make available to other local governmental 

entities of the State of Texas, by mutual agreement with the successful bidder, and properly authorized 

interlocal purchasing agreements as provided for by the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Chapter 791, Government 

Code), the right to purchase the same services, at the prices quoted, for the period of this contract.  Each bidder 

shall indicate on the Bid Form in the space provided below if he/she will honor Political Subdivision orders 

in addition to orders from the City of Lubbock. Should these other governmental entities decide to participate 

in this contract, would you (the bidder) agree that all terms, conditions, specifications, and pricing would 

apply? 

N/A



City of Lubbock
ITB 23-17480-DH

Paint to Stripe City Thoroughfare 
and Collector Streets 

Bid Form

Location
Total 

#

Item Description

Quantity
Required 

(+/-) UOM
Unit
Price

Total
Cost

1
#1-1 White Traffic Paint 2200 GAL $11.75 $25,850.00
#1-2 Yellow Traffic Paint 2200 GAL $11.50 $25,300.00
#1-3 Black Traffic Paint 100 GAL $11.50 $1,150.00

Ennis-Flint, Inc.

$52,300.00
Greenboro, NC



Other governmental entities that might have interests in this contract are Frenship Independent School 

District, Lubbock Housing Authority, Lubbock County, Lubbock County Hospital District, Lubbock 

Independent School District, South Plains Association of Governments, City of Texarkana, Texas Tech 

University, West Texas Municipal Power Agency, Lynn County, and City of Wolfforth. 

YES NO 

 If you (the bidder) checked YES, the following will apply:

 Governmental entities utilizing Interlocal Agreements for Cooperative Purchasing with the City of

Lubbock will be eligible, but not obligated, to purchase materials/services under the contract(s)

awarded as a result of this solicitation. All purchases by governmental entities other than the City of

Lubbock will be billed directly to that governmental entity and paid by that governmental entity. City

of Lubbock will not be responsible for another governmental entity’s debts. Each governmental entity

will order their own materials/service as needed.

ADDENDA 

Bidder acknowledges receipt of addenda issued in regard to this solicitation: 

Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

I, the undersigned Bidder certify that the insurance requirements contained in this bid document have been 

reviewed by me and my Insurance Agent/Broker. If I am awarded this contract by the City of Lubbock, I will 

be able to, within ten (10) business days after being notified of such award by the City of Lubbock, furnish a 

valid insurance certificate to the City meeting all of the requirements defined in this bid. 

If the time requirement specified above is not met, the City has the right to reject this proposal and award the 

contract to another contractor. If you have any questions concerning these requirements, please contact the 

Director of Purchasing & Contract Management for the City of Lubbock at (806) 775-2572. 

 SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

Federal Law (A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110) prohibits non-Federal entities from contracting 

with or making sub-awards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose 

principals are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include procurement contracts for goods or 

services equal to or in excess of $25,000 and all non-procurement transactions (e.g., sub-awards to sub-

recipients).  

Contractors receiving individual awards of $25,000 or more and all sub-recipients must certify that their 

organization and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency.  

Before an award of $25,000 or more can be made to your firm, you must certify that your organization and 

its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency.  

I, the undersigned agent for the firm named below, certify that neither this firm nor its principals are suspended 

or debarred by a Federal agency. 

x

N/A



CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

In compliance with this solicitation, the undersigned bidder, having examined the bid documents, 
instructions to bidders, documents associated with the invitation to bid, and being familiar with the 

conditions to be met has reviewed the above information regarding: 

• Insurance Requirements
• Suspension and Debarment Certification

• Texas Government Code Section 2252.152

• Texas Government Code Section 2271.002

• Texas Government Code 2274

SUBMISSION INFORMATION 

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 
portion may result in bid rejection. 

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED BY ______ E_n_n_is_-_F_lin_t..,_, _ln_c _. ____________ a 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of North Carolina , or a partnership consisting of 

________________ or individual trading as ____________ of 

the City of ___________ _ 
Tax ID No.: 75-2657523 

Address: 4161 Piedmont Parkway, Suite 370 

City: Greensboro State: __ N_C ___ Zip:. __ 2_7_4_1_0 __

M/WBE Firm: 1------1---'W-'o.:..:.m:.:.::a:.:.::n ____ -1-_-+-=B:...:cl a::..:c.:..:.k.:..:A:.:..:.m.:..:.ec..:.ric.:..:a:.:.::n ____ --+----+.-:N_:.a:..::ti-'-ve:....:A:...:.m=er.::..::ic_:.an:..::..._� 
His an ic A m eric an Asi an P acific Americ an Other (Specify) 

Please complete the information below. 

By�1,tJ.� 
Authorized Representative - must sign by hand 

Officer Name and Title: Laura Greer, Corporate Secretary

Business Telephone Number (800) 331-8118 

E-mail Address: d l-ts-contracts@ppg.com

Date: __ ? 1_3 _1 _12_0_2 _3 __ _

FAX: (336) 218-67 46 



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
 

ITB 23-17480-DH  
Paint to Stripe City 

Thoroughfare and Collector 
Streets 

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on July 16 & July 23, 2023. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from July 14 to August 01, 2023. 
2 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 
23 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
4 vendors were notified separately.  
5 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 12010 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 20. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Solid Waste: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 17498, with
Box Gang Manufacturing LLC, for the purchase/services of dumpsters for residential collection service.

Item Summary
Each year the Solid Waste Department purchases dumpsters of varying sizes to replace damaged
dumpsters or set dumpsters in areas of new development.

In response to ITB-23-17498-YB, responses were received and opened on August 30, 2023, from the
following 2 vendors.
  

 Box Gang Manufacturing
LLC Roll-Offs USA

Item Item
Description Quantity Unit

Price Total Cost Delivery
Days

Unit
Price Total Cost Delivery

Days

1
2 CY Side

Load
Container

20 $612 $12,240. 90 $615 $12,300 30 - 60

2
3 CY Side

Load
Container

250 $672 $168,000 90 $715 $178,750 30 - 60

3
4 CY Side

Load
Container

25 $766 $19,150 90 $815 $20,375 30 - 60

 
The City Staff recommends the award to the lowest qualified bidder, Box Gang Manufacturing LLC.

The contract will be for a term of one year, with the option of 4, one-year extensions, said date of term
beginning upon formal approval. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the
time period to be covered by pricing established by this bid.  Actual usage may be more or less. Order
quantities will be determined by actual need.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17498 for $199,390, is funded in the Operating Budget of Residential Waste Collection.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works



Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Project Summary 





Contract 17498 
City of Lubbock 

Contract for 
ITB 23-17498-YB 

Dumpsters and Roll-Off Containers 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of   , 2023, by and between the 

City of Lubbock ("City"), and   Box Gang Manufacturing, LLC    , ("Contractor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Dumpsters and Roll-Off 
Containers and bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Dumpsters and Roll-Off Containers 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 

financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached 
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Dumpsters and Roll-Off 
Containers, and more specifically referred to as Items 0-1 through 0-3 on the bid submitted by 
the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto.

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done 
the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the 
attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein.

3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one (1) year 
extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew 
automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to 
terminate the Contract.

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by 
pricing established by this bid.  Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be 
determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 
compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting 
contract.

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract 
including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance 
is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or 
contract may be terminated for non-compliance.

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 
may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, 

etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide 

such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be 

further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate 

at the end of the current contract period. 

 

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the 

Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the 

ongoing adjustment.  If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically 

revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

 

7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, 

(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written 

notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest 

and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of 

City with regard to performance of the Services.  Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold 

itself out as, an agent or representative of City.  In no event shall Contractor be authorized to 

enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City. 

9. Insurance Requirements 

SECTION A.  Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon.  THE CITY SHALL HAVE 
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
SECTION B.  The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 
SECTION C.  Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration 
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by 
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 
amount(s): 
 
Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence /$2M aggregate (can be combined 

with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the most 

important of all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the Contractor has broad 

liability coverage for contractual activities and for completed operations. Commercial General Liability 

to include Products - Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising injury, Contractual Liability, Fire 

Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one person).  

 

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence is needed. 

 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an 

independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' Compensation 

coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 

license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 



 
 
* The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional      
insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional 
liabilities and workers' comp. 
 
* Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 
 
* To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 
 
* Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. 
 
* Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 
 
* Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 
 

IMPORTANT:  POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements 
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy 
terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or 
regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies).  Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in 
policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor.  

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the 
following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 

insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 

and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to 

the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 

together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 

coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices 
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

    Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
    City of Lubbock 
    1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor  
    Lubbock, Texas  79401 

SECTION D.  Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents 



as set forth in the contract documents.  Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by 
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

10. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or 

interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other. 

11. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to 

exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 

cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 

between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 

control. 

12. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 

the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 

under this Contract.  In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments 

by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 

days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts 

owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

13. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual 

appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City 

Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City 

will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the 

then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods 

or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any time funds 

are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the 

Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the 

City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

14. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  Should consent be 

given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the 

Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 

15. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive 

material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City 

disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by 

the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail. 

The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any 

prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

16. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 

organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas 

Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services 

to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign 



terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas 

Government Code. 

17. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 

contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 

contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 

subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 

agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the 

records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the 

contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental 

body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental 

body all contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the 

entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the 

records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

18. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a 

contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from 

public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract 

with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the 

company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the 

contract. 

 

19. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the 

duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 

of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 

contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 

Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 

during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 

governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 

debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

 

20. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without 

prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 



 

 

21. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its elected officials, 

officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of 

any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any 

person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to 

the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 

agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions 

under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity 

obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement. 
 

22. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 23-

17498-YB, Specifications, and the Bid Form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK----- 

  





City of Lubbock 

ITB 23-17498-YB 

Dumpsters and Roll-Off Containers 

 

Specifications 

 

1. GENERAL 

It is the intent of the City of Lubbock, to secure side loader refuse containers, sizes 2 cubic yard, 3 

cubic yard and 4 cubic yard.  Side loader refuse containers will be constructed in either steel OR 

durable rotationally molded high density polyethylene (HDPE) dumpsters, in accordance with the 

attached plans and these specifications for use with collection equipment now in use by the City.  The 

containers shall be delivered to the City of Lubbock painted and ready for use according to the 

following: 
  

A minimum of 50% of the total quantity must be delivered within 90 days of award of the 
contract and the remainder must be delivered within 150 days of award of the contract. 

Each container must be serialized with the last two numbers of the year of manufacture, the cubic 
yard size of the container and the sequential number of the container.  Serialized numbering will 
begin with serial number YY-CY-200 (year-cy size-200).  The serial number 3” (H) x 1-3/4” (W) 
numbers shall be stenciled on the front and inverted under right lift arm (facing container), with 
Glossy Black Spray Lacquer.   

All materials will be furnished by vendor. 

 

All containers must not exceed cubic yard dimensions for size ordered. 

   

All containers shall be guaranteed for twelve (12) months after delivery against defective 

workmanship and materials. 

 

Prices bid shall include delivery to 1631 84th Street, Lubbock, Texas 79423 at scheduled times and 

dates specified by the Solid Waste Services department personnel.  Unloading at point of delivery 

will be done by the City of Lubbock personnel. 

 

The contractor shall protect and save harmless the owner from all and every demand for damages, 

royalties or fees on any patented invention used by the contractor in connection with the work done 

or materials furnished under this contract; provided, however, that if any patented materials, 

machinery, appliance or invention is clearly specified in this contract, then, and in the event, the cost 

of procuring the rights of use and legal release or indemnity determined and directed to be included 

in the bid price at the time the proposal is submitted. 

 

2.  CONTAINERS 
 

SLANT TOP, SIDE LOADING STEEL CONTAINERS: 

 

All sheet metal shall be hot rolled commercial quality steel. 

 

Container front, rear and sides 12 gauge welded continuously on the interior.  Container lids - 14 

gauge.  If the container bottom is plastic it shall be high molecular weight polyethylene or 100% 

recycled rubber/plastic alloy.  The City of Lubbock will accept bottoms produced by Technology 

Plastics, Inc., Impact Environmental Group, or approved equal.  

 



Top perimeter of container to be reinforced by 12 gauge formed channels. 

 

Bottom of the container will be reinforced with two C3 X 4.1 channels located 11” from each side 

and installed parallel from front to back.   See Attachment E 

 

Lift arm shall be a C4 x 5.4 channel on each side, dimensions shown, welded continuously on top 

and skip welded on bottom.  See Attachment D  The lift pin shall be extended through and flushed 

with the back of the channel and also through the 2 gauge reinforcing plate.  The pin shall be 1 ½” 

diameter x 3 ½” long round steer bar and welded all-around as indicated. 

 

Buff plate will be located in front of the lift arm and will be 2” x 3” x 1/4” x 20” long angle iron.  The 

angle will wrap around the corner from the front of the container. 

 
The front, rear and sides of all containers shall be constructed of smooth hot-rolled steel plate and 
sheets welded on all seams.  Welds shall be continuous except where stated to the contrary and shall 
form a secure bond between metals.  Puddling and splattering are unacceptable. 

SEE ATTACHMENT F 

ROLL-OFF CONTAINERS: 

The following are minimum specifications for the heavy-duty rectangular roll-off containers: 

 

Structure: Sides, Front, and door -7 gauge; Floor ¼ inch plate 

45 degree 2 inch taper where side is continuously welded to floor. 

Top Rail: One (1) piece structural tubing 4”x4”x1/4” with inside top corners 

double plated. 

Bottom Rail: Outside rail understructure 3” structural channel. 

Cross members: 3” structural channel floor supports on 16” centers each cross 

member must be gusseted and welded to long sills. 

Long Sills: 6”x2”x1/4” Structural tube with tapered steel bull nose. 

Bulkhead: 10 gauge plate fully welded with and reinforced with 9” x 3” x 10 

gauge channel. 

Doghouse: 10 gauge plate full width. 

Vertical Ribs: 5” x 3” x 10 gauge channel on 24” centers fully welded top and 

bottom – side support. 

Rear Post: 9” x 3” x10 gauge channel fully welded. 

Knee Brace: Heavy steel plate ¼” welded in between rear post and last vertical 

rib at least 3’. 

Door Frame: 5” x 3” x 10 gauge formed channel with 3 vertical and 2 horizontal 

reinforcement (9 panel). 

Door hinge: Hinge plate 3/4” with 1 ½” removable and greaseable pins. 

Door locks: Three (3) latch latching device with three (3) positions; unlock, 

automatic, lock, on driver side. 

Door guide: ½” plate V style door guides to relieve down pressure on latches. 

Wheels: Rear 9” Diameter 12” long with 1” 5/16” greaseable axles with 

grease fittings; Front skid plates each side. 

Rollers: Rail nose rollers to be 4” Diameter 8” long at front, with greaseable 

axles. 

Push plate: ½” plate 

Hook- Plate ¾” Plate 12”x36”,Fully welded sill to sill, with 1-1/4” High-Tensile 

Cable Hook, Inserted thru locked in and fully welded. 

Hook: High-Tensile 1 ¼” plate, hook on front end for front-end pick up. 



Welds: Walls continuously welded to floor on inside and skip welded on 

outside. All other seams to be continuously welded on inside and 

skip welded on outside. 

Paint finish: Prime all metal with industrial grade red oxide primer compatible 

with finish coat. 

Finish coating to be alkyd enamel, Sherwin Williams Walnut 

Brown, #SW4009, or approved equal on all metal. 

Accessories: Container will have welded on tarp hooks provided on all vertical 

supports. 

Capacity: Thirty (30) cubic yards. 

SEE ATTACHMENT G 

 

3. CONTAINER BOTTOM 
 

STEEL CONTAINERS: 

 

Container bottom shall be made of 3/16” high molecular weight polyethylene or 100% recycled 

rubber/plastic alloy, seamless extending a minimum of ten inches up the inside wall of the container.  

The City of Lubbock will accept bottoms produced by TPI Plastics, Bryan, TX, or approved 

equal.  

 

Dimensions of plastic bottoms from Bryan Container Company are as follows: 

  

 3 cubic yard = 47 ½ inches 

  

Specifications for installing plastic bottoms:  After construction of metal box with cross members 

on the bottom, insert plastic bottom from top.  To secure plastic bottom to metal container either pop 

rivet or weld Z bars to side of container. 

 

SEE ATTACHMENT A 

 

4. STEEL TUBULAR LID-STOPPER 
 

STEEL CONTAINERS 

 

Tubular lid-stopper shall be constructed of ¾ “ round steel tubing, 16” long with two 4” legs.  Legs 

shall be welded to the steel portion of the container.   

 

SEE EXAMPLE PICTURED IN ATTACHMENT B 

 

LIDS 

 

STEEL CONTAINERS 

 

Lids shall be made in three (3) parts, with the rear lid to be constructed of 16 gauge hot-rolled steel 

for Side Loading containers and hinged with 3/4” pipe.  Front lids shall be plastic, manufactured 

independent of each other and hinged to rear lid with 1/2” solid steel rod. 

 

Rear lid shall be 15” X 60” constructed of 16 gauge hot-rolled steel for Side Loading containers.  

Color shall be sandalwood brown or similar color to match existing containers.   

 



Chain attachment shall be connected to the rear metal lid portion and to the side of the dumpster.   

 

SEE ATTACHMENT E   
 

Front lids, 30” long X 29” wide shall be .250” thick and shall weigh seven (7) pounds and be 

composed of 100% recycled materials.  Front edge of lid shall have two (2) finger grips for added 

stiffening and convenience in opening the lid.   

  

Front lid outside ears shall be slightly thicker to deter splitting of plastic lid.  Front lid color shall be 

black, with the City of Lubbock logo and the letters, “Lubbock, Texas” embossed (molded) on each 

small lid.   

 

Front lids must be designed with extra high ribs to provide structural strength, durability, and prevent 

sagging in hot weather.  Front lid color and design must match the current lid used by the City of 

Lubbock. 

 

Front lids must be guaranteed not to chalk, split or crack due to ultraviolet exposure for three (3) 

years from date of delivery.   

 

 When directed by Solid Waste Services, front lids may be requested as:  16 gauge hot-rolled 

 

5. CLEANING 
 

STEEL CONTAINERS 

 

All welds shall be cleaned to bright metals and shall be free of all foreign material, slag, rust, dirt, oil 

or other material, which will show unevenness after painting.  Failure to do so shall be cause for 

rejection until deficiency is correct. 

 

6. PAINTING 
 

STEEL CONTAINERS: 

 

Containers shall be painted inside and outside with a two (2) coat system consisting of a corrosion 

inhibitive fast drying primer followed by a high gloss enamel finish coat.  Primer coat shall be a fast 

dry zinc chromate.  The finish coat shall be a high gloss, quick drying enamel.  Finish color shall be 

sandalwood brown or similar color, selected by the owner, to match existing containers.  Sample 

color will be furnished.  Paint must be approved by the owner before any containers are shipped. 

 

The above paint shall be applied on the interior and exterior of the container.  Paint shall be clean and 

free from foreign material and shall be applied evenly without runs or sags. 

 

Paint shall be guaranteed for one year against cracking, checking or loss of adhesion and appreciable 

color change or chalking of the finish coat or paint. 

 

 APPLICATION 

 
1. Mix and apply coating according to manufacturer’s printed instructions.  

 
2. Apply coatings to obtain a thickness of 4 dry mils. 

 



3. Allow coating to cure before transporting to avoid damage. 
 

4. Use wet film gauge during application to assure proper film thickness is applied. 
 
5. Apply additional costs as needed to obtain specified dry film thickness. 

 

INSPECTION 

 
1. Inspect all surfaces for runs, sags and holidays.  Repair as necessary to obtain an acceptable finish. 
 
2. City personnel will check dry film thickness to verify that it conforms to the mil thickness of the 

coating systems specified herein.  INSUFFICIENT mil thickness will require recoating at the 
expense of the Contractor.  Dry film thickness readings shall be taken at random locations at the 
rate of about five readings per hundred square feet of surface with at least one reading per surface.  
The average of all readings for a given area or surface shall equal or exceed the dry film thickness 
specified and no individual readings shall be more than 20 percent below the specified thickness.  
Any areas, that are found to be below standard, shall be marked and recoated, at the Contractor’s 
expense, to obtain the proper film thickness.  The City reserves the right to monitor the 
construction of the containers, which includes visiting the site of the Contractor and verifying that 
all specifications are being complied with. 

 
3. Any characteristics of the film that the City personnel deems unacceptable, either during 

construction or before acceptance, shall be remedied by the Contractor, at the Contractor’s 
expense. 

 

COATING SYSTEMS 

 

Prime Coat: Vendor can select from attached list any primer that has VOC’s of 450 or less. 

 

 Finish Coat: High gloss, quick drying enamel @ 2 dry mils 

Finish coat color is sandalwood brown or similar color to match existing 

containers 

 

SEE ATTACHMENT C 

 

7. SPECIFICATIONS VARIATIONS 
 

Variations from these specifications and/or attached drawing WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT A 
 

 
 

  

TPI Bottom, Installed 

Dura-Bottom, Installed and Loose 



 

16” (3/4” round steel tubing) 

 

ATTACHMENT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

4” (¾ round steel tubing) 

  

 

Pipe dimensions = 3/4 “ round 
steel tubing  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT D 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT F 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT F, cont. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

ATTACHMENT F, cont. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT F, cont. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT G 



City of Lubbock, TX 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

Vendor Acknowledgement Form 

 

In compliance with the Invitation to Bid, the undersigned Bidder having examined the Invitation to Bid, 

instructions to bidders, General Conditions of the Agreement, Specifications, and being familiar with the 

conditions to be met, hereby submits the following bid for furnishing the material, equipment, labor and 

everything necessary for providing the items listed and agrees to deliver said items at the locations and for the 

prices set forth on the bid form and/or the bid table associated with this bid.  

 

A bid will be subject to being considered irregular and may be rejected if it shows omissions, alterations of 

form, conditional alternate bids, additions or alternates in lieu of  the items specified, if the unit prices are 

obviously unbalanced (either in excess of or below reasonably expected values), or irregularities of any kind. 

The Invitation to Bid is by reference incorporated in this contract.  

 

Where applicable, prices are quoted as: F.O.B. Destination, Freight Pre-Paid and Allowed  

Where applicable, delivery days are:  Days After Receipt of Order (ARO) 

Unless otherwise specified herein, the City may award the bid either item-by–item or on an all-or-

none basis for any item or group of items shown on the bid. 

 

The City of Lubbock is seeking a contract for with one or more contractors. In order to assure adequate 

coverage, the City may make multiple awards, selecting multiple vendors to provide the products 

desired, if multiple awards are in the best interest of the City. A decision to make a multiple award of 

this Bid, however, is an option reserved by the City, based on the needs of the City. 
 

PAYMENT TERMS AND DISCOUNTS - Bidder offers a prompt payment discount of   %, net  

  calendar days. Discounts will not be considered in determining low bid.  Unless otherwise indicated 

on the Bid Form, payment terms will be NET THIRTY DAYS. The City will pay the successful bidder within 

thirty days after the receipt of a correct invoice or after the date of acceptance, whichever event occurs later.  

Discounts for prompt payment requiring payment by the City within a stipulated number of days will be 

interpreted as applying within the stipulated number of calendar days after the date of receipt by the City of a 

correct invoice or after the date of acceptance that meets contract requirements, whichever event occurs later.  

Discounts for payment in less than ten days will not be considered. 

MOST FAVORED PRICING: The Bidder certifies that the price quoted is not in excess of the lowest price 

charged anyone else, including its most favored customer, for like quality and quantity of the 

products/services; does not include an element of profit on the sale in excess of that normally obtained by the 

Bidder on the sale of products/services of like quality and quantity; and does not include any provision for 

discounts to selling agents. If at any time during the contract period, the supplier should sell or offer for sale 

to any other customer, an equal or less quantity of similar contract products of like or better quality, at a lower 

net price(s) than provided herein, supplier agrees to notify the City and sell same product(s) at the lower 

price(s) on all deliveries made during the period in which such lower price(s) is effective. 

INTERLOCAL PURCHASING (optional): The City desires to make available to other local governmental 

entities of the State of Texas, by mutual agreement with the successful bidder, and properly authorized 

interlocal purchasing agreements as provided for by the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Chapter 791, Government 

Code), the right to purchase the same services, at the prices quoted, for the period of this contract.  Each bidder 

shall indicate on the Bid Form in the space provided below if he/she will honor Political Subdivision orders 

in addition to orders from the City of Lubbock. Should these other governmental entities decide to participate 

in this contract, would you (the bidder) agree that all terms, conditions, specifications, and pricing would 

apply? 

 

 

 

0
30



City of Lubbock

ITB 23-17498-YB

Dumpsters and Roll-Off Containers

Bid Form

Location

Total Cost

# Item Description

Quantity

Required   

(+/-) UOM

Unit

Price

Total

Cost

Delivery 

Days

ARO

#0-1 2 Cubic Yard Side-Load Refuse 

Containers Constructed in Steel - Per 

Specifications 20 EA $612.00 $12,240.00 90

#0-2 3 Cubic Yard Side-Load Refuse 

Containers Constructed in Steel - Per 

Specifications 250 EA $672.00 $168,000.00 90

#0-3 4 Cubic Yard Side-Load Refuse 

Containers Constructed in Steel - Per 

Specifications 25 EA $766.00 $19,150.00 90

Box Gang Manufacturing LLC

Houston, TX

$199,390.00



Other governmental entities that might have interests in this contract are Frenship Independent School 

District, Lubbock Housing Authority, Lubbock County, Lubbock County Hospital District, Lubbock 

Independent School District, South Plains Association of Governments, City of Texarkana, Texas Tech 

University, West Texas Municipal Power Agency, Lynn County, and City of Wolfforth. 

YES NO 

 If you (the bidder) checked YES, the following will apply:

 Governmental entities utilizing Interlocal Agreements for Cooperative Purchasing with the City of

Lubbock will be eligible, but not obligated, to purchase materials/services under the contract(s)

awarded as a result of this solicitation. All purchases by governmental entities other than the City of

Lubbock will be billed directly to that governmental entity and paid by that governmental entity. City

of Lubbock will not be responsible for another governmental entity’s debts. Each governmental entity

will order their own materials/service as needed.

ADDENDA 

Bidder acknowledges receipt of addenda issued in regard to this solicitation: 

Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 
Addenda No. _______ Date_________ 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

I, the undersigned Bidder certify that the insurance requirements contained in this bid document have been 

reviewed by me and my Insurance Agent/Broker. If I am awarded this contract by the City of Lubbock, I will 

be able to, within ten (10) business days after being notified of such award by the City of Lubbock, furnish a 

valid insurance certificate to the City meeting all of the requirements defined in this bid. 

If the time requirement specified above is not met, the City has the right to reject this proposal and award the 

contract to another contractor. If you have any questions concerning these requirements, please contact the 

Director of Purchasing & Contract Management for the City of Lubbock at (806) 775-2572. 

 SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

Federal Law (A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110) prohibits non-Federal entities from contracting 

with or making sub-awards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose 

principals are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include procurement contracts for goods or 

services equal to or in excess of $25,000 and all non-procurement transactions (e.g., sub-awards to sub-

recipients).  

Contractors receiving individual awards of $25,000 or more and all sub-recipients must certify that their 

organization and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency.  

Before an award of $25,000 or more can be made to your firm, you must certify that your organization and 

its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency.  

I, the undersigned agent for the firm named below, certify that neither this firm nor its principals are suspended 

or debarred by a Federal agency. 

x



CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

In compliance with this solicitation, the undersigned bidder, having examined the bid documents, 

instructions to bidders, documents associated with the invitation to bid, and being familiar with the 

conditions to be met has reviewed the above information regarding: 

• Insurance Requirements

• Suspension and Debarment Certification

• Texas Government Code Section 2252.152

• Texas Government Code Section 2271.002

• Texas Government Code 2274 

SUBMISSION INFORMATION 

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 

portion may result in bid rejection. 

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED BY             a 

corporation organized under the laws of the State of ____________________, or a partnership consisting of 

or individual trading as ____________________________of 

the City of  

Tax ID No.: ______________________ 

Address: 

City:   State:  Zip: 

M/WBE Firm: Woman Black American Native American 

Hispanic American Asian Pacific American Other (Specify) 

Please complete the information below. 

By  Date: 

Authorized Representative - must sign by hand 

Officer Name and Title: 

Business Telephone Number    FAX: 

E-mail Address:

 Box Gang Manufacturing LLC

Texas

Houston

47-5269235
16736 E Hardy Rd 

Houston TX 77032

X

29 Aug 23

Rafael Marrero President

713-742-5555

rafael@boxgangmfg.com



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 23-17498-YB 

Dumpsters and Roll-Off Containers 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on August 13 & August 20, 2023. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from August 11 to August 30, 2023. 

22 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

4 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 11961 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 21. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Building Safety: Consider an ordinance amending Article 2.03, Division 13,
of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, regarding the duties and responsibilities of the Model Codes
and Construction Advisory Board.

Item Summary
This ordinance amending Sections 2.03.453 and 2.03.455 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Lubbock, will revise the duties, qualifications, and responsibilities of the Model Codes and Construction
Advisory Board to allow more flexibility with recruitment and retention of board members.

The Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board is tasked with the responsibility to review the
technical provisions of the national model construction codes periodically proposed by City staff for
adoption or amendment, and to forward its recommendations to the City Council for final consideration
and action.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Robert Wallace, Division Director of Development Services

Attachments
Ordinance - Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board 











 AI# 11981 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 22. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Job Order
Contract TX-PH-GC-101619-WRC, with WR Construction, Inc., for the installation of the chain link
fencing around the north and west sides of the Lubbock Animal Shelter.

Item Summary
The scope of the contract includes demolition of a 25-foot chain link gate and approximately 155 linear
feet of chain link fencing with barbed wire, and installation of approximately 800 linear feet of new
galvanized chain link fencing with barbed wire, installation of a 25 foot-wide cantilever roll gate with
electric gate operator, and installation of approximately 130 linear feet of salvaged black vinyl coated
chain link fencing and privacy slats.

The contract with WR Construction, Inc. is made through the Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative using
an electronic system, known as EZIQC, to access indefinite quantity construction contracts (job order
contracts) that are competitively bid to accomplish maintenance, repair, and minor new construction.
The contracts are based on a pre-set price book otherwise known as a Construction Task Catalog (CTC)
provided by Gordian. Sourcewell is a Service Cooperative and governmental agency created by
Minnesota Statute 123A.21 to enable participating governmental agencies to reduce the cost of goods
and services by leveraging their combined purchasing power. Texas Government Code Chapter 791
allows political subdivisions of Texas to contract with another political subdivision of Texas or another
state to purchase goods and services.  Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.102,
participating in purchasing cooperatives with other local governments and cooperative purchasing
organizations satisfies state law requiring the City to solicit competitive bids.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $61,079.34, is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92793, LAS Security Fence.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Mark Zavicar, Director of Facilities Management

Attachments
Resolution 
Work Order 







���������	
��������������� ��������������������� ����!�" #��$"%��&�'��(�)*' +,-./01+.�2�3 '���4�5*���67%��&�'��(�)*' 89:;�8�'<��'%��&�'��(�)*'=�� 5*���67=�.>�?@A�8%��&�'��(�)*' BC�9D�;AA2@@C8�����E�����FG$H��" +�)'�I����:�=�:�:������J�	K���"� 8:8:9A���3 '���4�5*���672�L� I�M�+<�M'���N��6����)M�6�I��'�����E�����!	�
�"O�	�������" %�P�4��6 �Q����*�R�'<��������4�'<��L� I�M�+<�M'���S�T	U�� #	K�
J��
	$	K��V W.<��4�MM�P �Q� '�I��R�'� M�'<���6�)���4�P��7����R �6*���R��'�'<��� '���LMM���X* ��I��'����6�������'���66�I)M �<�'<�� '�I����'�4��'<���M�P��<�MM����6��� R���R�)��'��4�'< ���6�)���4�P��7�Y�(��'�MM����*'�C���4��'��4���P�924��'�6<� �2M �7�4��6��P '<�@2Q�*Q��4��� 6=����'���R���4�����P ��=�:��ZC2M ���)��'���6<�R*M��A�����C24��'�6��'���=�+�'���4��'� ��6��6��'���.��I ��M�)��'��:�?ZC��6<�R*M��A����'���4��'� ��6��6��'��'�)��� M�8�;ZC��6<�R*M��A���(��'�MM�8;��4��'��4���*� �Q�4��� 6=� ��'�MM���P�)��'����R�����P�:;�6��' M�[���Q�'��P '<��)���'�����R�6��'��M���&�I�����*'�8;��4��'��4�6<� �2M �7�4��6�����*���4��� 6����'<��4���'���R�R �)�����4�P<�'�[��� ����'�*����M���1\6M*R��2�.�\=�LMM�1M�6'� 6�M�3����6' ���=���R�R�I���4�'<���'��M�) )�����R�6��M�+*�]�6'�'��'<��'��I����R�6��R ' �����4��,3�3��'��6'�!ŴJ_̂ à̂bcbdbê�Sa�3��'��6'�� &�'�&�'�,P���
��Q��8��4�8@Z:�Z:�:�+6�)���4�0��7

fghijhifiklmn�opqpr stutvmwwn�xtuypz�{n�lmn�opqprs|}�~���������������nw�{{�����x�����m�twtvtpx��mymup�pyv�����~tvn������{{�����~|�lmn�opqprsmvp}��������������}��}���������



���������	
���	���	�����	���
��������
	������������  !"#�$%�&'(($)*+�,�!-./�01�/"���2��)��3�4/.)�-��"56567����89+�:+; +5�575<+=3 >? �@.A"��� $�"�.)"���=$�*���B�����8!"/��C�D 0�4"�-(���6�E�6�6FG
��D
��$4$A./�H./'�� $�"�.)"$��� =�3�� $�A"�')"!$�E�>�)�I75E�J<�F� KLMNOPQRR����������RL KPSMORTQNT����������NU�	���
��V��
�81!A/�"$"./���4��A��"A�"1��)$���)"�"$"./�%$��"1��4�$4$A./���,�#�B!A)��4.�)#�(�"�����/!���"$"./AE�A'(+"$"./A�.�B�"1��4�$4$A./�"$"./�!A�B'��"$��$'�B!�W� KXLMROSQNTVY����	����
Z���[�\�������Y���	���
�D ]

�.W��5�$%�5<̂6�̂6�6F $�"�.)"$�_A���!)����$4$A./�+�0'--.�#



���������	
���	���	�����	���
�������
��
��������������� �!"�#$%�&'(%�()�*("�(�+(,%$�(#("�-.-./0���12 34 5� -�-/-6 7+�89��:$;�()���"�)$���<=7�)��>)?()�<=>@"()�3>�<=1��%(=A�B &(,�(#�()�.�C�.�.D�
��B

3)�,�;$%�E$%�(=��"�)$���)=� 7�+����";�)�����"C�8"��F/-C�G6�D0HIJ��KL�MINK��O P
��	�
�Q
R�	 Q����S��
����	������TUPP�LOV��WX���OX���������YZ�-��..���-/���������. +(�#��);$�%(�*((;+(�#��);$�%(�*((;�@�%%��(�,$�?�����'(���"�)$���)���)�(%�[��%(���;�;�$;�?�)(��(?����>@"()���8";()���'(�$,,)�,)�$�(�\�$"��������$?]�;���'(��$;(���;������'(�$���$%�+(�#��);$�%(�*((��8���'()(�$)(�#�%��,%(�+(�#��);$�%(�*((;C�%�;��($�'��"(�;(,$)$�(%��$"?�$??�$���##("���"��'(�̂"��(̂��%��������?("������'(�+(�#��);$�%(�*((�_(�[��;�?(@$%���%�;�)(C�)�$?����C�̀$)���;�,()#��;C�(a�("?(?�@$))$"��C�(a,(?��(?�;'�,,�"[���;�;C�(���b��!���,�����($�'�)(�(�,�C��"̀���(C��)�,)�������,$�#("��;'$%%��(�;��#���(?�@��'��'(�3)��(�3)�,�;$%�c F-CDG����d!
8";�$%%$���" ea a �-CDG����*$���)f"���3)��(9�$"���� 1��$%�-��� �-�-����-C.����� gZhijkOYYXKR���
��l�	�X���������YZX���������imD.��D-���--��������-0 n����o��$,$����C�f,�1��..p�7�?(�5$�(C�-�43�:���)C�--��E�%��!�C�&�"[%(�5$�(C�&@�"[�5$�(�>,()$��)�_qr&s�q��)r�"[t�/���b8"�%�?(;��"(�,)�#$)���,()$��)�@��'�$�..p�@�?(�$"?�n����o�[$�(��$,$�����u FnCD.��D�d!8";�$%%$���" ea a �nCD.��D�*$���)f"���3)��(9�$"���� 1��$%�/C�GG�nD �-�./06�-���D.��D-���-D���-D��-0G /p�5$%̀$"�v(?��'$�"���"��*("�(C�6�5$�[(����%(?�&,)�"[�:(;'C�1�,�!"?�o����#�+$�%;C�. -w.̂���"(�3�;��!��-�p�>"��("�()C�D̂���)"()�3�;�x F0-C�G��n��*8";�$%%$���" ea a �0-C�G��n�*$���)f"���3)��(9�$"���� 1��$%�D6�-. �-�./06�nD����D.��D-���-D���-D��-G/ /p�*�%%�4(�['��*$�)���5$%̀$"�v(?��'$�"���"��<6�5$�[(C�-�.�>v���$��"[C�.̂�:(;'y F.C.���./�*8";�$%%$���" ea a �.C.���./*$���)f"���3)��(9�$"���� 1��$%�--�n/ �-�./06�-�����D.��D-���-D���-D��/�G o$)�(?�7�)(�da�(";��"�!)#;�D�&�)$"?;�_&�"[%(�!)#bz FnC�/.�6nd!8";�$%%$���" ea a �nC�/.�6n*$���)f"���3)��(9�$"���� 1��$%�G�/n �-�./06�nD���� gk{hjY|Oi|XKR���
��l�	�X���������im�	���
��S��
�1'�;����$%�)(,)(;("�;��'(���))(������$%���)��'(�,)�,�;$%���!"��?�;�)(,$"����(�@(("�%�"(����$%;C�;�� ���$%;�$"?��'(�,)�,�;$%����$%��;�?�(����)��"?�"[� g}ZhYj{Oi|S~����	����
����l���������~���	���
�B �

3$[(�-����-6w.�w.�.D��"�)$���)p;�3)��(�3)�,�;$%� �q(�$�%



 AI# 11977 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 23. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor of the City of
Lubbock to execute Contract No. 17628, a Community Development Block Grant Funding Agreement,
and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the U. S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development, for the funding of public service activities, non-public service activities,
housing, direct delivery of services, and administration.

Item Summary
This is a contract for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding from U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The funds will be used for public service activities,
non-public service activities, housing, direct delivery of services, and administration.

The Community Development & Services Board (CDBG) held a public hearing and public board
meeting on June 21, 2023, to discuss and approve the 2023 Action Plan draft.  The Action Plan is the
document that was submitted to HUD, and serves as the City’s application for, and proposed use of
CDBG Grants.  HUD has reviewed and approved this Action Plan.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact on the General Fund involved with this contract. The funds used originate from
HUD. The maximum allocation of this grant is $2,245,749.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 





24 CFR 570                        form HUD-7082 (5/15) 

Funding Approval/Agreement 
Title I of the Housing and Community 

Development Act (Public Law 930383) 

HI-00515R of 20515R 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development  
Office of Community Planning and Development  

Community Development Block Grant Program 

1. Name of Grantee (as shown in item 5 of Standard Form 424) 

City of Lubbock 

3a. Grantee’s 9-digit Tax ID Number 

756000590 

3b. Grantee’s 9-digit DUNS Number 

LXDNEKWRVKJ6 (UEI) 

2. Grantee’s Complete Address (as shown in item 5 of Standard Form 424) 

Po Box 2000 

Lubbock, TX 79457-0001 

4. Date use of funds may begin 

10/01/2023 
 

5a. Project/Grant No. 1 

B-23-MC-48-0022 

6a. Amount Approved 

$2,245,749.00 (by this action) 

5b. Project/Grant No. 2 

      

6b. Amount Approved 

      

Grant Agreement:  This Grant Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the above named Grantee is made pursuant to the 
authority of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, (42 USC 5301 et seq.). The Grantee’s submissions for Title I assistance, the 

HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 570 (as now in effect and as may be amended from time to time), and this Funding Approval, including any special conditions, constitute 

part of the Agreement.  Subject to the provisions of this Grant Agreement, HUD will make the funding assistance specified here available to the Grantee upon execution 
of the Agreement by the parties.  The funding assistance specified in the Funding Approval may be used to pay costs incurred after the date specified in item 4 above 

provided the activities to which such costs are related are carried out in compliance with all applicable requirements.  Pre-agreement costs may not be paid with funding 

assistance specified here unless they are authorized in HUD regulations or approved by waiver and listed in the special conditions to the Funding Approval.  The Grantee 
agrees to assume all of the responsibilities for environmental review, decision making, and actions, as specified and required in regulations issued by the Secretary 

pursuant to Section 104(g) of Title I and published in 24 CFR Part 58.  The Grantee further acknowledges its responsibility for adherence to the Agreement by sub-

recipient entities to which it makes funding assistance hereunder available.  

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (By Name) 

Shirley J. Henley 

Grantee Name (Contractual Organization) 

City of Lubbock 

Title  

CPD Director 

Title 

 

Signature 

X

 

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 

      

Signature 

X

 

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 

      

7. Category of Title I Assistance for this Funding Action: 
 

Entitlement, Sec 106(b) 

8. Special Conditions 
(check one) 

 None 
 Attached 

 

9a. Date HUD Received Submission 

(mm/dd/yyyy)   

10. check one 
 a. Orig. Funding 

Approval 
 b. Amendment 

Amendment Number 

9b. Date Grantee Notified 

(mm/dd/yyyy)        

9c. Date of Start of Program Year 

10/01/2023 

11. Amount of Community Development 

 Block Grant FY 2023   

 a. Funds Reserved for this Grantee    

 b. Funds now being Approved $2,245,749.00   

 c. Reservation to be Cancelled 
(11a minus 11b) 

             

12a. Amount of Loan Guarantee Commitment now being Approved 

N/A 

12b. Name and complete Address of Public Agency 

 

Loan Guarantee Acceptance Provisions for Designated Agencies: 

The public agency hereby accepts the Grant Agreement executed by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development on the above date with 

respect to the above grant number(s) as Grantee designated to receive loan 

guarantee assistance, and agrees to comply with the terms and conditions 
of the Agreement, applicable regulations, and other requirements of HUD 

now or hereafter in effect, pertaining to the assistance provided it. 

12c. Name of Authorized Official for Designated Public Agency 

 

Title 

 

Signature 

X

 

HUD Accounting use Only 
           Effective Date 
Batch TAC Program Y A Reg Area Document No. Project Number Category Amount (mm/dd/yyyy) F 
 

 Y Project Number Amount 

 

 Y Project Number Amount 

 

Date Entered PAS (mm/dd/yyyy) 
      

Date Entered LOCCS (mm/dd/yyyy) 
      

Batch Number 
      

Transaction Code 
      

Entered By Verified By 

OMB Approval No. 2506-0193  

exp 1/31/2025 

1 

1 7 6 

5 3 



8.         Special Conditions. 

 

(a) The period of performance and single budget period for the funding assistance 

specified in the Funding Approval (“Funding Assistance”) shall each begin on the 

date specified in item 4 and shall each end on September 1, 2030.  The Grantee 

shall not incur any obligations to be paid with such assistance after September 1, 

2030. 

 

(b) The Recipient shall attach a schedule of its indirect cost rate(s) in the format set 

forth below to the executed Agreement that is returned to HUD.  The Recipient 

shall provide HUD with a revised schedule when any change is made to the rate(s) 

described in the schedule.   The schedule and any revisions HUD receives from the 

Recipient shall be incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement, provided 

that the rate(s) described comply with 2 CFR part 200, subpart E.   

 

     Administering       Direct 

Department/Agency Indirect cost rate  Cost Base  

 

 ________________          ______%   _________ 

 ________________          ______%   _________ 

 ________________          ______%   _________ 

________________          ______%   _________ 

________________          ______%   _________ 

Instructions: The Recipient must identify each agency or department of the 

Recipient that will carry out activities under the grant, the indirect cost rate 

applicable to each department/agency (including if the de minimis rate is used per 

2 CFR §200.414(f)), and the type of direct cost base to which the rate will be 

applied (for example, Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC)).  Do not include 

indirect cost rates for subrecipients. 

 

(c) In addition to the conditions contained on form HUD 7082, the grantee shall 

comply with requirements established by the Office of Management and Budget 

(OMB) concerning the Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System 

(DUNS); the System for Award Management (SAM.gov.); the Federal Funding 

Accountability and Transparency Act as provided in 2 CFR part 25, Universal 

Identifier and General Contractor Registration; and 2 CFR part 170, Reporting 

Subaward and Executive Compensation Information. 

 

(d) The grantee shall ensure that no CDBG funds are used to support any Federal, 

State, or local projects that seek to use the power of eminent domain, unless 

eminent domain is employed only for a public use.  For the purposes of this 

requirement, public use shall not be construed to include economic development 

that primarily benefits private entities.   Any use of funds for mass transit, 

railroad, airport, seaport or highway projects as well as utility projects which 

benefit or serve the general public (including energy-related, communication-

related, water- related and wastewater-related infrastructure), other structures 



designated for use by the general public or which have other common-carrier or 

public-utility functions that serve the general public and are subject to regulation 

and oversight by the government, and projects for the removal of an immediate 

threat to public health and safety or brownfield as defined in the Small Business 

Liability Relief and Brownfields Revitalization Act (Public Law 107–118) shall 

be considered a public use for purposes of eminent domain.  

 

(e) The Grantee or unit of general local government that directly or indirectly 

receives CDBG funds may not sell, trade, or otherwise transfer all or any such 

portion of such funds to another such entity in exchange for any other funds, 

credits or non-Federal considerations, but must use such funds for activities 

eligible under title I of the Act.  

 

(f) E.O. 12372-Special Contract Condition - Notwithstanding any other provision of 

this agreement, no funds provided under this agreement may be obligated or 

expended for the planning or construction of water or sewer facilities until receipt 

of written notification from HUD of the release of funds on completion of the 

review procedures required under Executive Order (E.O.) 12372, 

Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs, and HUD's implementing 

regulations at 24 CFR Part 52.  The recipient shall also complete the review 

procedures required under E.O. 12372 and 24 CFR Part 52 and receive written 

notification from HUD of the release of funds before obligating or expending any 

funds provided under this agreement for any new or revised activity for the 

planning or construction of water or sewer facilities not previously reviewed 

under E.O. 12372 and implementing regulations. 

 

(g) CDBG funds may not be provided to a for-profit entity pursuant to section 

105(a)(17) of the Act unless such activity or project has been evaluated and 

selected in accordance with Appendix A to 24 CFR 570 - “Guidelines and 

Objectives for Evaluating Project Costs and Financial Requirements.”  (Source - 

P.L. 113-235, Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015, 

Division K, Title II, Community Development Fund). 

 

(h) The Grantee must comply with the requirements of the Build America, Buy 

America (BABA) Act, 41 USC 8301 note, and all applicable rules and notices, as 

may be amended, if applicable to the Grantee’s infrastructure project. Pursuant to 

HUD’s Notice, “Public Interest Phased Implementation Waiver for FY 2022 and 

2023 of Build America, Buy America Provisions as Applied to Recipients of 

HUD Federal Financial Assistance” (88 FR 17001), any funds obligated by HUD 

on or after the applicable listed effective dates, are subject to BABA 

requirements, unless excepted by a waiver. 

 

 



 AI# 11978 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 24. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor of the City of
Lubbock to execute Contract No. 17629, an Emergency Solutions Grant Funding Agreement, and all
related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the U. S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development, for the funding of Emergency Shelter, Rapid Re-Housing, Homeless Management
Information System, and administration,

Item Summary
This is a contract for Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funding from the U. S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD). The funds will be used for Emergency Shelter, Rapid Re-Housing,
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and administration.
 
The Community Development & Services Board (CDSB) held a public hearing and public board
meeting on June 21, 2023, to discuss and approve the 2023 Action Plan draft.  The Action Plan is the
document that was submitted to HUD and serves as the City’s application for, and proposed use of ESG
Grants.  HUD has reviewed and approved this Action Plan.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact on the General Fund involved with this contract. The funds used originate from
HUD. The maximum allocation of this grant is $198,147.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 





 

 

  

Funding Approval/Agreement 
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 
Subtitle B of Title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act,  
42 U.S.C. 11371 et seq. 
Assistance Listing Number 14.231 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Community Planning and Development 

  

1.   Recipient Name and Address 

      City of Lubbock 

 PO Box 2000 

 Lubbock, TX 79457-0001 

2. Unique Federal Award Identification Number: 

 E-23-MC-48-0022 

3. Tax Identification Number:  756000590 

4. Unique Entity Identifier: LXDNEKWRVKJ6 

5.   Fiscal Year (yyyy):  2023 

6.   Previous Obligation (Enter “0” for initial Fiscal Year allocation) $ 0 

7.   Amount of Funds Obligated or Deobligated by This Action (+ or -) $198,147 

8.   Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated  $198,147 

9.   Total Required Match      $198,147 

10. Total Amount of Federal Award Including Match    $396,294 

11. Start Date of Recipient’s  

Program Year (mm/dd/yyyy) 

 

10/01/2023 

 12. Date HUD Received Recipient’s 
Consolidated Plan Submission 
(mm/dd/yyyy) 

 

     07/19/2023 

13. Period of Performance and 
Budget Period Start Date/ Federal 
Award Date (the date listed in Box 19 
for initial Fiscal Year allocation) 
(mm/dd/yyyy) 

  

14. Type of Agreement (check applicable box) 

 Initial Agreement (Purpose #1 – Initial Fiscal Year allocation) 

 Amendment (Purpose #2 – Deobligation of funds)   

 Amendment (Purpose #3 – Obligation of additional funds)              

15. Special Conditions and Requirements 

 Not applicable          Attached  

16. Period of Performance and Budget Period End Date (24 months 
after the date listed in Box 13) (mm/dd/yyyy) 

      

General Terms and Conditions: This Agreement between the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Recipient 
is made pursuant to the authority of Subtitle B of Title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11371 et seq.) and is 
subject to the applicable appropriations act for the specified Fiscal Year.  The Recipient’s Consolidated Plan submissions (including the 
Recipient’s approved annual Action Plan and any amendments completed in accordance with 24 CFR Part 91), the Emergency Solutions Grants 
Program regulations at 24 CFR Part 576 (as now in effect and as may be amended from time to time), and this Agreement, including any special 
conditions attached to this Agreement, constitute part of this Agreement.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, HUD will make 
the funds for the specified Fiscal Year available to the Recipient upon execution of this Agreement by the Recipient and HUD.  The funds may 
be used for costs incurred before the Budget Period under the conditions specified in HUD Notice CPD-23-01 or another prior written approval 
by HUD, or if the Recipient is not covered by Notice CPD-23-01, under the condition that the costs are otherwise allowable and were incurred on 
or after the date listed in box 11, the date listed in box 12, or 90 calendar days before the date in box 13 (whichever is later). The Recipient 
agrees to assume responsibility for environmental review, decision making, and action under 24 CFR Part 58; except that if the Recipient is a 
state and distributes funds to a unit of general local government, the Recipient must require the unit of general local government to assume that 
responsibility and must comply with the state's responsibilities under 24 CFR 58.4.  To the extent authorized by applicable law, HUD may, by its 
execution of an amendment, deobligate funds under this Agreement without the Recipient’s execution of the amendment or other consent. The 
Recipient must comply with the applicable requirements at 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time. Where any previous or future 
amendments to 2 CFR part 200 replace or renumber sections of part 200 that are cited specifically in 24 CFR part 576, activities carried out 
under the grant after the effective date of the part 200 amendments will be governed by the part 200 requirements as replaced or renumbered 
by the part 200 amendments.  The Recipient must comply with the Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 25, “System for Award 
Management and Universal Identifier Requirements,” and the Award Term in Appendix A to 2 CFR Part 170, “Reporting Subaward and 
Executive Compensation Information.” If the amount in Box 8 exceeds $500,000, the Recipient must comply with Appendix XII to 2 CFR part 
200—Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters. The Recipient must comply with the requirements of the Build 
America, Buy America (BABA) Act, 41 USC 8301 note, and all applicable rules and notices, as may be amended, if applicable to the Recipient’s 
infrastructure project. Pursuant to HUD’s Notice, “Public Interest Phased Implementation Waiver for FY 2022 and 2023 of Build America, Buy 
America Provisions as Applied to Recipients of HUD Federal Financial Assistance” (88 FR 17001), any funds obligated by HUD on or after the 
applicable listed effective dates, are subject to BABA requirements, unless excepted by a waiver.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 
as creating or justifying any claim against the federal government or the Recipient by any third party. 

17. For the U.S. Department of HUD (Name, Title, and Contact Information of 
Authorized Official) 

Shirley J. Henley, CPD Director  (817) 978-5933 

 

 

18. Signature

X

 
 

19. Date (mm/dd/yyyy)   

 

           /     /      
20. For the Recipient (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 

       

21. Signature  

X

 

 

22. Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 

 

   /     /      
Funding Information (HUD Accounting Use Only): 

PAS Code: SOE                                           Program Code: SOE                                                        Region: 06                                                   

Appropriation Number: 1192                        Appropriation Symbol: 86  3/50192                                 Office: Fort Worth                                           

FYI: M                                           



 Special Conditions and Requirements for FY 2023 ESG Program 

 

Indirect Cost Rate 

 

The Recipient shall attach a schedule of its indirect cost rate(s) in the format set forth below 

to the executed Agreement that is returned to HUD.  The Recipient shall provide HUD with 

a revised schedule when any change is made to the rate(s) described in the schedule.   The 

schedule and any revisions HUD receives from the Recipient shall be incorporated herein 

and made a part of this Agreement, provided that the rate(s) described comply with 2 CFR 

part 200, subpart E. 

 
Instructions: The Recipient must identify each agency or department of the Recipient that will carry 

out activities under the grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to each department/agency (including 

if the de minimis rate is used per 2 CFR §200.414(f)), and the type of direct cost base to which the 

rate will be applied (for example, Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC)).  Do not include indirect 

cost rates for subrecipients. 

 

 

     Recipient       Direct 

Department/Agency Indirect cost rate  Cost Base  

 

________________          ______%   _________ 

________________          ______%   _________ 

________________          ______%   _________ 

 

 
 



Special Conditions and Requirements for FY 2023 ESG Program 
 

Serving Youth Who Lack 3rd Party Documentation or Live in Unsafe 

Situations 
 

Notwithstanding any contrary requirements under the McKinney-Vento Homeless 

Assistance Act or 24 CFR part 576, youth aged 24 and under who seek assistance 

(including shelter, services or rental assistance) shall not be required to provide 

third-party documentation that they meet the homeless definition in 24 CFR 576.2 

as a condition for receiving assistance; and unaccompanied youth aged 24 and 

under (or families headed by youth aged 24 and under) who have an unsafe 

primary nighttime residence and no safe alternative to that residence shall be 

considered homeless for purposes of assistance provided by any private nonprofit 

organization whose primary mission is to provide services to youth aged 24 and 

under and families headed by youth aged 24 and under.

 



 AI# 11979 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 25. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor of the City of
Lubbock to execute Contract No. 17630, a HOME Investment Partnership and Funding Agreement, and
all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development, for the funding of Community Housing Development Organization operations and
projects, affordable housing, and administration.

Item Summary
This is a contract for HOME Grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD). The funds will be used for Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
Operations and Projects, Affordable Housing and Administration.
 
The Community Development & Services Board (CDSB) held a public hearing and public board
meeting on June 21, 2023, to discuss and approve the 2023 Action Plan draft.  The Action Plan is the
document that was submitted to HUD and serves as the City’s application for, and proposed use of
HOME Grant.  HUD has reviewed and approved this Action Plan.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact on the General Fund involved with this contract. The funds used originate from
HUD. The maximum allocation of this grant is $1,163,287.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 





 Page 1 form HUD-40093 

Funding Approval and HOME Investment Partnerships Agreement 
Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act  
Assistance Listings #14.239 - HOME Investment Partnerships Program 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 

Office of Community Planning and Development 

1.  Grantee Name (must match the name associated with 3b.) 
and Address 

City of Lubbock 
PO Box 2000 
Lubbock, TX 79457-0001 

2. Grant Number (Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)) 
M23MC480205 

3a Tax Identification Number 
756000590 

3b. Unique Entity Identifier (formerly DUNS): 
LXDNEKWRVKJ6 

4. Appropriation Number 
86 3/6 0205 

 

5. Budget Period Start and End Date 
FY 2023 through FY 2031 

6. Previous Obligation (Enter “0” for initial FY allocation)  $0 

 a. Formula Funds $       
 b. Community Housing Development Org. (CHDO) Competitive $       
7. Budget Approved by the Federal Awarding Agency/Current Transaction (+ or -)  $1,163,287.00  

 a. Formula Funds $1,163,287.00   
  1. CHDO (For deobligations only) $       
  2. Non- CHDO (For deobligations only) $       
 b. CHDO Competitive Reallocation or Deobligation $       
8. Revised Obligation  $      

 a. Formula Funds $       
 b. CHDO Competitive Reallocation $       
9. Special Conditions (check applicable box)    
         Not applicable          Attached  

10. Federal Award Date (HUD Official’s Signature Date) 
  (mm/dd/yyyy)      /    /      

11. Indirect Cost Rate* 
 Administering Agency/Dept. Indirect Cost Rate Direct Cost Base 
 

12. Period of Performance Start and End Date 
   Date in Box #10 - 09/30/2032 

            %       
            %       
            %       
            %       

* If funding assistance will be used for payment of indirect costs pursuant to 2 CFR 

200, Subpart E-Cost Principles, provide the name of the department/agency, its 

indirect cost rate (including if the de minimis rate is charged per 2 § CFR 200.414), and 

the direct cost base to which the rate will be applied.  Do not include cost rates for 

subrecipients. 

 

 
 This Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Grantee is made pursuant to the authority of the HOME Investment Partnerships Act 

(42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.). The Grantee’s approved Consolidated Plan submission/Application, the HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 92 (as is now in effect and as may be amended 

from time to time) and this HOME Investment Partnership Agreement, form HUD-40093, including any special conditions, constitute part of this Agreement. Subject to the provisions 

of this Agreement, HUD will make the funds for the Fiscal Year specified, available to the Grantee upon execution of this Agreement by the parties. All funds for the specified Fiscal 

Year provided by HUD by formula reallocation are covered by this Agreement upon execution of an amendment by HUD, without the Grantee’s execution of the amendment or other 

consent. HUD’s payment of funds under this Agreement is subject to the Grantee’s compliance with HUD’s electronic funds transfer and information reporting procedures issued 

pursuant to 24 CFR 92.502. To the extent authorized by HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 92, HUD may, by its execution of an amendment, deobligate funds previously awarded to the 

Grantee without the Grantee’s execution of the amendment or other consent. The Grantee agrees that funds invested in affordable housing under 24 CFR Part 92 are repayable when 

the housing no longer qualifies as affordable housing. Repayment shall be made as specified in 24 CFR Part 92. The Grantee agrees to assume all of the responsibility for environmental 

review, decision making, and actions, as specified and required in regulation at 24 CFR 92.352 and 24 CFR Part 58.  

 The Grantee must comply with the applicable requirements at 2 CFR part 200 that are incorporated by the program regulations, as may be amended from time to time. Where any 

previous or future amendments to 2 CFR part 200 replace or renumber sections of part 200 that are cited specifically in the program regulations, activities carried out under the grant 

after the effective date of the part 200 amendments will be governed by the 2 CFR part 200 requirements as replaced or renumbered by the part 200 amendments. 

 The Grantee shall comply with requirements established by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) concerning the Universal Numbering System and System for Award 

Management (SAM) requirements in Appendix I to 2 CFR part 200, and the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) in Appendix A to 2 CFR part 170. 

 The Period of Performance for the funding assistance shall begin on the date specified in item 12 and shall end on September 1st of the 5th fiscal year after the expiration of the 

period of availability for obligation. Funds remaining in the account will be cancelled and thereafter not available for obligation or expenditure for any purpose. Per 31 U.S.C. 1552. The 

Grantee shall not incur any obligations to be paid with such assistance after the end of the Period of Performance.  

 The Grantee must comply with the requirements of the Build America, Buy America (BABA) Act, 41 U.S.C. 8301 note, and all applicable rules and notices, as may be amended, if 

applicable to the Grantee’s infrastructure project. Pursuant to HUD’s Notice,  “Public Interest Phased Implementation Waiver for FY 2022 and 2023 of Build America, Buy America 

Provisions as Applied to Recipients of HUD Federal Financial Assistance” (88 FR 17001), any funds obligated by HUD on or after the applicable listed effective dates, are subject to 

BABA requirements, unless excepted by a waiver. 

13. For the U.S. Department of HUD (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 

Shirley J. Henley, CPD Director 
14. Signature 
 

15. Date 

   /    /      

16. For the Grantee (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 
       

17. Signature 18. Date 

   /    /      

19. Check one:  Initial Agreement  Amendment #       

20. Funding Information: 

 
 Source Year of Funds Appropriation Code PAS Code Amount  

 2023 

2016 

Total 

86 3/6 0205 

86X0205-16 

HMF (M) 

HMF 

(D)

  

$1,163,284.00  

$   3.00  

$1,163,287.00  

 

      

 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2023-03-21/pdf/2023-05698.pdf


 AI# 11876 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 26. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 15 to
Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for professional architectural and engineering services, for
replacement of mechanical equipment at the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock (the Airport) has requested RS&H, Inc. under the on-call professional
architectural/engineering services for the Mechanical Equipment Replacement Services Scope of Work
at the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. 
Amendment No. 15 services are summarized as follows: 
          

Task Fee Amount
Task 1 – Project Initiation & Existing Condition
Documentation $59,413.06

Task 2 – 50% Construction Documents $63,821.49
Task 3 – 90% Construction Documents $64,661.81
Task 4 – 100% Construction Bid Documents $21,873.59
Task 5 – Bid & Award Services $16,415.52
Reimbursables $29,780.00
Total for Design & Bidding/Award Services $255,965.47
           
Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend Amendment No. 15 to Contract 15200 with
RS&H, Inc. of Jacksonville, Florida, for $255,965.47, for the design services related to the Mechanical
Equipment Replacement Construction Documentation Services Scope of Work at the Lubbock Preston
Smith International Airport.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 15 to Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for $255,965.47, is funded in Capital
Improvement Project 92839, Mechanical Systems Improvements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Amendment 15 RS&H, Inc. 
Amendment 15 RS&H, Inc. 



Budget Detail 
92839 CIP Detail 













































City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail
October 10, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92839
Capital Project Name: Mechanical Systems Improvements

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

 $- 

Agenda Item October 10, 2023
RS&H, Inc. Amendment 15  - Contract 15200  255,965 

 255,965 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
 114,035 
 114,035 

Total Appropriation  $370,000 

  Encumbered/Expended To Date

  Remaining Appropriation



Project Scope

The airport terminal building consists of various mechanical systems including air handling equipment, 
chilled water system, condenser water system, heating hot water system, and HVAC system controls.  
Many components of the buildings systems have been addressed as necessary or through the 2007 
HVAC improvements project or the recent terminal building improvements project. However, some 
aging infrastructure remains.  In 2023, RS&H was contracted to provide a mechanical systems 
assessment.  This project addresses the report recommendations including but not limited to:  

Replace existing Greenheck exhaust fan and curb that serves the boiler flue stack with an 
exhaust system specifically designed for boiler flue systems, such as Exhausto. 

1. 

Replace all three primary chilled water pump2. 
Replace all three condenser water pump3.
Replace HCFC-123 chillers4.
Install refrigerant leak detection system and ASHRAE 15 accessories5.
Remove sand filter from chilled water loop6.
Replace Cooling Towers7.
Replace condenser water sand filter with basin sweep system8.
Integrate chilled water and condenser water controls system into the Automated Logic Building
Management System

9. 

Replace all three hot water secondary pumps10.
 Replace AHU-02511.
 Replace AHU-02612.
 Replace AHU-03113.
 Replace AHU-03214.
 Replace AHU-02715.
 Install dust mitigation items in cooling tower pump rooms16.
 Replace AHU’s-013 thru -017, & -02017.

CIP 92839CIP 92839 Mechanical Systems Mechanical Systems  
ImprovementsImprovements

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance  

Kelly Campbell - Aviation - Building MaintenanceKelly Campbell - Aviation - Building Maintenance  



Project Justification  Project Highlights

Maintaining the building mechanical systems is 
essential to ensuring the comfort and safety of 
airport patrons.  The cooling for the building is 
provided by three water cooled chillers.  These 
chillers operate on HCFC-123 refrigerant.  HCFC 
refrigerants were phased out in 2020 in new 
equipment, with a 90% decrease in refrigerant 
production for service use.  HCFC-123 will be 
entirely phased out of production in 2030.  By 
seeking funding through the ATP/BIL program, 
the airport has the opportunity to advance our 
mechanical systems and reduce future costs.
Further, existing mechanical systems within the 
building are energy inefficient and consume 
additional power using older technologies.  
Replacement equipment will be considerably 
more efficient and distribute usage in a more 
efficient manner resulting in reduced energy 
usage and heat.  
While much of the aging infrastructure is 
operable, it is past useful life.  If BIL funding is 
awarded, it would allow the airport modernize 
equipment, eliminate concerns with the 
refrigerant, ensure patron comfort and safety, and 
reduce future airport financial impacts.

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and 
Development

Project Dates Project History

Consultant Selection: RS&H, selected through 5 
year master A/E contact May 2020
Design Services Negotiation: July – September 
2023
Design Contract Award: October 2023
Project Design Start Date: January 2024
Project Design End Date: May 2024
Bid: TBD
Construction award/grant acceptance: TBD
Project Construction Start Date: TBD
Project Construction End Date: TBD

*Upon the Notice of Funding Opportunity
announcement, staff will apply for the FY 2024 
competitive Airport Terminal Program (ATP) 
allocations of the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 
(BIL).  If awarded a grant, staff will move forward 
with the procurement process.  Without a grant 
award, this project will be postponed, and staff 
will address the priorities of the report individually 
as necessary or explore other funding options.  
(The airport can submit applications through the 
same program in FY 2025 and FY 2026 if not 
selected for the FY 2024 allocation.)

Project Location

Project Appropriations

2022 - 23 Budget CIP 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Design $0 $370,000 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $370,000 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2023 - 24 Budget 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget

Airport Fund Cash $0 $370,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BIL Grant $0 $0 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $370,000 $7,020,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 11973 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 27. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 17593, with
Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC, for runway rubber removal at the Lubbock Preston Smith International
Airport.

Item Summary
Aircraft landings create rubber deposit contaminants in touchdown areas of the runways. These
contaminants decrease the friction properties of the runway and can cause loss of aircraft braking
capabilities and directional control when the runways are wet.

Contract 17593 is with Hi-Lite Airfield Services LLC, using the Sourcewell Contract 110122-HLA
Cooperative Purchasing Program, which offers contracts that have been established through open
competition, as prescribed by the laws of the State of Texas. This contract is for runway rubber removal
at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. The estimated area of runway requiring work is a total
of 579,000 square feet, two times per year. 
  

Description Quantity Unit $ / Unit    Price
Rubber Removal Mobilization 1 EA $3,720 $3,720
2023 Runway Rubber Removal 579,000 SF $.07 $40,530
Rubber Removal Mobilization - 2x Per Year 2 EA $3,720 $7,440
2024 Runway Rubber Removal 1,158,000 SF $.07 $81,060
Rubber Removal Mobilization - 2x Per Year 2 EA $3,720 $7,440
2025 Runway Rubber Removal 1,158,000 SF $.07 $81,060
Rubber Removal Mobilization - 2x Per Year 2 EA $3,720 $7,440
2026 Runway Rubber Removal 1,158,000 SF $.07 $81,060
Rubber Removal Mobilization - 2x Per Year 2 EA $3,720 $7,440
2027 Runway Rubber Removal 1,158,000 SF $.07 $81,060
Total for 5 Years $398,250

 
 Airport staff and Airport Advisory Board recommend contract award to Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC
of Adams Center, New York, for a five-year total of $398,250.  

The contract is awarded by unit price. The total amount of the award is based on estimated quantities
and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on the actual need. The price per unit will not
change and expenditures will not exceed appropriated funds.

Contract 110122-HLA between Sourcewell Cooperative purchasing and Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC.



Section 271.102(a) [Cooperative Purchasing Program Participation] of the Texas Local Government
Code enables a local government to participate in a cooperative purchasing program with another local
government or a local cooperative organization. Section 271.102(c) provides that a local government that
purchases goods or services under Subchapter F [Cooperative Purchasing Program] of the Local
Government Code satisfies any state law requiring the local government to seek competitive bids for the
purchase of the goods or services. Contract 110122-HLA between Sourcewell Cooperative purchasing
and Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC for Airport Runway Materials and related services executed on
August 16, 2022, and effective through January 13, 2027.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 17593, with an annual estimated cost of $79,650, is funded in the Airport Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution 17593 - Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC 
Contract 17593 - Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC 























































































 AI# 11993 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 28. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Chief Financial
Officer in executing the acceptance of an award of a Federal Transit Administration Section FY 2022
Section 5339(c) Low-No Discretionary Grant (Project ID TX-2023-120-00), to be used to purchase up to
forty-eight 40-foot and 35-foot Gillig hybrid electric buses.

Item Summary
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has allocated $39,600,000 in Section 5339(c) Low-No
Discretionary Grant funds to the City of Lubbock/Citibus. These funds will be used to purchase up to 48
forty-foot and thirty-five-foot Gillig hybrid electric buses, to replace older buses that have exceeded
their useful life. Citibus was awarded 5,940,000 Transportation Development Credits (TDCs) provided
by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), that will be used for the local match for the FY
2022 Section 5339(c) grant.
 
Federal Transit Administration regulations require that all grants must be applied for and executed
electronically.  The grant has been electronically executed by the City of Lubbock Chief Financial
Officer.

Fiscal Impact
The local match required for this grant has been matched by Transportation Development Credits
provided by the Texas Department of Transportation. Acceptance of this grant will result in no
additional cost to the City of Lubbock. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus

Attachments
Resolution - Citibus Grant for Electric Buses 
FTA FY 22 Section 5339(c) Grant 





DOT FTA 
U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration 

 Award  
 

Federal Award Identification Number 
(FAIN) 

TX-2023-120-00 

Temporary Application Number 1993-2023-6 

Award Name 
Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Discretionary 
Grant Capital 

Award Status Active (Executed) 

Award Budget Number 0 

 

Period of Performance Start Date 9/22/2023 

Original Period of Performance End Date 6/1/2029 

Current Period of Performance End Date 6/1/2029 Revision #: 0 

 

Budget Period Start Date 9/22/2023 

Budget Period End Date 6/1/2029 

 
 
 

Part 1: Recipient Information 
Name: LUBBOCK, CITY OF 

Recipient ID Recipient OST Type Recipient Alias UEI DUNS 

1993 City CITY OF LUBBOCK LXDNEKWRVKJ6 058213893 

 
 

Location Type Address City State Zip 

Headquarters 1314 AVENUE K LUBBOCK TX 79401 

Physical Address 1314 AVENUE K LUBBOCK TX 79401 

Mailing Address P.O. BOX 2000 LUBBOCK TX 79457 

 
 

 

Union Information  



Union Name NONE  

Address 1  

Address 2  

City  

State  

Zipcode 00000 

Contact Name  

Telephone  

Fax 00000 

E-mail  

Website  

 

Part 2: Award Information 
Title: Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Discretionary Grant 
Capital 

FAIN Award Status 
Award 
Type 

Application Cost 
Center 

Date 
Created 

Last Updated 
Date 

From 
TEAM? 

TX-2023-
120-00 

Active 
(Executed) 

Grant Region 6 7/18/2023 7/18/2023 No 
 

Award Executive Summary 
Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Low-No Discretionary Grant - These funds will be used to 
purchase up to forty-eight 40' and 35' Gillig hybrid electric buses to replace older buses that have past 
their useful life. Lubbock-Citibus was awarded $39,600,000 in federal funds that will be matched with 
transportation development credits (TDCs) provided by the Texas Department of Transportation in the 
amount of 5,940,000. This grant request is within the acceptable limits of the fleet ratio which is shown 
in the Fleet Details of the Recipient ID section.  
 
Match: 
The local match will be provided by TxDOT in the form of Transportation Development Credits (TDCs) 
in the amount of 5,940,000. All eligible expenses under the Low-No Program are attributable to 
compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act. Therefore the Federal share 
of the cost of leasing or purchasing a transit bus is not to exceed 85 percent of the total transit bus cost. 
 
The Gillig buses will be 12 year useful life buses. 
 
Fixed Route Fleet - 75 total with a spare ratio of 15.38%. 
Paratransit Fleet - 28 total with a spare ratio of 21.42%. 
 
This Application for Section 5339(c) Federal Assistance is allocated to the City of Lubbock-Citibus. 
Attached to this application is the FY 2023 - 2026 STIP approval signed by FTA and FHWA which 
describes the FY 2022 funds being used in this grant.  

Frequency of Milestone Progress Reports (MPR) 
Quarterly 
 

Frequency of Federal Financial Reports (FFR) 



Quarterly 
 

Does this application include funds for research and/or development activities? 
This award does not include research and development activities.  
 

Pre-Award Authority 
This award is using Pre-Award Authority.  
 

Does this application include suballocation funds? 
Recipient organization is directly allocated these funds and is eligible to apply for and receive these 
funds directly.  
 

Will this Grant be using Lapsing Funds? 
No, this Grant does not use Lapsing Funds.  
 

Will indirect costs be applied to this application? 
This award does not include an indirect cost rate. 
 
Indirect Rate Details: N/A 

Requires E.O. 12372 Review 
No, this application does not require E.O. 12372 Review. 
 

Delinquent Federal Debt 
No, my organization does not have delinquent federal debt. 
 

Award Description  
Purpose 
These funds will be used to purchase up to forty-eight total 40' and 35' Gillig hybrid electric buses to 
replace older buses that have past their useful life. 
 

Activities to be performed: 
Bus procurement 
 

Expected outcomes: 
These new hybrid electric buses will make transportation more reliable, sustainable and environmentally 
friendly. 
 

Intended beneficiaries: 
Hybrid electric buses offer a wide range of benefits including increased efficiency, a quieter ride, 
significantly lower emissions and decreased maintenance costs. All citizens within the City of Lubbock 
will benefit from these buses being that they will reduce noise and greenhouse gas emissions which will 
provide cleaner air for our communities. Our passengers will especially benefit from these buses by 
enjoying a smoother, quieter and more comfortable ride. 
 

Subrecipient Activities: 
None 
 
 

 



Award Point of Contact Information 

First 
Name 

Last Name Title E-mail Address Phone 

Rebecca Rodriguez 
Accountant/Planning 
Analyst 

rebeccarodriguez@citibus.com 
(806) 775-
3443 
8067753443 

Rosalyn Brown Financial Analyst rosalyn.brown@dot.gov 
(817)-978-
0555 

 marc.oliphant@dot.gov Community Planner   

 

Award Budget Control Totals  

Funding Source Section of Statute CFDA Number Amount 

5339 – Low or No Emission Grants Competitive 5339-2 20526 $39,600,000 

Local   $0 

Local/In-Kind   $0 

State   $0 

State/In-Kind   $0 

Other Federal   $0 

Transportation Development Credit   $5,940,000 

Adjustment   $0 

Total Eligible Cost $39,600,000 

 

Award Budget  

Project 
Number 

Budget Item FTA Amount 
Non-
FTA 

Amount 

Total Eligible 
Amount 

Quantity 

TX-2023-120-
01-00 

111-
00 
(111-
A1) 

BUS - ROLLING STOCK $39,000,000.00 $0.00 $39,000,000.00 46 

TX-2023-120-
01-00 

 11.12.01 
BUY 
REPLACEMENT 
40-FT BUS 

$24,264,539.00 $0.00 $24,264,539.00 28 

TX-2023-120-
01-00 

 11.12.02 
BUY 
REPLACEMENT 
35-FT BUS 

$14,735,461.00 $0.00 $14,735,461.00 18 

TX-2023-120-
01-00 

117-
00 
(117-
A2) 

OTHER CAPITAL ITEMS 
(BUS) 

$600,000.00 $0.00 $600,000.00 0 



TX-2023-120-
01-00 

 11.7D.02 
EMPLOYEE 
EDUCATION/
TRAINING 

$600,000.00 $0.00 $600,000.00 0 

 

Discretionary Allocations 

Discretionary 
ID 

Project Title 
Amount 
Applied 

FAIN 
Congressional 
Release Date 

D2022-LWNO-
093 

City of Lubbock/Citibus Gillig 40' 
hybrid electric bus replacement 

$39,600,000 
TX-2023-
120-00 

8/10/2022 

 

Sources of Federal Financial Assistance  

PO 
Number 

Project 
Number 

Scope 
Name 

Scope 
Number 

Scope 
Suffix 

UZA 
Code 

Area 
Name 

Account 
Class 
Code 

FPC Description 
Amendment 
Amount 

Cumulative 
Amount 

TX-34-0
186 

TX-2023-
120-01-0
0 

OTHER 
CAPITA
L ITEMS 
(BUS) 

117-00 (
117) 

A2 
4800
00 

Texas 
2022.3J.3
4.LJ.1 

00 
Low-No Com
petitive Grant
s (IIJA) 

$600,000 $600,000 

TX-34-0
186 

TX-2023-
120-01-0
0 

BUS - R
OLLING 
STOCK 

111-00 (
111) 

A1 
4800
00 

Texas 
2022.3J.3
4.LJ.1 

00 
Low-No Com
petitive Grant
s (IIJA) 

$39,000,000 $39,000,000 

 

Part 3: Project Information 

Project Title: Purchase of up to forty-eight 40' and 35' Gillig hybrid 
electric buses. 

Project Number Temporary Project Number Date Created Start Date End Date 

TX-2023-120-01-00 1993-2023-6-P1 8/2/2023 9/1/2022  3/1/2029 
 

Project Description 
Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Low-No Discretionary Grant - These funds will be used to 
purchase up to forty-eight 40' and 35' Gillig hybrid electric buses to replace older buses that have past 
their useful life. Lubbock-Citibus was awarded $39,600,000 in federal funds that will be matched with 
transportation development credits (TDCs) provided by the Texas Department of Transportation in the 
amount of 5,940,000. This grant request is within the acceptable limits of the fleet ratio which is shown 
in the Fleet Details of the Recipient ID section.  
 
Match: 
The local match will be provided by TxDOT in the form of Transportation Development Credits (TDCs) 
in the amount of 5,940,000. All eligible expenses under the Low-No Program are attributable to 
compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act. Therefore the Federal share 
of the cost of leasing or purchasing a transit bus is not to exceed 85 percent of the total transit bus cost. 
 
The Gillig buses will be 12 year useful life buses. 
 
Fixed Route Fleet - 75 total with a spare ratio of 15.38%. 



Paratransit Fleet - 28 total with a spare ratio of 21.42%. 
 
This Application for Section 5339(c) Federal Assistance is allocated to the City of Lubbock-Citibus. 
Attached to this application is the FY 2023 - 2026 STIP approval signed by FTA and FHWA which 
describes the FY 2022 funds being used in this grant.  
 

Project Benefits 
Replacing older buses that are past their useful life. We expect this will relieve backlog as well as cost in 
our maintenance department with the disposal of older buses.  
 

Additional Information 
First (15) VIN numbers of the buses that are to be replaced. 
 
Year Make Model VIN Total Mileage  
2000 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S7X3000282 904,455 
2000 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82SXX3000292 884,796 
2000 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S5X3000295 923,190 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S313000321 760,922 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S213000326 797,557 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S413000294 917,837 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S313000299 869,860 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S113000317 805,215 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S413000330 923,761 
2005 GILLIG Low Floor 15GGD211X51076079 517,353 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S313000318 734,475 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S013000325 886,386 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S313000304 879,000 
2001 NOVA Low Floor 2NVYL82S913000310 940,466 
2005 GILLIG Low Floor 15GGD211451076076 544,738 
 

Location Description 
New buses will be in service throughout our service area, the City of Lubbock.  
 

 

Project Location (Urbanized Areas) 

UZA Code Area Name 

480000 Texas 

481350 Lubbock, TX 
 

 

Congressional District Information  

State District Representative 

Texas 19 Jodey Arrington 
 

 

Program Plan Information  

 

STIP/TIP  
Date: 5/17/2022 



Description: Page 48 
 

UPWP  
Date: N/A 
Description: N/A 
 

Long Range Plan  
Date: N/A 
Description: N/A 
 

Project Control Totals  

Funding Source Section of Statute CFDA Number Amount 

5339 – Low or No Emission Grants Competitive 5339-2 20526 $39,600,000 

Local   $0 

Local/In-Kind   $0 

State   $0 

State/In-Kind   $0 

Other Federal   $0 

Transportation Development Credit   $5,940,000 

Adjustment   $0 

Total Eligible Cost $39,600,000 
 

 

Project Budget  

Project 
Number 

Budget Item FTA Amount 
Non-
FTA 

Amount 

Total Eligible 
Amount 

Quantity 

TX-2023-
120-01-00 

111-
00 
(111-
A1) 

BUS - ROLLING STOCK $39,000,000.00 $0.00 $39,000,000.00 46 

TX-2023-
120-01-00 

 11.12.01 
BUY 
REPLACEMENT 
40-FT BUS 

$24,264,539.00 $0.00 $24,264,539.00 28 

TX-2023-
120-01-00 

 11.12.02 
BUY 
REPLACEMENT 
35-FT BUS 

$14,735,461.00 $0.00 $14,735,461.00 18 

TX-2023-
120-01-00 

117-
00 
(117-
A2) 

OTHER CAPITAL ITEMS 
(BUS) 

$600,000.00 $0.00 $600,000.00 0 

TX-2023-
120-01-00 

 11.7D.02 
EMPLOYEE 
EDUCATION/
TRAINING 

$600,000.00 $0.00 $600,000.00 0 

 



 
 

Project Budget Activity Line Items  

Budget Activity Line Item: 11.12.02 - BUY REPLACEMENT 35-FT BUS 

Scope Name / Code 
Line Item 
# 

Line Item Name Activity Quantity 

BUS - ROLLING 
STOCK (111-00) 

11.12.02 
BUY REPLACEMENT 
35-FT BUS 

BUY REPLACEMENTS - 
CAPITAL BUS 

18 
 

Extended Budget Description 
Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Low-No Discretionary Grant - These funds will be used to 
purchase up to forty-eight 40' and 35' Gillig hybrid electric buses to replace older buses that have past 
their useful life. Lubbock-Citibus was awarded $39,600,000 in federal funds that will be matched with 
transportation development credits (TDCs) provided by the Texas Department of Transportation in the 
amount of 5,940,000. This grant request is within the acceptable limits of the fleet ratio which is shown 
in the Fleet Details of the Recipient ID section.  
 
Match: 
The local match will be provided by TxDOT in the form of Transportation Development Credits (TDCs) 
in the amount of 5,940,000. All eligible expenses under the Low-No Program are attributable to 
compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act. Therefore the Federal share 
of the cost of leasing or purchasing a transit bus is not to exceed 85 percent of the total transit bus cost. 
 
The Gillig buses will be 12 year useful life buses. 
 
Fixed Route Fleet - 75 total with a spare ratio of 15.38%. 
Paratransit Fleet - 28 total with a spare ratio of 21.42%. 
 
This Application for Section 5339(c) Federal Assistance is allocated to the City of Lubbock-Citibus. 
Attached to this application is the FY 2023 - 2026 STIP approval signed by FTA and FHWA which 
describes the FY 2022 funds being used in this grant. 
 
*Lubbock has partnered with Gillig for this grant application (as encouraged in the NOFO) so will not go 
through the RFP process.  
 

Will 3rd Party contractors be used to fulfill this activity line item? 
Yes, 3rd Party Contractors will be used for this line item.  
 

Propulsion Fuel Type Vehicle Condition Vehicle Size (ft.) 

N/A Hybrid Electric New 35' 
 

Funding Source Section of Statute CFDA Number Amount 

5339 – Low or No Emission Grants Competitive 5339-2 20526 $14,735,461 

Local   $0 

Local/In-Kind   $0 

State   $0 

State/In-Kind   $0 

Other Federal   $0 



Transportation Development Credit   $0 

Adjustment   $0 

Total Eligible Cost $14,735,461  
 

 

Milestone Name 
Est. Completion 
Date 

Description 

Contract Award Date 9/1/2022  

Initial Delivery Date 10/31/2023 First buses delivered 

Final Delivery Date 12/31/2028 Final buses delivered 

Contract Completion 
Date 

3/1/2029  

 

 

 

Budget Activity Line Item: 11.7D.02 - EMPLOYEE EDUCATION/TRAINING 

Scope Name / Code 
Line Item 
# 

Line Item Name Activity Quantity 

OTHER CAPITAL ITEMS 
(BUS) (117-00) 

11.7D.02 
EMPLOYEE EDUCATION/
TRAINING 

TRAINING - 
CAPITAL BUS 

0 
 

Extended Budget Description 
Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Low-No Discretionary Grant - These funds will be used to 
develop apprenticeships, on-the-job training, and/or instructional training for our maintenance and 
operations employees as well as addressing workforce shortages by developing partnerships with high 
schools, community colleges, and other community organizations.  
 

Will 3rd Party contractors be used to fulfill this activity line item? 
No, 3rd Party Contractors will not be used for this line item.  
 

Funding Source Section of Statute CFDA Number Amount 

5339 – Low or No Emission Grants Competitive 5339-2 20526 $600,000 

Local   $0 

Local/In-Kind   $0 

State   $0 

State/In-Kind   $0 

Other Federal   $0 

Transportation Development Credit   $0 

Adjustment   $0 

Total Eligible Cost $600,000  
 

 

Milestone Name 
Est. Completion 
Date 

Description 

Start Date 9/1/2023  

End Date 12/31/2028  
 

 

 



Budget Activity Line Item: 11.12.01 - BUY REPLACEMENT 40-FT BUS 

Scope Name / Code 
Line Item 
# 

Line Item Name Activity Quantity 

BUS - ROLLING 
STOCK (111-00) 

11.12.01 
BUY REPLACEMENT 
40-FT BUS 

BUY REPLACEMENTS - 
CAPITAL BUS 

28 
 

Extended Budget Description 
Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Low-No Discretionary Grant - These funds will be used to 
purchase up to forty-eight 40' and 35' Gillig hybrid electric buses to replace older buses that have past 
their useful life. Lubbock-Citibus was awarded $39,600,000 in federal funds that will be matched with 
transportation development credits (TDCs) provided by the Texas Department of Transportation in the 
amount of 5,940,000. This grant request is within the acceptable limits of the fleet ratio which is shown 
in the Fleet Details of the Recipient ID section.  
 
Match: 
The local match will be provided by TxDOT in the form of Transportation Development Credits (TDCs) 
in the amount of 5,940,000. All eligible expenses under the Low-No Program are attributable to 
compliance with the Clean Air Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act. Therefore the Federal share 
of the cost of leasing or purchasing a transit bus is not to exceed 85 percent of the total transit bus cost. 
 
The Gillig buses will be 12 year useful life buses. 
 
Fixed Route Fleet - 75 total with a spare ratio of 15.38%. 
Paratransit Fleet - 28 total with a spare ratio of 21.42%. 
 
This Application for Section 5339(c) Federal Assistance is allocated to the City of Lubbock-Citibus. 
Attached to this application is the FY 2023 - 2026 STIP approval signed by FTA and FHWA which 
describes the FY 2022 funds being used in this grant. 
 
*Lubbock has partnered with Gillig for this grant application (as encouraged in the NOFO) so will not go 
through the RFP process.  
 

Will 3rd Party contractors be used to fulfill this activity line item? 
Yes, 3rd Party Contractors will be used for this line item.  
 

Propulsion Fuel Type Vehicle Condition Vehicle Size (ft.) 

N/A Hybrid Electric New 40' 
 

Funding Source Section of Statute CFDA Number Amount 

5339 – Low or No Emission Grants Competitive 5339-2 20526 $24,264,539 

Local   $0 

Local/In-Kind   $0 

State   $0 

State/In-Kind   $0 

Other Federal   $0 

Transportation Development Credit   $5,940,000 

Adjustment   $0 

Total Eligible Cost $24,264,539  
 

 



Milestone Name 
Est. Completion 
Date 

Description 

Contract Award Date 9/1/2022  

Initial Delivery Date 10/31/2023 First buses delivered 

Final Delivery Date 12/31/2028 Final buses delivered 

Contract Completion 
Date 

3/1/2029  

 

 

 

Project Environmental Findings  

Finding: Class II(c) - Categorical Exclusions (C-List)  

Class Level Description 
Class II(c) consists of projects that do not have a significant environmental impact on the human or 
natural environment and are therefore categorically excluded from the requirement to prepare an 
environmental assessment or an environmental impact statement. FTA requires a sufficient project 
description to support a CE determination. The project may require additional documentation to 
comply with other environmental laws.  

Categorical Exclusion Description 
 
Type 07: Acquisition, installation, rehabilitation, replacement, and maintenance of vehicles or 
equipment, within or accommodated by existing facilities, that does not result in a change in functional 
use of the facilities, such as: equipment to be located within existing facilities and with no substantial 
off-site impacts; and vehicles, including buses, rail cars, trolley cars, ferry boats and people movers 
that can be accommodated by existing facilities or by new facilities that qualify for a categorical 
exclusion. 
 

Date Description Date 

Class IIc CE Approved  

 

Scope Name / 
Code 

Line Item 
Number 

Line Item Name Quantity FTA Amount 
Total Eligible 
Cost 

BUS - ROLLING 
STOCK (111-00) 

11.12.01 
BUY REPLACEMENT 
40-FT BUS 

28 $24,264,539.00 $24,264,539.00 
 

Finding: Class II(c) - Categorical Exclusions (C-List)  

Class Level Description 
Class II(c) consists of projects that do not have a significant environmental impact on the human or 
natural environment and are therefore categorically excluded from the requirement to prepare an 
environmental assessment or an environmental impact statement. FTA requires a sufficient project 
description to support a CE determination. The project may require additional documentation to 
comply with other environmental laws.  

Categorical Exclusion Description 
 
Type 04: Planning and administrative activities which do not involve or lead directly to construction, 
such as: training, technical assistance and research; promulgation of rules, regulations, directives, or 
program guidance; approval of project concepts; engineering; and operating assistance to transit 
authorities to continue existing service or increase service to meet routine demand. 
 



Date Description Date 

Class IIc CE Approved  

 

Scope Name / Code 
Line Item 
Number 

Line Item Name Quantity 
FTA 
Amount 

Total Eligible 
Cost 

OTHER CAPITAL 
ITEMS (BUS) (117-
00) 

11.7D.02 
EMPLOYEE 
EDUCATION/
TRAINING 

0 $600,000.00 $600,000.00 

 

Finding: Class II(c) - Categorical Exclusions (C-List)  

Class Level Description 
Class II(c) consists of projects that do not have a significant environmental impact on the human or 
natural environment and are therefore categorically excluded from the requirement to prepare an 
environmental assessment or an environmental impact statement. FTA requires a sufficient project 
description to support a CE determination. The project may require additional documentation to 
comply with other environmental laws.  

Categorical Exclusion Description 
 
Type 07: Acquisition, installation, rehabilitation, replacement, and maintenance of vehicles or 
equipment, within or accommodated by existing facilities, that does not result in a change in functional 
use of the facilities, such as: equipment to be located within existing facilities and with no substantial 
off-site impacts; and vehicles, including buses, rail cars, trolley cars, ferry boats and people movers 
that can be accommodated by existing facilities or by new facilities that qualify for a categorical 
exclusion. 
 

Date Description Date 

Class IIc CE Approved  

 

Scope Name / 
Code 

Line Item 
Number 

Line Item Name Quantity FTA Amount 
Total Eligible 
Cost 

BUS - ROLLING 
STOCK (111-00) 

11.12.02 
BUY REPLACEMENT 
35-FT BUS 

18 $14,735,461.00 $14,735,461.00 
 

 

 

Part 4: Fleet Details 

Fleet Type: Other 

Fleet Comments  
18 Total Support Vehicles: 
 
8 - Staff support Vehicles 
7 - Supervisor Vehicles 
3 - Maintenance Shop Trucks 

  Current Value 

I. Active Fleet  



 A. Peak Requirement 18 

 B. Spares 0 

 C. Total (A+B) 18 

 D. Spare Ratio (B/A) 0% 

II. Inactive Fleet  

 A. Other 0 

 B. Pending Disposal 0 

 C. Total (A+B) 0 

III. Total (I.C and II.C) 18  

Fleet Type: Fixed Route 

Fleet Comments  
This grant request is within the acceptable limits of the fleet ration which is shown in the Fleet Details of 
the Recipient ID section.  
 
Citibus' fleet currently consists of the following: 
 
Type Quantity Year Make/Model 
Bus 11 2000 Nova Bus LFS 
Bus 18 2001 Nova Bus LFS 
Bus 4 2004 Gillig Low-Floor 
Bus 10 2005 Gillig Low-Floor 
Bus 7 2006 Gillig Low-Floor 
Bus 6 2009 Gillig Hybrid-Electric 
Bus 2 2011 Gillig Hybrid-Electric 
Bus 4 2013 Gillig Hybrid-Electric 
Bus 4 2017 Gillig Low-Floor 
Bus 4 2018 Gillig Low-Floor 
Bus 6 2019 Gillig Low-Floor 
Bus 2 2019 Proterra Catalyst E2  
Trolley 2 2000 Chance Trolley 

  Current Value 

I. Active Fleet  

 A. Peak Requirement 67 

 B. Spares 8 

 C. Total (A+B) 75 

 D. Spare Ratio (B/A) 11.94% 

II. Inactive Fleet  

 A. Other 0 

 B. Pending Disposal 10 

 C. Total (A+B) 10 

III. Total (I.C and II.C) 85  

Fleet Type: Paratransit 



Fleet Comments  
This grant request is within the acceptable limits of the fleet ration which is shown in the Fleet Details of 
the Recipient ID section.  
 
Citibus' paratransit fleet current consists of the following: 
 
Type Quantity Year Make/Mode 
Van 14 2016 Chevy Arboc 
Van 8 2020 Dodge Promaster 
Van 10 2020 New England Wheels Front Runner 
Van 2 2021 Dodge Promaster 

  Current Value 

I. Active Fleet  

 A. Peak Requirement 23 

 B. Spares 11 

 C. Total (A+B) 34 

 D. Spare Ratio (B/A) 47.83% 

II. Inactive Fleet  

 A. Other 0 

 B. Pending Disposal 4 

 C. Total (A+B) 4 

III. Total (I.C and II.C) 38  

 

Part 5: FTA Review Comments 

Application Review Comments 

Comment By Eboni Younger-Riehl 

Comment 
Type 

Application Details 

Date 8/23/2023 

Comment 

FOR GRANTS THAT INCLUDE FTA-ASSISTED VEHICLES ONLY 
Transit Vehicle Manufacturers (TVM) must have an approved FTA DBE Goal prior to 
bidding on contract. For a current listing, see https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-
and-guidance/civil-rights-ada/eligible-tvms-list. Recipient must ensure that all vehicles 
purchased are accessible and purchased from an FTA approved TVM. 
 
IF DEMAND-RESPONSIVE VEHICLES INCLUDED IN APPLICATION : In accordance 
with 49 CFR 37.77, public funded entities operating demand-responsive service which 
receive financial assistance from the Federal Transit Act must file a certificate of 
equivalent service before procuring any inaccessible demand-responsive vehicle. 
Please contact FTACivilRightsSupport@dot.gov for more information.  

 

Comment By Troy Thomas 



Comment 
Type 

Application Details 

Date 8/29/2023 

Comment 

• Recipient must not acquire telecommunications and video surveillance equipment for 
rolling stock from: Huawei Technologies Company; ZTE Corporation; Hytera 
Communications Corporation; Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company; or 
Dahua Technology Company. This prohibition includes rolling stock telecommunications 
and video surveillance equipment, commercial items and micro-purchases in 
accordance with Section 889 of the 2019 National Defense Authorization Act.  
• Recipients must not procure rolling stock from certain transit vehicle manufacturers. 
Refer to 49 U.S.C. Section 5323(u) of federal public transportation law, which limits the 
use of FTA funds, and in some circumstances local funds, to procure rolling stock from 
certain transit vehicle manufacturers. Refer to https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/
procurement/frequently-asked-questions-regarding-section-7613-national-defense for 
additional guidance. 
• 49 CFR Part 26.49(a) states ‘If you are an FTA recipient, you must require in your 
DBE program that each transit vehicle manufacturer, as a condition of being authorized 
to bid or propose on FTA-assisted transit vehicle procurements, certify that it has 
complied with the requirements of this section.’ FTA’s current list of eligible TVMs can 
be found at https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/civil-rights-ada/eligible-
transit-vehicle-manufacturers. 
• 49 CFR Part 26.49(a)(4) states ‘FTA recipients are required to submit within 30 days 
of making an award, the name of the successful bidder, and the total dollar value of the 
contract in the manner prescribed in the grant agreement.’ The Transit Vehicle Award 
Reporting Forms can be found on FTA’s website at https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/
vehicleawardreportsurvey. Please take a screenshot of the completed report before 
submission and retain locally to demonstrate compliance with this requirement during 
oversight activities such as Triennial Review and/or State Management Reviews. 
• Recipient must comply with the statutory requirements in FTA Circular 4220.1F, 3rd 
Party Contracting Guidance, as they apply to acquiring rolling stock including 49 CFR 
Part 661, Buy America Requirements, 49 CFR 663, Pre-Award and Post-Delivery 
Audits, accessibility, minimum service life, spare ratios, air pollution and fuel economy, 
bus testing, in-state dealers, basis for contract award and five-year limitation. 
• Recipient must comply with the Recipient’s procurement policies and procedures as 
they apply to FTA-funded projects. 
• The information provided above is intended as technical assistance and applies only to 
the project as described. Should the project scope change or new information on the 
project be provided, FTA may require a re-evaluation of the project information as it 
relates to federal compliance and require additional information. This confirmation is not 
an express or implied promise of project compliance with federal requirements. 

 

Application Review Comments 

Comment By Marc Oliphant 

Comment 
Type 

Pre-Award Manager Returns Application 

Date 8/28/2023 

Comment 
I updated the milestones (added RFP). Please take a look, edit as needed, and 
resubmit ASAP.  

 

Part 6: Agreement  



 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

(FTA G-30)  

On the date the authorized U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
official signs this Grant Agreement, FTA has obligated and awarded federal assistance as provided 
below. Upon execution of this Grant Agreement by the Recipient named below, the Recipient affirms this 
FTA Award, enters into this Grant Agreement with FTA, and binds its compliance with the terms of this 
Grant Agreement. 
 
The following documents are incorporated by reference and made part of this Grant Agreement:  
(1) "Federal Transit Administration Master Agreement," FTA MA(30), http://www.transit.dot.gov,  
(2) The Certifications and Assurances applicable to the FTA Award that the Recipient has selected and 
provided to FTA, and  
(3) Any Award notification containing special conditions or requirements, if issued. 
 
WHEN THE TERM "FTA AWARD" OR "AWARD" IS USED, EITHER IN THIS GRANT AGREEMENT OR 
THE APPLICABLE MASTER AGREEMENT, "AWARD" ALSO INCLUDES ALL TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THIS GRANT AGREEMENT.  
 
FTA OR THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT MAY WITHDRAW ITS OBLIGATION TO PROVIDE FEDERAL 
ASSISTANCE IF THE RECIPIENT DOES NOT EXECUTE THIS GRANT AGREEMENT WITHIN 90 
DAYS FOLLOWING FTA's AWARD DATE SET FORTH HEREIN.  

FTA AWARD  
 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) hereby awards a Federal Grant as follows:  

Recipient Information  

  Recipient Name:  LUBBOCK, CITY OF 

  Recipient ID:  1993 

  UEI:  LXDNEKWRVKJ6 

  DUNS:  058213893 

 
Award Information  

  Federal Award Identification Number:  TX-2023-120-00 

  Award Name:  Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Discretionary Grant Capital 

  Award Start Date:  9/22/2023 

  Original Award End Date:  6/1/2029 



  Current Award End Date:  6/1/2029 

  Award Executive Summary:  Lubbock-Citibus FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Low-No Discretionary Grant - 
These funds will be used to purchase up to forty-eight 40' and 35' Gillig hybrid electric buses to replace 
older buses that have past their useful life. Lubbock-Citibus was awarded $39,600,000 in federal funds 
that will be matched with transportation development credits (TDCs) provided by the Texas Department of 
Transportation in the amount of 5,940,000. This grant request is within the acceptable limits of the fleet 
ratio which is shown in the Fleet Details of the Recipient ID section.  
 
Match: 
The local match will be provided by TxDOT in the form of Transportation Development Credits (TDCs) in 
the amount of 5,940,000. All eligible expenses under the Low-No Program are attributable to compliance 
with the Clean Air Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act. Therefore the Federal share of the cost of 
leasing or purchasing a transit bus is not to exceed 85 percent of the total transit bus cost. 
 
The Gillig buses will be 12 year useful life buses. 
 
Fixed Route Fleet - 75 total with a spare ratio of 15.38%. 
Paratransit Fleet - 28 total with a spare ratio of 21.42%. 
 
This Application for Section 5339(c) Federal Assistance is allocated to the City of Lubbock-Citibus. 
Attached to this application is the FY 2023 - 2026 STIP approval signed by FTA and FHWA which 
describes the FY 2022 funds being used in this grant. 

  Research and Development:  This award does not include research and development activities. 

  Indirect Costs:  This award does not include an indirect cost rate. 

  Suballocation Funds:  Recipient organization is directly allocated these funds and is eligible to apply for 
and receive these funds directly. 

  Pre-Award Authority:  This award is using Pre-Award Authority. 

Award Budget  

  Total Award Budget:  $39,600,000.00 

  Amount of Federal Assistance Obligated for This FTA Action (in U.S. Dollars):  $39,600,000.00 

  Amount of Non-Federal Funds Committed to This FTA Action (in U.S. Dollars):  $0.00 

  Total FTA Amount Awarded and Obligated (in U.S. Dollars):  $39,600,000.00 

  Total Non-Federal Funds Committed to the Overall Award (in U.S. Dollars):  $0.00 

 
Award Budget Control Totals  
 
(The Budget includes the individual Project Budgets (Scopes and Activity Line Items) or as attached)  

Funding Source Section of Statute CFDA Number Amount 

5339 – Low or No Emission Grants Competitive 5339-2 20526 $39,600,000 

Local   $0 



Local/In-Kind   $0 

State   $0 

State/In-Kind   $0 

Other Federal   $0 

Transportation Development Credit   $5,940,000 

Adjustment   $0 

Total Eligible Cost $39,600,000 

(The Transportation Development Credits are not added to the amount of the Total Award Budget.) 

 
U.S. Department of Labor Certification of Public Transportation Employee Protective 
Arrangements:  
 
DOL Decision:   DOL Concurs - Certified 
DOL Review Date:   9/21/2023 
DOL Certification Date:   9/21/2023 
 
 
Special Conditions  
 
There are no special conditions.  
 
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS  
 
By signing this Award on behalf of FTA, I am making all the determinations and findings required by 
federal law and regulations before this Award may be made.  
 
 
FTA AWARD OF THE GRANT AGREEMENT  
 
Awarded By:  
Gail Lyssy  
Regional Administrator  
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION  
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
Contact Info: gail.lyssy@dot.gov  
Award Date: 9/22/2023 

 
 

EXECUTION OF THE GRANT AGREEMENT  
 
Upon full execution of this Grant Agreement by the Recipient, the Effective Date will be the date FTA or 
the Federal Government awarded Federal assistance for this Grant Agreement.  
 
By executing this Grant Agreement, the Recipient intends to enter into a legally binding agreement in 
which the Recipient:  
(1)  Affirms this FTA Award, 
(2)  Adopts and ratifies all of the following information it has submitted to FTA: 
      (a)  Statements, 
      (b)  Representations, 
      (c)  Warranties, 



      (d)  Covenants, and 
      (e)  Materials, 
(3)  Consents to comply with the requirements of this FTA Award, and 
(4)  Agrees to all terms and conditions set forth in this Grant Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
Executed By:  
Blu Kostelich  
Chief Financial Officer  
LUBBOCK, CITY OF  
9/25/2023  



 AI# 11991 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 29. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 326000024, with Dailey & Wells Communications, Inc., for the replacement of
microwave communications network hardware utilized by the Public Safety Radio System.

Item Summary
The purchase will upgrade the Public Safety Radio System's Microwave Communications Network. 
The purchase will provide for a more secure and reliable environment for the radio communications
system utilized by City of Lubbock Police, Lubbock Fire and Rescue, City departments, and our regional
public safety partners that utilize the system.

Dailey & Wells Communications, Inc., is the sole source provider for the Harris System in the region. 
The sole source procurement is exempt from competitive bidding pursuant to Texas Local Government
Code Chapter 252.022(a)(7)(A).

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 326000024 for $390,569.81, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92780 Radio
Shop, Radio System Upgrade.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Dailey Wells Communications _ Resolution PO 326000024 
PO Dailey Wells 
CIP 92780 _Radio System Upgrade 





1Page    -
Date    - 10/5/2023P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 32501090 OP000
Branch/Plant         2242

DAILEY WELLS COMMUNICATIONS INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
3440 E HOUSTON ST RADIO REPAIR SHOP

ATTN: MALISA LONGSAN ANTONIO TX 78219 530 36TH STREET, SUITE 200
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight10/5/2023
Taken ByRequested 11/10/2023  D HEATH

Quote 2023-2962/HGAC RA05-21Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 60843

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Portable XL-95P 7/800MHZ Blk 10.000 1,628.0000 EA 16,280.00 11/10/2023

#XN-PF78M

Operatn NiFog/P25 Phase 2 TDMA 10.000 185.0100 EA 1,850.10 11/10/2023

#XN-FW2X              #XN-PL4F

Feature Link Layer Authenticat 10.000 74.0000 EA 740.00 11/10/2023

#XN-LLA

Feature 256-AES 64DES Encryptn 10.000 555.0000 EA 5,550.00 11/10/2023

#XN-PKG8F

Feature Pkg P25 Trunking 10.000 814.0000 EA 8,140.00 11/10/2023

#XN-PKGPT

Feature In-Band GPS 10.000 222.0000 EA 2,220.00 11/10/2023

#XN-PL8N

Battery 7.4V 41000 mAh 30.3 Wh 10.000 115.4400 EA 1,154.40 11/10/2023

LiPo              #PM234361LIP

Antenna 1/4 Wave / Speaker Mic 10.000 159.1000 EA 1,591.00 11/10/2023

#XN-NC8F              #XN-AE9D

If you have any questions please contact Jay Zhine at JZhine@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us or by phone at 806-775-2366



2Page    -
Date    - 10/5/2023P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 32501090 OP000
Branch/Plant         2242

DAILEY WELLS COMMUNICATIONS INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
3440 E HOUSTON ST RADIO REPAIR SHOP

ATTN: MALISA LONGSAN ANTONIO TX 78219 530 36TH STREET, SUITE 200
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight10/5/2023
Taken ByRequested 11/10/2023  D HEATH

Quote 2023-2962/HGAC RA05-21Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 60843

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Charger 1-Bay Tri-Chemistry 10.000 111.0000 EA 1,110.00 11/10/2023

#XN-CH5X

Shipping 1.000 121.0000 EA 121.00 11/10/2023

Handling

Portable XL-95P 7/800MHZ Blk 25.000 1,628.0000 EA 40,700.00 11/10/2023

#XN-PF78M

Operatn NiFog/P25 Phase 2 TDMA 25.000 185.0100 EA 4,625.25 11/10/2023

#XN-FW2X              #XN-PL4F

Feature Link Layer Authenticat 25.000 74.0000 EA 1,850.00 11/10/2023

#XN-LLA

Feature SingleKey Des Encryptn 25.000 .0200 EA .50 11/10/2023

AES Encrpytn #XN-PL4U #XN-PL9E

Feature Pkg P25 Trunking 25.000 814.0000 EA 20,350.00 11/10/2023

#XN-PKGPT

Feature In-Band GPS 25.000 222.0000 EA 5,550.00 11/10/2023

#XN-PL8N



3Page    -
Date    - 10/5/2023P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 32501090 OP000
Branch/Plant         2242

DAILEY WELLS COMMUNICATIONS INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
3440 E HOUSTON ST RADIO REPAIR SHOP

ATTN: MALISA LONGSAN ANTONIO TX 78219
530 36TH STREET, SUITE 200
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight10/5/2023
Taken ByRequested 11/10/2023  D HEATH

Quote 2023-2962/HGAC RA05-21Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 60843

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Battery 7.4V 41000 mAh 30.3 Wh 25.000 115.4400 EA 2,886.00 11/10/2023

LiPo              #PM234361LIP

Antenna 1/4 Wave / Speaker Mic 25.000 159.1000 EA 3,977.50 11/10/2023

#XN-NC8F              #XN-AE9D

Charger 1-Bay Tri-Chemistry 25.000 111.0000 EA 2,775.00 11/10/2023

#XN-CH5X

Shipping 1.000 350.9000 EA 350.90 11/10/2023

Handling
Total Order

NET 30 DAYSTerms 121,821.65

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $121,821.65 awarded to Dailey Wells Communications, Inc. of

San Antonio, TX, on _________________, 2023. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by

reference: Quote dated October 02, 2023, from Dailey Wells Communications, Inc. of San Antonio, TX, and  Contract HGAC 
RA05-21.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

_______________________________________ 

Tray Payne, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project 
October 2, 2023

Capital Project Number: 92780
Capital Project Name: Radio System Upgrade

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

  Dailey & Wells Communications, Inc.  $747,279 
 - 
 - 

Agenda Item October 10, 2023
  Dailey & Wells Communications, Inc.  390,570 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  1,137,848 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
 Radio System Upgrade  112,152 

Remaining Appropriation  112,152 

Total Appropriation  $1,250,000 



 AI# 11996 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 30. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager, or his designee, to
purchase all the vehicles and equipment approved for replacement, for Fiscal Year 2023-24, to replace
essential assets in various City departments and Citibus.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock, like many other organizations, has experienced challenges related to supply chain
shortages, especially with vehicle purchases. The Fleet Operations Department continues to experience
issues in ordering and receiving vehicles for the current fiscal year.
 
While the vehicles and equipment have been ordered, delivery on many of these purchases has been
delayed with no definitive timeframe or guarantee from the vendors that our orders will be fulfilled.
 
In May 2023, the City Council authorized the City Manager to advance purchase 42 vehicles from the
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Vehicle Replacement Schedule. This allowed the Fleet Department to place orders
for those vehicles prior to or within the buying window established by the vehicle manufacturers.
 
The following 56 vehicles/equipment from the upcoming FY23-24 Vehicle Replacement Schedule need
to be purchased for the City:

  Facilities Management:                     (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
Codes Administration:                       (5) ½ Ton Pickup Trucks
 (1) Mid-Size SUV
Traffic Engineering:                           (1) Aerial Bucket Truck
Engineering Inspection Services:       (2) ½ Ton Pickup Trucks
Park Maintenance:                             (2) Precision Sprayers
 (1) Large Area Topdresser
Lubbock Police Department Patrol:   (6) Mid-Size SUVs/Sedans
Residential Collection:                       (5) Commercial Side Loader Trash Trucks
Alley Maintenance:                            (1) Motor Grader
 (1) Front End Wheel Loader
Solid Waste:                                       (1) Wheel Tractor Scrapper
Recycling Collection:                         (1) Roll-Off Container Truck
Radio Shop:                                       (1) Mid-Size SUV
Fleet Operations:                                (1) ¾ Ton Truck
Aviation Maintenance:                        (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
Civic Center:                                      (1) ¾ Ton Pickup Truck
Water Conservation:                         (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
  
  
  



 

  
Water Meter & Customer Service:     (2) ¾ Ton Pickup Trucks
Water Distribution:                             (4) ¾ Ton Pickup Trucks
 (2) Backhoe Trailers
 (1) Trash Pump
  (1) Front End Wheel Loader
 (1) Backhoe
 (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
Water Pumping & Control:                 (1) ¾ Pickup Truck
Water Production:                              (1) Backhoe Loader
Water Reservoir:                                (1) Rotary Mower
Wastewater:                                       (2) ½ Ton Pickup Trucks
Wastewater Collection:                      (1) 1 Ton Pickup Truck
  (1) ½ Ton Van
Industrial Monitoring:                         (2) ¾ Ton Pickup Trucks
Stormwater:                                       (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
Street Cleaning:                                  (1) Dump Truck
The Fleet Operations Department estimates the cost of the proposed fifty-six (56)
vehicles/equipment referenced above not to exceed $8,492,500.
  
The following twenty (20) vehicles need to be purchased for the Citibus staff,
supervisors, and its maintenance shop:
Transit: (7) Mid-Size Sedans
 (10) Mid-Size SUVs
 (3) ¾ Ton Pickup Trucks
The Fleet Operations Department estimates the cost of the proposed twenty (20)
vehicles for Citibus referenced above not to exceed $1,400,000.
 
Fiscal Impact
The funds for the purchase of the City of Lubbock’s fifty-six (56) vehicles for FY23-24 have been
appropriated from the Radio Shop balance, Water/Wastewater balance, Storm Water balance, General
Fund FY24 Tax Note balance, Fleet balance, Civic Center balance, and the General Fund balance. The
total cost of the purchase shall not exceed $8,492,500.
 
The funds for the purchase of Citibus’ twenty (20) vehicles has been appropriated from the Federal
Transit Administration Section 5307 (Urbanized Area Apportionments) from the American Rescue Plan
Act (ARPA) of 2021. The total cost of the purchase shall not exceed $1,400,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 







Fund Department Cost Center V# Proposed Replacement Cash Tax Notes
1 General Facilities Management 1611 12003070 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
2 General Codes Administration 4211 12005118 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
3 General Codes Administration 4211 12008013 Mid-size SUV 50,000
4 General Codes Administration 4211 12010031 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
5 General Codes Administration 4211 12010037 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
6 General Codes Administration 4211 12010029 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
7 General Codes Administration 4211 12010023 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
8 General Traffic Operations 4525 52012008 Aerial Bucket Truck 180,000
9 General Engineering Inspections Services 4541 12014063 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000

10 General Engineering Inspections Services 4541 12014064 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
11 General Parks and Recreation 5221 ELR John Deer ProGator 2030A (Diesel) 33,000
12 General Parks and Recreation 5221 ELR John Deer HD200 SelectSpray for ProGators 2030 19,500
13 General Parks and Recreation 5221 ELR TurfCO WideSpin 1550 Top Dresser 18,000
14 General Police Patrol 5735 ELR Mid-size SUV/Sedan 90,000
15 General Police Patrol 5735 ELR Mid-size SUV/Sedan 90,000
16 General Police Patrol 5735 ELR Mid-size SUV/Sedan 90,000
17 General Police Patrol 5735 ELR Mid-size SUV/Sedan 90,000
18 General Police Patrol 5735 ELR Mid-size SUV/Sedan 90,000
19 General Police Patrol 5735 ELR Mid-size SUV/Sedan 90,000
20 General Residential Collection 5811 82014002 Commercial Side Loader 425,000
21 General Residential Collection 5811 82014003 Commercial Side Loader 425,000
22 General Residential Collection 5811 82014019 Commercial Side Loader 425,000
23 General Residential Collection 5811 82014023 Commercial Side Loader 425,000
24 General Residential Collection 5811 82014024 Commercial Side Loader 425,000
25 General Alley Maintenance 5812 92002153 Grader 350,000
26 General Alley Maintenance 5812 92008169 Front Wheel Loader 325,000
27 General Solid Waste Disposal 5815 92012022 Wheel Tractor-Scraper 1,800,000
28 General Recycling Collection 5819 82009219 Roll Off Truck 250,000

1,248,500 4,850,000
29 Internal Service Radio Shop 2242 12006092 Mid-size SUV/Sedan 50,000
30 Internal Service Fleet Services 3526 12006221 3/4 Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000

120,000
31 Airport Aviation Maintenance 4615 12009196 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X4 55,000
32 Civic Center Civic Center 4813 22003156 3/4 Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000
33 Water/WW Water Conservation and Education 6113 12009195 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
34 Water/WW Water Meter and Customer Service 6311 22013015 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000
35 Water/WW Water Meter and Customer Service 6311 22009014 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000
36 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 02011126 Trash Pump 85,000
37 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 02016028 Backhoe Trailer 25,000
38 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 12013093 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X2 51,000
39 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 22009015 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000
40 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 22009019 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000
41 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 22013004 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X2 V6 66,000
42 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 22013007 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X2 V6 66,000
43 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 92003066 Front Loader 325,000
44 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 02019021 Belshe Backhoe Trailer 25,000
45 Water/WW Water Distribution and Maintenance 6331 92011109 Backhoe 185,000
46 Water/WW Water Pumping and Control 6343 22013036 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000
47 Water/WW Water Production 6347 92008202 Backhoe 185,000
48 Water/WW Water Reservoir 6349 02012018 ROTARY MOWER 30,000
49 Water/WW Wastewater Treatment 6411 12006125 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X4 55,000
50 Water/WW Wastewater Treatment 6411 12009300 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X4 55,000
51 Water/WW Wastewater Collection 6413 32013002 1 Ton Ext Cab Pickup 4X4 VS 85,000
52 Water/WW Wastewater Collection 6413 22003157 1/2  Ton Van 65,000
53 Water/WW Water Industrial Monitoring 6417 22006135 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000
54 Water/WW Water Industrial Monitoring 6417 22006237 3/4  Ton Crew Cab Pickup 4X4 V6 70,000
55 Storm Water Storm Water Management 6511 12013096 1/2 Ton Ext Cab Pickup, V6 4X4 55,000
56 Storm Water Street Cleaning 6512 82013008 Dump Truck 250,000

2,274,000
3,642,500 4,850,000

 $   8,492,500 

Fund Department Cost Center VIN Existing Vehicle Proposed Replacement Cash

1 ARPA Citibus 4511 1GBHK29K08E165627 Chevrolet Mid-size SUV 60,000
2 ARPA Citibus 4511 3D7KS28C95G839604 Dodge/Ram 2500 3/4 Ton Truck w/ Service Body 110,000
3 ARPA Citibus 4511 1FMRE11221HA61458 Ford/Van Sedan 50,000
4 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP71W76X125918 Ford Crown Vic Sedan 50,000
5 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP71W45X129603 Ford Crown Vic Sedan 50,000
6 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP71W65X129621 Ford Crown Vic Sedan 50,000
7 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP71W26X125924 Ford Crown Vic Sedan 50,000
8 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP71W66X125943 Ford Crown Vic Sedan 50,000
9 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP71W46X125956 Ford Crown Vic Sedan 50,000

10 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP73V66X112419 Ford Crown Vic Mid-size SUV 60,000
11 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP73V16X112425 Ford Crown Vic Mid-size SUV 60,000
12 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAHP71V09X105398 Ford Crown Vic Mid-size SUV 60,000
13 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP73V66X112422 Ford Crown Vic Mid-size SUV 60,000
14 ARPA Citibus 4511 1GNDS13S182220303 Chevrolet Trailblazer Mid-size SUV 60,000
15 ARPA Citibus 4511 1GNDT13S462320678 Chevrolet Trailblazer Mid-size SUV 60,000
16 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP71V78X105730 Ford Crown Vic Mid-size SUV 60,000
17 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAFP71V38X126526 Ford Crown Vic Mid-size SUV 60,000
18 ARPA Citibus 4511 2FAHP71V09X128650 Ford Crown Vic Mid-size SUV 60,000
19 ARPA Citibus 4511 1FTRX12W55KD79406 Ford F-150 3/4 Ton Truck w/ Service Body 110,000
20 ARPA Citibus 4511 Additional Additional 3/4 Ton Truck w/ Service Body 110,000

1,280,000$ 

Exhibit A

Total City of Lubbock

Total Enterprise Fund
Total All Funds

Total Citibus

Total General Fund

Total Internal Service Fund



 AI# 11928 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 31. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00120, for Zone Case
59-B, a request of Roberta Beam, for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to
Commercial-Apartment District (CA), at 2613 34th Street, located south of 34th Street, and east of
Boston Avenue, Lisemby Addition, Block 1, Lots 5 through 7.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.4 ZC59-B_Ordinance 
8.4 ZC59-B_Report 
8.4 ZC59-B_Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 59-B 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

 

Applicant Roberta Beam 

 

Property Owner  Roberta Beam 

 

Council District   1 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 19, 1946, Ordinance No. 797: The subject property was annexed into the City Limits and zoned 

Single-Family District (A). 

• August 28, 1947, Zone Case 59, Ordinance No. 827: The subject property was rezoned from Single-Family 

District (A) to Local Retail District (F) 

• April 6, 1955, Ordinance No. 1695: The subject property was rezoned from Local Retail District (F) to 

General Retail District (C-3). 

• September 7, 2023, Zone Case 59-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

request to rezone the subject property from General Retail District (C-3) to Commercial-Apartment 

District (CA) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 34 

• Received In Favor: 2 

• Received In Opposition: 1 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was platted as Lisemby Addition, Block 1, Lots 5 through 7 in 1946. The existing structure 

on the lot was built in 1949.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the east are zoned Commercial District (C-4), with General Retail District (C-3) to the west, Local 

Retail District (C-2) to the north across 34th Street, and Single-Family District (R-1) to the south. There are 

businesses and commercial buildings to the north, east and west with Single-Family homes to the south. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 2613 34th Street, located south of 34th Street, and east of Boston Avenue. 

The applicant is requesting a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Commercial-Apartment District 

(CA). 

 

Current zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) 

 

Requested zoning:  Commercial-Apartment District (CA) 

  



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways.” 

 

The intent of the requested CA zoning is “…to allow residential-commercial buildings to develop within or 

adjacent to commercial districts. Commercial uses should be compatible with residential uses. When proposed 

development is adjacent to any residentially zoned property, the proposed development shall be designed to 

provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent development.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  

The location is along 34th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan 

2018. Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation network and are continuous routes whose function 

is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. This request does not conform to this 

designation, and but would be appropriate next to adjacent residential land uses, being a mixed use. Therefore, 

this request is in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a major 

thoroughfare and is appropriate adjacent to both nearby residential and commercial uses. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property may be suitable for the proposed use, though additional improvements may be necessary.  

 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-3029 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 59-B 

 

Allowable Uses: Commercial-Apartment District (CA) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a proposed point of access from 34th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

34th Street, Minor 

Arterial, Completed 

R.O.W. 88 feet, 5 lane, 

undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 100 feet, 5 lane, 

undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 District 1 

 

5.1  Zone Case 59-B: Roberta Beam, request for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to 

Commercial-Apartment District (CA), at: 

• 2613 34th Street, located south of 34th Street, and east of Boston Avenue, Lisemby 

Addition, Block 1, Lots 5 through 7.  

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were thirty-four (34) notifications sent out with two (2) returned in favor 

and one (1) returned in opposition. The one in opposition stated concerns about the proximity to residential uses. 

Staff shared the location of the property, including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding properties. 

Staff recommends approval of the request.  

CHAIR SAWYER asked staff if CA zoning was more restrictive than C-3. Staff responded in the affirmative. Chair 

noted the request is a downzone. 

APPLICANT ROBERTA BEAM, 70 Pony Express Trail, advised the subject property used to be a nursing home. She 

purchased the property to use as a six-room, Airbnb, short-term rental. The six rooms are separate and under one 

roof, but that they will be rented out as a group. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition of this zone case. 

In the matter of Zone Case 59-B, a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON 

to approve the zone case. The commission voted eight (8) in favor to zero (0) in opposition. The item will be 

forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 













59-B 

 

 

View to the north.  

 

  

View to the east.  

 

View to the south. Subject Property. 

 

View to the west.  

 

















 AI# 11929 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 32. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00121, for Zone Case
0092-A, a request of Five Points Corporation for Heather Lea Hollingsworth, for a Specific Use for an
Event Center on property zoned Local Retail District (C-2), at 4228, 4230, and 4232-A Boston Avenue,
located south of 42nd Street and west of Boston Avenue, Modern Manors Addition, Blocks 1, 2, and 3..

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.5 ZC0092-A_Ordinance 
8.5 ZC0092-A_Report 
8.5 ZC0092-A_Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 0092-A 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

Applicant Five Points Corporation 

Property Owner  Heather Lea Hollingsworth 

Council District  1 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• October 27, 1949, Ordinance No. 935: The subject property was annexed into the city limits and zoned 

Single-Family District (A).
• February 25, 1950, Zone Case 0092, Ordinance No. 973: The subject property was rezoned from Single-

Family District (A) to Local Retail District (C-2).
• September 7, 2023, Zone Case 0092-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

Specific Use for an event center on property zoned Local Retail District (C-2) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 34
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 1

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was platted as Modern Manors Addition, Block A, Lots 1, 2, and 3 on November 4, 1969, and 
was developed with a shopping center in 1949.   

Adjacent Property Development 
The properties to the east are developed with single-family homes zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and 
commercial businesses zoned Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A). To the south and west, is an apartment 
complex zoned Multi-Family District (R-3). To the north are single-family homes zoned Two-Family District (R-2). 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 4228, 4230, and 4232 Boston Avenue, located south of 42nd Street and west 
of Boston Avenue. The applicant requests a Specific Use for an Event Center on property zoned Local Retail 
District (C-2). 

Current zoning:  Local Retail District (C-2)  

Requested zoning: Specific Use for an Event Center 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-2 zoning is, “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 
serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 
intersections of major thoroughfares.” 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the ordinance, provided the 
intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.”  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along 42nd Street and Boston Avenue. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, 
designates 42nd Street and Boston Avenue as Collector Streets. Collectors provide access and movement within 
residential, commercial, and industrial areas.   

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed Specific Use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. The proposed use is for an event center. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed Specific Use is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and would be appropriate in the 
established shopping center. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the Specific Use district. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documentation
H. Notification Responses 

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla  Victor Escamilla 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107 806-775-3029
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 0092-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   Local Retail District (C-2) and Specific Use District for an Event Center    

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 42nd Street and Boston 

Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

42nd Street,  
Collector Street, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Boston Avenue, 
Collector Street, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved  

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 1 
 
5.2 Zone Case 0092-A: Five Points Corporation for Heather Lea Hollingsworth, request for  
 a Specific Use for an Event Center on property zoned Local Retail District (C-2), at: 
 

 4228, 4230, and 4232-A Boston Avenue, located south of 42nd Street and 
west of Boston Avenue, Modern Manors Addition, Blocks 1, 2, and 3. 

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were thirty-four (34) notifications sent out with one (1) 
returned in favor and one (1) returned in opposition. The letter in opposition had concerns about traffic 
and trash. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 
surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request.   

 
JAMES BELL clarified with staff that the request is not for the entire shopping center, but rather three 
specific suites in the shopping center. Staff noted that to be correct. 

 
APPLICANT HEATHER HOLLINGSWORTH, 2302 91st Street, advised she and her brother own Modern 

Manor Shopping Center. It has been a place for the arts for 60 years. The request stems from wanting 

to keep the theater intact. Specifically, they would like to have dance, theater, homeschool, and art 

classes as well as maybe incorporating after-hours karaoke or open mic nights and eventually hosting 

https://ecode360.com/38876996
https://ecode360.com/38879092


Zone Case 0092-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

events like quinceaneras or weddings. There is a vast parking lot, so there will not be an issue of 

overflow parking bleeding over into the residential neighborhood.  

No one spoke in favor or in opposition of this request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 0092-A, a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by BRANDON 
HARDAWAY to approve the zone case. The commission voted eight (8) in favor to zero (0) in opposition. 
The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 











0092-A

Subject property. View to the south. View to the east.  

View to the north/west. View to the north.





























Kim Johnston

This message (including any attachments) may contain confidential, proprietary, privileged and/or private information. The information is
intended to be for the use of the individual or entity designated above. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, please notify
the sender immediately, and delete the message and any attachments. Any disclosure, reproduction, distribution or other use of this
message or any attachments by an individual or entity other than the intended recipient is prohibited.

TRVDiscDefault::1201





 AI# 11931 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 33. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00122, for Zone Case
3488, a request of BW Gas & Convenience Retail, LLC for Buffalos Partners, LLC & CMH Properties,
LLC, for a zone change from Transition District (T) to General Retail District (C-3), at 9704 Highway
87, located north of 98th Street and west of Highway 87, on 2.8 acres of unplatted land out of Block E,
Section 8.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.7 ZC3488_Ordinance 
8.7 ZC3488_Report 
8.7 ZC3488_Documentation 







Exhibit "A"



Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3488 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

Applicant BW Gas & Convenience Retail LLC 

Property Owner Buffalos Partners LLC & CMH Properties LLC 

Council District 2 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

• November 21, 2006, Ordinance No. 2006-O0119: The subject property was annexed into the city limits 
and zoned Transition District (T).

• September 7, 2023 Zone Case 3488: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of zone 
change from Transition District (T) to General Retail District (C-3) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 3

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The property consists of 2.8 acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 8. 

Adjacent Property Development 

The subject property is surrounded by vacant land to the south, zoned Interstate Highway Commercial District 

(IHC), to the east is vacant land zoned Interstate Highway Industrial (IHI), and to the north and west are the City 

Limits.  

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 9704 Highway 87, located north of 98h Street and west of Highway 87. The 

applicant is requesting a zone change from Transition District (T) to General Retail District (C-3).    

Current zoning: Transition District (T) 

Requested zoning: General Retail District (C-3) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current Transition (T) zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed 

territory until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the General Retail District is”… to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 

adjacent residential area should be considered.”  

   Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is along 98th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial and Highway 87 which is designated 



Page 2 of 2 

as a Freeway by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve 
high volume needs of local and regional traffic. Freeways are intended to move high volumes of automobile 
traffic at relatively high speeds over long distances.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use map designates this area for Commercial Uses. The proposed zone change to C-3 would be 

in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan and the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located at the 

intersection of a principal arterial and a freeway.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

Additional infrastructure improvements will be necessary, as the property has not been platted. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Thoroughfare Map

C. Aerial Map

D. Zoning Map

E. Future Land Use Map

F. Photos

G. Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


 
 
 

Allowable Uses: General Retail District (C-3) 

Transportation: The proposed development has point of access from 98th street and Highway 87. 
 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

98th Street, 
Principal Arterial, 

complete 

R.O.W. 115 feet, seven- 
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 115 feet, seven- 
lane, undivided, paved 

Highway 87, 
Freeway, 
complete 

R.O.W. 375 feet, eight- 
lane, divided, paved 

R.O.W. 375 feet, eight- 
lane, divided, paved 

 

Engineering Comments: No comments. 

Public Works Comments: No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:   No  comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments: No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 2 
 
5.4       Zone Case 3488: BW Gas & Convenience Retail, LLC for Buffalos Partners, LLC & CMH 

Properties, LLC, request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to General Retail 
District (C-3), at: 

 

 9704 Highway 87, located north of 98th Street and west of Highway 87, on 2.8 
acres of unplatted land out of Block E, Section 8. 

 
PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ stated there were three (3) notifications sent out with none being returned. 
Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding 
property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
APPLICANT JOHN BOYNTON, 7306 Orange Tip Road, Houston, Texas, is with Atwell Engineering and is 
representing BW Gas. Mr. Boynton declared this to be a great project for the area as well as the best use 
for this particular corner. 
 
No one spoke in favor or in opposition of the request.  
 
JAMES BELL stated the request to be cut and dry and the location is great. 
 
In the matter of Zone Case 3488, a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by JORDAN 
WHEATLEY to approve the request. The Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 
approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 
Case Information: Zone Case 3488 











3488 
 
 

 

      View of subject property to the north.                       View to the east. 
  
 

 

 

View to the south.    View to the west. 



Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 Project Information 

Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes     ��      No     � Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?   Yes     �       No     � 

Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner)

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

 Owner Information 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

 For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

9704 Hwy 87, Lubbock, TX 79423

BLK E SEC 8 AB 492 TR E1A ACS: 2.796

Survey: GC&SF RR CO, Abstract: 303492

2.8

Commercial Annexation

C-3

BW Gas & Convenience Retail LLC

ATTN: Brendan McArdle (Engineer)

138 Conant Street Beverly MAz

01915 215-908-3255 bmcardle@atwell-group.com

8/1/2023 Brendan McArdle

BUFFALOS PARTNERS LLC & CMH PROPERTIES LLC

BUFFALOS PARTNERS LLC & CMH PROPERTIES LLC

7405 82nd Street Lubbock TX

79424

8/1/2023 Brendan McArdle

✔

✔

9706 Hwy 87

Chad Henthorn dotloop verified
08/02/23 11:33 AM CDT
YSCQ-S3KS-XX3Z-JHDS

BJ Lewis dotloop verified
08/02/23 11:22 AM CDT
UAHB-CLP2-R4M3-PIXS

Keith McNeese
dotloop verified
08/02/23 11:50 AM CDT
TERG-KOMC-IO3U-RM3G

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/Ke5i-l5Zq-ZHy9



§

§

§

§



Know what's below.
      Call before you dig.



 AI# 11934 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 34. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00123, for Zone Case
3351-B, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Two men and a baby, LLC, for a zone change from
Local Retail District (C-2) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), at 3201 114th Street,
located south of 114th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, on 5.57 acres of unplatted land out of Block
E-2, Section 21.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.8 ZC3351-B_Ordinance 
8.8 ZC3351-B_Report 
8.8 ZC3351-B_Documentation 







 

Delta Land Surveying  
and Engineering, LLC 

1310 Jarvis Street 
Lubbock, TX 79403 

806-701-5707 
www.deltalbk.com 

 
 

 

Texas License Firm Number 10194496 
Engineering Firm Number F-22948 

 

Metes and Bounds description of a 5.571 acre tract of land, being a portion of that 6.360 acre tract 

described in County Clerk File Number (CCFN) 2018045761, Official Public Records of Lubbock County, 

Texas (OPRLCT), being out of Section 21, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas, and being more particularly 

described as follows: 

Beginning at a point in the South Right of Way line of 114th Street, described in CCFN 2009043181, 

OPRLCT, for the Northwest corner of Tract A, HTS Business Park, an Addition to the City of Lubbock, 

Lubbock County, Texas, according to the Map, Plat, and/or Dedication Deed thereof recorded in CCFN 

2022032143, OPRLCT, and for the Northeast corner of this tract, whence the Northwest corner of said 

Section 21 is called to bear N89°59’55W, 1256.91 feet and North, 55.00 feet; 

Thence S00°01’53”E, leaving said 114th Street, with the West line of said Tract A, approximately 524 

feet to a point in the North line of that tract described as Tract C in said CCFN 2009043181 for the 

Southwest corner of said Tract A, and for the Southeast corner of this tract; 

Thence S89°59’42”W, leaving said Tract A, with the North line of said Tract C, approximately 463 feet to 

a point for the Southeast corner of a 0.789 acre tract, being the remainder of said 6.360 acre tract, and 

for the Southwest corner of this tract; 

Thence N00°01’53”W, leaving said Tract C, with the East line of said 0.789 acre tract, approximately 524 

feet to a point in the south line of said 114th Street, for the Northeast corner of said 0.789 acre tract, 

and for the Northwest corner of this tract; 

Thence S89°59’55”E, leaving said 0.789 acre tract, with the South line of said 114th Street, 

approximately 463 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Field Notes prepared for zone case purposes only. This does not represent an accurate survey made on 

the ground. 

Delta Land Surveying Job No. 23568 

 

Exhibit "A"





Page 1 of 2  

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3351-B 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

 

Applicant Seventeen Services, LLC for Two men and a baby, LLC 

Property Owner Michael Postar 
 

Council District 4 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 August 23, 1979, Ordinance No. 7900: The subject property was annexed into the city limits and zoned 

Transition District (T). 

 July 12, 2018, Zone Case 3351, Ordinance No. 2018-O0077: The subject property was rezoned from T to 

Local Retail District(C-2). 

 September 7, 2023, Zone Case 3351-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change from C-2 to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 16 

 Received In Favor: 2 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject property consists of 5.57 acres of vacant, unsubdivided land out of Block E-2, Section 21. 

 
Adjacent Property Development 

The subject property is adjacent to vacant land zoned Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to the east, 

a church zoned Transition District (T) to the south, commercial retail zoned Local Retail District (C-2), and 

apartments zoned Family Apartment District (A-1) to the north. 

 
Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is at 3201 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and east of Indiana Avenue. The 

applicant requests a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC). 

Current zoning: Local Retail District (C-2) 

 
Requested zoning: Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

 

 
Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-2 zoning is “to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which serve 

one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the intersections of 

major thoroughfares.” 

 
The intent of the proposed IHC zoning is “to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 

which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 

areas. Special consideration shall be given building height for developments adjacent to Mackenzie State Park, 



Page 2 of 2  

the Yellowhouse Canyon Lakes, and the Central Business District.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The property is located south of 114th Street, which is designated as a Minor Arterial street, and east of Indiana 

Avenue, which is designated as a Principle Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterials 

provide connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional traffic. 

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The proposed zone change is for a vacant lot, which is conducive to self-storage facilities. 

 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for commercial uses. The proposed zone change is compatible with 

this designation. 

 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed district because it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

neighborhood. 

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

 
Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2021 806-775-3029 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:vlewelling@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3351-B 

 

Allowable Uses: Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has proposed points of access from 114th Street and 

116th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

116th Street, Local 

Street 

R.O.W. 45 feet, 2 lanes, 

undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 55 feet, 5 lanes, 

undivided, paved 

114th Street, 

 Minor Arterial, 

Partial 

R.O.W. 40 feet, 3 lanes, 

undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, 5 lanes, 

undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

 

5.6 Zone Case 3351-B: Seventeen Services, LLC for Two men and a baby, LLC, request a for a zone 

change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), at: 

 

• 3201 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, on 5.57 

acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 21. 

 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING stated there was sixteen (16) notifications sent out and two (2) were 

returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT TYLER GENTRY, 1500 Broadway, Suite 203, with Seventeen Services, stated he was available for 

questions. 

JAMES BELL asked the applicant for the intended use of the property. 

APPLICANT TYLER GENTRY replied the request was made in preparation of the transition to the Unified 

Development Code. If left in C-2, the property would transition to Neighborhood Commercial (NC). The intent 

is to transition to HC to allow for a retail warehouse-type operation that could sell construction materials and 

supplies. 



Zone Case 3351-B 

 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 

 

IN FAVOR MICHAEL POSTER, 3110 Frankford Avenue, owns the subject property as well as the property 

directly across from the subject property. He spoke to the neighbors and they are all in favor.  

No one spoke in opposition of the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3351-B, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by BRANDON 

HARDAWAY to approve the request. The Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve 

the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 













3351-B

Subject Property. South View. East View.

North View. West View.









 AI# 11935 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 35. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00124, for Zone Case
3490, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for a Specific
Use for an Athletic Center on property zoned Transition District (T), generally located south of 146th
Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 3.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
 

Attachments
8.9 ZC3490_Ordinance 
8.9 ZC3490_Report 
8.9 ZC3490_Documentation 









 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

PROPOSED T SPECIFIC USE ZONING 
 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of an approximate 3.3 acre tract of land located in Section 6, Block 
AK, Lubbock County, Texas, being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at the Southwest corner of that tract described in Zoning Ordinance 2022-O0015 at a point for 
the Southeast corner of this tract which bears N. 88°14’24” W. an approximate distance of 2903.7 feet and    
S. 01°42’34” W. an approximate distance of 2917.2 feet from the Northeast corner of Section 6, Block AK; 
 
THENCE N. 88°17’26” W. an approximate distance of 477.0 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N. 43°17’26” W. an approximate distance of 21.2 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE N. 01°42’34” E. an approximate distance of 320.5 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S. 88°17’26” E. an approximate distance of 280.0 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S. 01°42’34” W. an approximate distance of 95.0 feet to a point; 
 
THENCE S. 88°17’26” E. an approximate distance of 212.0 feet to a point in the Western boundary of said 
tract described in Zoning Ordinance 2022-O0015; 
 
THENCE S. 01°42’34” W., along the Western boundary of said described tract, an approximate distance of 
240.5 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 
 
PREPARED FOR ZONE CHANGE PURPOSES. DOES NOT REPRESENT AN ACTUAL SURVEY. 
 
Prepared for Red Canyon Development LLC 
Contains: 3.3 Acres 
August 3, 2023 
 
 





Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3490 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

 

Applicant   Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. 

Property Owner  Red Canyon Development, LLC 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• February 8, 2018, Ordinance No. 2018-O0023: The subject property was annexed into the City Limits and 

zoned Transition District (T). 

• September 7, 2023, Zone Case 3490: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

Specific Use for an Athletic Field on property zoned T by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 7 

• Received In Favor: 0 

• Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property consists of 3.3 acres of vacant, unsubdivided land out of Block AK, Section 6. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The subject property is surrounded by vacant, unsubdivided land, zoned Transitional (T). 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is 4605 146th Street, located south of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue. The applicant 

requests a zone change from Transition District (T) to T Specific Use for an Athletic Field. 

Current zoning:  Transition District (T) 

 

Requested zoning:  Transition District Specific Use for an Athletic Field (T) 

 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current and proposed T zoning is “to protect existing and future development in newly annexed 

territory until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The property is located south of 146th Street, which is designated as a Principle Arterial street, and west of 

Quaker Avenue, which is designated as a Principle Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal 

Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation network serving high volume needs of local and regional 

traffic.  

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The proposed zone change is for a vacant lot, which is conducive to self-storage facilities. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential uses. The proposed zone change is 

compatible with this designation. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed district because it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

neighborhood. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-3029 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us     vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

  

 



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3490 

 

Allowable Uses: Transition District Specific Use for an Athletic Field (T)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from proposed Vale Avenue and 

155th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Vale Avenue, 
 Local Street  

 (Future) 
None 

R.O.W. 60 feet, 2 lanes, 
undivided, paved 

155th Street, 
 Local Street 

(Future) 

None 
 

R.O.W. 60 feet, 2 lanes, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 
 
 5.7 Zone Case 3490: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC, 

 request a Specific Use for an Athletic Center on property zoned Transition District (T), 
 at: 

 Generally located south of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 3.3 
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6. 

 
PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELING stated there were seven (7) notifications sent out with none being 
returned. Staff shared the location of the property, including pictures and maps and discussed the 
surrounding property. The Eastern Transition district has a specific use for the Red Feather golf course. 
The request is due to the subject property being developed in conjunction with that project. Staff 
recommends approval of this request. 
 
APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, 1601 Avenue N, with Hugo Reed and Associates, stated the request to be 
an extension of the Red Feather Golf Course. That 133-acre golf course was zoned T Specific Use about 
a year ago, and that zoning fits the extension they are asking for. The addition will be for some casitas 
for the golf course. The entrance for the clubhouse will be through a private, gated area in the residential 
area off of 155th Street.  
 
No one spoke in favor or in opposition of the request. 

https://ecode360.com/38876022


Zone Case 3490 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

 
In the matter of Zone Case 3490, a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by BRANDON 

HARDAWAY to approve the request. The Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 









3490

Subject Property. South View. East View.

North View. West View.





 AI# 11937 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 36. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00125, for Zone Case
2968-D, a request of SK Architecture Group, LLC for James Morgan, Ltd., for a zone change from
Apartment-Medical District (AM) to Garden Office District (GO), at 4007, 4009, 4011, 4013, 4015 and
4017 98th Street, located south of 98th Street and east of Orlando Avenue, on 1.23 acres of unplatted
land out of Block E-2, Section 17.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.10 ZC2968-D_Ordinance 
8.10 ZC2968-D_Report 
8.10 ZC2968-D_Documentation 







Plat Metes & Bounds

BEING a 1.23 Acre tract as described in County Clerk File No. 2008001655, Official Public Records of
Lubbock County, Texas, located in Section 17, Block E-2, Abstract 103, BS&F Survey, Lubbock, Lubbock
County, Texas, and being further described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at a Cut “X” in Concrete Found for the Northeast Corner, same being the Northwest Corner of
Tract A of the Ravenwood Addition, as described in the Plat and Dedication No. 2012017656;

THENCE South 0°04'00” West - 188.92 feet along the West line of said Tract A to a Point for the Southeast
Corner;

THENCE South 89°59'05” West - 363.24 feet along the North line of a 20.00 feet alley dedicated by the
Ravenwood Addition, Lots 1 thru 63, as described in Volume 9051, Page 4, Deed Records of Lubbock
County, Texas to a Point for the Southwest Corner;

THENCE North 0°02'18” West - 86.03 feet along the East line of Tract A of the King's Ridge Addition, as
described in Volume 6368, Page 246, Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas to a 1/2 Inch Iron Rod Found
for a Corner, same being the Northeast Corner of said Tract A;

THENCE North 69°03'19” East - 129.21 feet along the South Right-of-Way line of 98th Street, as described
in the Judgement/Agreed Judgement Deed recorded in Volume 4786, Page 182, Deed Records of Lubbock
County, Texas to a 1/2 Inch Iron Rod Found for a Corner;

THENCE continuing along the South Right-of-Way line of said 98th Street along a Curve to the Right with a
Chord Bearing of North 76°50'09” East, a Chord Distance of 249.39 feet, and a Radius of 899.93 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 1.23 Acres more or less.

Exhibit "A"



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2968-D 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

 

Applicant   SK Architecture Group, LLC 

Property Owner  James Morgan, Ltd. 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• October 28, 1971, Ordinance No. 6201: The subject property was annexed into the City Limits and zoned 

Single-Family District (R-1). 

• May 8, 2003, Zone Case 2968, Ordinance No. 2003-O0036: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to 

Garden Office (GO). 

• August 23, 2018, Zone Case 2968-B, Ordinance No.2018-O0099: The subject property was rezoned from 

GO to Apartment-Medical District (AM). 

• September 7, 2023, Zone Case 2968-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change from AM to GO by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 27 

• Received In Favor: 1 

• Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property consists of 1.23 acres of vacant, unsubdivided land out of Block E-2, Section 17. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The property is adjacent to businesses zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM) to the east, Single-Family homes 

zoned Garden Office (GO) and Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) to the south, and a church zoned 

High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to the west.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 4007, 4009, 4011, 4013, 4015, and 4017 98th Street, located south of 98th 

Street and east of Orlando Avenue. The applicant requests a zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

to Garden Office District (GO). 

Current zoning:  Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

 

Requested zoning:  Garden Office District (GO) 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current AM zoning is “to provide for quality medical and related development through proper 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; provide modern 



Page 2 of 2 

 

facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the city as a medical 

center.” 

 

The intent of the proposed GO zoning is “to provide for quality garden office development through proper 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 

commercial uses.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The property is located south of 98th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial street, and east of Orlando 

Avenue, which is designated as a Local street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets provide access 

to smaller, destination-oriented areas such as neighborhoods, subdivisions, or local business districts. Principal 

Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation network, serving high volume needs of local and regional 

traffic.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The proposed zone change is for a vacant lot, which is conducive to garden offices. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for office uses. The proposed zone change is compatible with this 

designation. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed district because it would not change the characteristics of the existing 

neighborhood. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Response Letter 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Victoria Lewelling   Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-3029 

vlewelling@mylubbock.us     vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

  

 



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2968-D 

 

Allowable Uses:    Garden Office District (GO) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 98th street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

98th Street, 
Principal Arterial, 

Complete  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 115 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

 
5.5 Zone Case 2968-D: SK Architecture Group, LLC for James Morgan, Ltd., request for a 

zone change from Apartment-Medical District (AM) to Garden Office District (GO), at: 
 

 4007, 4009, 4011, 4013, 4015 and 4017 98th Street, located south of 98th 
Street and east of Orlando Avenue, on 1.23 acres of unplatted land out of 
Block E-2, Section 17. 
 

PLANNER VICTORIA LEWELLING stated that there were twenty-seven (27) notifications sent out with 
one (1) returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property, including pictures and maps and 
discussed the surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

APPLICANT ALEX BURNS, 6302 70th Street, with SK Architecture Group, stated the proposed use is 

four garden offices, which consists of typical professional offices with normal business hours. 

JAMES BELL noted the property was rezoned from GO to AM in 2018. The request just puts the zoning 

designation back to what it was previously. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to this request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2968-D, a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by SUSAN 

TOMLINSON to approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://ecode360.com/38876648












2968-D

Subject Property. South View. East View.

North View. West View.









 AI# 11939 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 37. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00126, for Zone Case
3058-E, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Shag Holdings LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Residential Estates to General Retail District (C-3), at
7214 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 5.151 acres of unplatted
land out of Block AK, Section 38.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.11 ZC3058-E_Ordinance 
8.11 ZC3058-E_Report 
8.11 ZC3058-E_Documentation 









�

���������	�
���������
��	������������������

���������������  ��
!"##$%&'�()�*+,���

-�./*��/0*�*�
11123 4��4#&2%$5�

�
�
�

( 6���!�% 7� �8��5�9"5# �����+,,+.�
:7;�7  ��7;�8��5�9"5# ��8/<<+,-�

�

=>?>@�ABC�DEFBC@�C>@GHIJ?IEB�EK�A�LMNLN�AGH>�?HAG?�EK�OABCP�Q>IBR�?S>�@AT>�LMNLN�AGH>�?HAG?�EK�OABC�

C>@GHIQ>C�IB�UEFB?V�UO>HW�XIO>�YFTQ>H�ZUUXY[�\]\\]̂]__̀P�aKKIGIAO�bFQOIG�c>GEHC@�EK�dFQQEGW�UEFB?VP�

e>fA@�ZabcdUe[P�Q>IBR�EF?�EK�g>G?IEB�̀_P�DOEGW�hiP�dFQQEGW�UEFB?VP�e>fA@P�ABC�Q>IBR�TEH>�JAH?IGFOAHOV�

C>@GHIQ>C�A@�KEOOEj@k�

D>RIBBIBR�A?�A�JEIB?�IB�?S>�YEH?S�cIRS?�EK�lAV�OIB>�EK�L]?S�g?H>>?�KEH�?S>�gEF?Sj>@?�GEHB>H�EK�dE?�NP�dg�

XAHT@P�AB�hCCI?IEB�?E�?S>�UI?V�EK�dFQQEGWP�dFQQEGW�UEFB?VP�e>fA@P�H>GEHC>C�IB�UUXY�\]\]]\Lm\\P�

abcdUeP�ABC�KEH�?S>�gEF?S>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�?SI@�?HAG?P�jS>BG>�?S>�gEF?Sj>@?�GEHB>H�EK�@AIC�g>G?IEB�̀_�I@�

GAOO>C�?E�Q>AH�g]]n]No]]pqP�AJJHEfITA?>OV�LL�K>>?�ABC�Y_rnL\ôsplP�AJJHEfITA?>OV�̂L]�K>>?t�

eS>BG>�Y_rnL\ôsplP�O>AuIBR�@AIC�dE?�NP�jI?S�?S>�YEH?S�cIRS?�EK�lAV�OIB>�EK�@AIC�L]?S�g?H>>?P�

AJJHEfITA?>OV�̀rL�K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�KEH�A�GEHB>H�EK�?SA?�?HAG?�C>@GHIQ>C�IB�UUXY�\]N_]N̂ \̀LP�abcdUeP�ABC�

KEH�?S>�gEF?Sj>@?�GEHB>H�EK�?SI@�?HAG?t�

eS>BG>�Y]]n]No]]plP�O>AuIBR�@AIC�L]?S�g?H>>?P�jI?S�A�GETTEB�OIB>�EK�@AIC�?HAG?�C>@GHIQ>C�IB�@AIC�UUXY�

\]N_]N̂ \̀LP�AJJHEfITA?>OV�Ls_�K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�IB�?S>�gEF?S�OIB>�EK�?SA?�?HAG?�C>@GHIQ>C�IB�vEOFT>�s̀NNP�

bAR>�N]\P�c>AO�bHEJ>H?V�c>GEHC@�EK�dFQQEGW�UEFB?VP�e>fA@�ZcbcdUe[P�KEH�?S>�YEH?Sj>@?�GEHB>H�EK�?SI@�

?HAG?t�

eS>BG>�g_rnL\ôspqP�O>AuIBR�@AIC�?HAG?�C>@GHIQ>C�IB�UUXY�\]N_]N̂ \̀LP�jI?S�?S>�gEF?S�OIB>�EK�@AIC�?HAG?�

C>@GHIQ>C�IB�vEOFT>�s̀NNP�bAR>�N]\P�AJJHEfITA?>OV�̀rL�K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�KEH�?S>�YEH?Sj>@?�GEHB>H�EK�@AIC�

dE?�NP�ABC�KEH�?S>�YEH?S>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�?SI@�?HAG?t�

eS>BG>�g]]n]No]]pqP�O>AuIBR�@AIC�?HAG?�C>@GHIQ>C�IB�vEOFT>�s̀NNP�bAR>�N]\P�jI?S�?S>�l>@?�OIB>�EK�@AIC�

dE?�NP�AJJHEfITA?>OV�Ls_�K>>?�?E�?S>�bEIB?�EK�D>RIBBIBRM�

XI>OC�YE?>@�JH>JAH>C�KEH�wEB>�GA@>�JFHJE@>@�EBOVM�eSI@�CE>@�BE?�H>JH>@>B?�AB�AGGFHA?>�@FHu>V�TAC>�EB�

?S>�RHEFBCM�

hFRF@?�̀P�\]\̀�

�

�

Exhibit "A"





Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3058-E 
City Council Meeting  September 26, 2023 

 

Applicant Seventeen Services, LLC 
 

Property Owner Shag Holdings, LLC 
 

Council District 5 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 January 1, 1999, Ordinance No. 010117: The subject property was annexed into the City Limits and 
zoned Transition District (T).   

 October 13, 2006, Ordinance No. 2006-O0057, Zone Case No. 3058: The subject property was rezoned 
from Transition District (T) to Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for residential estates. 

 September 7, 2023 Zone Case 3058-E: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Residential Estates to General Retail 
District (C-3) by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 10 

 Received In Favor: 1 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject property consists of 5.151 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38. The property is 
currently vacant.  

 
Adjacent Property Development 

To the north, east, and south of this property are vacant properties, zoned Single-Family District (R-1) Specific 

Use for residential estates. To the west is vacant land zoned, Transition District (T). 

 

Item Summary 

The subject property is currently addressed as 7214 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and east of 

Upland Avenue, on 5.151 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38. The applicant is requesting a 

zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to General Retail District (C-3).    

 
Current zoning: Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Residential Estates 

 
Requested zoning: General Retail District (C-3) 

 
Intent Statements 

The intent of the current Single-Family District (R-1) zoning is “…to promote orderly and proper development of 

single-family residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from 

inharmonious and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and 

city.” 

 

The intent of the Specific Use is “… to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. This 



Page 2 of 2 
 

district provides for variations in the land use standards with the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 

principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require specific site 

planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land use standards 

will be in harmony with the purpose and objectives of the zoning ordinance as stated in Section 1 {29-2} 

[40.01.002].”  

 

The intent of the General Retail District (C-3) is”… to provide for general commercial uses which are medium 

activity centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares 

such as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 

adjacent residential areas should be considered.”  

 
   Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The location is along 50th Street, and Upland Avenue which are designated as Principal Arterials by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of 
local traffic and regional traffic.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. The subject property is located on the corner of two principal arterial streets and would 

provide a buffer from those streets to future residential development in the area.  

 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The future land use map designates this area for Commercial and Low Density Residential uses. The proposed 

zone change to C-3 would not be in conformance with a portion of the Future Land Use Plan, but would be in 

conformance with the suggested Commercial designation indicated at the intersection of two arterial streets 

within the Future Land Use Plan and the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located on the corner 

of two principal arterial streets.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

Additional infrastructure improvements will be necessary, as the property has not been platted.  

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Replies 

 
Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

 
 
 
 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


 

 

 

Allowable Uses: General Retail District (C-3) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 50th Street and Upland 

Avenue. 
 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

50th Street, 

Principal Arterial, 

Incomplete 

R.O.W. 110 feet, three- 

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven- 

lane, undivided, paved 

Upland Avenue, 

Principal Arterial, 

incomplete 

 

R.O.W. 80 feet, two-lane, 

undivided, paved 

 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven- 

lane, undivided, paved 

 

Engineering Comments: No comments. 

Public Works Comments: No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments: No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 

 

5.8 Zone Case 3058-E: Seventeen Services, LLC for Shag Holdings LLC, request for a zone change from 

Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Residential Estates to General Retail District (C-3), at: 

 

• 7214 50th Street, located north of 50th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 5.151 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38. 

 

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ stated there were ten (10) notifications sent out with one (1) returned in favor. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff 

recommends approval of this request.  

 

APPLICANT TYLER GENTRY, 1500 Broadway, Suite 203, with Seventeen Services, advised the intended use has not 

been decided, but a house is not a good fit for the location. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition of the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3058-E, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by AVIRAJ PATEL to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 
 

Attachment A Page 1 of 1 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3058-E 













3058-E 
 
 

 

      View of subject property to the east.                       View to the south. 
  
 

 

 

View to the north.    View to the west. 







 AI# 11941 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 38. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00128, for Zone Case
3489, a request of Betenbough Homes, LLC, for a zone change from Transition District (T) to
Two-Family District (R-2), generally located south of 146th Street and west of Frankford Avenue, on
207.15 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 10.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.13 ZC3489_Ordinance 
8.13 ZC3489_Report 
8.13 ZC3489_Documentation 









METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 207.15 acre tract located in Section 10, Block 
AK, Abstract 704, Lubbock County, Texas, being a portion of a 639.316 acre tract described 
under County Clerk File Number 2021006764, Official Public Records of Lubbock County, 
Texas, said 207.15 acre tract being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set in the Northern 
boundary of a 639.316 acre tract, described under County Clerk File Number 2021006764, 
Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, for the Northwest corner of this tract, which 
bears S. 88°17'53" E. a distance of 1998.28 feet from a 1" iron pipe found at the Northwest 
corner of Section 10, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas; 
 
THENCE S. 88°17'53" E., along the North line of said Section 10 and the Northern boundary of 
said 639.316 acre tract, a distance of 2976.39 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set for the most Northerly Northeast corner of this tract, whence a "MAG" 
spike found at the Northeast corner of said Section 10 and the Northeast corner of said 639.316 
acre tract bears S. 88°17'53" E. a distance of 350.00 feet; 
 
THENCE S. 01°52'42" W. a distance of 365.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE S. 88°17'53" E. a distance of 350.00 feet to a "MAG" nail with shiner set in the East 
line of said Section 10 and the Eastern boundary of said 639.316 acre tract, for the most Easterly 
Northeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01°52'42" W., along the East line of said Section 10 and the Eastern boundary of 
said 639.316 acre tract, a distance of 2938.37 feet to a "MAG" nail with shiner set for the 
Southeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 88°06'18" W. a distance of 50.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 43°06'48" W. a distance of 42.43 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 88°06'18" W. a distance of 70.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 86°00'19" W. a distance of 150.11 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 88°06'18" W. a distance of 1051.35 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set for the most Southerly Southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 01°53'42" E. a distance of 64.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 46°47'54" E. a distance of 21.18 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 01°42'07" E. a distance of 765.31 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 

Exhibit "A"



THENCE N. 43°12'06" W. a distance of 21.25 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 88°06'18" W. a distance of 881.10 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE S. 46°47'54" W. a distance of 21.18 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE S. 01°42'07" W. a distance of 2.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set. 
 
THENCE N. 88°06'18" W. a distance of 64.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 43°12'06" W. a distance of 21.25 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set; 
 
THENCE N. 88°06'18" W. a distance of 998.20 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO 
REED & ASSOC." set for the most Westerly Southwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 01°53'42" E. a distance of 2399.36 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Contains: 207.15 acres 
 





Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3489 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

Applicant Betenbough Homes, LLC 

Property Owner  Betenbough Homes, LLC 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The northern portion of the subject property was annexed

into the City Limits and zoned Transition District (T).
• August 24, 2021, Ordinance No. 2021-O0099: The southern portion of the subject property was annexed

into the City Limits and zoned Transition District (T).
• September 7, 2023, Zone Case 3489: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

zone change from Transition District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 39
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 3 

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is currently unplatted. 

Adjacent Property Development  
The property is surrounded by Transition District (T) to the north, south and west with single-family residences 
to the east, outside of the City Limits.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located south of 146th Street and west of Frankford Avenue. The applicant 
requests a zone change from Local Transition District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2). 

Current zoning: Transition District (T) 

Requested zoning: Two-Family District (R-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current T zoning is “to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is “to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly increased 
densities and multiple occupancy.” 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located south of 146th Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial, and west of Frankford 
Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous 
routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses with Commercial uses at the 
intersection of Frankford Avenue and 146th Street. Although the proposed zone change to R-2 is not consistent 
with this designation, Medium Density Residential Land use would be appropriate in this location and would 
conform to the principles of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 
location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed district because it would not change the characteristics of the existing 
development in the area. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and Supporting Documentation
I. Response Letters 

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea  
Planner  
Planning Department 
806-775-2096 
ahenry@mylubbock.us

Victor Escamilla 
Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department 
806-775-3029
vescamilla@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3489 

 

Allowable Uses:   Two-Family District (R-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 146th Street and Frankford 

Avenue. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 

 

5.10 Zone Case 3489: Betenbough Homes, LLC, request for a zone change from Transition District (T) 

to Two-Family District (R-2), at: 

 

• Generally located south of 146th Street and west of Frankford Avenue, on 207.15 

acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 10. 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there were thirty-nine (39) notifications sent out with three (3) returned in 

opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding 

property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WES EVERETT, 6305 82nd Street, with Betenbough Homes, stated they intend to build 1,200 homes, 

a mix of their core product and cottages. They want to blend the new development into the existing community. 

IN OPPOSITION FRANCIS McCORMICK, 5637 CR 7540, stated concerns about how this will affect the values of 

the homes in these established areas. There is already a great deal of traffic on Frankford, and duplexes bring 

in more. Windsor Park, Sundance, and Highland Oaks are all out in this area, and they don't have duplexes. 

Duplexes do not belong out here. 

APPLICANT WES EVERETT noted the main entrance to the property would be in the middle of the community, 

entering and exiting onto Frankford with another one on 146th Street. If the developer builds duplexes, they 

Thoroughfare 

 

Existing Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

146th Street  

Principal Arterial 

(Partially Completed) 

 

R.O.W. 54 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-

lane, undivided, paved 

Frankford Avenue 

Minor Arterial 

(Partially Completed) 

R.O.W. 84 feet, two-

lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-

lane, undivided, paved 



Zone Case 3489 

 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 

 

will be on 146th Street. Everything else will be a single-family, cottage home ranging from 1,000 to 1,200 square 

feet. 

JORDAN WHEATLEY asked if the reason for requesting R-2 is to have the option to build duplexes and garden 

homes along with the single-family homes, and MR. EVERETT answered in the affirmative. 

IN OPPOSITION J.W. MICHELS, 5752 150th Street, stated he lives in the manufactured community directly across 

from the subject property. It is a very peaceful community with very minimal crime. If duplexes were to be built 

across the street, there would be an increase in the criminal activity. In listening to the applicant, his idea 

actually sounds like a good idea. 

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3489, a motion was made by BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by JAMES BELL 

to approve the request. The Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 













3489

East View.West View.

South View.North View—Subject Property.

















 AI# 11942 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 39. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00129, for Zone Case
3032-B, a request of DLC Designs, LLC for Daniel Aaron Homes of West Texas, LLC, Drylands
Homes, LLC, and KLemer Real Estate, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1)
Specific Use for Townhomes to Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Garden Homes, at 50, 51,
52, 64, and 65 Amesbury Court and 66 and 67 Windsor Court, located north of Erskine Street and east of
North Milwaukee Avenue, Wilshire Estates Addition, Lots 50, 51, 52, 64, 65, 66, and 67.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 8-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.14 ZC3032-B_Ordinance 
8.14 ZC3032-B_Report 
8.14 ZC3032-B_Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3032-B 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

Applicant DLC Designs, LLC 

Property Owner Daniel Aaron Homes of West Texas, LLC, Drylands Homes, LLC, and KLemer Real 
Estate, LLC   

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 26, 1973, Ordinance No. 6596: The southern portion of the subject property was annexed into the 

city limits and zoned Transition District (T) and Single-Family District (R-1).
• December 16, 2004, Zone Case 3024, Ordinance No. 2004-O0143: The southern portion of the subject 

property was rezoned from T and R-1 to R-1 Specific Use for townhomes and garden homes.
• February 10, 2005, Ordinance No. 2005-O0014: The northern portion of the subject property was 

annexed into the city limits and zoned T.
• April 14, 2005, Zone Case 3032, Ordinance No. 2005-O0039: The northern portion of the subject 

property was rezoned from T to R-1 Specific Use for townhomes and garden homes.
• March 8, 2018, Zone Case 3032-A, Ordinance No. 2018-O0035: The subject properties were rezoned 

from R-1 Specific Use for townhomes and garden homes to R-1 Specific Use for townhomes.
• September 7, 2023, Zone Case 3032-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for 

a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Townhomes to Single-Family District (R-
1) Specific Use for garden homes by a vote of 8-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 52
• Received In Favor: 3
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject properties were originally platted as Wilshire Estates Addition, Lots 50, 51, 52, 64, 65, 66 and 67 on 
January 20, 2006. On April 25, 2006, the original plat was amended. Currently, Lots 50, 51, 52, 64, 65, 66 and 
67 remain vacant.    

Adjacent Property Development 
Lots 64, 65, 66, and 67 are surrounded by residential homes zoned R-1 Specific Use for garden homes. Lots 50, 
51, and 52 are surrounded by residential homes to the north and east zoned R-1 Specific Use for garden homes, 
and to the west is developed with a retirement home zoned General Retail District (C-3), and to the south is 
vacant land zoned Two-Family District (R-2) and Local retail District (C-2).   

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject properties are addressed as 50, 51, 52 64, and 65 Amesbury Court and 66 and 67 Windsor Court, 
located north of Erskine Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue. The applicant requests a zone change from Single-
Family District (R-1) Specific Use for townhomes to R-1 Specific Use for garden homes. 

Current zoning: Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for townhouses. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Requested zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for garden homes. 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses, and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the ordinance, provided the 
intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Erskine Street, Windsor Court, and Amesbury Court. The Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, designates Erskine Street as a Principal Arterial. Arterial streets are continuous routes 
whose function is to serve the high-volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. Windsor Court and Amesbury 
Court are designated as private roads in the gated community of Wilshire Estates.   
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed specific use is compatible with the surrounding area. Lots 67 and 66 are currently not capable of 
townhome development, as the lots are not connected. The additional lots are surrounded by other garden homes 
making it compatible with the neighborhood.     
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for this area.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the Specific Use zoning district. 
 
Attachments 
A. Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C.  Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F.  Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H.  Application and supporting documentation 
I. Notification Responses 
 
Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla    Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-3029 
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3032-B 

 

Allowable Uses:   Single-Family District (R-1) and, Specific Use District for Garden Homes  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Erskine Street, Windsor CT 

and Amesbury CT. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Erskine Street,  
Principal Arterial, 

Partially Completed 

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Windsor CT,  
Private Road, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Amesbury CT,  
Private Road, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

             District 6 
 
 5.13 Zone Case 3032-B: DLC Designs, LLC for Daniel Aaron Homes of West Texas, LLC,  
 Drylands Homes, LLC, and KLemer Real Estate, LLC, request for a zone change from  
 Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Townhomes to Single-Family District (R- 
 1) Specific Use for Garden Homes, at: 
 

 50, 51, 52, 64, and 65 Amesbury Court and 66 and 67 Windsor Court, located 

north of Erskine Street and east of North Milwaukee Avenue, Wilshire 

Estates Addition, Lots 50, 51, 52, 64, 65, 66, and 67. 

 
PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were fifty-three (53) notifications sent out and three (3) 
returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed 
the surrounding property. Lots 66 and 67 are currently not capable of townhome development as the 
lots are not connected. Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
JAMES BELL noted the property was previously zoned for garden homes when they changed it to zoning 
for townhomes back in 2018, and now they are wanting to go back to garden homes. 

https://ecode360.com/38876123
https://ecode360.com/38879092


Zone Case 3032-B 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

APPLICANT AMANDA KING, 1318 North King Avenue, with DLC Designs, stated the request is to build 
garden homes on the lots to match the rest of the development. They can only assume the previous 
owners intended to replat so that townhomes could be built. That did not happen. 
 
No one spoke in favor or in opposition of this request. 
 
In the matter of Zone Case 3032-B a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by TERRI 
MORRIS to approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 
approve the motion.. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

 

 











3032-B 

 

Lot 67 

 

  

Lot 66  

Lot 64 and 65 



3032-B 

 

Lot 52 

 

  

Lot 51   

Lot 50 

 

View to the east. 







City of Lubbock, TX
Planning Department

Planning and Zoning Commission
Reply Form

If for any reason you will be unable to attend the public hearing advertised by this notice,
and wish to present your comments regarding the case, please complete this form and
return it to the Secretary of the Planning and Zoning Commission, c/o Planning
Department, P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, TX 79457 or email to
CityPlanning~mylubbock.us.

If you have any questions pertaining to the case, please call the City of Lubbock Planning
Department at 806-775-21 08.

Please check one of the following to indicate if you are in favor of, or opposed to, the

zone change reque~d by: P&Z Case No.: 3O32~8

In Favor V

Opposed

Print Name ~OI~ LC9C,ythft~V’~d
Signature: ,Vj/~Ii1O~itti iW~,kf7~2h1~4’
Address: &4 f~11/?~P U~VL& CA. 1~2D~i~?1 Th
Address of Property Owned: ~4 ck - ~—W0~~.JA, fl( 7~t Li
Phone Number: ~ 77g ~ô~g
Email: ~L~tt~kCW14~ U~{CSOt~ -

Zone Case Nui~ber: 3O32-~ R310742
WENTLAND MADISON L & CHRISTIAN R
61 AMESBURY CT
LUBBOCK TX 79416-2 168

Reasons and/or Comments:

Recipient 13 of 52



City of Lubbock, TX
Planning Department

Planning and Zoning Commission
Reply Form

If for any reason you will be unable to attend the public hearing advertised by this notice,
and wish to present your comments regarding the case, please complete this form and
return it to the Secretary of the Planning and Zoning Commission, do Planning
Department, P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, TX 79457 or email to
CityPlanning~mylubbock.us.

If you have any questions pertaining to the case, please call the City of Lubbock Planning
Department at 806-775-2108.

Please check one of the following to indicate if you are in favor of, or opposed to, the

zone change reque)ted by: P&Z Case No.: 3032-

In Favor ____

Opposed

Reasons and/or Comments:

Print Name ~ ‘C ,....j ~ ~. ii
Signature:

Address:

Address of Property Owned: i ~ii1L ~
‘ii’’

Phone Number: ~ ~. 1 ~

Email: a 4 ~ ~I ~b i AlA

Zone Case Number: 3032-B R310777 Recipient 20 of 52

DRYLANDS HOMES LLC
61 AMESBURY CT
LUBBOCK TX 79416



City of Lubbock, TX
Planning Department

Planning and Zoning Commission
Reply Form

If for any reason you will be unable to attend the public hearing advertised by this notice,
and wish to present your comments regarding the case, please complete this form and
return it to the Secretary of the Planning and Zoning Commission, do Planning
Department, P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, TX 79457 or email to
CityPlanning~mylubbock.us.

If you have any questions pertaining to the case, please call the City of Lubbock Planning
Department at 806-775-2108.

Please check one of the following to indicate if you are in favor of, or opposed to, the

zone change requested by: P&Z Case No.: 3032-
In Favor ____

Opposed

Reasons and/or Comments:

P~nt Name ~ i / lÀ

Signature: /

Address: •≥.~

Address of Property Owned: iL4 à~

Phone Number: €O(D ?7~ O~5~
Email: ô I 1* &~ L’t~~.

Zone Case Number: 3032-: R310778 Recipient 21 of 52

DRYLANDS HOMES LLC
61 AMESBURY CT
LUBBOCK TX 79416



 AI# 11943 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 40. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00130, for Zone Case
2538-KK, a request of Delta Land Surveying for Red Yucca 806 Investments LLC, for a zone change
from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 2402 Urbana Place, located north of
25th Street and west of Urbana Place, Parkdale Addition, Block 2, Lots 3 through 5.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a unanimous
vote.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended denial of the request by a vote of
4-4-0. Therefore, a supermajority vote, or three-fourths of the governing body (6 out of 7 votes), is
required for the request to be approved.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
 

Attachments
8.15 ZC2538-KK_Ordinance 
8.15 ZC2538-KK_Report 
8.15 ZC2538-KK_Documentation 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2538-KK 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

Applicant Delta Land Surveying 

Property Owner  Red Yucca 806 Investments, LLC 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 27, 1984, Ordinance No. 8660: The subject property was annexed into the City Limits and 

zoned Transition District (T).
• October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538, Ordinance No. 8827: The subject property was rezoned 

from Transition District (T) to Single-Family District (R-1).
• September 7, 2023, Zone Case 2538-KK: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of a 

zone change from R-1 to Two-Family District (R-2) by a vote of 4-4-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 25
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was platted on June 26, 1950 as Parkdale Addition, Block 2, Lots 3 through 5. The property 
is currently undeveloped. 

Adjacent Property Development  
The property is adjacent to low density residential land uses, zoned R-1, to the north, south, east, with vacant 
land to the west.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 2402 Urbana Place, located north of 25th Street and west of Urbana Place. 
The applicant requests a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2). 

Current zoning: Single-Family District (R-1) 

Requested zoning: Two-Family District (R-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current R-1 zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development of single-family residential 
units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious and harmful 
land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is “to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly increased 
densities and multiple occupancy.” 



Page 2 of 2 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 25th Street, which is designated as a Local Street, and west of Urbana Place, 
which is designated as a Collector by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets provide access to smaller, 
destination-oriented areas such as neighborhoods, subdivisions, or local business districts. Collectors provide 
access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. The proposed zone change 
is compatible with this designation. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance and is appropriate at the proposed 
location. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed district because it would not change the characteristics of the existing 
neighborhood. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and Supporting Documentation

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea  Victor Escamilla 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2096 806-775-3029
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2538-KK 

 

Allowable Uses:   Two-Family District (R-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 25th Street and Urbana 

Place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

             District 6 
 
 5.12 Zone Case 2538-KK: Delta Land Surveying for Red Yucca 806 Investments LLC, 

 request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-
 2), at: 

 

 2402 Urbana Place, located north of 25th Street and west of Urbana Place, 
Parkdale Addition, Block 2, Lots 3 through 5. 

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there were twenty-five (25) notifications sent out with none returned. 
Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding 
property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
APPLICANT ROBERT KENNEDY, 1310 Jarvis Street, with Delta Land Surveying, stated the client's request 
is for the purpose of putting duplexes on this property.  
 
No one spoke in favor or in opposition of the request. 
 

Thoroughfare 
 

Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

25th Street 
Local Street 

R.O.W. 30 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 30 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Urbana Place 
Collector 

(Completed) 

R.O.W. 46 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 46 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 



Zone Case 2538-KK 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

JAMES BELL stated that he is not against R-2 zoning, but looking at this particular area, they want to 
build duplexes on three lots within one block. The future land use for that whole area is single-family. If 
we allow the spot zoning in this case, we set a bad precedence for others wanting to do the same thing.   
 
In the matter of Zone Case 2538-KK a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by JAMES 
BELL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 4 (in favor) to 4 (in opposition) to 
approve the motion.  The request is denied. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 
SUSAN TOMLINSON, TERRI MORRIS, RENEE CAGE, and JAMES BELL cast the votes in opposition. 
 

 











2538-KK

East View.

North View—Subject Property. South View.

West View.





 AI# 11919 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution to nominate board members to serve as Appraisal
District Directors for the Lubbock Central Appraisal District.

Item Summary
Section 6.03 of the Texas Property Tax Code establishes the selection process for taxing unit
appointments of five appraisal district directors. To be valid, nominations must be by Resolution of the
Governing Body (City Council) and submitted to the Chief Appraiser before October 15, 2023.

The City of Lubbock currently has five directors serving on the board:
Sonny Garza
Brady Goen
Greg Jones
Bobby McQueen
Noe Reynolds

All of the aforementioned are eligible for reappointment.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
LCAD Nomination Resolution 
LCAD Letter - 2023 











 AI# 11940 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00127, for Zone Case
3205-A, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Paradise Business Park, LLC, for a zone change from
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Local Retail District (C-2), generally located west of
Frankford Avenue and south of 116th Street, on 5.524 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section
20.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a vote of 5-2-0. 

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 7-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.12 ZC3205-A_Ordinance 
8.12 ZC3205-A_Report 
8.12 ZC3205-A Documentation 









�

���������	�
���������
��	������������������

���������������  ��
!"##$%&'�()�*+,���

-�./*��/0*�*�
11123 4��4#&2%$5�

�
�
�

( 6���!�% 7� �8��5�9"5# �����+,,+.�
:7;�7  ��7;�8��5�9"5# ��8/<<+,-�

=>?>@�ABC�DEFBC@�C>@GHIJ?IEB�EK�A�LMLNO�AGH>�?HAG?�EK�PABCQ�R>IBS�?T>�@AU>�?HAG?�EK�PABC�C>@GHIR>C�IB�
VEFB?W�VP>HX�YIP>�ZFUR>H�[VVYZ\�N]̂_]ǸN]NQ�aKKIGIAP�bFRPIG�c>GEHC@�EK�dFRREGX�VEFB?WQ�e>fA@�
[abcdVe\Q�R>IBS�EF?�EK�g>G?IEB�N]Q�DPEGX�hiQ�dFRREGX�VEFB?WQ�e>fA@Q�ABC�R>IBS�UEH>�JAH?IGFPAHPW�
C>@GHIR>C�A@�KEPPEj@k�

D>SIBBIBS�A?�A�JEIB?�IB�YHABXKEHC�hl>BF>Q�ABC�IB�?T>�mA@?�PIB>�EK�@AIC�g>G?IEB�N]Q�KEH�?T>�gEF?T>A@?�

GEHB>H�EK�?T>�JPA?�PIUI?@�EK�nAW@�m@?A?>@Q�A�gFRCIlI@IEB�EF?�EK�g>G?IEB�N]Q�DPEGX�hiQ�dFRREGX�VEFB?WQ�

e>fA@Q�H>GEHC>C�IB�oEPFU>�̂pOOQ�bAS>�̂]OQ�q>>C�c>GEHC@�EK�dFRREGX�VEFB?WQ�e>fA@�[qcdVe\Q�ABC�KEH�?T>�

ZEH?T>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�?TI@�?HAG?Q�jT>BG>�?T>�ZEH?T>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�@AIC�g>G?IEB�N]�I@�GAPP>C�?E�R>AH�ZEH?TQ�

AJJHEfIUA?>PW�rr]�K>>?s�

eT>BG>�gEF?TQ�P>AlIBS�@AIC�nAW@�m@?A?>@Q�jI?T�?T>�mA@?�PIB>�EK�@AIC�g>G?IEB�N]Q�ABC�jI?T�YHABXKEHC�

hl>BF>Q�AJJHEfIUA?>PW�̂OO�K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�KEH�?T>�ZEH?T>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�?TA?�LMLOt�AGH>�?HAG?�C>@GHIR>C�IB�

VVYZ�N]̂_]O]]̂LQ�abcdVeQ�ABC�KEH�?T>�UE@?�mA@?>HPW�gEF?T>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�?TI@�?HAG?s�

eT>BG>�u>@?Q�P>AlIBS�YHABXKEHC�Al>BF>Q�jI?T�?T>�ZEH?T�PIB>�EK�@AIC�LMLOt�AGH>�?HAG?Q�AJJHEfIUA?>PW�pp]�

K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�KEH�?T>�ZEH?Tj>@?�GEHB>H�EK�@AIC�LMLOt�AGH>�?HAG?Q�ABC�KEH�A�GEHB>H�EK�?TI@�?HAG?s�

eT>BG>�gEF?TQ�jI?T�?T>�u>@?�PIB>�EK�@AIC�LMLOt�AGH>�?HAG?Q�AJJHEfIUA?>PW�̂̀p�K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�KEH�A�GEHB>H�

EK�?T>�uAI?@�?HAG?�C>@GHIR>C�IB�oEPFU>�p_]]Q�bAS>�_]pQ�c>AP�bHEJ>H?W�c>GEHC@�EK�dFRREGX�VEFB?WQ�e>fA@�

[cbcdVe\Q�ABC�KEH�?T>�UE@?�gEF?T>HPW�gEF?T>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�?TI@�?HAG?s�

eT>BG>�u>@?Q�P>AlIBS�@AIC�LMLOt�AGH>�?HAG?Q�jI?T�?T>�ZEH?T�PIB>�EK�@AIC�uAI?@�?HAG?Q�AJJHEfIUA?>PW�̂r̀�

K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�KEH�A�GEHB>H�EK�@AIC�uAI?@�?HAG?Q�ABC�KEH�A�GEHB>H�EK�?TI@�?HAG?s�

eT>BG>�Z]]v̂]w]txuQ�jI?T�A�GEUUEB�PIB>�jI?T�@AIC�uAI?@�?HAG?Q�AJJHEfIUA?>PW�_]�K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�KEH�A�

GEHB>H�EK�@AIC�uAI?@�?HAG?Q�ABC�KEH�A�GEHB>H�EK�?TI@�?HAG?s�

eT>BG>�Z̀rvLtwL]xuQ�jI?T�?T>�ZEH?T�PIB>�EK�@AIC�uAI?@�?HAG?Q�AJJHEfIUA?>PW�Np̀�K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�KEH�?T>�

gEF?T>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�?TA?�M]rNN�AGH>�?HAG?�C>@GHIR>C�IB�VVYZ�N]̂t]N]_t̀Q�abcdVeQ�ABC�KEH�?T>�

gEF?Tj>@?�GEHB>H�EK�?TI@�?HAG?s�

eT>BG>�Z]]v]_w_̂xmQ�P>AlIBS�@AIC�uAI?�?HAG?Q�jI?T�?T>�mA@?�PIB>�EK�@AIC�]MrNN�AGH>�?HAG?Q�AJJHEfIUA?>PW�

_]]�K>>?�?E�A�JEIB?�IB�?T>�gEF?T�PIB>�EK�A�N]�KEE?�APP>WQ�ABC�IB�?T>�gEF?T�JPA?�PIUI?@�EK�@AIC�nAW@�m@?A?>@Q�

KEH�?T>�ZEH?T>A@?�GEHB>H�EK�@AIC�]MrNN�AGH>�?HAG?Q�ABC�KEH�?T>�ZEH?Tj>@?�GEHB>H�EK�?TI@�?HAG?s�

eT>BG>�mA@?Q�P>AlIBS�@AIC�]MrNN�AGH>�?HAG?Q�jI?T�?T>�gEF?T�PIB>�EK�@AIC�N]�KEE?�APP>WQ�ABC�jI?T�?T>�gEF?T�

JPA?�PIUI?@�EK�@AIC�nAW@�m@?A?>@Q�AJJHEfIUA?>PW�̂̂Np�K>>?�?E�?T>�bEIB?�EK�D>SIBBIBSM�

YI>PC�ZE?>@�JH>JAH>C�KEH�yEB>�GA@>�JFHJE@>@�EBPWM�eTI@�CE>@�BE?�H>JH>@>B?�AB�AGGFHA?>�@FHl>W�UAC>�EB�

?T>�SHEFBCM�

q>P?A�dABC�gFHl>WIBS�zER�ZEM�N_ONp���������������hFSF@?�_Q�N]N_�

�

Exhibit "A"





Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3205-A 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

Applicant Seventeen Services, LLC 

Property Owner Paradise Business Park, LLC 

Council District 5 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 4, 2008, Ordinance No. 2008-O0104: The subject property was annexed into city limits and 

zoned Transition District (T).
• May 9, 2013, Zone Case 3205, Ordinance No. 2013-O0048: The subject property was zoned from T to 

Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC).
• September 7, 2023, Zone Case 3205-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from IHC to Local Retail District (C-2) by a vote of 7-1-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 19
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is currently unplatted. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The subject property is surrounded by Single-Family Residences, zoned Transition District (T) to the north with 
additional residential properties, zoned T, to the south and west and vacant land, zoned Local Retail District (C-
2) to the east.

Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located west of Frankford Avenue and South of 116th Street. The applicant is 
requesting a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Local Retail District (C-2). 

Current zoning: Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

Requested zoning: Local Retail District (C-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current IHC zoning is “…to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 
which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 
areas.” 

The intent of the proposed C-2 zoning is”… to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 
serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 
intersections of major thoroughfares.” 



Page 2 of 2 

 Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is generally located west of Frankford Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial and south of 
116th Street, which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial Streets are 
continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional traffic. Local Streets 
typically provide access to smaller destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions, or local 
business districts.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. While the proposed zone 
change to C-2 is not consistent with this designation, it is appropriate in this location and consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan Principles. C-2 zoning is appropriate along a thoroughfare and is a more restrictive zoning 
district than the existing IHC zoning.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance due to the current IHC zoning. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
No infrastructure improvements would be necessary to accommodate the uses allowed with C-2 zoning. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Map
C. Aerial Map
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea Victor Escamilla 
Planner Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2097 806-775-3029
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us

mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3205-A 

 

Allowable Uses: Local Retail District (C-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Frankford Avenue and 117th 

Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 

Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 

Minor Arterial, 

Partially Completed 

R.O.W. 106 feet, 2 lanes, 

undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5 lanes, 

undivided, paved 

117th Street, 

 Local Street, 

Incomplete 

R.O.W. 60 feet, 2 lanes, 

undivided, unpaved 

R.O.W. 60 feet, 2 lanes, 

undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 

 

5.9  Zone Case 3205-A: Seventeen Services, LLC for Paradise Business Park, LLC, request for a zone 

change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Local Retail District (C-2), at: 

 

• Generally located west of Frankford Avenue and south of 116th Street, on 5.524 

acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 20.  

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there was nineteen (19) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff 

recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT KAYLEE HERNANDEZ, 1500 Broadway, Suite 203, with Seventeen Services, advised the client wants 

to do a mix of garden offices and a shopping center on the east portion of the property, which would need to 

align with C-2 for the NC zoning under the UDC. C-2 is more flexible in the UDC. 

IN OPPOSITION LESA RAMBY, 5813 116th Street, noted the subject property is right behind her alley. The traffic 

is not going to travel down that skinny portion to get to the property, but rather, they will be using her road. It 

is only a half-acre wide. She has lived in the neighborhood for 31 years and it is so quiet. That will change if this 

zone change is allowed. She cannot fathom how they can put commercial in an acre-deep parcel. There won't 



Zone Case 3205-A 

 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 

 

be enough parking. The only positive that will come out of it, is the area will finally be cleaned up. It is a mess, 

with weeds taller than her. 

CHAIR SAWYER clarified there is an alley that separates the properties running east and west on the north side 

of the subject property and the south side of the residential homes facing 116th Street. 

CHAIR SAWYER asked if, regardless of the use, a fence would have to be put up there, and staff replied in the 

affirmative. 

APPLICANT KAYLEE HERNANDEZ mentioned the plans are not to access the property through the alley. Access 

will be off of Frankford Avenue. The little strip is wide enough to allow for a twenty-foot buffer yard and a fire 

lane access to the entire development. The concentration is on the east side of the development as a means of 

access.  

JAMES BELL asked for the zoning of the home on the west side of the subject property, and staff advised it is 

zoned Transition District (T). 

IN OPPOSITION PATRICIA CASTRO, 5918 117th Street, advised she visited with someone from the City, and was 

told 117th Street will likely be an access to the proposed shopping center. It could possibly also become a cul-

de-sac. MS. CASTRO asked if a fence would be required. When buying the property, she did not know the zoning 

of the home, but she did not envision being in such close proximity to a commercial shopping center. With the 

only entrance as Frankford Avenue, in the event  of an emergency, there is only one exit, which is a big safety 

concern. 

CHAIR SAWYER asked staff if the developer would be required to put up a masonry or wood fence at a minimum 

height of six-feet, and staff replied in the affirmative, adding that a buffer yard is also going to be required. 

JORDAN WHEATLEY asked staff to explain the current zoning, of the property, IHC. 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER replied that IHC allows many more uses than the requested C-2 zoning. 

It allows the typical commercial uses such as retail sales, grocery stores, gyms, restaurants, but it also allows 

bars, night clubs, and more intense uses like automotive body shops. 

JORDAN WHEATLEY stated that he understands the concern of a C-2 zoning request, but as of right now with 

its current zoning, it could be much worse. 

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

JAMES BELL understands the concerns, but the downzone is a positive. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3205-A, a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by BRANDON HARDAWAY 

to approve the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

BRANDON HARDAWAY cast the vote in opposition. 

 











3205-A

North View South View.

East View.West View—Subject Property



����������	

�
����	����
��

����������������������
�����

��������� !�"#�$"�

%&&'()%*(+,-.+/-0+,(,1-)2%,13-

-&456789-(:;54<=9>5:-

���	���
�����??��@@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

���@� �	��@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

C����D�E���@��	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

F���@�	
?����
?@����	�G�?A�����H�@�����------I������-  ��	������	����J�K�L��@�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

M��@��
���	
?�N@�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� M��@��
��O�
�
�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

K�L��@��?�O�
�
�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

PJ��������D��@�
���@��?���?�?��Q����	��������
	�D���	�����@�������?R�� �H�@�����------- I�������

----/7S47T7:9=9>U7V%W7:9-(:;54<=9>5:-X>;-Y>;;747:9-;45<-5Z:74[-

\����I	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

I	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�??��@@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��]��DABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��C�	��ABBBBBBBBBB�

OP��]�?�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� ����G�
�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBM�	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

������	
�̂@�C��
	����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB����
��?�I	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

-+Z:74-(:;54<=9>5:-

\����I	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�Q
��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�??��@@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��]��DABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��C�	��ABBBBBBBBBB�

OP��]�?�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� ����G�
�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBM�	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�������D��Q
��̂@�C��
	����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB����
��?�I	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

----&47S=474-(:;54<=9>5:�

����	���̂@�C��
	����ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB����
��?�I	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

-.54-)>9_-̀T7-+:a_-

O�
��]	@��I�ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB���	

�
��	
?�O�
�
��]����@@��
�	��ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

K�L��@��J���b�
�
���G	
���J���ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� �ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

���@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB������@ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

�??����
ABBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

PJ�D���G	���	
D�L��@���
@�����	�
�
������G��b�
�
�������@@�����	@����
�	����G��]��D��J�����������	

�
����	����
��
�D��G�
��	��cd�ef�""$�g����d�����D��g�	���	�����D��	

�
�h�D�������i�@i��

jklmnopnpolqrnmlsttunvsqnwpxlyttunvspqlsoz{{mlsp|l}szzspqmlqrsqlspklsp|lsuul~sq{znsumlm��~nqq{|lqwlqr{l�nqklnplm�ttwzqlwzlz{�{z{pv{lqwlqrnmlsttunvsqnwplsz{lpwql
tzwq{vq{|l�klvwtkznorqmlwzxlnplvsm{mlw�ltwq{pqnsulvwtkznorq{|l~sq{znsumxlqr{lyttunvspqlnmlqr{lmwu{lw}p{zlw�lspklvwtkznorq{|lnpq{z{mqlsp|lozspqmlqwlqr{l�nqkl

t{z~nmmnwplsp|lunv{pm{lqwlz{tzw|�v{xlt��unmrxl|nmqzn��q{lsp|l�qnun�{lm�vrl~sq{znsum�

��������������������������������������������������������� �¡��

¢£¤��¤�¡¥¦�����¢�����§�������������̈������

�����
©��ª«��¬��®���̄��ª��°�ª�¬�±���²�°����£��� ©³¦

¦�

¡���������¡���¬°�«��££¦

§́���µ����́

�����¢����¶�́�¡ª¬�����̈ £ª··�°� §̧

����� ����������̈¨ �́��¹��«���¬°�«�°�º

��»�̈»���̈ §́���µ����́

�¼����¬«��¢ª«¬��««�¼�����££¦

¢���́�½�������¾�́�§�́��

�̈�̈����� �¡�� £ª··�°� §̧

����̈ ·���́¹���°���¬���°�

��»�̈»���̈ ¢���́�½��

��»�̈»���̈ ¬̄° ���¥��¬�±�

¿

¸



 AI# 11945 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O00131, for Zone Case
3175-G, a request of SK Architecture Group for 806 Land Group LLC, for a zone change from
Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) to
High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at 5914 Erskine Street, located north of Erskine Street, and west
of North Genoa Avenue, on 3.475 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 7.

Item Summary
On September 26, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a vote of 6-1-0.  

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 7, 2023, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 4-3-1.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
8.16 ZC3175-G_Ordinance 
8.16 ZC3175-G_Report 
8.16 ZC3175-G_Documentation 









�����������	
�����������	��	���������������������	����������������	��	��	�����������������������

�	
���������������
 ����!����"�#$%&$��&#'��()����*
����+��	����	��,
��	����	
�����-�.���

!(*+,�-"�������	
��	��/���	�������	���0/��,
��	����	
�����-�.������������� 	��������
���������������

����	��	1�23

��������������	���������4��������	����������������������������#$##$%5$%5��(*+,�-���	������

/	
��1�����	�����	��6��	1��7�����,	���###�-��	
���#5���8��8���	���	���������	��,
��	����,
��	���

�	
�����-�.�������	������������#$##$$�&'���(*+,�-���	�������	���1�����	�����	�������������1������

����/	
��������	�����	������/���	��������������	������/$%9�&:$#;7������	. ��������&�%����������

/&&9%%:�&;4������	. ������%&%$�������<3

-������/&&9%%:�&;4�����=�����������������������������#$##$%5$%5��1�������/	
�������	������

6��	1��7���������	. �������$��&�������	����	���������7��������	��-�����>8;��*	����?����� �����	����

/
�����	��8���	���	���������	��,
��	����,
��	����	
�����-�.�������	������������#$#$$%&&''��

(*+,�-���	������ 	���/	
�������/	
��������	�����	������6��	1��7����������	�������	���������	�����	��

���������<3

-������/$%9��:��;7�����=�������6��	1��7�����1�������7��������	������-�����>8;���������	. ������

#'��%���������������/	
��1�����	�����	������-�����>8;���	���
����	�����	������������	������	. ������

#'&�%�������	����	����������	��������	��4������/����������	������������#$##$��'�%��(*+,�-���	������

/	
��������	�����	�����������<3

-�������&&9%%:�&;7��1��������	��������	������4������/�����������	. �������$��&�������	����	�����

����4��������	����������������������������#$##$%5$%5��	������/	
��1�����	�����	�����������<3

-�������$%9��:��;4�����=�������4������/�������1�������4��������	����������������������������

#$##$%5$%5������	. ������#'&�%�������	�����*	���	����������3

������	��������������	��@	���������
��	����	�����-����	����	������������������
������
�=��� ����	��

������	
���3

0
���%#��#$#�3

Exhibit "A"



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3175-G 
City Council Meeting September 26, 2023 

 

Applicant SK Architecture Group  

 

Property Owner  806 Land Group LLC 

 

Council District   6 

 

Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 26, 1973, Ordinance No. 6596: The subject property was annexed into the City Limits and zoned 

Single-Family District (R-1). 

• September 13, 2018, Zone Case 3175-C, Ordinance No. 2018-O0106: The subject property was rezoned 

from Single-Family District (R-1) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2). 

• September 15, 2021, Zone Case 3175-F, Ordinance No. 2021-O0119: The subject property was rezoned 

from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A). 

• September 7, 2023 Zone Case 3175-G: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

request to rezone the subject property from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and Reduced Setback 

Single-Family District (R-1A) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) by a vote of 4-3-1. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 30 

• Received In Favor: 1 

• Received In Opposition: 11 (1 from outside notification boundary) 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property is unplatted and vacant. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the south and west are zoned Single-Family District (R-1), with Reduced Setback Single-Family 

District (R-1A) to the north, and High-Density Apartment District (A-2) Specific Use for a police station to the 

east. There are homes to the north, west and south, and a Police Department substation to the east. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 5914 Erskine Street, located north of Erskine Street, and west of North 

Genoa Avenue, on 3.6762 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 7.The applicant is requesting a zone 

change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2). 

 

Current zoning:  Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) 

   Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

 

Requested zoning:  High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

  



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-2A zoning is “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 

serve one or several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing shallow commercial centers 

adjacent to thoroughfares.” 

 

The intent of the requested A-2 zoning is “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 

land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 

and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land 

uses.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  

The location is along Erskine Street, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan 

2018. Arterials provide connectivity across the transportation network and are continuous routes whose function 

is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic.  

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. While the request does not 

conform to this designation, it would be appropriate next to adjacent land uses and along a major thoroughfare. 

Therefore, this request is in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a major 

thoroughfare and is appropriate adjacent to nearby residential uses. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property may be suitable for the proposed use, though additional improvements may be necessary.  

 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Responses 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-3029 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3175-G 

 

Allowable Uses: High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a proposed point of access from Erskine Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Erskine Street, 
Principal Arterial, 

Partial 

R.O.W. 20 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 5 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

             District 6 
 
 5.14 Zone Case 3175-G: SK Architecture Group for 806 Land Group LLC, request for a  

zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and Reduced Setback Single-
Family District (R-1A) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at: 

 

 5914 Erskine Street, located north of Erskine Street, and west of North 
Genoa Avenue, on 3.475 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 7. 

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were thirty (30) notifications sent out with one (1) returned in 
favor and ten (10) returned in opposition, one of which was outside the 200’ notification boundary. The 
letters of opposition stated concerns about traffic and noise. They also mentioned a preference for the 
commercial uses over the apartment use. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures 
and maps and discussed the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
APPLICANT GABRIEL SANCHEZ, 6302 70th Street, with SK Architecture Group, stated the design intent of 
the apartments is for high-end, boutique-style apartments that have an open plan concept. The firm is 
working to address all matters of concern, including creating a line-of-sight diagram, which will help 
alleviate those concerns. It is a to-scale reference that depicts what the true distance will look like from 
a certain point of view. For example, if a six-foot tall person was standing on a 24-foot tall balcony, the 
result of what they would actually be able to see from that point looking toward the neighborhood is 
depicted to scale. The alleyway and fences are taken into consideration as well. There is consideration 
to plant trees along the north property line to help the homeowners feel more comfortable with the 

https://ecode360.com/38876430


Zone Case 3175-G 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 3 
 

proposal. The total setback from the north property line is going to be 60 feet. So there will be a six-foot 
fence, a bufferyard, and then a parking lot between the structure and the neighborhood.  
 
IN OPPOSITION ANDRES HURTADO, stated he owns the property to the west. He moved there five years 
ago as it is so close to the hospital and the neighborhood is quiet. The area has changed a lot in five 
years. He constantly has to pick up trash. The kids cannot run around the lot freely since people have 
jumped his fence before. More people equals more stress. He just wanted to live in a quiet area that is 
close to his work so he can take care of his patients. 
 
IN OPPOSITION LISA MUSE, 972 Kirby Road, Clovis, New Mexico, stated that she owns both 5905 and 
5909 Fordham Street, both on the fence line. When she purchased the properties for her daughters in 
May, they were told the subject property would be a retail shopping center. With apartments, those 
tenants will be able to see directly into the backyards of her daughters’ homes. That is an invasion of 
privacy. She talked to the other residents in the neighborhood and they are all opposed to the 
apartments. The shared concerns are security, privacy, decreasing property values, traffic, and noise. 
 
IN OPPOSITION JESS BROCKMAN, 5909 Fordham Street, stated that he rents his home from his mother-
in-law. The home is on a quiet, small, double cul-de-sac. The yards are very open. There is no way people 
won't be able to see directly in the backyard. His family will have no privacy. He appreciates the 
developer trying to appease the situation by adding trees, but he would not feel comfortable letting his 
kids play in the backyard. These homes are in a safe neighborhood located next to a police station. The 
privacy, safety, and value of the land should be considered. 
 
IN FAVOR JASON NESLONY, 8345 Upland Avenue, stated he is the builder on this project. He is trying to 
create something outside of the norm. He and SK Architecture team up well and have some really cool 
ideas for the space. The plan is for apartments, and there is probably going to be an increase in traffic. It 
will still give a very unique appeal to the subdivision and he does not agree that it will negatively affect 
property values. Addressing the trash concerns, he stated there are pockets along the fence line which 
are perfect for trash receptacles, and the property will have ground maintenance to keep its high 
standard of beauty. He wants to be a good neighbor. They have a plan for 30-foot tall dense trees and a 
lot of landscaping to create an acceptable level of privacy. There should be little to no views from the 
backside of the property. 
 
SUSAN TOMLINSON asked MR. NESLONY if he met with any of the neighbors to show them the plans 
and if he has done other similar projects. 
 
MR. NESLONY replied that they are not that far into the plans and this will be his first apartment complex 
project. 
 
IN FAVOR WILL STEPHENS, 6515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, pointed out the subject property 
was previously zoned A-2 before it was rezoned in September 2021 to C-2A. This project has a great 
team on it that cares about their product. They have taken steps to address the visibility concerns from 
the height of the structure. 
 



Zone Case 3175-G 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 3 of 3 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 3175-G a motion to approve was made by AVIRAJ PATEL and seconded by 
JAMES BELL and the Commission members voted 4 (in favor) to 3 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The request is approved. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 
TERRI MORRIS, RENEE CAGE, AND BRANDON HARDAWAY cast the votes in opposition. 
 
JORDAN WHEATLEY recused from the case. 





!

N 
  G

EN
OA

   A
VE

EMORY ST

ERSKINE     ST

N 
  H

OM
ES

TE
AD

   A
VE

N 
GR

AN
BU

RY
 AV

E

N 
  G

EN
OA

   A
VE

N 
  G

AR
DN

ER
   A

VE

GRINNELL  ST

FORDHAM  ST

GRINNELL  ST

N 
  G

EN
OA

   A
VE

N 
  G

RO
VE

R 
  A

VE

N 
  G

RA
NB

Y  
 AV

E

PZC Mailout 
Notifications Received

³
Legend

! LocatorPnt3175_G
MailoutBuffer3175_G

Notification Result
In Favor
Opposed

0 240 480120 Feet
Date: 9/11/2023

Created by Planning Department







 







3175-G 

 

 

View to the north. Subject Property. 

 

  

View to the east.  

 

View to the south.  

 

View to the west.  

 



Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 Project Information 

Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes     �      No     � Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?   Yes     �       No     � 

    Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner) 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

 Owner Information 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

 For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

By signing this application, Applicant agrees and warrants that any and all materials submitted to the City in support or reference to this application are not 
protected by copyrights or, in cases of potential copyrighted materials, the Applicant is the sole owner of any copyrighted interest and grants to the City 
permission and license to reproduce, publish, distribute and utilize such materials.

mailto:cityplanning@mylubbock.us
328lo
Typewritten Text
Jordan Wheatley



 

SK ARCHITECTURE GROUP, LLC 
PO Box 64565 – Lubbock, TX 79464 
O: 806.300.8151 
skarchgroup.com       Page 1 of 1 

 
 
Lori Martin 
SK Architecture Group, LLC 
6302 70th Street 
Lubbock, TX 79424  
O: 806.300.8151 ext. 701 
lori@skarchgroup.com  
 
July 6, 2023 
 
Planning and Zoning Department 
City of Lubbock 
1314 Avenue K 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

To Whom It May Concern, 

We would like to request a zoning change for the property at 5914 Erskine St. from C‐2A to A‐2 (or HDR 
in UDC) in order to have the option of building multi‐family residences at this location.      

Sincerely, 

 

Lori Martin 
Lead Project Designer, Commercial Division 
O: 806.300.8151 ext. 701 
lori@skarchgroup.com  
 



Metes and Bounds description of a 3.475 acre tract of land, being a portion of the tract described in 

County Clerk File Number (CCFN) 2018044829, Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas 

(OPRLCT), being out of Section 7, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas, and being more particularly described 

as follows: 

Beginning at a point in the East line of the tract described in CCFN 2022016016, OPRLCT, for the 

Southwest corner of Uptown West, Lots 222 Through 267, An Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock 

County, Texas, recorded in CCFN 2022003893, OPRLCT, for the Northwest corner of this tract, whence 

the Southeast corner of said Section 7 is called to bear S01°48’02”W, approximately 348.1 feet and 

S88°11’58”E, approximately 1810.3 feet; 

Thence S88°11’58”E, leaving said tract described in CCFN 2022016016, with the South line of said 

Uptown West, approximately 507.8 feet to a point in the West line of Tract “A”, Police Department North 

Substation Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, recorded in CCFN 2020018899, 

OPRLCT, for the most Southerly Southeast corner of said Uptown West, and for the Northeast corner of 

this tract; 

Thence S01°47’44”W, leaving said Uptown West, with the West line of said Tract “A”, at approximately 

293.1 feet pass the Southwest corner of said Tract “A”, continuing for a total distance of approximately 

298.1 feet to a point in the North line of Erskine Street, recorded in CCFN 2022053951, OPRLCT, for the 

Southeast corner of this tract; 

Thence N88°11’58”W, with the North line of said Erskine Street, approximately 507.8 feet to a point in 

the East line of said tract described in CCFN 2022016016 for the Southwest corner of this tract; 

Thence N01°47’44”E, leaving said Erskine Street, with the East line of said tract described in CCFN 

2022016016, approximately 298.1 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Field Notes prepared for zone case purposes only. This does not represent an accurate survey made on 

the ground. 

July 12, 2023 















1

Shane Spencer

From: CityPlanning

Sent: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 7:56 AM

To: Shane Spencer

Subject: FW: Zoning case 2538-JJ Votes in this email

 

 

From: Monica Relvas <mrelvas@aol.com>  

Sent: Sunday, September 3, 2023 7:52 PM 

To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us> 

Subject: Zoning case 2538-JJ Votes in this email 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

To whom it may concern, 
 
My name is Monica Relvas.  I am the owner of three homes on Fordham Street (closing on the third 
house next week, to be accurate).  I have received the notices of the proposal for the construction of 
a high density apartment complex adjacent to our neighborhood. 
 
I am opposed to such a plan and would like to cast 3 votes of opposition for the following properties: 
 
5901 Fordham Street 
5910 Fordham Street 
5914 Fordham Street 
 
After careful consideration, my concern is regarding the lack of privacy that we will have to endure in 
our own back yards if residents in these apartments can look straight into our yards and homes.  We 
were not informed of such a possibility when we purchased these properties.  This will directly impact 
our quality of life and safety as well.  We also will see the value of our property drop significantly with 
high density housing bordering our peaceful single family homes and this will affect our livelihood. 
 
Please take these 3 opposing votes into serious consideration before approving project. 
 
Much appreciated, 
 
Monica Relvas 
 



1

Shane Spencer

From: CityPlanning

Sent: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 7:59 AM

To: Shane Spencer

Subject: FW: Zoning Reform

 

 

From: Garrett Moore <garrettmoore019@gmail.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 11:25 AM 

To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us> 

Subject: Zoning Reform 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. 

It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

Hello,  

 

My name is Garrett Moore and I am the owner of 5907 Fordham St. Lubbock TX, 79416. I have received the 

letter in the mail about the zone change. I completely disagree with this and would like to oppose this change. 

This change will not only affect the privacy of my home being that my back windows and backyard would look 

right into those apartments. As well as the property value of my home.  

 

I DISAGREE with this zone change and would like for this to not follow through.  

 

Respectfully, 

Garrett Moore  



1

Shane Spencer

From: CityPlanning

Sent: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 8:00 AM

To: Shane Spencer

Subject: FW: Zoning Case 3175-G

 

 

-----Original Message----- 

From: cahenzli@bajabb.com <cahenzli@bajabb.com>  

Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 4:40 PM 

To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us> 

Subject: Zoning Case 3175-G 

 

<p style="margin:0in;margin-bottom:.0001pt;font-size:16px;font-family:"Times New Roman",serif;text-

align:center;">WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. <p 

style="margin:0in;margin-bottom:.0001pt;font-size:16px;font-family:"Times New Roman",serif;text-align:center;">It 

could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 

 

We are property owners of residence at 5916 Fordham St.   We purchased this property in good faith at being assured 

the property that was still vacant on Erkstine Street would be high end commercial businesses.  We bought on Fordham 

because it was a double cul de sac with low traffic. It was near the police station, absolutely no apartment complexes in 

the area.  The builder met with us (Chad) bragging on this subdivision. Family residences, Hub homes.  Our family 

member living there is female with two female roommates that were interviewed.  They are serious college students 

with plans for their future.  They all looked forward to an area where they would have quiet to study. Their lease says no 

parties, no alcohol, smoking, no drugs.  They had all had enough of the business in the dorms.  To all of a sudden allow 

greed to take over and bring in apartment complexes and all that goes along with that is wrong.  We have been mislead 

and scammed.  The property is only 3 acres approximately and you are cramming a bunch of out of control apartments 

in there?   

What safe guards for our property values would there be? What is to keep the poeple crammed in that apartment 

complex from just walking through and trespassing in our properties.  What about the beautiful quiet properties 

adjoining us? The horse corrals. Going to mess that up too?   

Thank you for seriously considering our concerns on this issue. We are seriously disappointed and feel very betrayed!!  

Mark and Laura Cahenzli 

cahenzli@bajabbb.com 

Sent from my iPhone - Laura Cahenzli 

 







1

Shane Spencer

From: CityPlanning
Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 3:43 PM
To: Shane Spencer
Cc: Victor Escamilla
Subject: FW: Zoning case 3275 G

 
 
Karen Edwards 
Planning Department 
Management Assistant 
(806) 775‐3849 
1314 Avenue K 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 
kedwards@mylubbock.us  
 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: cahenzli@bajabb.com <cahenzli@bajabb.com>  
Sent: Friday, September 8, 2023 1:15 PM 
To: CityPlanning <cityplanning@mylubbock.us> 
Subject: Zoning case 3275 G 
 
<p style="margin:0in;margin‐bottom:.0001pt;font‐size:16px;font‐family:"Times New Roman",serif;text‐
align:center;">WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email system. <p 
style="margin:0in;margin‐bottom:.0001pt;font‐size:16px;font‐family:"Times New Roman",serif;text‐align:center;">It 
could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages. 
 
 
We are home owners on Fordham street in Lubbock.  We sent our letter requesting that the zoning change not be made 
on the small 3 1/2 acre plot of land behind us.  There was a request from every home owner on that street that 
apartment complex not be allowed.  It is truly disheartening the total lack of regard for the feelings, and reasonable, 
rational protests of this project  were ignored for nothing but greed. The homeowners were lied to from the outset. The 
homeowners again have been betrayed by their civic leaders. The homeowners could clearly see through this builders 
fluff and lies as he spoke of his plans.   
1. 3 1/2 acres to build a 3 story apartment complex 2. Putting a 20 ft space between the complex and the homes on 
Fordham Street.  
3. Then trying to say he would plant pine trees? Used up a good acre and more right there. Obvious lies. 
4.  Then parking in back of apts? Really now that creates even more problems with the traffic thru there.  That was just 
trying to come up with some way to snow the home owners.  Only more problem. More trash for the homeowners to 
deal with and for the poor man with the beautiful pastures and horses. 
I feel it was a done deal before anyone spoke and it mattered not about the hardworking people having a nice private 
home. 
I feel there needs to be further action taken to stop this senseless project. What about the homes across Erkstine. No 
one needs out of control apartment buildings in an area that has never had them.  Actually because of all the misleading 
sales pitch maybe even lawsuits should considered.  
Our feelings and needs were never really considered. Your letters were to cover your rears and nothing more.  Greed 
greed greed. 



2

3 1/2 acre apartment complex is absolutely asking for INSTANT SLUM. We have lost peace, faith in commission, city 
planning and zoning. 
We will be looking for first reconsideration of this insane decision.  We will be looking for some resolution that is logical. 
We will be looking to register our complaints with Hub City and their lies, and perhaps move right on up the chain of 
leaders in the Lubbock area and consider lawsuits for everyone involved.  We cannot believe you could even think of 3 
1/2 acres for an apartment complex.  Absolutely ludicrous.  

Sent from my iPhone ‐ Laura Cahenzli 



 AI# 11896 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O0116, abandoning and
closing a portion of alley right-of-way located in Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock
County, Texas, dedicated by map, plat and/or dedication deed recorded in Volume 5, Page 384 of the
deed records of Lubbock County, Texas; and abandoning and closing three overhead utility easements
and three underground utility easements also located in Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock
County, Texas.

Item Summary
On September 12, 2023, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance by a vote of 6-1.  

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close remaining portions of an alley and
six utility easements located between Avenue K and Avenue L, and between 10th Street and Main Street,
the Kimmel Center, within Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock. New easements will be granted with
the replat as necessary, for any utilities which will be reconfigured or remain in place for the proposed
development.
 
Portions of the alley were closed previously, leaving remnant pieces and reservations from previous
closures. The closure fee due to the City of Lubbock is $750, and this closure will accommodate plans
for the Kimmel Center Redevelopment.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
$750 in revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock 
Exhibit A 
Map - Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock 







 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit "A" 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 0.0057 acre tract of land being a remainder of a 20 foot alley as dedicated by plat 

recorded in Volume 5, Block 384 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas, being further described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a point in the East right-of-way line of Avenue "L", dedicated by plat recorded in Volume 5, Page 384 of the 

Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas, for the Northwest corner of Lot 6, Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock, according to 

the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in Volume 5, Page 384 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas, 

and the Southwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE North, along the East right-of-way line of said Avenue "L", a distance of 10.00 feet to a point for the Northwest corner 

of this tract; 

 

THENCE East, a distance of 25.00 feet to a point for the Northeast corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE South, a distance of 10.00 feet to a point for the Northeast corner of said Lot 6 and the Southeast corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE West, along the Northern boundary of said Lot 6, a distance of 25.00 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 
Contains 250 square feet 
 
Bearings relative to plat recorded in Volume 5, Page 384 of the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas. 
 
December 14, 2021  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Robert A. Christopher 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5167 
Licensed State Land Surveyor 
State of Texas 



























1

17

9

19

12

20

81511

2

12 14

3

9

14

33

16

11

19

5

106

4

5

7

10

14

18

11

8 10

19
20

9 13 116

44
16

8 13

16

20

1097

5

13

1

17

12

15

2 2

17

7

18

12

18

1

102101100

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Proposed Closure of Utility Easements and
Remaining Alley in Original Town of Lubbock, Block 101

0 100 200 300 400
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

20' OPE (Vol. 940, Pg. 643)
20' UUE (Vol. 940, Pg. 645)

A
V

E 
M

13TH ST

ORIG
IN

AL TOWN

OF LUBBOCK

LPK

BROADWAY

A
V

E 
L

A
V

E 
K

A
V

E 
O

A
V

E 
J

A
V

E 
K

10TH ST

MAIN ST

ORIGINAL TO
WN

OF LU
BBOCK

MAIN ST

CITIBUS

Exhibit "A", 25' X 10', (Vol. 5, Pg. 384)
Remainder of alley

TE
X

A
S 

A
V

E

A
V

E 
N

MEMORIA
L

CENTER

OVERTON

10TH ST

10' OPE (Vol. 992, Pg. 357)
10' UUE (Vol. 992, Pg. 354) 10' OPE (Vol. 992, Pg. 271)

10' UUE (Vol. 992, Pg. 273)

20' OPE (Vol. 940, Pg. 643)
20' UUE (Vol. 940, Pg. 645)

BU
D

D
Y

 H
O

LL
Y

 A
V

E

9TH ST

8TH ST



 AI# 11962 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
10/10/2023:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2023-O0132, and take action on the City
of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final report of September 7, 2023, to the Lubbock City
Council on proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No.
2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the following: 

1. Sections 39.02.006.a.3 & 39.02.006.b.3 (related to Lot Density and Dimensions);
2. Section 39.03.021.a.2 (related to Signs Exempt from Regulations);
3. Section 39.02.014 (related to the Reduction Overlay (RO) District);
4. Article 39.04 (related to Subdivision Standards);
5. Article 39.07 (related to Development Review Procedures);
6. Section 39.07.007(a) (related to Public Notice);
7.1. Section 39.02.016 (related to the Land Use Matrix);
7.2. Table 39.02.016-1 (related to Permitted Uses by District);
7.3. Table 39.02.006.e-1 (related to IP Permitted Uses);
7.4. Table 39.02.006.f-1 (related to LI Permitted Uses);
7.5. Table 39.02.006.g-1 (related to GI Permitted Uses);
8. Sections 39.02.020.b(4)(F)(A)(iii) and 39.02.020.b(4)(F)(B)(ii) (related to Residential Carport or
Porte Cochere Locations);
9. Section 39.04.005-1 (related to Minimum Connection Spacing by Street Classification); and
10. Sections 39.02.005.d.3 and 39.02.018.c.7 and Tables 39.02.003-1 and 39.02.016-1 (related to
Base Mixed Use Districts and Zoning Map)

Item Summary
The Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) and City Council held a joint public hearing on August 30,
2023, to discuss amending the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054), and zoning
map. Additionally, consideration was given to written lists of all documentation and other information
the municipality requires to be submitted with a plat application, as required by H.B. 3699.

On September 7, 2023, the PZC recommended adoption of amendments to the Unified Development
Code and Zoning Map, by a vote of 8-0-0. Both the amendments being recommended for approval and
denial by the PZC were considered by the City Council at the September 26, 2023 meeting. The
amendments stated above were all approved unanimously with the exception of Amendment
A10. Sections 39.02.005.d.3 and 39.02.018.c.7 and Tables 39.02.003-1 and 39.02.016-1 (related to Base
Mixed Use Districts and Zoning Map).  This particular amendment was approved by the City Council by
a vote of 6-1.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Planning and Zoning Commission



Planning and Zoning Commission
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Ordinance - UDC Amendments 
Proposed UDC Amendments 
Downtown Draft Zoning Map 
Draft PZC Minutes - UDC Amendments 









A. Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission’s final report 

of September 7, 2023 to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the Unified 

Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the 

following: 

1. Sections 39.02.006.a.3 & 39.02.006.b.3 (related to Lot Density and Dimensions);

a. Lot Density and Dimensions. All developments in the NC district shall be in

accordance with Table 39.02.006.a-2, NC Lot Intensity and Dimensions. Maximum

building heights and minimum setbacks are for principal structures. For multi-lot

developments with common parking areas or party-wall styled construction, lot

sizes and side setbacks may be reduced subject to the Director of Planning's

approval minimum lot width shall be 20 feet and minimum lot area shall be 1,000

square feet.

b. Make this same change to Section 39.02.006.b.3

2. Section 39.03.021.a.2 (related to Signs Exempt from Regulations);

a. Signs erected by the City, state (including its political subdivisions), a school district, or
the United States government, or otherwise required by federal, state, or local laws.
This exemption does not apply to school districts.

3. Section 39.02.014 (related to the Reduction Overlay (RO) District);

a. See attached redline (pages 7 to 9)

b. Reinsert Section 39.02.014.c to read, “The Reduction Overlay District may prohibit
billboards, even if allowed in the base zoning district.” And renumber the balance
of the section

4. Article 39.04 (related to Subdivision Standards);

a. See attached redline and new Plat Checklists (pages 10 to 33)

5. Article 39.07 (related to Development Review Procedures);

a. Amend Table 39.07.012-1 to provide for appeals on plat items to PZC.

b. Amend Section 39.07.040.c.1 to read, “Completed Plat Application, signed by
current property owner.” Make similar changes to the Checklists.

1

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;amp%3Bajax=0&amp;amp%3Bsecid=950
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;amp%3Bajax=0&amp;amp%3Bsecid=851
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;amp%3Bajax=0&amp;amp%3Bsecid=1582
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;amp%3Bajax=0&amp;amp%3Bsecid=1378
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;amp%3Bajax=0&amp;amp%3Bsecid=1378
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;amp%3Bajax=0&amp;amp%3Bsecid=1698


c. Amend Section 39.07.040.c.5 to read, “Application fee as established by the City
Council.” Amend Section 39.07.041.4 to read, “Application fee as established by the
City Council.” Make similar changes to the Checklists.

d. Amend Section 39.07.040.4 to read, “Water and schematic layouts sufficient to
demonstrate how the proposed lots will be served by public water and sewer.”
Make similar changes to the Checklists.

e. Amend Section 39.07.040 Document Requirements 2 to read, “Drawn to standard
engineering scales ranging from 1”=10’ to 1”=100’. 1”=200’ scale is allowed for
plats larger than 100 acres only when all information illustrated on the plat is clearly
legible on the printed full-size plat” Amend Section 39.07.041.5 Document
Requirements 6 to read, “Drawn to standard engineering scales ranging from
1”=10’ to 1”=100’. 1”=200’ scale is allowed for plats larger than 100 acres only
when all information illustrated on the plat is clearly legible on the printed full-
size plat” Make similar changes to the Checklists.

f. Amend Section 39.07.040 Document Requirements 8 to read, “The Preliminary
Plat must be tied by survey to a section corner of the section in which the plat is
located, or when the proposed subdivision …” Amend Section 39.07.041.c.8 to
read, “Control for a Final Plat shall be established by one of the following methods.
(1) The Final Plat may be tied by survey to a section corner of the section in which
the plat is located; or (2) When the approved subdivision abuts …” Make similar
changes to the Checklists.

g. Amend Section 39.07.040 Document Requirements 12 to read, “…If the abutting
land has a current approved Preliminary Plat, it shall be shown on the proposed
Preliminary Plat to the extent such information is available on City GIS;” Make
similar changes to the Checklists.

h. A requirement for an approval signature block should be added to the preplat
requirements to align with this final plat requirement. Make the same adjustment
to the preplat checklist.

i. Amend Section 39.07.041 Document Requirements 25 to read, “The following
surveyor's certificate shall be placed on every Final Plat. Final Plats presented for
recording shall be signed and sealed by the surveyor.”

6. Section 39.07.007(a) (related to Public Notice);

a. TLGC Reference. Public notice of any development review request shall be in
accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapters 211 and 212, with the
exception that when written notice of a public hearing is required to be sent to each
owner within 200 feet of the property on which the change is proposed, written

2



notice must instead be sent to each owner within 400 feet of the property on which 
the change is proposed. 

7.1 Section 39.02.016 (related to the Land Use Matrix); 

a. Regarding the Use Category “Transportation, Utility, and Communication”, the use
“Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution (includes large solar collectors and 
windmills)”. Amend from a Permitted Use (P) to a Specific Use (S) in all three districts (IP, 
LI, and GI) 

7.2 Table 39.02.016-1 (related to Permitted Uses by District); 

a. The use “Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution (includes large solar
collectors and windmills)”. Amend from a Permitted Use (P) to a Specific Use (S) in all 
three districts. 

7.3 Table 39.02.006.e-1 (related to IP Permitted Uses); 

a. Amend the use the use “Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution (includes
large solar collectors and windmills)” from a Permitted Use (P) to a Specific Use (S) 

7.4 Table 39.02.006.f-1 (related to LI Permitted Uses); 

a. Amend the use the use “Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution (includes
large solar collectors and windmills)” from a Permitted Use (P) to a Specific Use (S) 

7.5 Table 39.02.006.g-1 (related to GI Permitted Uses); 

a. Amend the use the use “Power Generation, Transmission, and Distribution (includes
large solar collectors and windmills)” from a Permitted Use (P) to a Specific Use (S) 

8. Sections 39.02.020.b(4)(F)(A)(iii) and 39.02.020.b(4)(F)(B)(ii) (related to Residential Carport

or Porte Cochere Locations);

a. (iii) Length and Width. Carports and porte-cocheres shall have dimensions no greater than
20 24 feet in length by 20 feet in width;

b. (ii) Length and Width. Carports and porte-cocheres shall have dimensions no greater than
20 24 feet in length by 20 feet in width;

9. Section 39.04.005-1 (related to Minimum Connection Spacing by Street Classification);

a. Amend the table to read, “Measured between nearest edges of driveway throats.” Or,
provide a graphic similar to what is included in the TxDOT Access Management Manual.
This removes any ambiguity.

3

150197
Cross-Out

150197
Cross-Out

150197
Cross-Out

150197
Cross-Out

150197
Cross-Out



10. Sections 39.02.005.d.3 and 39.02.018.c.7 and Tables 39.02.003-1 and 39.02.016-1 (related

to Base Mixed Use Districts and Zoning Map)

a. See attached proposals (pages 34 to 38)

4



 Section 39.02.014 Reduction Overlay (RO) 

a. Purpose. In addition to the purpose of a district established in Section 39.02.003, Zoning District Establishment, 
tThehe purposes of the Reduction Overlay District  (ROD) district are: is to allow development that deviates from the 
standards of the underlying base zoning district, by reducing or restricting these standards and removing permitted or 
accessory uses. It also provides regulatory flexibility in the following manner:

1. Regulatory Flexibility. It is intended to permit regulatory flexibility to: 

A. Achieve development that is in accordance with the City's Comprehensive Plan; 

B. Achieve economy and efficiency in the use of land, natural resources, energy, and in the provision of public 

services and utilities; and/or 

C. Provide appropriate development to satisfy the needs of residents of the City of Lubbock. 

2. Land Use Compatibility. It is further intended that development permitted pursuant to this Section allow uses, 

 buildings, and site improvements to relate to each other and to adjoining existing uses and to the public realm in
such a way that they will be compatible. 

3. Redevelopment. It is further intended that these regulations bring about reuse and/or redevelopment of sites where 

an orderly change of use is determined to be desirable, especially where reuse is restricted because of existing 

 nonconformities, physical development, or the constraints of conventional zoning standards. 

4. Purpose Not Intended. The Reduction Overlay shall not be used for the sole purpose of securing an agreement 

between an applicant and the City to receive zoning approval. 

b. Applicability.

1. Generally. Consideration of a proposed development pursuant to this Section may occur only if the proposed 
development site is at least two acres in total area where located within the area enclosed by Loop 289 and at least 
seven acres elsewhere. 

2. Land Area Reduction. However, in the interest of making use of the Reduction Overlay as a tool to implement the 
Comprehensive Plan, the City Council, on recommendation receiving a final report from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, may permit a 50 percent reduction ofin these minimum area requirements if it finds that: 

A. The project has unique characteristics and benefits; or 

B. The parcel in question has unique characteristics that significantly impact development, such as, unusual shape or 
proportions, unusual topography, or potentially incompatible land uses on surrounding property. 

3. Zoning Designation. The Reduction Overlay is applied to property in conjunction with a base zoning district. 

4. Permitted Uses. Except as reduced below, a Reduction Overlay may contain any uses or combination of uses that are 
listed as Permitted Uses, Limited Uses, or Specific Uses in the base zoning district. 

5.4. Development Standards. 

A. Generally. The following design standards reductions are shall be used as a guide examples that may be requested 
as part of for a Reduction Overlay D ist r ic t ,  tto ensure that the physical and operational characteristics of 
proposed buildings and uses are compatible, when considered in the context of the surrounding area. 

B. Modification Reduction of Standards. 

i. Applicants must clearly state their requested reductions in writing, when submitting their application for the 
Reduction Overlay District. 

i.ii. Modifications Reduction of to these the standards in a base zoning district may be approved by the 
City Council, on receiving a final reportrecommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission, and on 
making the determination that other the reduction of the standards would be more appropriate because of 
the particular design and orientation of buildings and uses, provided that any such modified standards shall 
be consistent with the purpose of the Reduction Overlay as stated in Subsection a., Purpose, above. 

 . Design and zoning standards modifications approved in conjunction with the approval of a Reduction Overlay 

shall not require approval of the Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

D.C. Height. At the election of the applicant at the time of the creation or amendment of the Reduction 
Overlay, Bbuildings and structures may be rest r ic ted  to  a  lesser  h e igh t approved to be less tall than the 

Formatted: Font color: Auto, Not Expanded by /

Condensed by 

5

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=851
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1121
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1243
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1698
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=812
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1279
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1577
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1597
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1000
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1000
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1103


maximum height allowed in the base zoning district set forth in Division 2.2, Zoning Districts and Standards. 
 

E.D. Car Ports. At the election of the applicant at the time of the creation or amendment of the Reduction 
Overlay, buildings and structuresThe Reduction Overlay District may prohibit carports, even if allowed in the base 
zoning district. 

6

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-560
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1153


F.E. AAccccessor y Dwelling Units. At the election of the applicant at the time of the creation or amendment 

of the Reduction Overlay, bThe Reduction Overlay Districtuildings and structures may prohibit Accessory Dwelling 
Units, even if allowed in the base zoning district. 

c. Billboards. At the election of the applicant at the time of the creation or amendment of the Reduction Overlay, such 

overlay may prohibit billboards, even if allowed in the base zoning district.Related Provisions. 

1. Article 39.02, Zoning Districts and Land Uses; 

2. Article 39.03, Building and Site Design: 

A. Division 3.2, Building Types and Design; 

B. Division 3.3, Parking, Loading, Stacking, and Access; 

C. Division 3.4, Trees, Landscaping, and Buffering;  

D. Division 3.5, Signs; and 

E. Division 3.6, Outdoor Lighting. 

3. Article 39.04, Subdivision Standards; and 

4. Article 39.05, Environmental Management. 

d. Procedures. See Section 39.07.030, Zone Change. 

G.  

Effective: 10/01/2023 
 

 

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.52",  No bullets or

numbering

7

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&amp;ajax=0&amp;secid=1685
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-555
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-606
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-609
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-615
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-622
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-629
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1054
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-637
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-640
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1105
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-661
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-718


 Table 39.04.022-1 
Maintenance Bond Amounts 

Cost of Improvement Construction Bond Value as a Percent of Construction Cost or Fixed Bond 

 $0 - $25,000  100% 

 $25,000.01 - $50,000  75% 
$50,000.01 - $75,000 50% 

$75,000.01 - $100,000 25% 
$100,000.01 - $1,000,000 20% 

$1,000,000.01 - $5,000,000 10% (minimum $200,000) 
$5,000,000.01 or more $500,000 

Section 39.04.023 Required Notices on Final Plats and Certificates 
  

Final Plats and certificates shall contain all of the notice information required in Sec. 39.07.041 of the UDC. 

a. The following surveyor’s certificate shall be placed on every final plat and signed by the surveyor prior to 
submission to the Director of Planning: 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  
That I, ______________________, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey of 
the land and that the corner monuments and/or other control shown thereon were properly placed under my 
personal supervision, in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

b. The following certificate of approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be placed on every Final Plat and 
signed prior to recording of the plat documents at the courthouse: 

Approved this ______day of ______________, 20__ , by the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 
Lubbock, Texas.  
______________________Chairman  
______________________Director of Planning 

c. The following notices shall be stated on the face of every plat: 

1. “Heavy lines indicate plat limits.” 

2. “All streets, alleys, and easements within plat limits are herein dedicated unless noted otherwise.” 

3. "No building permit shall be issued on any survey certificate that is not in accordance with an approved final 
plat unless exception is provided by the Planning and Zoning Commission policy or by the Lubbock Code of 
Ordinances.” 

4. "All utility service shall be in accordance with the Underground Utilities Policy Statement by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission of the City of Lubbock, Texas and the provisions of Section 37.01.037 of the Lubbock Code 
of Ordinances.” 

5. "All existing or proposed utility services to and on tracts indicated by this plat shall be contained in the public 
right-of-way and public or private utility easements. Utility service installation requested at a future date and 
not within an easement indicated by this plat, shall be within a proper utility easement granted by the owner 
of said property by separate recorded instrument prior to the provision of such service. Such easements shall 
be at the expense of the entity requesting such installation.” 

6. “All easements herein granted shall entitle the city or the utility company using such easements to the right 
to remove, repair or replace any lines, pipes, conduits, or poles within such easements as may be determined 
by the city or utility company without the city or utility company being responsible or liable for the 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

8



replacement of improvements necessitated by such repair, removal, or replacement. Easements designated 
or intended for vehicular passage (utility and emergency) or pedestrian access shall not be fenced or otherwise 
obstructed.” 

7. “Minimum floor elevations shall conform to the requirements of the Lubbock Drainage Criteria Manual, as 
adopted by Ord. 10022, as amended, and Section 28.09.131, Section 28.14.004, and Section 30.03.073 of the 
Lubbock Code of Ordinances.” 

d. The following notices shall be stated on the face of the plat when they apply to that particular plat: 

1. Any notices required in Unified Development Code Section 39.04.024, Required Notice for Final Plats 
Containing Lake or Flood Risk Areas, for lake or flood hazard areas. 

2. “Any easements or rights-of-way shown as ‘to be dedicated by separate instrument’ are shown on the plat for 
information purposes only. This plat does not dedicate said easements.” 

 "Blanket solid waste collection easement as required for service [within the plat limits or insert specific lot or 
tract designation] is herein granted.” 

3. “Blanket [insert ‘underground’ if applicable] utility easement as required for service [within the plat limits or 
insert specific lot or tract designation] is herein granted to [insert name of public, private or franchise utility 
or certificated service provider of telecommunications].” 

3. “Public pedestrian access easement is herein granted for persons traversing along the public parkway and 
needing to enter onto private property for the purpose of crossing a driveway. The easement is limited to 
those portions of the as-constructed driveways and walks which may extend outside public right-of-way onto 
private property and are constructed for the continuance of the accessible routes across the back of the 
driveway. This easement applies to existing and any future drive entrances as constructed.” 

3. Plats in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction shall include a certificate of approval by the County 
Commissioner’s Court that shall be placed on every Final Plat and signed prior to recording of the plat 
documents at the courthouse. 

APPROVED this ______day of ______________, 20__ , by The Commissioners Court of the COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, 
TEXAS  
APPROVED 

________________________________  
COUNTY JUDGE  
ATTEST 

________________________________  
COUNTY CLERK 

Section 39.04.024 Required Notice for Final Plats Containing Lake or Flood Risk Areas 
  

a. When any portion of a proposed plat contains a lake or other flood risk area identified on the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency flood hazard maps, the following notice shall be printed on the face of the final plat: 

“Either all or a portion of this surveyed property lies within a ‘Special Flood Hazard BoundaryArea.’ These 
boundaries are established by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, not this surveyor. Flood hazard maps 
are on file at City Hall, Lubbock, Texas and are open for public inspection.” 

b. If any portion of a lake area is included in a proposed final plat, such areas shall be designated as a stormwater 
drainage and impoundment easement. 

Section 39.04.025 Required Notice for Plats Approved by Director of Planning 
  

9



b. Forms and Fees. Every development application required by this UDC shall be submitted in a format and in numbers 
established in the City's Development Guidebook and shall include the corresponding application fee that is 
established by the City Council. 

c. Authorization to Initiate an Application. Table 39.07.003-2, Application Authorization, denotes those who are 
authorized to initiate each of the application types.  

Table 39.07.003-2 

Application Authorization 

♦ Entity may initiate an application 

Application Type 

City Council, or Planning 
and Zoning Commission, 

or Director of Planning, or 
designee 

Property Owner (Including 
His or Her Agent) 

Party Aggrieved by an 
Administrative Decision1  

Administrative Applications  ♦  

Legislative Applications  ♦ ♦  

Appeals of Administrative Decisions   ♦ 

All Other Quasi-Judicial Applications  ♦  

Subdivision Applications ♦ ♦  

d. Refunds. Fees for a denied, expired, voided, or revoked application are not refundable. 

e. Deadlines. The Director of Planning may establish application submittal deadlines.  

f. Continuing Review Process. Application submittals shall subsequently undergo a completeness application review 
established in Section 39.07.004, Application Completeness Review, before being deemed as submitted to the City. 

Section 39.07.004 Application Completeness Review 
  

a. All Applications. Table 39.07.003-1, Review Steps, denotes that all development applications are required to 
undergo completeness review. 

b. Director of Planning Responsibility. The Director of Planning shall review all development application submittals 
for completeness.  

c.  Meaning of Complete Submittal. The Director of Planning shall deem complete an application that contains: 

1. All Information. All of the application information required in the application form; 

2. Certifications. Documents or drawings that are prepared and certified by qualified professionals (where such 
certifications are required); and 

3. Fee. The application fee. 

d. Notification to Applicant. If and when the application is deemed complete, the Director of Planning shall notify 
the applicant in writing.  

e. Timeline for Review. The completeness review required in Subsection b., Director of Planning Responsibility, 
above, shall be accomplished no later than five business days after an applicant submits a potential application. 

f. Plat Filing. A Final Plat, Preliminary Plat, or Replat is considered "filed" when the Director of Planning deems it 
complete in accordance with Subsection c., Meaning of Complete Submittal, above, when the Director of Planning 
completes the review process and finds that there are no more corrections to be made, and when the Director of 
Planning places the plat on an official Planning and Zoning Commission agenda for final decision. 

1. Timing. Plats shall be considered reviewed within 30 days after the date the plat is "filed".  

10



2. Final Decision. Plats shall be approved, conditionally approved, or disapproved within the timeframe 
established in Chapter 212 of the Texas Local Government Code, unless the applicant requests a one-timean 
extension not to exceed 30 -days extension in accordance with Texas Local Government Code § 212.009(b-2), 
and the Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector of Planning approves the request in writing. 

3. Postponement. Once the Director of Planning places a plat on the Planning and Zoning Commission agenda, 
postponement may not be granted other than by means in f.2., above. If no extension is granted, the 
application shall be deemed denied. Otherwise, if approved, the application shall be placed on the next 
Planning and Zoning Commission agenda.  

4.3. Extension. If the applicant requests extension of a hearing or decision relating to plat approval, and an 
extension as authorized above is not approved, the applicant shall abide by the decision rendered without the 
granting of an extension or withdraw and resubmit the application. 

g. Incomplete Applications. 

1. Director of Planning Duties. If the Director of Planning determines that a submittal is not complete, the 
Director of Planning shall: 

A. Notify the applicant in writing with a list of all missing or incomplete items; and 

B. Provide a maximum of 45 calendar days from receipt for the applicant to resubmit the missing or 
incomplete items. 

2. Rejection. If the missing or incomplete items are not submitted within the 45-day period, then the Director of 
Planning shall deem the application rejected, shall not accept the application for filing, and shall make the 
submittal available to the applicant for retrieval. After the Director of Planning rejects an application, a new 
application and fee shall be required if the applicant wishes to apply again.  

3. Not Considered Submitted. Incomplete or rejected applications are not considered "submitted" or "filed" for 
the purposes of Texas Local Government Code Chapter 212, Chapter 245, or for any other purpose. Complete 
applications are considered submitted on the date that the Director of Planning deems them complete.  

4. Submittal of Corrections. Corrected and submitted applications are not considered complete and submitted 
until the next available processing cycle deadline. For example, if a submittal deadline is on Monday, October 
12, and a corrected application is submitted on October 13, then the application is deemed submitted and 
received for completion on the following submittal deadline of October 19all of the missing or imcomplete 
items have been provided to the City and/or corrected and provided to the City as set forth in the notice from 
the Director of Planning, or designee by or before the deadline stated in the notice.  

h. Continuing Review Process. Complete applications shall subsequently undergo the processes established in 
Section 39.07.005, Staff Review and Distribution. 

Section 39.07.005 Staff Review and Distribution 
  

a. Applications Requiring Staff Review and Distribution. Table 39.07.003-1, Review Steps, denotes that all 
development applications are required to undergo staff review and distribution. 

b. Final Decision or Distribution. After completeness determination, the appropriate administrative body shall, 
according to the review responsibilities of Section 39.07.012, Development Review Summary Table: 

1. Review and Comment. Review the Administrative application and provide comments to the applicant, which 
may include required revisions based on the requirements of this UDC and other adopted requirements and 
standards;  

2. Review and Decide. Review and make a final decision on the Administrative application; or 

11



e. Decisions. All official decision actions shall require the affirmative vote of the number of members as specified in 
the City Charter and City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances. 

f. Continuing Review Process. Requests receiving approval at a public meeting or hearing may subsequently undergo 
the processes established in Section 39.07.009, Post-Approval Provisions.  

g. Successive Applications. The Director of Planning shall not accept any application that was recommended for 
denial by the Planning and Zoning Commission and denied by the City Council 12 months prior if the Director 
determines there have been no substantive changes in circumstances related to an application or no substantive 
changes to the application submittal itself.  

Section 39.07.009 Post-Approval Provisions 
  

a. Requests Subject to Post-Approval Provisions. Table 39.07.003-1, Review Steps, denotes the development 
requests that are subject to post-approval provisions. 

b. Approval with Conditions or Modification of Requests at Public Meeting or Hearing. 

0. Modification. An applicant may agree to modify a request, including, but not limited to, the plans and 
specifications submitted, in response to questions or comments by persons appearing at a public meeting or 
hearing or to suggestions or recommendations by the legislative or quasi-judicial body holding the meeting or 
hearing. 

0. No Further Action. Unless such modifications are so substantial that the legislative or quasi-judicial body 
determines that it cannot reasonably be expected to perceive the nature and impact of the proposed changes 
without revised application materials, the body may make a recommendation or conditionally approve the 
request with the requirement that the approval is not effective until the applicant submits materials reflecting 
the agreed-upon changes to the Director of Planning. A legislative or quasi-judicial body shall not accept any 
subsequent application and shall make no further approvals related to the subject property until the applicant 
submits the required modifications. 

0. Referral. Where deemed appropriate by a decision-making body, modifications may be referred back to the 
recommending body for review, prior to further consideration. 

f.b. Modification of an Approved Application. Except as provided in Subsection d., Correction of Errors in Approved 
but Unrecorded Plats, below, modifications to approved applications or requests shall be done in accordance with 
Section 39.07.028, Minor Modification of an Approved Application, or, if the change does not meet the criteria for 
a minor modification, the application shall be resubmitted as a new application.  

g.c. Revocation of Approval. An administrative, legislative, or quasi-judicial body may revoke any permit or approval it 
has issued where there has been a violation of the provisions of this UDC or a deliberate misrepresentation of fact 
on the application or in the public meeting or hearing.  

h.d. Approvals Run with Land. Permits or approvals authorizing a particular land use or structure shall run with the 
land and transfer with the subsequent ownership of the land and structures.  

i.e. Recordation of Plat. 

1. Submittals for Recording. The applicant shall provide the following to the Director of Planning after approval 
of a Minor or Amending Plat, Conveyance Plat, Final Plat, or Replat, where applicable: 

A. Tax certificate(s) from the Lubbock Central Appraisal District stating that no taxes are delinquent against 
the property; and 

B. Three durable copies of the plat, reproducible true to industry-standard engineering scales on standard 
ANSI or Architectural sheet sizes sufficient to legibly illustrate the proposed layout and required 
information. However, the dimension of the plat sheet may not exceed 24 inches by 36 inches. 

12



Table 39.07.012-1 

Development Review Summary 

PZC=Planning and Zoning Commission | CC= City Council | ZBA=Zoning Board of Adjustment | UDHPC= Urban Design and Historic Preservation 
Commission | DRC = Development Review Committee | SUP = Specific Use Permit | COA = Certificate of Appropriateness 

Development 
Application 
(Reference) 

Submittal Timing Expiration 
Review Responsibilities 

Applicable 
Standards Recommendation Final Decision Appeal 

Appeal of 
Administrative 
Decision 
(39.07.039) 

Within 30 days after a 
final decision by the 
Director of Planning, 
Building Inspector, or 
City Engineer on a matter 
addressed in this UDC 

ZBA -- 

SUBDIVISION REVIEW APPLICATIONS: Require final decisions related to dividing larger tracts of land into smaller lots. City staff or legislatively 
appointed administrative bodies make final decision based on regulations in this UDC and on technical requirements of various City 
departments, local and state agencies, and utilities.  

Preliminary Plat 
(39.07.040) 

Prior to Final Plat 
submittal 

2 years; See 
Section 39.07.041 
for renewal of a 

multi-phase 
Preliminary Plat 
as each phase 

receives Final Plat 
approval 

1st: DRC 
2nd: Director of 

Planning 

Director of 
Planning PZC 

ZBA  

Article 39.04 

Final Plat 
(39.07.041) 

Following approval of a 
Preliminary Plat and 
receipt of final drainage 
plan per Sec. 39.04.021 

2 years; None 
after recordation 

Director of Planning Director of 
PlanningPZC 

Replat 
(39.07.042) 

Prior to changing the 
number of lots on a 
recorded plat 

1st: DRC 
2nd: Director of 

Planning 

Director of 
PlanningPZC 

Vacating Plat 
(39.07.043) 

Prior to removing the 
force of a recorded plat 
covering a property or 
properties 

Administrative 
body that 

approved the 
original Minor, 

Amending, Replat, 
or Final Plat 

-- 

Waiver of 
Improvements 
(39.07.044) 

Concurrent with 
submittal of a 
Preliminary Plat, Final 
Plat, or Replat 

When associated 
plat expires 

City Engineer CC 
Sections 39.04.005, 

39.04.012, and 
39.04.013 Delay of 

Improvements 
(39.07.045) 

Division 7.2 Administrative Review Procedures 
  

Section 39.07.013 Site Development Plan 
  

a. Generally. In addition to the required procedures in Division 7.1, Purpose, Applicability, and Common Review 
Procedures, the following procedures shall apply to Site Development Plans. 

13



a. Generally. In addition to the applicable required procedures in Division 7.1, Purpose, Applicability, and Common 
Review Procedures, the following shall apply to Appeals of Administrative Decisions.  

b. Purpose. The purpose of an Appeal of Administrative Decision is to provide a vehicle for appeal of any final decision 
of the Director of Planning, Building Official, City Engineer, or Floodplain Administrator on any applications set out 
in Division 7.2, Administrative Review Procedures.  

c. Notice of Appeal. Within 20 days after the date of a final written administrative decision, an appeal may be 
submitted to the Director of Planning, in writing, by any person aggrieved by the decision or by any official or 
department of the City affected by the decision. In the notice, the appellant shall set out all grounds for the appeal.  

d. Transmission of Records. The staff person whose decision is under appeal shall transmit to the ZBA all of the 
documents constituting the record of the appealed action.  

e. Effect of Appeal. The filing of an Appeal of Administrative Decision stays all proceedings in furtherance of the final 
decision appealed, unless the administrative official from whom the appeal is taken certifies in writing to the ZBA 
that, by reason of facts stated, a stay would, in their opinion, cause imminent peril to life or property. In such case, 
proceedings shall not be stayed except by a restraining order that may be granted by a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

f. Specific Decision Criteria. In determining whether to affirm or reverse, in whole or in part, or modify the appealed 
decision, the applicable review bodies shall consider, and the ZBA shall make findings on the following: 

1. Record and Evidence. The administrative decision was appropriate considering the written record of the case 
and the evidence presented.  

2. UDC Requirements. The decision reflects the requirements contained in this UDC. 

g. Effect of Decision. In exercising its authority under this Section, the ZBA shall have the final decision-making powers 
of the administrative official from whom the appeal is taken.  

Division 7.5 Subdivision Review Procedures 
  

Section 39.07.040 Preliminary Plat 
  

a. Generally. In addition to the applicable required procedures in Division 7.1, Purpose, Applicability, and Common 
Review Procedures, the following shall apply to Preliminary Plats. 

b. Purpose. The purpose of a Preliminary Plat is to provide sufficient information to evaluate and review the general 
design of a proposed subdivision to ensure compliance with the Master Development Plan, if applicable, and the 
requirements of this UDC prior to submittal of a Final Plat. If a Final Plat that includes all of an applicant’s contiguous 
ownership is submitted to the City for approval, the Director of Planning shall have the option to not require a 
Preliminary Plat for the property. 

c. Applicant Responsibilities. Preliminary Plats shall not be placed on the Planning and Zoning Commission agenda 
for consideration considered filed unless until the plat and other required documents as set forth herein are 
received by the Director of Planning before the stated filing deadline, comply with Section 39.07.004, Application 
Completeness Review, and meet all of the following requirements: 
1. Completed Plat Application, signed by the current property owner as reflected on the Lubbock Central 

Appraisal District or current deed; 

2. Preliminary Plat document (.pdf). Plat sheet sizes shall be drawn at industry-standard engineering scales on 

standard ANSI or Architectural sheet sizes sufficient to legibly illustrate the proposed layout and required 

information. A minimum sheet size of 11” x 17” is required, however, the sheet is not to exceed 36” on any 

side; 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

14



3. Prepared by a Surveyor. A Preliminary Plat shall be prepared by a Professional Land Surveyor registered in the 

State of Texas; 

4. A preliminary drainage analysis and map (.pdf) that meets the requirements of the Drainage Criteria Manual 

of the City; 

5. Application fee equal to $150 for the first acre with an additional $35 per acre thereafter, not to exceed 

$7,000.00; and 

6. Water and sewer schematic layouts. 

Document Requirements: 
1. The following notice shall be printed on the face of each Preliminary Plat submitted:  “Preliminary Plat – for 

inspection purposes only and in no way official or approved for recording purposes”; 

2. Drawn to the following scale per acreage within the plat boundary: 1”=50’ for <1 acre; 1”=100’ for <160 acres; 

1”=100’ or 1”=200’ for >160 acres’; 

3. All unsubdivided contiguous land under single or common ownership shall be included in the Preliminary Plat. 

However, if approved by the Director of Planning prior to submittal, the limits of a Preliminary Plat may include 

a portion of the owner’s contiguous land and extend to known identifiable limits such as collector streets, 

Playa Lakes, or other well-defined development barriers; 

4. Location map, legibly illustrating the general position of the property relative to at least two intersecting City 

of Lubbock arterial streets or State highways and the location of the site with respect to the City (southeast, 

northwest, etc.); 

5. Scale, north arrow, date, exact acreage, proposed subdivision name, and other pertinent site-specific 

descriptive information; 

6. Property owner’s name, address, and telephone number, including the record owner and warranty deed 

recording information of the proposed subdivision; 

7. Accurate one-foot interval contours according to NAD83/NAVD88 datum or subsequent established United 

States Geodetic Survey data adopted by the City. The face of the Preliminary Plat must indicate the source, 

datum, and date of creation for the contour data; 

8. The Preliminary Plat must be tied by survey to abutting section corners, or when the proposed subdivision 

abuts or is abutting an existing recorded plat, the Preliminary Plat may be tied by survey to such existing plat. 

Boundary lines for the proposed subdivision shall be indicated by heavy lines.  Boundaries for lots and/or 

tracts within the plat boundary shall be shown in solid lines.  Existing cross streets shall be shown for reference 

at the property boundary;  

9. Where applicable, approximate location of any City limit lines including labels for inside and outside City limits; 

10. Boundary lines, bearings, and distances sufficient to locate the exact area proposed for subdivision; 

11. The name and location of all abutting subdivisions shall be drawn to the same scale and shown in dashed lines 

abutting the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient detail to show accurately the existing streets and alleys 

and other features that may influence the layout and development of the proposed subdivision. Abutting 

unplatted land shall show property lines and owners of record. If the abutting land has a current approved 

Preliminary Plat, it shall be shown on the proposed Preliminary Plat; 

12. The following adjoining and abutting property information shall be shown on all property adjoining 
and abutting the plat boundary:   

A.  Subdivision name, Lot #, Block #, and recording information (if the property is platted); 
B. Name of ownership with deed and recording information (if the property is not platted); and 
C. Any recorded easements known to the surveyor at the time of submittal with recording information;  

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Field Code Changed ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Field Code Changed ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

15

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=950
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1382


13. The location, name, and width of all streets, alleys, public and private easements, and rights-of-way existing 

or proposed within the subdivision limits, along with the proposed names of streets;  

14. A restriction prohibiting the fencing or obstruction of any easement shall be stated on the face of the plat, 

unless otherwise provided by this code or approved by the affected user of the easement;  

15. The location of proposed closures of existing streets, alleys, easements, and rights-of-way;  

16. The known location of all existing property lines within the area proposed for subdivision;  

17. Proposed arrangement of lots. Property for residential use shall be platted as lots and shall be numbered 

consecutively from one (1) to the total number of lots in the subdivision. Property platted for commercial use, 

public use, or private street use shall be platted as tracts and shall be lettered in alphabetical order; 

18. The title of the proposed subdivision, the name of the owner(s) with sufficient data to show ownership, and 

the proponent of the Preliminary Plat and current landowner(s) at time of submittal (if different than 

proponent). The proposed title shall not conflict with any previous subdivision name; 

19. Playa Lake Areas, if any, shall conform to the requirements of Article 39.05, Division 5.3, Playa Lakes 

Development and Ownership; 

20. Sites proposed for stormwater drainage and impoundment easements, parks or other property owned by the 

City or any other governmental entity shall contain no blanket or specific utility easement until approved by 

the City Engineer or authorized representative of other governmental entities; 

21. A statement regarding maintenance of any installed detention/retention basins shall be stated on the face of 
the plat; and 

22. All spelling on the plat shall be correct. 

0. Prepared by a Surveyor. A Preliminary Plat shall be prepared by a Professional Land Surveyor registered in the 
State of Texas.  

0. Notice on Plat. The following notice shall be printed on the face of each Preliminary Plat submitted: 
"Preliminary Plat - for inspection purposes only and in no way official or approved for recording purposes." 

0. Specifications. Plat sheet sizes shall be drawn at industry-standard engineering scales on standard ANSI or 
Architectural sheet sizes sufficient to legibly illustrate the proposed layout and required information. 
However, one dimension of the plat sheet may not exceed 36 inches. 

0. Contents. The subdivider shall provide the following items in a legible manner on a Preliminary Plat.  

 . All unsubdivided contiguous land under single or common ownership shall be included in the Preliminary 
Plat. However, if approved by the Director of Planning prior to submittal, the limits of a Preliminary Plat 
may include a portion of the owner's contiguous land and extend to known identifiable limits such as 
collector streets, Playa Lakes, or other well-defined development barriers. 

 . Location map, legibly illustrating the general position of the property relative to at least two intersecting 
City of Lubbock arterial streets or State highways. 

 . Scale, north arrow, date, exact acreage, proposed subdivision name, and other pertinent site-specific 
descriptive information. 

 . Property owner's name, address, and telephone number, including the record owner and warranty deed 
recording information of the proposed subdivision. 

 . Accurate one-foot interval contours according to NAD83/NAVD88 datum or subsequent established 
United States Geodetic Survey data adopted by the City. The face of the Preliminary Plat shall indicate 
the source, datum, and date of creation for the contour data. 

 . The Preliminary Plat must be tied by survey to abutting section corners, or when the proposed subdivision 
abuts or is abutting an existing recorded plat, the Preliminary Plat may be tied by survey to such existing 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.44" + Tab after:  0.74" + Indent at:  0.74"

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Field Code Changed

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

16

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1607


plat. Boundary lines for the proposed subdivision shall be indicated by heavy lines. Boundaries for lots 
and/or tracts within the plat boundary shall be shown in solid lines. Existing cross streets shall be shown 
for reference at the property boundary.  

 . The approximate location of any City limit lines including labels for inside and outside City limits.  

 . The name and location of all abutting subdivisions shall be drawn to the same scale and shown in dashed 
lines abutting the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient detail to show accurately the existing streets 
and alleys and other features that may influence the layout and development of the proposed 
subdivision. Abutting unplatted land shall show property lines and owners of record. If the abutting land 
has a current approved Preliminary Plat, it shall be shown on the Preliminary Plat. 

 . The following adjoining and abutting property information shall be shown on all property adjoining and 
abutting the plat boundary:  

 .  Subdivision name, Lot #, Block #, and recording information (if the property is platted); 

 .  Name of ownership with deed and recording information (if the property is not platted); and 

 . Any recorded easements known to the surveyor at the time of submittal with recording information.  

 . The location, name, and width of all streets, alleys, public and private easements, and rights-of-way 
existing or proposed within the subdivision limits, along with the proposed names of streets. 

 . The location of proposed closures of existing streets, alleys, easements, and rights-of-way. 

 . The major road system and location of site with respect to the City (southeast, northwest, etc.) 

 . The known location of all existing property lines within the area proposed for subdivision. 

 . Proposed arrangement of lots. Property for residential use shall be platted as lots and shall be numbered 
consecutively from one to the total number of lots in the subdivision. Property platted for commercial 
use, public use, or private street use shall be platted as tracts and shall be lettered in alphabetical order. 

 . The title of the proposed subdivision, the name of the owner(s) with sufficient data to show ownership, 
and the proponent of the preliminary plat and current landowner(s) at time of submittal (if different than 
proponent). The proposed title shall not conflict with any previous subdivision name. 

 . Playa Lake Areas, if any, shall conform to the requirements of Division 5.3, Playa Lakes Development and 
Ownership. 

 . Sites proposed for stormwater drainage and impoundment easements, parks, or other property owned 
by the City or any other governmental entity shall contain no blanket or specific utility easement until 
approved by the City Engineer or authorized representative of other governmental entities. 

 . A preliminary drainage analysis and map that meets the requirements of the Drainage Criteria Manual of 
the City. 

 . A statement regarding maintenance of any installed detention/retention basins shall be stated on the 
face of the plat. 

 . Subdivision names shall not change once approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 . All spelling on the plat shall be correct. 

ff.d. Specific Decision Criteria.  

1. Review and Decision. In determining whether to approve or deny a Preliminary Plat, the review bodies shall 
consider the applicable common decision criteria in Section 39.07.006, Common Decision Criteria, and the 
following: 

A. Standards and Specifications. The proposed development conforms to the design and improvement 
standards contained in the City's Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications.  

17



B. Other Review Bodies. If applicable, approval from any public school district sharing territory with the City 
of Lubbock, Lubbock County Commissioner’s Court, and any legislative-created districts. 

2. Required Approval. If the Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector or Planning, or designee, finds that a 
Preliminary Plat complies with all the requirements of this Section and the applicable decision criteria, then it 
is required to approve the Platthe Preliminary Plat shall be approved. 

gg.e. Approval Procedures.  

1. Action by the Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector of Planning, or designee. The Planning and Zoning 
CommissionThe Director of Planning, or designee, shall approve, approve with conditions or, or disapprove 
the application. If the application is conditionally approved or disapproved, the Planning and Zoning 
CommissionDirector of Planning, or designee, shall provide a written statement to the applicant in accordance 
with Texas Local Government Code Section 212.0091. 

2. Applicant Response to Conditional Approval or Disapproval. The applicant may submit a response to the 
Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector of Planning in accordance with Texas Local Government Code 
Section 212.0093. If submitted in accordance with the filing calendar, the Director of Planning shall file the 
response with the Planning and Zoning Commission for consideration within 15 days. 

3. Consideration of Response by Planning and Zoning Commissionthe Director of Planning. The Director of 
Planning and Zoning Commission shall approve or disapprove a response submitted in accordance with Texas 
Local Government Code Section 212.0093 within 15 days after the date the response was submitted. If the 
response is disapproved, the Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector of Planning shall provide a written 
statement to the applicant in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Section 212.0091. 

hh.f. Revisions and Reapplication. If an owner proposes changes to a Preliminary Plat that do not substantially comply 
with the application that was approved by the Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector of Planning, or designee, 
the applicant shall prepare a revised Preliminary Plat. The revised Preliminary Plat must be approved by the 
Director of Planning, or designeePlanning and Zoning Commission before the applicant submits a Final Plat. 

ii.g. Commission Final Decision. 

1. Action. The Director of Planning, or designeePlanning and Zoning Commission shall make a final decision on 
the Preliminary Plat at a regularly scheduled meeting held within 30 days of the date the Plat application is 
filed. This deadline may be extended an additional 30 days if the applicant requests Planning and Zoning 
Commission the Director of Planning, or designee approval, and the Director of Planning, or designee, agrees 
to a 30 day extension in writing.  

2. No Action. If no action is taken by the Planning and Zoning Commission at the end of the 30-day period, 
without the request of an extension, the Plat shall be deemed to have been approved. 

3.2. After Decision. After the Director of Planning, or designee Planning and Zoning Commission makes a final 
decision on approves the Preliminary Plat, the applicant may then submit a Final Plat Application. A Preliminary 
Plat and a Final Plat shall not be submitted at the same of the same subdivision shall not be placed on the 
same meeting agenda.  The Final Plat shall not be filed before receiving approval of the Preliminary Plat. 

jj. Appeal. If the final decision on the Preliminary Plat is appealed, a vote of three-fourths of the City Council members 
shall be rendered to overturn the Planning and Zoning Commission’s decision. 

kk.h. No Public Dedication. Approval of the Preliminary Plat shall not constitute any real property grant or dedication 
or the acceptance of any public improvements. 

Section 39.07.041 Final Plat 
  

1. Generally. In addition to the applicable required procedures in Division 7.1, Purpose, Applicability, and Common 
Review Procedures, the following shall apply to Final Plats. 

18



2. Purpose. The purpose of a Final Plat is to serve as the official recorded map of the property to be developed, 
showing the boundaries, lots, public streets, easements, and other significant facilities and features that are 
necessary to serve the development. The Final Plat shall conform to the approved Preliminary Plat, if any, and may 
constitute only a portion of the Preliminary Plat provided that such portions conform to all applicable requirements 
of this UDC. 

3. Improvements. The Final Plat shall contain dedication for all internal and perimeter streets and alleys and other 
improvements within the portion proposed for Final Plat as shown on the approved Preliminary Plat. 

4. Land Not to be Excluded.  

1. Avoidance. A Final Plat shall not exclude land that should otherwise be included for the purpose of avoiding 
requirements of this UDC, including, but not limited to, the requirement to improve existing perimeter streets 
or to dedicate a street designated on the current City of Lubbock Master Thoroughfare Plan. 

2. Remainder Tracts. In no case shall a Final Plat exclude land so as to leave a remainder of such size, shape, or 
location as not to be developable in substantial compliance with the requirements of this UDC. 

5. Applicant Responsibilities. The Final Plat shall incorporate all preliminary Preliminary plat Plat information and 
conditions approved by the Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector of Planning and shall meet all of the following 
requirements: 
1. An approved Preliminary Plat (.pdf) of the property, signed by the Director of Planning or their designee; 

2. Prepared by a Surveyor. A Final Plat shall be prepared by a Professional Land Surveyor registered in the State 

of Texas; 

3. Final Plat document (.pdf). Plat sheet sizes shall be drawn at industry-standard engineering scales on standard 

ANSI or Architectural sheet sizes sufficient to legibly illustrate the proposed layout and required information. 

A minimum sheet size of 11” x 17” is required, however, the sheet is not to exceed 36” on any side; 

4. Application fee of $350 for the first acre with $55 for each additional acre thereafter, not to exceed $5,000.00. 
5. Any supplementary materials required for approval; 

6. Dedication(s) by separate instrument (as indicated on the face of the final plat to be recorded), if applicable. 

7. Easement or right-of-way closure ordinance, if applicable; and 

8. Street island ordinance, if applicable. 

Document Requirements: 

 

1. Must conform to the approved associated Preliminary Plat, and may constitute only a portion of the   

Preliminary Plat; 

2. Shall contain right-of-way dedication for all internal and perimeter streets and alleys within the portion 

proposed for Final Plat as shown on the approved Preliminary Plat; 
3. The Final Plat dimensional control shall be in units of U.S. survey feet to the nearest one-hundredth of a 

foot. Directional control shall be shown as bearings to the nearest arc second. The description of the methodology 

used and the source, datum, and date of creation of the relevant points must be included on the face of the plat; 

4. Control for a Final Plat shall be established by one of the following methods.  (1)  The Final Plat may be 

tied by survey to adjacent section corners and lines; or (2) When the approved subdivision abuts or is adjacent to 

an existing recorded plat of the City of Lubbock or Lubbock County, the Final Plat may be tied by survey to such 

existing plat; 

5. The Final Plat shall include horizontal coordinates on at least two of the boundary corners relative to the 

Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone datum as described in Texas Natural Resources Code, Title 

2, Chapter 21, as amended, or subsequently established United States Geodetic Survey data adopted by the City of 

Lubbock; 

6. Drawn to the following scale per acreage within the plat boundary: 1”=50’ for <1 acre; 1”=100’ for >1 acre; 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.44" + Tab after:  0.74" + Indent at:  0.74"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.44"

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0.01", Outline numbered

+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.22" + Tab after:  0.51"

+ Indent at:  0.51", Tab stops:  0.5", Left + Not at  0.51"

19



7. The incorporation of all Preliminary Plat information and conditions approved by administrative review; 

8. The plat boundary and the exact acreage included in that boundary; 

9. Title or name of the plat. If a lot or tract is replatted, all land in the original lot(s) or tract(s) shall be replatted 

in order to retain the original plat name. A replat cannot “orphan” a part of a previously subdivided lot or tract; 

10. The map scale, horizontal datum, north arrow and date; 

11. Reference by name to recorded plats of adjacent and abutting properties; 

12. Boundary lines of all lots, tracts, and parcels with accurate dimensions, bearings, radii, chord distances, and 

central angles of all curve segments, for all total curves. Such lines shall be shown in the same manner as required 

for Preliminary Plats in Section 39.07.038.c.4, Contents; 

13. Numbers and letters to identify each lot or tract; 

14. Lots shall be numbered consecutively from one (1) to the total number of lots in the subdivision. Tracts 

shall be lettered in alphabetical order. Such designation will be continuous in the order that Final Plats of portions 

of an approved Preliminary Plat are recorded with the County Clerk; 

15. Replatted lots will be designated alphanumerically (e.g. Lot 1-A), and further subdivision will alternate 

numbers and letters (e.g. Lot 1-A-1, Lot 1-A-1-A). The same alternating method will be used for tracts (e.g. Tract 

A-1, Tract A-1-A, Tract A-1-A-1); 

16. Private Streets and common open space and other common areas shall be platted as separate tracts and 

names must be approved by the City of Lubbock.  Changes to existing private street names require approval of the 

City of Lubbock Building Official when the changes will affect existing residents; 

17. All street and alley rights-of-way and easements shall be clearly shown on the Final Plat and the purpose 

and restrictions of use of such easement indicated; 

18. Accurate location, dimensions, bearings, radii, chord distances, and central angles of all curve segments, 

for all total curves, shall be provided to readily establish location of rights-of-way and easements. Location of points 

of intersection and points of tangency of street intersections, other than right angle intersections, shall be indicated. 

19. Bearing, distances, and ties to the property boundary (including medians) shall be indicated; 

20. A key of abbreviations for easement types, such as utilities, cross-access, tree preservations, etc., shall be 

included on the Final Plat; 

21. Legal references shall be provided for all previous dedications and easements abutting the property shall be 

indicated; 

22. Name of each street and width of streets, alleys, and other rights-of-way shall be indicated; 

23. Approved City Street names shall be shown first followed by any highway designation and numbering in 

parentheses if applicable.  For example, "19th Street (US 62)". Directional prefixes such as “East” or “North” are 

required to be shown, where applicable; 

24. All platted lots and tracts shall provide for collection of garbage consistent with Article 22.06 of this code 

unless alternatives are approved by the City Engineer; 

25. The following surveyor's certificate shall be placed on every Final Plat and signed by the surveyor prior to 

submission to the Director of Planning: 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

That I, __________________, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey of the land and that 

the corner monuments and/or other control shown thereon were properly placed under my personal supervision, in accordance 

with the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 

_______________________________________________ 

 

 

20

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1266


26. The following certificate of approval by the Director of Planning or their designee shall be placed on every Final 

Plat and signed prior to recording of the plat documents at the courthouse: 

 
Approved this _________ day of _______________________, 20______, 

by the Director of Planning, or designee, of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 

________________________________________________ 

Director of Planning 

 

The following notices shall be stated on the face of every plat: 

 

1. “Heavy lines indicate plat limits.”; 

 

2. “All streets, alleys, and easements within plat limits are herein dedicated unless noted otherwise”; 

 

3. “No building permit shall be issued on any survey certificate that is not in accordance with an approved 

Final Plat and infrastructure and final drainage analysis acceptance by the Lubbock Code of Ordinances”; 

 

4. “All utility service shall be in accordance with the Underground Utilities Policy Statement by the Planning 

and Zoning Commission of the City of Lubbock, Texas and the provisions of Article 37.01 of the Lubbock Code of 

Ordinances”; 

 

5. “All existing or proposed utility services to and on tracts indicated by this plat shall be contained in the 

public right-of-way and public or private utility easements. Utility service installation requested at a future date and 

not within an easement indicated by this plat, shall be within a proper utility easement granted by the owner of said 

property by separate recorded instrument prior to the provision of such service. Such easements shall be at the 

expense of the entity requesting such installation”; 

 

6. “All easements herein granted shall entitle the City or the utility company using such easements to the right 

to remove, repair or replace any lines, pipes, conduits, or poles within such easements as may be determined by the 

city or utility company without the city or utility company being responsible or liable for the replacement of 

improvements, paving, or surfacing of the easement necessitated by such repair, removal, or replacement. Easements 

designated or intended for vehicular passage (utility and emergency) or pedestrian access shall not be fenced or 

otherwise obstructed”; and 

 

7. “Minimum floor elevations shall conform to the requirements of the Lubbock Drainage Criteria Manual, as 

adopted by Ord. 10022, as amended, and Section 28.09.131, Section 28.14.004, and Section 30.03.073 of the 

Lubbock Code of Ordinances.” 

 

The following notices shall be stated on the face of the plat when they apply to that particular plat: 

 

1. Any notices required in Unified Development Code Section 39.04.024, Required Notice for Final Plats 

Containing Lake or Flood Risk Areas, for lake or flood hazard areas; 

 

2.  “Any easements or rights-of-way shown as ‘to be dedicated by separate instrument' are shown on the plat for 

information purposes only. This plat does not dedicate said easements”; 

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.22" + Tab after:  0.51" + Indent at:  0.51"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.44", First line:  0.06",

Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.75" +

Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.44", First line:  0.06",

Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.75" +

Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.44", First line:  0.06",

Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.75" +

Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.44", First line:  0.06",

Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.75" +

Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.44", First line:  0.06",

Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.75" +

Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.44", First line:  0.06",

Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.75" +

Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.44", First line:  0.06",

Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.75" +

Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.88",  No bullets or

numbering

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: First line:  0"

21



3.  “Blanket solid waste collection easement as required for service [within the plat limits or insert specific lot 

or tract designation] is herein granted”; 

 

4.  “Blanket [insert ‘underground' if applicable] utility easement as required for service [within the plat limits 

or insert specific lot or tract designation] is herein granted to [insert name of public, private or franchise utility 

or certificated service provider of telecommunications]”; and 

 

5.  “Public pedestrian access easement is herein granted for persons traversing along the public parkway and 

needing to enter onto private property for the purpose of crossing a driveway. The easement is limited to 

those portions of the as-constructed driveways and walks which may extend outside public right-of-way onto 

private property and are constructed for the continuance of the accessible routes across the back of the 

driveway. This easement applies to existing and any future drive entrances as constructed.” 

 

0. Prepared by a Surveyor. A Final Plat shall be prepared by a Professional Land Surveyor registered in the State 
of Texas.  

0. Boundary and Acreage. The plat boundary and the exact acreage included in that boundary. 

0. Name. Title or name of the plat. If a lot or tract is replatted, all land in the original lot(s) or tract(s) shall be 
replatted in order to retain the original plat name. 

0. Specifications. Plat sheet sizes shall be drawn at industry-standard engineering scales on standard ANSI or 
Architectural sheet sizes sufficient to legibly illustrate the proposed layout and required information. 
However, one dimension of the plat sheet may not exceed 36 inches. 

0. Geographic Data. The map scale, horizontal datum, north arrow and date. 

0. Adjacent and Abutting Properties. Referenced by: 

 . Name of recorded plats of adjacent and abutting properties; 

 . Property lines and owners of record for unplatted land;  

 . A specific indication of applicable City Limit boundaries; and 

 . The following adjoining property information shall be shown on all property abutting the plat boundary:  

 . Subdivision name, Lot #, Block #, and recording information (if the property is platted); 

 . Name of ownership with deed and recording information (if the property is not platted); and 

 .  Any recorded easements known to the surveyor at the time of submittal with recording 
information.  

0. Final Plat Survey and Control.  

 . The Final Plat dimensional control shall be in units of U.S. Survey Feet to the nearest one-hundredth of 
a foot. Directional control shall be shown as bearings to the nearest arc second. The description of the 
methodology used and the source, datum, and date of creation of the relevant points must be included 
on the face of the plat. Control for a Final Plat shall be established by one of the following methods: 

 . The Final Plat must be tied by survey to adjacent section corners; or 

 . When the approved subdivision abuts or is adjacent to an existing recorded plat of the City of 
Lubbock or Lubbock County, the Final Plat may be tied by survey to such existing plat. 

 . The Final Plat shall include horizontal coordinates on at least two of the boundary corners relative to the 
Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone datum as described in Texas Natural Resources 
Code, Title 2, Chapter 21, or subsequently established United States Geodetic Survey data adopted by 
the City of Lubbock. 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:

1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

0.5" + Indent at:  0.88"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:

1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

0.5" + Indent at:  0.88"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:

1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 

0.5" + Indent at:  0.88"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering

Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.8" + Tab after:  1.09" + Indent at:  1.09"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering

Style: i, ii, iii, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  1.09" + Tab after:  1.38" + Indent at:  1.38"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering

Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.8" + Tab after:  1.09" + Indent at:  1.09"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering

Style: i, ii, iii, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  1.09" + Tab after:  1.38" + Indent at:  1.38"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering

Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.8" + Tab after:  1.09" + Indent at:  1.09"

22



0. Lot Lines. Boundary lines of all lots, tracts, and parcels with accurate dimensions, bearings, radii, chord 
distances, and central angles of all curve segments, for all total curves. Such lines shall be shown in the same 
manner as required for Preliminary Plats in Section 39.07.040.c.4, Contents.  

0. Identification. Numbers and letters to identify each lot or tract. 

 . Lots shall be numbered consecutively from one to the total number of lots in the subdivision. Tracts shall 
be lettered in alphabetical order. Such designation will be continuous in the order that Final Plats of 
portions of a Preliminary Plat are recorded with the County Clerk. 

 . Replatted lots will be designated alphanumerically (e.g. Lot 1-A), and further subdivision will alternate 
numbers and letters (e.g., Lot 1-A-1, Lot 1-A-1-A). The same alternating method will be used for tracts 
(e.g., Tract A-1, Tract A-1-A, Tract A-1-A-1). 

 . Private Streets and common open space and other common areas shall be platted as separate tracts and 
names must be approved by the City of Lubbock. Changes to existing private street names require 
approval of the City of Lubbock Building Official when the changes will affect existing residents.  

0. Street Width and Names. All street and alley rights-of-way and easements shall be clearly shown on the plat 
and the purpose and restrictions of use of such easement indicated. 

 . Accurate location, dimensions, bearings, radii, chord distances, and central angles of all curve segments, 
for all total curves, shall be provided to readily establish the location of rights-of-way and easements. 
Location of points of intersection and points of tangency of street intersections other than right-angle 
intersections shall be indicated; 

 . Bearing, distances, and ties to the property boundary (including medians); 

 . A key of abbreviations for easement types, such as utilities, cross-access, tree preservations, etc., shall 
be included on the plat; 

 . Legal references shall be provided for all previous dedications and easements abutting the property;  

 . Name of each street and width of streets, alleys, and other rights-of-way; and 

 . Approved City Street names shall be shown first followed by any highway designation and numbering in 
parentheses if applicable. For example, "19th Street (US 62)".  

0. Solid Waste and Recycling Collection. All platted lots and tracts shall provide for collection of solid waste and 
recycling consistent with Article 22.06 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances unless alternatives are 
approved by the City Council. 

0. Symbology. All symbology on the plat shall be distinct, consistent, and labeled in the legend. If multiple 
features overlap, labels need to be included to distinguish what is proposed.  

0. For Review Purposes Only. Temporary labeling shall be required on unrecorded adjacent and abutting plats 
considered "in platting process" or "under construction" that is shown on a Final Plat for review. These labels 
shall be taken off before final recording. 

0. Spelling. All spelling on the plat shall be correct.  

40.6. Specific Decision Criteria.  

1. Review and Decision. In determining whether to approve or deny a Final Plat, the applicable review bodies 
shall consider the applicable common decision criteria in Section 39.07.006, Common Decision Criteria, and 
conformance to applicable portions of the approved Preliminary Plat.  

2. Required Approval. If the Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector of Planning, or designee finds that a Final 
Plat complies with all provisions of this Section and applicable decision criteria, then it is required to approve 
the plat.the Final Plat shall be approved. 

41.7. Final Decision.  

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering

Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.8" + Tab after:  1.09" + Indent at:  1.09"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering

Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.8" + Tab after:  1.09" + Indent at:  1.09"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 6 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.22" + Tab after:  0.51" + Indent at:  0.51"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 6 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.22" + Tab after:  0.51" + Indent at:  0.51"

23



1. Action. The Planning and Zoning CommissionDirector of Planning, or designee shall make a final decision on 
the Final Plat within 30 days of the date the plat is filed, as defined in Subsection 39.07.004.f, Plat Filing. The 
deadline may be extended an additional 30 days if the applicant requests Planning and Zoning Commissionan 
extension and the Director of Planning approvalapproves the request in writing.  

0. No Action. If no action is taken by the Director of Planning at the end of the 30-day period, without the 
request, the plat shall be deemed to have been approved. 

43.8. Illegal Subdivision. Where an applicant seeks approval of a Final Plat for land that was subdivided in 
violation of this UDC, state law, or any prior Ordinance, and the development cannot comply with this UDC 
because of the unlawful subdivision, the Director of Planning may deny the plat, taking into account requirements 
related to lot area, lot width, and the ability to configure the proposed use on the lot.  

44.9. No Acceptance of Public Improvements. Approval of the Final Plat shall not constitute the acceptance of 
any public improvements unless, and until, the City Engineer specifically agrees to such acceptance in accordance 
with Section 39.04.022, Acceptance and Maintenance. 

45.10. Recording. Within 10 days of receipt and approval of the above documents, the Director of Planning shall 
record the approved Final Plat with the Lubbock County Clerk. After the plat has been recorded, the Director of 
Planning shall issue to the subdivider the necessary copies of the approved and signed Final Plat along with the 
Lubbock County filing number. Impact fees are determined in accordance with Section 41.03.003 of the Lubbock 
Code of Ordinances. 

46.11. Preliminary Plat Renewal. 

1. Phasing. For a development to be constructed in phases, the Final Plat may include only a portion of the land 
included in the Preliminary Plat. 

2. Two-Year Period. Where only a portion of an approved Preliminary Plat is submitted for Final Plat approval, 
a Final Plat of the remaining area may shall be submitted at any time within two years of the date of 
Preliminary Plat approval. 

3. Renewal and Expiration. If a Final Plat of the remaining area has not been submitted within the two-year time 
period, the portion of the Preliminary Plat for which no Final Plat has been submitted shall be deemed null 
and void. However, if at least one phase of the Preliminary Plat has received Final Plat approval, its public 
improvements have been completed, and it has been recorded with the Lubbock County Clerk, an extension 
to the two-year time limit shall be automatically granted for all phases. 

47.12. Street Closure. Any streets, alleys, or easements dedicated to the public within the proposed Final Plat 
boundaries that are proposed for closure shall be closed by ordinance before the Final Plat can be recorded. These 
closures shall not be indicated on the Final Plat. The procedure for right-of-way closure is as follows: 

1. Application for closure; 

2. Preparation of Final Plat or Replat and indicating closed right-of-way; 

3. Council approval of closure; 

4. File closure ordinance; and 

5. Final Plat recorded. 

Section 39.07.042 Replat 
  

a. Generally. In addition to the applicable required procedures in Division 7.1, Purpose, Applicability, and Common 
Review Procedures, the following shall apply to Replats. 

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 6 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.22" + Tab after:  0.51" + Indent at:  0.51"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 6 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.22" + Tab after:  0.51" + Indent at:  0.51"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering

Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +

Aligned at:  0.51" + Tab after:  0.8" + Indent at:  0.8"

24



b. Purpose. The purpose of a Replat is to allow a property owner to add additional lots or public rights-of-way to a 
recorded plat without prior vacation, or to reconfigure lots within a recorded subdivision. The purpose of the replat 
shall be stated in the general notes on the face of the plat. 

c. Applicant Responsibilities. Except as provided in this Subsection, applicant responsibilities shall be the same as 
those for a Final Plat. Refer to Subsection 39.07.041.d, Applicant Responsibilities.  

d. Replatting Without Vacating Preceding Plat. In accordance with Texas Local Government Code Sections 212.014, 
212.0145, and 212.015, a Replat of a subdivision or part of a subdivision may be recorded and is controlling over 
the preceding plat without vacation of that plat if the Replat: 

1. Is signed and acknowledged by only the owners of the property being replatted; 

2. Is approved, after a public hearing by the Planning and Zoning Commission on the matter, if required by Texas 
Local Government Code Section 212.015; and 

3. Does not attempt to amend or remove any covenants or restrictions. 

e. Utilities. The relocation, modification, or abandonment of any utilities shall be the responsibility of the subdivider 
and shall be provided for concurrently with the Replat. The cost of any such relocation or abandonment shall be 
borne by the subdivider. 

f. Specific Decision Criteria.  

1. Review and Decision. In determining whether to approve or deny a Replat, the applicable review bodies shall 
consider the applicable common decision criteria in Section 39.07.006, Common Decision Criteria.  

2. Required Approval. If the applicable review body finds that a Replat complies with all applicable decision 
criteria, then it is required to approve the Replat. 

g. Final Decision.  

1. Action. The applicable review body shall make a final decision on the Replat within 30 days of the date the Plat 
is filed. The deadline may be extended an additional 30 days if the applicant submits a requests or consentsit 
in writing to the extension to act upon the Platto the Director of Planning, and the Director of Planning 
approves the extension. 

2. No Action. If no action is taken by the applicable review body at the end of the 30-day period, without the 
request or consent of an extension, the Plat shall be deemed to have been approved. 

Section 39.07.043 Vacating Plat 
  

a. Generally. In addition to the applicable required procedures in Division 7.1, Purpose, Applicability, and Common 
Review Procedures, the following shall apply to Vacating Plats.  

b. Purpose. The purpose of a Vacating Plat is to eliminate the subdivision of property reflected by a prior recorded 
plat, whereby the subdivided land would return to a single unit of property. 

c. Vacation of Plat. A recorded plat may be vacated in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Section 212.013 

d. Review and Decision. In determining whether to approve or deny a Vacating Plat, the review body shall consider 
the applicable common decision criteria in Section 39.07.006, Common Decision Criteria. 

e. Utilities. The relocation, modification, or abandonment of any utilities or easement preparation shall be the 
responsibility of the subdivider and shall be provided concurrently with the Vacating Plat. The cost of any such 
relocation or abandonment shall be borne by the subdivider. 

Section 39.07.044 Waiver of Improvements 
  

a. Generally. In addition to the applicable required procedures in Division 7.1, Purpose, Applicability, and Common 
Review Procedures, the following shall apply to Waivers. 

25



 

 
I certify that all items checked have been provided. I understand that not providing all of this 

information will result in an incomplete application and delay the consideration of this application 

for approval.  

 

___________________________________________________     ________________________ 

Signature        Date 

 

Preliminary Plats may be submitted online through the Citizen Self-Service portal on the City of 

Lubbock website at www.mylubbock.us 

 

Submission Requirements: 

 

 Completed Plat Application, signed by the current property owner as reflected on the 

Lubbock Central Appraisal District or current deed. 

 Preliminary Plat document (.pdf). Plat sheet sizes shall be drawn at industry-standard 

engineering scales on standard ANSI or Architectural sheet sizes sufficient to legibly 

illustrate the proposed layout and required information. A minimum sheet size of 11” x 17” 

is required, however, the sheet is not to exceed 36” on any side. 

 Prepared by a Surveyor. A Preliminary Plat shall be prepared by a Professional Land 

Surveyor registered in the State of Texas. 

 A preliminary drainage analysis and map (.pdf) that meets the requirements of the Drainage 

Criteria Manual of the City. 

 Application fee equal to $150 for the first acre with an additional $35 per acre thereafter, 

not to exceed $7,000.00. 

 Water and sewer schematic layouts. 

Document Requirements: 

 The following notice shall be printed on the face of each Preliminary Plat submitted:  

“Preliminary Plat – for inspection purposes only and in no way official or approved for 

recording purposes.” 

 Drawn to the following scale per acreage within the plat boundary: 1”=50’ for <1 acre; 

1”=100’ for <160 acres; 1”=100’ or 1”=200’ for >160 acres. 

 All unsubdivided contiguous land under single or common ownership shall be included in 

the Preliminary Plat. However, if approved by the Director of Planning prior to submittal, 

the limits of a Preliminary Plat may include a portion of the owner’s contiguous land and 

extend to known identifiable limits such as collector streets, Playa Lakes, or other well-

defined development barriers. 

Preliminary Plat Submission Checklist 

26

http://www.mylubbock.us/


 Location map, legibly illustrating the general position of the property relative to at least 

two intersecting City of Lubbock arterial streets or State highways and the location of the 

site with respect to the City (southeast, northwest, etc.). 

 Scale, north arrow, date, exact acreage, proposed subdivision name, and other pertinent 

site-specific descriptive information. 

 Property owner’s name, address, and telephone number, including the record owner and 

warranty deed recording information of the proposed subdivision. 

 Accurate one-foot interval contours according to NAD83/NAVD88 datum or subsequent 

established United States Geodetic Survey data adopted by the City. The face of the 

Preliminary Plat must indicate the source, datum, and date of creation for the contour data. 

 The Preliminary Plat must be tied by survey to abutting section corners, or when the 

proposed subdivision abuts or is abutting an existing recorded plat, the Preliminary Plat 

may be tied by survey to such existing plat. Boundary lines for the proposed subdivision 

shall be indicated by heavy lines.  Boundaries for lots and/or tracts within the plat boundary 

shall be shown in solid lines.  Existing cross streets shall be shown for reference at the 

property boundary.  

 Where applicable, approximate location of any City limit lines including labels for inside 

and outside City limits. 

 Boundary lines, bearings, and distances sufficient to locate the exact area proposed for 

subdivision. 

 The name and location of all abutting subdivisions shall be drawn to the same scale and 

shown in dashed lines abutting the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient detail to 

show accurately the existing streets and alleys and other features that may influence the 

layout and development of the proposed subdivision. Abutting unplatted land shall show 

property lines and owners of record. If the abutting land has a current approved Preliminary 

Plat, it shall be shown on the proposed Preliminary Plat. 

 The following adjoining and abutting property information shall be shown on 

all property adjoining and abutting the plat boundary:   

i. Subdivision name, Lot #, Block #, and recording information (if the property is 

platted); 

ii. Name of ownership with deed and recording information (if the property is not 

platted); and 

iii. Any recorded easements known to the surveyor at the time of submittal with 

recording information. 

 The location, name, and width of all streets, alleys, public and private easements, and 

rights-of-way existing or proposed within the subdivision limits, along with the proposed 

names of streets.  

 A restriction prohibiting the fencing or obstruction of any easement shall be stated on the 

face of the plat, unless otherwise provided by this code or approved by the affected user of 

the easement. 

 The location of proposed closures of existing streets, alleys, easements, and rights-of-way. 

27

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=950
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1382


 The known location of all existing property lines within the area proposed for subdivision. 

 Proposed arrangement of lots. Property for residential use shall be platted as lots and shall 

be numbered consecutively from one (1) to the total number of lots in the subdivision. 

Property platted for commercial use, public use, or private street use shall be platted as 

tracts and shall be lettered in alphabetical order. 

 The title of the proposed subdivision, the name of the owner(s) with sufficient data to show 

ownership, and the proponent of the Preliminary Plat and current landowner(s) at time of 

submittal (if different than proponent). The proposed title shall not conflict with any 

previous subdivision name. 

 Playa Lake Areas, if any, shall conform to the requirements of Article 39.05, Division 5.3, 

Playa Lakes Development and Ownership. 

 Sites proposed for stormwater drainage and impoundment easements, parks or other 

property owned by the City or any other governmental entity shall contain no blanket or 

specific utility easement until approved by the City Engineer or authorized representative 

of other governmental entities. 

 A statement regarding maintenance of any installed detention/retention basins shall be 

stated on the face of the plat. 

 All spelling on the plat shall be correct. 

28

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1607


 

 
I certify that all items checked have been provided. I understand that not providing all of this information, as well as 

submitting drainage and construction plans at or immediately after the date of this submittal, will result in an incomplete 

application and delay the consideration and scheduling of this application for approval.   

 

___________________________________________________     ________________________ 

Signature        Date 

 

Final Plats may be submitted online through the Citizen Self-Service portal on the City of Lubbock website at 

www.mylubbock.us 
 

Submission Requirements: 

 

 An approved Preliminary Plat (.pdf) of the property, signed by the Director of Planning or their designee. 

 Prepared by a Surveyor. A Final Plat shall be prepared by a Professional Land Surveyor registered in the State of 

Texas. 

 Final Plat document (.pdf). Plat sheet sizes shall be drawn at industry-standard engineering scales on standard ANSI 

or Architectural sheet sizes sufficient to legibly illustrate the proposed layout and required information. A minimum 

sheet size of 11” x 17” is required, however, the sheet is not to exceed 36” on any side. 

 Application fee of $350 for the first acre with $55 for each additional acre thereafter, not to exceed $5,000.00. 

 Any supplementary materials required for approval. 

 Dedication(s) by separate instrument (as indicated on the face of the final plat to be recorded), if applicable. 

 Easement or right-of-way closure ordinance, if applicable. 

 Street island ordinance, if applicable. 

Document Requirements: 

 Must conform to the approved associated Preliminary Plat, and may constitute only a portion of the Preliminary 

Plat. 

 Shall contain right-of-way dedication for all internal and perimeter streets and alleys within the portion proposed 

for Final Plat as shown on the approved Preliminary Plat. 

 The Final Plat dimensional control shall be in units of U.S. survey feet to the nearest one-hundredth of a foot. 

Directional control shall be shown as bearings to the nearest arc second. The description of the methodology used 

and the source, datum, and date of creation of the relevant points must be included on the face of the plat. 

 Control for a Final Plat shall be established by one of the following methods.  (1)  The Final Plat may be tied by 

survey to adjacent section corners and lines; or (2) When the approved subdivision abuts or is adjacent to an existing 

recorded plat of the City of Lubbock or Lubbock County, the Final Plat may be tied by survey to such existing plat. 

 The Final Plat shall include horizontal coordinates on at least two of the boundary corners relative to the Texas 

Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone datum as described in Texas Natural Resources Code, Title 2, 

Chapter 21, as amended, or subsequently established United States Geodetic Survey data adopted by the City of 

Lubbock. 

 Drawn to the following scale per acreage within the plat boundary: 1”=50’ for <1 acre; 1”=100’ for >1 acre. 

 The incorporation of all Preliminary Plat information and conditions approved by administrative review. 

 The plat boundary and the exact acreage included in that boundary. 

 Title or name of the plat. If a lot or tract is replatted, all land in the original lot(s) or tract(s) shall be replatted in 

order to retain the original plat name. A replat cannot “orphan” a part of a previously subdivided lot or tract. 

 The map scale, horizontal datum, north arrow and date. 

Final Plat Submission Checklist 

29

http://www.mylubbock.us/


 Reference by name to recorded plats of adjacent and abutting properties. 

 Boundary lines of all lots, tracts, and parcels with accurate dimensions, bearings, radii, chord distances, and central 

angles of all curve segments, for all total curves. Such lines shall be shown in the same manner as required for 

Preliminary Plats in Section 39.07.038.c.4, Contents. 

 Numbers and letters to identify each lot or tract. 

 Lots shall be numbered consecutively from one (1) to the total number of lots in the subdivision. Tracts shall be 

lettered in alphabetical order. Such designation will be continuous in the order that Final Plats of portions of an 

approved Preliminary Plat are recorded with the County Clerk. 

 Replatted lots will be designated alphanumerically (e.g. Lot 1-A), and further subdivision will alternate numbers 

and letters (e.g. Lot 1-A-1, Lot 1-A-1-A). The same alternating method will be used for tracts (e.g. Tract A-1, Tract 

A-1-A, Tract A-1-A-1). 

 Private Streets and common open space and other common areas shall be platted as separate tracts and names must 

be approved by the City of Lubbock.  Changes to existing private street names require approval of the City of 

Lubbock Building Official when the changes will affect existing residents. 

 All street and alley rights-of-way and easements shall be clearly shown on the Final Plat and the purpose and 

restrictions of use of such easement indicated. 

 Accurate location, dimensions, bearings, radii, chord distances, and central angles of all curve segments, for all total 

curves, shall be provided to readily establish location of rights-of-way and easements. Location of points of 

intersection and points of tangency of street intersections, other than right angle intersections, shall be indicated. 

 Bearing, distances, and ties to the property boundary (including medians) shall be indicated. 

 A key of abbreviations for easement types, such as utilities, cross-access, tree preservations, etc., shall be included 

on the Final Plat. 

 Legal references shall be provided for all previous dedications and easements abutting the property shall be 

indicated. 

 Name of each street and width of streets, alleys, and other rights-of-way shall be indicated. 

 Approved City Street names shall be shown first followed by any highway designation and numbering in 

parentheses if applicable.  For example, "19th Street (US 62)". Directional prefixes such as “East” or “North” are 

required to be shown, where applicable. 

 All platted lots and tracts shall provide for collection of garbage consistent with Article 22.06 of this code unless 

alternatives are approved by the City Engineer. 

 The following surveyor's certificate shall be placed on every Final Plat and signed by the surveyor prior to 

submission to the Director of Planning: 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

That I, __________________, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey of the land and that 

the corner monuments and/or other control shown thereon were properly placed under my personal supervision, in accordance 

with the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 

_______________________________________________ 

 

 

 The following certificate of approval by the Director of Planning or their designee shall be placed on every Final 

Plat and signed prior to recording of the plat documents at the courthouse: 

 

Approved this _________ day of _______________________, 20______, 

by the Director of Planning, or designee, of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 

________________________________________________ 

Director of Planning 

 

30

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1266


 The following notices shall be stated on the face of every plat: 

 

(1)     “Heavy lines indicate plat limits.” 

 

(2)     “All streets, alleys, and easements within plat limits are herein dedicated unless noted otherwise.” 

 

(3)     “No building permit shall be issued on any survey certificate that is not in accordance with an approved Final 

Plat and infrastructure and final drainage analysis acceptance by the Lubbock Code of Ordinances.” 

 

(4)    “All utility service shall be in accordance with the Underground Utilities Policy Statement by the Planning 

and Zoning Commission of the City of Lubbock, Texas and the provisions of Article 37.01 of the Lubbock 

Code of Ordinances.” 

 

(5)     “All existing or proposed utility services to and on tracts indicated by this plat shall be contained in the public 

right-of-way and public or private utility easements. Utility service installation requested at a future date and 

not within an easement indicated by this plat, shall be within a proper utility easement granted by the owner 

of said property by separate recorded instrument prior to the provision of such service. Such easements shall 

be at the expense of the entity requesting such installation.” 

 

(6)     “All easements herein granted shall entitle the City or the utility company using such easements to the right 

to remove, repair or replace any lines, pipes, conduits, or poles within such easements as may be determined 

by the city or utility company without the city or utility company being responsible or liable for the 

replacement of improvements, paving, or surfacing of the easement necessitated by such repair, removal, or 

replacement. Easements designated or intended for vehicular passage (utility and emergency) or pedestrian 

access shall not be fenced or otherwise obstructed.” 

 

(7)     “Minimum floor elevations shall conform to the requirements of the Lubbock Drainage Criteria Manual, as 

adopted by Ord. 10022, as amended, and Section 28.09.131, Section 28.14.004, and Section 30.03.073 of the 

Lubbock Code of Ordinances.” 

 

 The following notices shall be stated on the face of the plat when they apply to that particular plat: 

 

(1) Any notices required in Unified Development Code Section 39.04.024, Required Notice for Final Plats 

Containing Lake or Flood Risk Areas, for lake or flood hazard areas. 

(2)     “Any easements or rights-of-way shown as ‘to be dedicated by separate instrument' are shown on the plat for 

information purposes only. This plat does not dedicate said easements.” 

(3)     “Blanket solid waste collection easement as required for service [within the plat limits or insert specific lot 

or tract designation] is herein granted.” 

 

(4)     “Blanket [insert ‘underground' if applicable] utility easement as required for service [within the plat limits or 

insert specific lot or tract designation] is herein granted to [insert name of public, private or franchise utility 

or certificated service provider of telecommunications].” 

 

(5)    “Public pedestrian access easement is herein granted for persons traversing along the public parkway and 

needing to enter onto private property for the purpose of crossing a driveway. The easement is limited to 

those portions of the as-constructed driveways and walks which may extend outside public right-of-way onto 

private property and are constructed for the continuance of the accessible routes across the back of the 

driveway. This easement applies to existing and any future drive entrances as constructed.” 
 

31



Addressing Remaining Issues with Downtown Zoning 
The adoption of the UDC set the stage for addressing some persistent zoning issues 
inside the Central Business District TIF. The shift from use-based to form-based zoning 
changes the paradigm in much of the CBD TIF, but not in all of it. Moreover, despite 
stakeholder input during the UDC creation process, the zoning classifications in the new 
MU districts are overly complex – a vestige of “CB- “ district zoning. 
This is a proposal to address the following issues: 

• MU districts that create distinctions without meaningful districts
• Areas in an MU district that might best be served in another MU district
• Areas of the CBD TIF that were not in “CB- “ districts, and thus are not in MU

districts

MU DISTRICTS AS ADOPTED 
The UDC, as adopted, establishes new MU districts follow the boundaries of the “CB- “ 
districts. Relevant to the CBD TIF, CB-2 became MU-2, CB-3 became MU-3, CB-4 
became MU-4, CB-5 became MU-5, and CB-6 became MU-6.i 

Through the UDC process, I made multiple attempts to encourage a simplification of the 
districts. My primary motivations to do so were i) a read of the proposed MU districts 
creating differences without distinctions, ii) a feeling that the physical fabric of DT was 

MU-5
MU-4

MU-2

MU-3

MU-6

HC

32



not so broadly different to justify the additional complexity, and iii) a belief, recognized 
during the Downtown Master Plan Update process, that the “district” mindset was 
sometimes a hindrance. 
An example of how the UDC presents the physical parameters of the MU Districts in the 
CBD TIF is attached are Exhibit “A”.ii 
I inventoried the physical parameters of the MU districts in the CBD TIF: 

MU-1 West 
Broadway MU-2 Broadway MU-3 General MU-4 Arts MU-5 Civic MU-6 Depot

2. Building Form

 Max Building Height
2 Stories, not 
exceeding 45'

None None None None None

 Building Height Setback
20' in depth, after 

4th Story or 40'

 Building Height Stepback
After 4th story or 

40'
After 4th story or 

40'
After 4th story or 

40'
 Min. Ground Floor Elevation 14' 12' 12' 12'
 Min. Ground Floor Elevation (Residential) 9' 9' 9' 9'
 Min. Ground Finish Floor (Commercial) 0' 0' 0' 0' 0'
 Min. Ground Finish Floor (Residential) 0' 0' 0' 0' 0'

3. Building Placement
Setbacks
 Minimum Front Setback 25' 0'
 Minimum Side Street Setback 10' 0'
 Minimum Front Build-to-Zone 0' 0' 0' 0'
 Maximum Front Build-to-Zone 10' 25' 10' 10'
 Minimum Side Build-to-Zone 0' 0' 0' 0'
 Maximum Side Build-to-Zone 10' 10' 10' 10'
 Minimum Side Setback 5' 0' 0' 0' 0' 0'
 Minimum Rear Setback 5'; 20' for garages 0' 0' 0' 0' 0'
Frontage Build-out
 Minimum Front Street Frontage 30% 90% 60% 60% 30% 60%
 Minimum Side Street Frontage None 30% 30% 30% 40% 30%
Block Standards
 Maximum Block Perimeter 2,000 linear feet 2,000 linear feet 2,000 linear feet 2,000 linear feet None 2,000 linear feet
 Minimum Lot Width 50' 25' 25' 25' None 25'
 Minimum Lot Depth None 30' 30' 30' None 30'
 Minimum Lot Area None None None None None None

 Maximum Lot Coverage
100%; 50% for 

residential uses
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

5. Parking Locations
 Minimum Front Setback 25' 30' 30' 30' 30' 30'
 Minimum Side Setback 0' 30' 30' 30' 30' 30'
 Minimum Side Street Setback 5' 0' 0' 0' 0' 0'

 Minimum Rear Setback (Lot)
5' for single story; 
10' for two-story

5' 5' 5' 5' 5'

 Minimum Rear Setback (Alley) 0' 0' 0' 0' 0'
 Minimum Rear Setback (Street) 30' 30' 30' 30' 30'

6. Allowed Encroachments

 Frontage Types

Porch, Terrace, 
Stoop, Shopfront, 
Gallery & Arcade, 
Awning, Canopy

Forecourt, Stoop, 
Shopfront, Gallery 
& Arcade, Awning, 
Canopy, Marquee

Forecourt, Porch, 
Stoop, Shopfront, 
Gallery & Arcade, 
Awning, Canopy, 

Marquee

Forecourt, Porch, 
Stoop, Shopfront, 
Gallery & Arcade, 
Awning, Canopy, 

Marquee

Forecourt, Stoop, 
Shopfront, Gallery 
& Arcade, Awning, 
Canopy, Marquee

Forecourt, Porch, 
Stoop, Shopfront, 
Gallery & Arcade, 
Awning, Canopy, 

Marquee

 Other

Bay window, 
Chimneys, Outdoor 
Dining, Pedestrian 

Street lights, 
Planters

Pedestrian Street 
Lights, Projecting 

Wall Signs, 
Outdoor Dining, 

Planters

Pedestrian Street 
Lights, Projecting 

Wall Signs, 
Outdoor Dining, 

Planters

Pedestrian Street 
Lights, Projecting 

Wall Signs, 
Outdoor Dining, 

Planters

Pedestrian Street 
Lights, Projecting 

Wall Signs, 
Outdoor Dining, 

Planters

Pedestrian Street 
Lights, Projecting 

Wall Signs, 
Outdoor Dining, 

Planters

33



MU-4 and MU-6 are identical. MU-3 varies by a single parameter. 
As a general concept, uses are less restricted in a form-based environment. Form-based 
equates to a primary concern with the look, or form, of the district, rather than a focus 
on uses. Nonetheless, uses in the UDC are generally outlined in the Land Use Matrix, a 
copy of which is attached as Exhibit “B”.iii This is true of the MU districts in the CBD TIF. 
There are well over 100 use types in the UDC. Differences exist between MU-3, MU-4, 
and MU-6 in only thirteen of those use types. 

DOWNTOWN AMENDMENT 1A: 
1) Redesignate anything zoned MU-4 and MU-6 as MU-3

a) In Table 39.02.003-1 Change the “Former Zoning District” Column cell for MU-3
to read, “CB-3, CB-4/MU-4, CB-6/MU-6”; AND

b) In Table 39.02.003-1, Delete the rows for “Depot (MU-4)” and “Arts (MU-6)”; AND
c) Replace the contents of Subsection 39.02.005.e and Subsection 39.02.005.g with

“Reserved”.
2) Change Subsection 39.02.005.d.3 such that the Maximum Front Built-to-Zone in

MU-3 shall be 10’.
3) In Table 39.02.016-1 make the Single-Family Detached Dwelling use L in MU-3, and

add L criteria (to Subsection 39.02.018.c.7 to state:
“7. General (MU-3)
a) Only Single-Family Detached Dwelling is allowed on a blockface developed for

Single-Family Detached Dwellings; and
b) Notwithstanding Subsection 39.02.005.d.3, the Maximum Front Build-to-Zone for

a Single-Family Detached Dwelling use is 25’.”
4) In Table 39.02.016-1 delete the columns for MU-4 and MU-6
5) In Table 39.02.016-1 change the P to L for Alcoholic Beverages, Off-Site

Consumption (Package Store) and add an L criteria (to Subsection 39.02.018.h.4 to
state:
“4. General (MU-3) the Package Store shall meet all state and other separation
requirements and be located a minimum of 300 feet, measured from property line to
property line, from any property from any Single-Family Detached Dwelling in
existence at the time of the zone change.”

34

150197
Highlight



MU AREAS IN THE CBD TIF THAT WOULD BE BETTER SERVED IN OTHER MU DISTRICTS 
MU-2 was drafted to describe and encompass a particularly dense environment. The 
Downtown Master Plan Update describes similar features on Ave J north of Broadway 
and on Buddy Holly south of Broadway. However, the former CB-2 district enveloped a 
larger area. 
DOWNTOWN AMENDMENT 1B: 
Redesignate anything zoned MU-2 north of 10th St. as MU-3. 

1) In Table 39.02.003-1 add to the “Former Zoning District” Column cell for MU-3
to read, “CB-2/MU-2 located north of 10th Street”

Redesignate anything zoned MU-2 south of 13th St. and west of Texas Ave. as MU-3. 
2) In Table 39.02.003-1 add to the “Former Zoning District” Column cell for MU-3

to read, “CB-2/MU-2 located south of 13th and west of Texas Avenue”

NON-MU AREAS IN THE CBD TIF 
There exists a vestige of HC (Heavy Commercial) on the eastern edge of the CBD TIF. 
DOWNTOWN AMENDMENT 1C: 
Redesignate anything zoned HC inside the CBD TIF as MU-3 

1) In Table 39.02.003-1 add to the “Former Zoning District” Column cell for MU-3
to read, “HC located within the CBD TIF”

(Note, “grandfathering” of existing uses is handled in Subsection 39.01.010.) 

As a result of the above, the final version of “Former Zoning District” Column cell for 
MU-3 should read: 
“CB-2/MU-2 located north of 10th Street, CB-2/MU-2 located south of 13th and west of 
Texas Avenue, CB-3, CB-4/MU-4, CB-6/MU-6, HC located within the CBD TIF” 

i See Sec%on 39.02.003 Zoning District Establishment 
ii See Subsec%on 39.02.005.d General (MU-3) 
iii See Sec%on 39.02.16 

35

150197
Highlight

150197
Highlight



City of Lubbock, TX | Unified Development Code 1

CHAPTER 39 – UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC)

ARTICLE 39.02: ZONING DISTRICTS AND LAND USES

Division 2.2 Zoning Districts and Standards
 

Section 39.02.005 Base Mixed-Use Districts
 

Subsection 39.02.005.e Depot (MU-4)

Example of restaurant with outdoor dining in MU-4 Depot district Example of commercial storefronts in MU-4 Depot district

1. Overview
The MU-4 Depot district is a unique and diverse area of downtown 
Lubbock which primarily serves as an entertainment district with art 
galleries as well as artisan or micromanufacturing. Priority is placed 
on optimizing the physical characteristics of the built environment 
for increased walkability and a vibrant center building upon the 
historic character of Lubbock’s neighborhood main streets. To 
maximize vibrancy and walkability, this district permits an intensity 
and mix of uses that are already in existence along Buddy Holly 
Avenue. This district supports the small-scale fine-grained character 
of the historic neighborhoods with a mix of attached and detached 
mixed-use buildings on small lots. Buildings are close to the 
sidewalk and off-street parking is screened from public spaces. 

Example of outdoor dining and farmers' market in MU-4 Depot district

36

Mont McClendon
Exhibit  “A”



21ST ST

A
V

E
 A

BROADWAY

A
V

E
Q

19TH ST A
V

E
L

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
V

A
V

E
 P

C
E

S
A

R
E

CHAVEZ DR

E 19TH ST

T
E

X
A

S
 A

V

N
 A

V
E

 Q
 D

R

I2
7

A
V

E
 N

2ND ST

MARSHA SHARP

E 13TH ST

22ND ST

A
V

E
 Y

CLOVIS RD

MUNICIPAL DR

AUBURN ST
N

 U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
V

MAIN ST

A
V

E
 X

A
V

E
 E

9TH ST

A
V

E
 U

C
R

IC
K

E
T

S
A

V

E  23RD ST

A
V

E
 F

 P
R

A
V

E
 B

5TH ST
A

V
E

 T

A
S

H
 A

V

3RD ST

N
I27

E MARSHA SHARP

B
IR

C
H

 A
V

E 26TH ST

6TH ST

E 20TH ST

S
H

E
R

M
A

N
 A

V

SANTA FE D
R

N
 T

E
M

P
L

E
 A

V

A
V

E
 C

B
U

D
D

Y
 H

O
L

L
Y

 A
V

A
V

E
 O

1ST ST

2ND PL

18TH ST

BAYLOR ST

24TH PL

T
E

M
P

L
E

 A
VV

E
R

N
O

N
 A

V

W
A

C
O

 A
V

U
V

A
L

D
E

 A
V

A
V

E
 R

A
V

E
 V

A
V

E
 J

A
V

E
K

A
V

E
 S

A
V

E
 G

A
V

E
 W

A
V

E
 M

E

SK
YLIN

E
D

R

A
V

E
 F

3RD PL

10TH ST

16TH ST

15TH ST

17TH ST

13TH ST

23RD ST

24TH ST

25TH ST

27TH ST

26TH ST

7TH ST

14TH ST

GLENNA GOODACRE BD

P
A

R
IS

 A
V

N
 W

A
C

O
 A

V

SAN

JO
S

E

DR

MAC DAVIS LN

20TH ST

N
 U

V
A

L
D

E
 A

V

N
V

E
R

N
O

N
A

V

D
IX

IE
 D

R

1ST PL

8TH ST

22ND PL

Date Exported: September 2023

0 500 1000 1500 2000
Feet

UDC Zoning

Downtown

±

CBD TIF

Zoning Districts
Auto-Urban Commercial

General Industrial

Heavy Commercial

High Density Residential

Industrial Park

Light Industrial

Medium Density Residential

West Broadway

Broadway

General

Civic Center

Neighborhood Commercial

Office

Low Density Single Family



Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

09-07-2023 

6. Other Business 

  6.1  Consideration by the Planning and Zoning Commission of a final report to the Lubbock  

   City Council on amendments to the Unified Development Code, Zoning Map, and  

   Documentation to be submitted with Plat Applications. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 1, related to Lot Density and Dimensions.  

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY clarified that option (b) further defines what the minimum lot area should be 

for party-wall style garden offices. He asked Terry Holeman of Hugo Reed and Associates to elaborate. 

 

TERRY HOLEMAN stated they have purposely platted very narrow tracts so they could be sold in 

increments and grouped back together. That is no longer allowed. This is where you have truly narrow 

lots or purposeful 20-foot wide lots for party-wall style construction. 

 

JAMES BELL wanted to hear staff thoughts. 

 

KRISTEN SAGER stated the potential issue developers may run into is in the building code. The 

building will have restrictions in terms of firewalls and openings, especially if the building is constructed 

directly on the property lines. 

 

On Amendment 1, the consensus of the commission was to choose 1 (b) and (c). 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 2, related to Accessory Dwelling Units. He explained staff added 

the part where it states the property owner must show their accessory dwelling unit was built prior to 

November 20, 1980. The McClendon/Holeman recommend no change to the current language. It would 

be almost impossible to get documentation that far back.  

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY asked if making no change meant that in the UDC, your accessory dwelling 

unit is either legal or it is not. 

 

DIRECTOR OF PLANNING KRISTEN SAGER noted that the date was originally added in to help 

clarify what is considered a legal structure. If the date is removed, then anything in existence at the time 

of the UDC becomes non-conforming whether it was built legally or not. Then you just enforce the UDC 

moving forward. The staff proposed amendment states your structure had to have been built legally under 

the former code prior to 1980. If we leave the language as is, it will allow everything built illegally since 

then to become non-conforming and continue being used. That is an option. It depends on whether you 

want the cut off at 1980 or 2023. 

 

RENEE CAGE stated the cut off should be in 2023. We have already established most people won't be 

able to get the necessary documentation. 

 

JAMES BELL stated that what Renee said is true, but that also means that some people get away with 

building illegally. You are letting people who built illegally still benefit. 

 

RENEE CAGE stated that we cannot go back and fix these past situations, so we should stick to the 

2023 date and go forward from there.  



 

JORDAN WHEATLEY clarified with staff that for the commission to go with option b, they are saying 

that they accept every ADU up to today and going forward, one must comply with the UDC and its 

setbacks and requirements.  

 

BRANDON HARDAWAY stated that it is almost impossible to get an ADU now. He asked staff if it 

is just as difficult under the UDC. 

 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER advised the UDC requires a minimum 10,000 square 

foot lot in order to have an accessory dwelling unit, and the majority of residential lots are less than 

10,000 square feet. 

 

BRANDON HARDAWAY recommended option (b), to make a clean break and move forward.  

 

On Amendment 2, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (b).  

 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 3, Signs Exempt from Regulation, Generally. He noted this was a 

wording mistake, and just needs the clean-up. All commission members noted their approval. 

 

On Amendment 3, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (a) 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 4, Reduction Overlay.  

 

JAMES BELL asked staff for the difference in the staff proposed amendment and the 

McClendon/Holeman amendment. 

 

KRISTEN SAGER noted the proposal from the McClendon/Holeman group is to add language back to 

the Overlay District, which was struck by staff. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER asked if it was staff that struck "Approval of a Reduction Overlay shall not require 

approval of the Zoning Board of Adjustments". 

 

KRISTEN SAGER responded yes, but it still won't be required. It was just redundant. 

 

JAMES BELL asked about the language that says "The Reduction Overlay District may prohibit 

billboards even if allowed in the base zoning district…" 

 

KRISTEN SAGER noted that one was struck because billboards are not a permitted use in any district; 

they require approval of a specific use. This would prohibit someone from even making the request, 

which is not the intent of this district. The purpose of this district is to restrict what is permitted in the 

base zoning district.  

 

TERRY HOLEMAN stated one needs to think in terms of what an RO district is supposed to be. You 

have a baseline set of things that are allowed in a zoning district. A developer says he wants to do an RO 

District, because he wants to further refine what he'd like his development to look like. The option for a 

Specific Use for billboards is still available in the LI and GI zoning districts. This also allows a developer, 

even in those LI and GI districts, to set the hammer down and say no to billboards. 

 



KRISTEN SAGER advised the RO District is to restrict what's allowed in the base zoning district. A 

Specific Use requires a whole new request, a hearing, and approval by the City Council. If you restrict 

someone from even asking for a Specific Use, where the intent of the Overlay is to restrict what is 

allowed in the base zoning, those are very different things.  

 

TERRI MORRIS noted that everyone voted and decided no billboards, so ROs should be allowed to 

say no to billboards as well. That way we don't have to hear these cases. CHAIR SAWYER agreed. 

 

BRANDON HARDAWAY added it's a matter of perspective. He isn't the pro-billboard guy, but 

everything is up for discussion. Everything is negotiable. I understand this is an added fail-safe, but this 

seems like you are hand-cuffing them now too. RENEE CAGE added that it is overkill. 

 

JAMES BELL stated billboards are a specific use in LI and GI. They can come ask, but that doesn't 

mean they are going to get it. BRANDON HARDAWAY stated he is fine with the ask. Let them have 

a discussion. That is part of the process. 

 

TERRY HOLEMAN added that it is becoming more and more difficult to enforce deed restrictions. 

We're looking for opportunities to avoid having to go to a court of law to enforce deed restrictions. It 

removes it out of a "private fuss" and gets it into the code, which is much easier to track. 

 

On Amendment 4, the consensus of the commission is to choose options (a) and (c). 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 5, related to Subdivision Standards. 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY advised the commission could go through all of the many line items, but he 

has been hearing that these items are just some clean up things the McClendon/Holeman group would 

like to make permanent. 

 

KELLI LEISURE advised the state law requires plats to go to the Planning and Zoning Commission 

for appeals. It was an oversight on her part in changing the platting requirements. Option 5b is okay. 

 

CHAI SAWYER went through each item, checking with City staff to ensure they had no problem with 

the items. 

 

On Amendment 5, the consensus of the commission is to choose option 5 (a-j). 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 6, regarding Notification Boundary of the Public Notice. He added 

there were legal issues that came up, and asked Kelli to clarify what those were in relation to the 

notification boundary.  

 

KELLI LEISURE stated the state requires the City to notify every property owner within a 200-foot 

distance from the subject property. Those are the only ones whose letters are considered if there needs 

to be a super majority vote at City Council. The others would be the ones 201 feet to 400 feet. They are 

treated the same as anybody coming to a city council meeting. They aren't weighted the same. 

 

RENEE CAGE stated her understanding is this gives out those extra notices to spread the word of cases 

instead of the word of mouth that has been happening.  

 



SUSAN TOMLINSON stated she thinks that's a good thing. It's the courteous thing to do. It goes a long 

way for the City to do this sort of reaching out and saying we care what you think instead of them coming 

here saying I can't believe you left me out of this conversation. She doesn't see the downside to spreading 

it to 400 feet, except maybe a little more work. 

 

KRISTEN SAGER stated the trigger for the super majority vote is only what's within the 200-foot 

boundary, meaning it's double the number of notices. That means double the cost of paper and mailings, 

postage and all that entails. It's also keeping track of the two separate boundaries. Those are the cons.  

 

SUSAN TOMLINSON asked staff if there would be two boundary lines on the maps so the commission 

can tell which ones are from the 200’ boundary, and staff replied in the affirmative.  

 

RENEE CAGE added a lot of times there are only a handful of properties within a boundary map, but 

the decision could impact a lot more properties. JAMES BELL stated the point of hearings are to let 

people's voice be heard.  

 

CHAIR SAWYER stated he is not in favor of adding the extra boundary. Word of mouth works better 

than mailing out a piece of paper. Half the people in the 200-foot radius are mailed a notice and they 

never get it. 

 

AVIRAJ PATEL asked if there was another means of reaching out and Legal replied in the negative.  

 

On Amendment 6, the commission was split but chose to go with option 6(a). 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 7, the definition of a family. One citizen proposed striking the 

definition to read a family consists of two or more rather than three or more. Both the City staff and the 

McClendon/Holeman group agree the definition should be left as is. 

 

TERRI MORRIS stated in today's world the definition of family is a whole lot broader than it's ever 

been. Two divorced people living together with a child can be a problem sometimes. She hears a lot that 

the definition is for enforcement purposes, but it also could be used to target someone. She believes we 

should look at the full picture and at what today's society accepts the definition of family to be. We have 

to be careful to not alienate groups of people as well. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER replied that Ms. Morris has a good point, but the same applies to two. He has 

personal experience with this which is why he is leaning on the definition going back to no more than 

two unrelated people. The definition is not enforced. It is typically used whenever there's a nuisance in 

a highly rented neighborhood. The majority of cases that he has experienced are smaller homes that were 

built in the 40s or 50s. The increase of cars for one home, where those cars are parking on the grass or 

on both sides of the street, makes them a nuisance. To Terri's point, the definition can be used to target 

anybody, but it's rare and happens whether the definition reads two or three. 

 

RENEE CAGE stated that there are special circumstances where the abuse of the definition can happen, 

but even if it is few and far between, it is still wrong. Today's economy is forcing some people to have 

to move in together to be able to afford to live. This can be used to target a certain color of individuals 

or students, and we need to be careful.  

 

BRANDON HARDAWAY stated that if "family" has to be defined, leaving it at three is the better 

option, for the reasons already listed. 



 

On Amendment 7, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (c). 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 8, related to the Land Use Matrix. The request is to amend from 

permitted use to specific use in districts IP, LI, and GI. The McClendon/Holeman group recommend no 

change to the current language. 

 

JAMES BELL agrees with staff on the specific use. People should have to come in and bring their case. 

It's a nod to saying we respect the neighbors opinions.  

 

On Amendment 8, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (a). 

  

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 9, Residential Carport. He noted there was one recommendation 

from City staff.  

 

JAMES BELL asked if the carports have to be the same facing of the main structure and not metal. Staff 

replied in the affirmative. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER noted this to be increasing the allowed length of carports and asked if there was any 

opposition. All members replied in the negative. 

 

On Amendment 9, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (a). 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 10, High Density Residential. Lot density and dimensions as well 

as the zoning map. Staff does not have any proposed amendments. The McClendon/Holeman group 

requests no change to the current language. Citizens Cindi Pratas and Richard Murphy want to add a 

limit on vertical mixed-use neighborhoods. The standard for the vertical mixed-use and the mixed-use 

subdivision shall not apply on a block containing one or more lots zoned RE, SF-1, or SF-2. Stephen 

Faulk recommended amending Section 39.02.004 to limit the maximum building height for vertical 

mixed-use to 45 feet and allow additional height for vertical mixed-use with approval of a specific use.  

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY advised the current HDR district prohibits mixed housing types in a standard 

block face. He asked staff to confirm. 

 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER replied the UDC prohibits mixing housing types on a 

block face. If there are single-family homes, duplexes, garden homes, or cottage homes on a block face, 

you cannot drop in apartments. 

 

JAMES BELL asked if they are trying to make the change recommending block instead of block face. 

Staff replied in the affirmative. 

 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER responded the UDC defines, "The block is the 

aggregate of private lots and rear alleys circumscribed by the streets." A block face is defined as one side 

of a street between two connective features intersecting the street. The features can be other streets or 

boundaries of standard geographic areas such as park land, bulb of a cul-de-sac, or other right-of-way 

features.” 

 



ASSISSTANT CITY ATTORNEY KELLI LEISURE noted that an easy way to think of it would be 

that a block would be the properties that share an alley that are bound by streets. A block face is just 

from one intersection to the other, or to some other feature on just that one side. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER stated that this is so tailored to the fine point, that he is having trouble making this 

fit the entire city. BRANDON HARDAWAY said he agreed. It should not be limited to forty-five feet, 

as a blanket statement. JORDAN WHEATLEY agreed that it puts a cap on the whole city, which he 

does not like. 

 

SUSAN TOMLINSON stated there is also a concern of instances where you could have a seventy-five 

foot building appearing in a mixed-use neighborhood up against single family dwellings. This is a good 

old-fashioned compromise. We acknowledge that there might be some apartment buildings being built 

in these areas, so they can only go up forty-five feet. In those instances where a seventy-five foot 

apartment building would be appropriate, you can ask for a specific use. It's not a blanket statement that 

forbids that from ever being an option. 

 

BRANDON HARDAWAY countered that this particular amendment feels like it is about a couple of 

specific cases that have come before the commission recently. 

 

TERRI MORRIS stated that without adding this in, it is like saying the City Council's vote didn't matter.  

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY stated that both cases would have had just as many in opposition, even at forty-

five feet. CHAIR SAWYER stated it is hard to get behind something that feels like it is tailored to two 

specific cases.  

 

SUSAN TOMLINSON asked staff to clarify her understanding that without this amendment, someone 

would be allowed to build the same type of structure that was previously voted down by City Council, 

because they have HDR zoning now.  

 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER replied that if it is zoned HDR already, and they don't 

need a zone change, they could construct a vertical mixed-use development with these regulations. 

However, it also has a fifty-foot rear setback adjacent to residential. So, there are additional precautions. 

 

SUSAN TOMLINSON stated this goes against what was intended to happen. It subverts something that 

City Council voted on. 

 

BRANDON HARDAWAY noted that right or wrong, the commission's job is not to agree with City 

Council, but to merely provide a recommendation. 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY mentioned the additional setbacks that are in place to protect another project 

like the Tech Terrace one from now being able to come in with the exact plans for a building and be able 

to get it built just because it's HDR. 

 

JAMES BELL reiterated this is a recommendation to City Council and at that point they will have their 

own say. 

 

SUSAN TOMLINSON noted that at least with the specific use, they have to come to a Planning and 

Zoning meeting with that proposal, and the commission then can decide if it's appropriate for the 

location. 



 

RENEE CAGE asked how the seventy-five foot stipulation was reached in the UDC.  

 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER replied with if you're going to construct only 

apartments, you have that forty-five foot height limit. For a mixed-use scenario, taking into consideration 

typically your first floor is going to be that retail commercial space with a 15 foot ceiling, and add to 

that, the four stories of apartments on top. 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY asked staff if the zoning on the block adjacent to South Overton was R-1.   

 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER responded that those properties were zoned A-1. A-1 

will come over as MDR, not HDR. They would still need a zone change. 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY remarked he is in support of option (a), and James Bell agreed. 

 

On Amendment 10, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (a). 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 11, Bufferyard Landscaping. City Staff had no proposed 

amendments and the McClendon/Holeman group had this item as no change to the current language. 

 

On Amendment 11, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (a). 

 

CHAIR SAWYER read Amendment 12, Minimum Connection Spacing by Street classification. City 

staff recommends changing the language to “edge to edge”. Terry Holeman proposed amending the table 

to state “measure between the nearest edges of driveway throats, or provide graphics similar to what is 

included in the TxDOT Access Management manual." This removes any ambiguity. 

JAMES BELL asked staff if they were in agreement with the McClendon/Holeman version, and staff 

responded in the affirmative. 

 

On Amendment 12, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (b). 

 

CHAIR SAWYER mentioned Amendments 13 through 17 were made from the floor at the joint 

hearing. He mentioned that without staff, Terry Holeman, Mont McClendon, or the City Legal 

Department having time to review and communicate their opinion on these items, the commission is 

voting blindly. He asked staff if the Commission had authority to comment on the recommended 

amendments from Adam Hernandez.  

 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KRISTEN SAGER advised the Commission can make changes to the 

zoning map, but the proposed amendment is vague. Staff does not have specific properties to show the 

commission, so if that is something the commission wanted, staff would need time to research and put 

that together. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER asked the commission members if they were comfortable discussing these items 

without any commentary from City staff. 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY reminded the Commission, there are four more reviews coming up. Two semi-

annual reviews for two years. At the next review, it needs to be communicated that requested 

amendments need to go through City staff before they come to the Commission for a vote. 

 



BRANDON HARDAWAY agreed. Those on the floor should be made aware they can say whatever 

they want to say, but the Commission will not vote on it before staff has a chance to look at it.  

 

CHAIR SAWYER asked the Commission members if they wanted to get into these last items or give 

staff a chance to review them first. The consensus was to let staff have a chance to review, with the 

exception of Amendment 14, which was touched on at the last hearing.  

 

JAMES BELL noted Amendment 14 takes the six mixed-use districts and combines them into three  

consolidated districts. He asked staff if they supported the amendment and staff replied in the affirmative. 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY noted he agreed with the recommendation. 

 

On Amendment 14, the consensus of the commission is to choose option (a). 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY asked Legal if the vote today on these last few amendments could be to delay 

addressing those until after the zoning map analysis has been complete. 

 

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY KELLI LEISURE advised the Commission will either approve or 

deny each of these items. They cannot postpone part of the meeting.  

 

SUSAN TOMLINSON asked if anything the Commission does not want to include as an amendment 

should be denied today. ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY KELLI LEISURE replied that was correct.  

 

CHAIR SAWYER noted the UDC goes into effect on October 1, 2023 as approved on May 9, 2023.  

 

The consensus for Amendments 13 and 15-17 is to recommend denial. 

In the matter of Other Business a motion was made by JAMES BELL to approve Amendment 1- 

items b and c, Amendment 2- item b, Amendment 3- item a, Amendment 4- a and c, Amendment 

5- items a through j, Amendment 6- item a, Amendment 7- item c, Amendment 8- item a, 

Amendment 9- item a, Amendment 10- item a, Amendment 11- item a, Amendment 12- item b, 

Amendment 14- item a, and denial of Amendments 13, 15, 16, and 17. The motion was seconded by 

BRANDON HARDAWAY to approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 

0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 
 


	Agenda
	1.02._11857
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_8.30.2023 S Joint PandZ
	       ATT_9.5.2023 S
	       ATT_9.12.2023
	5.01.__Budget Amendment 35
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 35
	5.02.__Budget Amendment 1 
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 1
	5.03.__Reimbursement Resolution
	       ATT_Reimbursement Resolution
	5.04.__Investment Policy & Strategy
	       ATT_Resolution - Investment Policy
	       ATT_FY24 Investment Policy
	City of Lubbock, TX Finance Department
	Scope
	Objectives
	Responsibility and Control
	Investment Portfolio
	Changes in Statutes, Ordinances or Procedures
	Performance Review
	Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

	       ATT_FY24 Investment Strategy
	Purpose of the Strategic Asset Allocation and Investment Structure
	Investment Strategy
	Liquidity Policy
	Strategic Operating Investment targets and ranges with IPIS limitations and current allocation

	5.05.__LP&L Property Ins
	       ATT_Resolution - LPandL Coverage
	       ATT_LPandL Property
	5.06.__West Milwaukee Ridge - Alley Closure
	       ATT_Ordinance - West Milwaukee Ridge
	       ATT_GIS Map West Milwaukee Ridge
	5.07.__Drainage Deeds 66th St. Drainage Parcels 74&74A
	       ATT_Resolution - Parcels 74  74-A
	       ATT_Special Warranty Deed - Parcels 74  74-A
	       ATT_GIS Map 66th St. Drainage - Parcel 74 and 74A
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92654 DETAIL
	5.08.__Stree and Public Use Dedication Deed - Schroeder
	       ATT_Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds - Cogdell
	       ATT_Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds - Cogdell
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail 
	5.09.__Right of Way Deed 98th Street Parcel 34 
	       ATT_Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Schroeder
	       ATT_Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Schroeder
	       ATT_Parcel 34 GIS map
	       ATT_CIP 92811 Cost Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	5.10.__Right of Way Deed 98th Street Parcel 35
	       ATT_Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Mitchell
	       ATT_Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Mitchell
	       ATT_Parcel 35 GIS map
	       ATT_CIP 92811 Detail
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	5.11.__Contract 17579 - Deerwood Construction 
	       ATT_Resolution 17579 - Deerwood Construction Inc
	       ATT_Contract 17579 - Deerwood Construction Inc
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail 92750
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet - ITB 23-17665-DH, Dearwood
	5.12.__Contract 17581 with MH Civil Constructors, Inc. for Water Line Change Out Cowan Addition
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract 
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_Budget Detail 
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	5.13.__Block 130 Easement and Right-of-Way Closures
	       ATT_Ordinance - Block 130, Original Town
	       ATT_Exhibit A - All Easements and ROW Closure
	       ATT_Map - Block 130, Original Town of Lubbock
	5.14.__ Professional Services Agreement 17618, with Freese & Nichols, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Professional Service Agreement
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.15.__Professional Service Agreement 17632, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for design services associated with the 114th Street, Frankford to Slide -22B Capital Improvements Project.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Professional Service Contract 
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.16.__Chapter 22- Ordinance Update
	       ATT_Amended Ordinance Chapter 22
	5.17.__USGS FY2023-24 Joint Funding Agreement- Rain & Stream Flow Gauging Services
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement 
	5.18.__East 33rd and Juniper pavement rebuild
	       ATT_Resolution - West Texas Paving
	       ATT_Contract - West Texas Paving
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Map
	5.19.__Traffic Paint - Ennis-Flint, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Project Summary
	5.20.__Residential Dumpsters
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Project Summary
	5.21.__Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board Amendment
	       ATT_Ordinance - Model Codes and Construction Advisory Board
	5.22.__Lubbock Animal Shelter Fencing Project
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Work Order
	5.23.__CDBG HUD Funding Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	5.24.__ESG HUD Funding Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	5.25.__HOME HUD Funding Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	5.26.__Amendment 15 - RS&H, Inc. Mechanical Equipment Replacement
	       ATT_Resolution - Amendment 15 RSandH, Inc.
	       ATT_Amendment 15 RSandH, Inc.
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_92839  CIP Detail
	5.27.__Runway Rubber Removal at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution 17593 - Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC
	       ATT_Contract 17593 - Hi-Lite Airfield Services, LLC
	5.28.__Ratify FTA FY 2022 Section 5339(c) Low-No Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution - Citibus Grant for Electric Buses
	       ATT_FTA FY 22 Section 5339(c) Grant
	5.29.__Dailey & Wells Communications - Radio System - Microwave Network Upgrade
	       ATT_Dailey Wells Communications _ Resolution PO 326000024
	       ATT_PO Dailey Wells
	       ATT_CIP 92780 _Radio System Upgrade
	5.30.__56 City Vehicles and 20 Citibus Vehciles
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	5.31.__ZC 59-B
	       ATT_8.4 ZC59-B_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.4 ZC59-B_Report
	       ATT_8.4 ZC59-B_Documentation
	5.1 Zone Case 59-B Packet
	Zone Case 59-B Case Information
	59B_1locator

	59-B Response map
	5.1 Zone Case 59-B Packet
	59B_imag2
	59B_3zoning
	59B_4flup
	59-B Photos
	59-B Application
	59b letter 1

	59b letters 2-3

	5.32.__ZC 0092-A
	       ATT_8.5 ZC0092-A_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.5 ZC0092-A_Report
	       ATT_8.5 ZC0092-A_Documentation
	5.33.__ZC 3488
	       ATT_8.7 ZC3488_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.7 ZC3488_Report
	       ATT_8.7 ZC3488_Documentation
	5.34.__ZC 3351-B
	       ATT_8.8 ZC3351-B_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.8 ZC3351-B_Report
	       ATT_8.8 ZC3351-B_Documentation
	AGENDA NUMBER_3351-B PACKET.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	5.35.__ZC 3490
	       ATT_8.9 ZC3490_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.9 ZC3490_Report
	       ATT_8.9 ZC3490_Documentation
	Slide Number 1

	5.36.__ZC 2968-D
	       ATT_8.10 ZC2968-D_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.10 ZC2968-D_Report
	       ATT_8.10 ZC2968-D_Documentation
	AGENDA NUMBER_2968 PACKET.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	5.37.__ZC 3058-E
	       ATT_8.11 ZC3058-E_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.11 ZC3058-E_Report
	       ATT_8.11 ZC3058-E_Documentation
	5.38.__ZC 3489
	       ATT_8.13 ZC3489_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.13 ZC3489_Report
	       ATT_8.13 ZC3489_Documentation
	5.39.__ZC 3032-B
	       ATT_8.14 ZC3032-B_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.14 ZC3032-B_Report
	       ATT_8.14 ZC3032-B_Documentation
	Staff Report 3032-B
	Case Information 3032-B
	3032B_1locator
	3032B_imag2
	3032B_3zoning
	3032B_4flup
	Photo's 3032-B
	Photo's 3032-B - Copy
	Application and documents.pdf
	Application and documents

	5.40.__ZC 2538-KK
	       ATT_8.15 ZC2538-KK_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.15 ZC2538-KK_Report
	       ATT_8.15 ZC2538-KK_Documentation
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3


	6.01.__LCAD Nominations
	       ATT_LCAD Nomination Resolution
	       ATT_LCAD Letter - 2023
	6.02.__ZC 3205-A
	       ATT_8.12 ZC3205-A_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.12 ZC3205-A_Report
	Council District 5
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 December 4, 2008, Ordinance No. 2008-O0104: The subject property was annexed into City Limits and zoned Transition District (T).
	 May 9, 2013, Zone Case 3205, Ordinance No. 2013-O0048: The subject property was zoned from T to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC).
	 September 7, 2023, Zone Case 3205-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Local Retail District (C-2) by a vote of 7-1-0.
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	The subject property is currently unplatted.
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts

	       ATT_8.12 ZC3205-A Documentation
	6.03.__ZC 3175-G
	       ATT_8.16 ZC3175-G_Ordinance
	       ATT_8.16 ZC3175-G_Report
	       ATT_8.16 ZC3175-G_Documentation
	Zone Case 3175-g Case Information
	3175-g Response map2
	3175G_1locator
	3175G_imag2
	3175G_3zoning
	3175G_4flup
	3175-G Photos
	5914 Erskine PZC Application.pdf
	PZC Application
	PZC Application Checklist

	5914 Erskine PZC Letter.pdf
	5914 Erskine M&B 3175-G.pdf
	Zone case
	3175g letter 2
	3175 letters 1-4
	3175 EMAIL LETTER 1
	3175 EMAIL LETTER 2
	3175 EMAIL LETTER 3
	3175 new letter
	letter

	6.04.__Block 101, Alley Closure 
	       ATT_Ordinance - Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Map - Block 101, Original Town of Lubbock
	6.05.__UDC Amendments
	       ATT_Ordinance - UDC Amendments
	       ATT_Proposed UDC Amendments
	       ATT_Draft PZC Minutes - UDC Amendments

